
WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
HILLVIEW MIDDLE SCHOOL

April 3,2018
Mission Statement: Recognizing the exceptionalism of every child, the mission of Westside Union School District is

to educate all students to universally high levels of academic competence. We are committed to comprehensive

systems of instructional delivery that include research-based best practices to assure this outcome by "pointing the

way, providing the path" to success.

Vision Statement: Our vision is to graduate students who have acquired the knowledge, skills and attitudes

necessary to achieve significant career, educational, civic and personal goals, which will enrich our society as

positive role models and responsible citizens.

5:00 p.m. - Regular Session
Adjourned to Closed Session
6:00 p.m. - Reconvene to Regular
Session

CALL TO ORDER p.m.

OPEN SESSION p.m
A. Flag Salute
B. Roll Call

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Johr Curiel
Patricia Shaw
Linda Jones

Jennifer Navarro
Steve DeMarzio

SUPERINTENDENT
Regina Rossall

ITEMS FROM THE FLOOR
Please submit a yellow "Request To Speak To The Board of Trustees" in the folder on the exhibit table for
agenda and non-agenda items to the Secretary of the Board prior to the meeting. Not more than three (3)

minutes are to be allotted to any one (1) speaker, no more than twenty (20) minutes on the same subject.

This portion of the agenda is for presentations to the Board regarding closed session items only. This is not

a question and answer period where the Board enters into dialogue. Testimony is not protected from

damage claims for libel. Public Charges or allegations may result in legal action being brought by those

individuals. If you have questions for the Board, please provide the Board President with a copy and an

administrator will provide answers at a later date.

III. CLoSED SESSIoN
Moved by Seconded by

Ayes: Noes: Abstain:_

Opened:_ Closed:_

a. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Gov't. Code $54957.6)

b. Existing/Anticipated/Pending Litigation (Gov't Code $54956.9)
c. Conference with Real Property Negotiator

d. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Appointment (Gov't Code $54957)

e. Pupil Personnel (Ed Code 35146 and 48918)

1

3-20-18



tv.

V.

vt.

vil

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AT p.m.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION

PRESENTATIONS
A. Quartz Hill Site Presentations and Employee Recognitions

HEAzuNG SES SION/STAFF REPORTS
A. Board Comments
B. Staff Reports

l. Assistant SuperintendentAdministrative Services
2. Assistant Superintendent Educational Services
3. DeputySuperintendent
4. Superintendent

PERSONAL APPEARANCES
A. Westside Union Teachers Association Representatives
B. California School Employees Association Representatives
C. Parent Teacher Association Representatives
D. West Antelope Valley Educational Foundation Representatives

ITEMS FROM THE FLOOR
Please submit a yellow "Request To Speak To The Board of Trustees" in the folder on the exhibit table for
agenda and non-agenda items to the Secretary of the Board prior to the meeting. Not more than three (3)
minutes are to be allotted to any one (1) speaker, no more than twenty (20) minutes on the same subject.
This is not a question and answer period where the Board enters into dialogue. Testimony is not protected

from damage claims for libel. Public Charges or allegations may result ir legal action being brought by
those individuals. If you have questions for the Board, please provide the Board President with a copy and

an administrator will provide answers at a later date.

PUBLIC HEARING
A. A hearing to receive public input on the Westside Union School District Reopeners to Vy'estside

Union Teachers Association (WUTA)

Closed

A hearing to receive public input on California School Employees Association (CSEA) Reopeners

to Westside Union School Dishict

Closed

A hearing to receive public input on Vy'estside Union School District Reopeners to California
School Employees Association (CSEA)

Closed

D. A hearing to receive public input on the School Facilities Need Analysis

Opened_ Closed

X

vilt

IX

B

C

BUSINESS SESSION
A. Organizational/Governance

1. Agenda

Seconded by

Goal#

2

XI

Moved by

Item 1

4-3-1 8



To approve the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of
April 3, 2018

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Actions proposed for the Consent Calendar, are items with adopted policies and

approved practices of the District and are deemed routine in nature. They will be

acted upon in one motion, without discussions, unless members of the Board request
an item's removal. The item will then be removed fi'om the motion to approve and

after the approval of the consent agenda the item(s) will be heard.

Consent
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 20,2018
b. FundraisingAuthorization
c. Williams Uniform Complaint Quafterly Report
d. Personnel Report
e. Purchase Orders
f. Consultant/ContractSchedule

C. Conference/Workshop Schedule

Moved by Seconded bv

Approval of the Consent Items as presented

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain :_

2

Ttems2a -2g

Item 3

Goal #

J

5

Resolution l8-41, Biennial Governing Board Member
Elections - November 6,2018

4

Moved by _ Seconded by

Approval of Resolution 18-41, Biennial Governing Board
Member Elections - November 6,2018

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Fees for Governing Board Member Election, November 6, Item 4
2018

Moved by _ Seconded by _

Approval of the Fees for Governing Board Member
Election, November 6, 2018

Ayes :_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Discussion Item
. Governance

a
-)

Item 5

4-3-1 8



B Educational Services
6. Revised Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

¡ BP/AR 0000, Vision
o E 0420.41 , Charter School Oversight
¡ BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures
. BP/AR 5022, Student and Family Privacy Rights
r BP/E 5745.6, Parental Notifications
¡ BP 6162.5, Student Assessment
o BP/E 6161.1, Selection and Evaluation of

Instructional Materials
o BP/AR 6171, Title I Programs

Moved by Seconded by

Approval of the first reading of the revised Board Policies
and Administrative Regulations

Ayes: Noes:_ Abstain:_

Personnel
l. Westside Uuion School District Reopeners to Westside

Union Teachers Association (WUTA)

Moved by Seconded by

Approval of Vy'estside Union School District Reopeners to
Vy'estside Union Teachers Association (WUTA)

Ayes :_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

California School Employees Association (CSEA)
Reopeners to Westside Union School District

Moved bv Seconded by

Approval of California School Employees Association
(CSEA) Reopeners to Westside Union School District

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Westside Union School District Reopeners to California
School Employees Association

Moved by Seconded by

Approval of Westside Union School District Reopeners to
California School Employees Association (CSEA)

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Item 6

Item 7

Item I

Item 9

Goal #

c.

9

4

4-3-18



D

10. Provisional Intern Permit (PIP)

Moved by Seconded by

Approval of the Provisional lntern Permit (PIP)

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

Business
1 l. Resolution l8-42, School Facilities Need Analysis

Moved by Seconded by _

Approval of Resolution 18-42, School Facilities Need
Analysis

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

12 Resolution l8-43, Imposing Elementary School District
Level I Fees with Fee-Sharing Agreement; Approval of
CEQA Exemption

Moved by Seconded by

Approval of Resolution l8-43, Imposing Elementary
School District Level I Fees with Fee-Sharing Agreement;
Approval of CEQA Exemption

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

t3 Formation of Community Facilities District 2018-1 and

Resolutions:
¡ 18-44,Intention to Form CFD
¡ 18-45, To Incur Debt
t 18-46, Approve Boundary Map

Moved by Seconded by _

Approval of Formation of Community Facilities District
2018-l and Resolutions 18-44, 18-45 and l8-46

Ayes: Noes:_ Abstain:_

14 Board Policies and Administrative Regulation
¡ BP 3515.7 , Firearms on School Grounds
. BP/AR 3517, Facilities Inspection

Seconded by _

Item 10

Item ll

Item 12

Item 13

Item 14

Goal #

5

Moved by

4-3-r8



Approval ofthe first reading ofthe revised and deleted

Board Policies and Administrative Regulation

Ayes:_ Noes:_ Abstain:_

xil INFORMATION SESSION
A. Items From The Floor - Continued
B. Dates to Remember:

l. Regular Meeting on April 11 ,2018
2. Regular Meeting on May 1, 2018

C. Board Comments - Continued

xilr NEW BUSINESS
Future Board Meeting Items

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII ADJOURNMENT
There being no fuilher business to come before the Board, the regular meeting of April 3, 201 8, is

adjourned at p.m. by the Board President.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the Board meeting

room or to otherwise parlicipate at this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact Tonya Williams
at (661) 722-0716. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable

arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting room.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board

regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection on the District Web Site,

www.westside.kl2.ca.us or in the District Offlrce locate d at 41914 50tl' St. West, Quattz Hill, CA 93 536 during

normal business hours (8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.).

CLOSED SESSION - Continued

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION at _ P.m.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION

6

4-3-18



3

1

2

5

6

Core Beliefs and Board Goals
2017 -2018

The District uses data to create a learning-oriented culture for both staff and students

which defines success in terms of improvement and progress.

WE BELIEVE THAT OUR TEACHERS AND STAFF ARE OUR MOST VALUABLE ASSETS

AND RESOURCES

WE OPERATE WITH TRANSPARENCY, TRUST AND INTEGRITY, GOVERNING IN A
DIGNIFIED, PROFESSIONAL MANNER, TREATING EVERYONE WITH CIVIITY AND

RESPECT

WE ARE ABSOLUTELY COMMITTED TO PROVIDING A SAFE, DISTINGUISHED AND

ENGAGING LEARNING ENVIRONMENT THAT ENSURES ALL STUDENTS LEARN TO

THEIR HIGHEST POTENTIAL

ôp A. Build the capacity of board and district staff in developing and monitoring data related to

goals and priorities specifically in the area of cultural responsiveness and educational equity

B. A key concern and priority for this goveming board is improving the accuracy and

consistency of grading which should measure what students know, as they play a crucial role in

every urp"tt of stu¿ent's' academic lives and future lives as globät citizens. Areas of concern

are: 1) Grades reflect progressive and mastery of content. 2) They are predictable and

understood by parents and third parties. 3) That non-academic factors are graded separately. 4)

The system adopted is not overwhelming for teachers.

* Annual Report by Educational Services

WE ARE ABSOLUTELY COMMITTED TO PROVIDING THE NECESSARY FACILITIES
TO MEET THE HOUSING AND EDUCATION NEEDS OF OUR CHANGING STUDENT

POPULATION AND A VISION THAT PROMOTES AND SUPPORTS THEIR FUTURE

fèp A. Continue the Cottonwood Elementary School modemization

ôp B. Receive annual updates to the District's Facilities Master Plan while exploring and securing

options to finance the plan.

rèp C. Continue to implement sustainable clean energy programs that promote the long-term well-

being of both the District's finances and the environment.

* Annual Repoft by Business Services

WE ARE FISCALLY TRUSTWORTHY AND DEDICATED TO RESPONSIBLE FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTABILITY

WE BELIEVE IN AND PROMOTE PARENT AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT IN
WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

èp

4

.ã' Goal



2017 -2018 Board Expectations

The District uses data to create a learning-oriented culture for both staff and
students which defînes success in terms of improvement and progress.

1. WE BELIEVE THAT OUR TEACHERS AND STAFF ARE OUR MOST
VALUABLE ASSETS AND RESOURCES

EXPECTATIONS:
a. Provide staff development to enable employees in a job classifications to maintain and improve

their skills to meet stated goals of the Board to meet the needs of students. Continuously monitor

and re-evaluate formula-driven stafhng levels that adequately address student ratios and campus

needs for all classihcations of employees (classified, certificated, confidential, and administration)

b. Maintain and monitor administrative training programs to enable existing staff to become

adminisffators or to increase the skills of current administrators to assume increasing levels of
responsibilify in the future as well as immediately assisting with the reduction of attendance

issues, traffic safety and student discipline at all school sites. Create programs that enable

classified employees who want to become teachers to obtain the necessary information to do so,

and work with the CSEA Board to make sure members know about contractual benefits available

when taking college classes. As grants become available to help classified employees become

teachers, apply for any for which the Dishict is eligible.
c. Provide ongoing recognition for school achievement, program development, i.e., California Gold

Ribbon, Golden Bell, Employee of the Year, and Program Innovation: Joe Walker STEALTH,
Gregg Anderson Academy, The IDEA Academy at Cottonwood, Westside Academy and Hillview
6tl'Grade Academy

d. Continue a long-term plan to provide total compensation for all positions within the district that is

competitive with the surrounding Antelope Valley elementary school districts
e. Provide ongoing training to ensure a safe work place for all employees

f. As funds are available revenues will be placed in a separate account to pay for long term post-

employment benefits

a. a. d & e - Annual Report by Human Resources
b. b & c -Annual Reportfrom Superintendent
c. f - Annual Report by Business Services

2. WE OPERATE \ryITH TRANSPARENCY, TRUST AND INTEGRITY,
GOVERNING IN A DIGNIFIED, PROFESSIONAL MANNER, TREATING
EVERYONE WITH CIVILITY AND RESPECT

EXPECTATIONS
a. Continue to improve the knowledge level of trustees through ongoing training, participation in

political actions that influence improved funding and legislation for educational programs, and

programs of independent srudy. All Board Members will attend the CSBA Annual Education

Conference, with a report of sessions attended at a future Board Meeting, and receive a Masters in

Governance certifi cation

b. The board will initiate the annual process for self-evaluation in June

c. Annually set objectives to meet the goals of the district in June

d. Continue to improve working relationship with employee unions to enable communications that

enhance the overall well-being of the district including all employees

e. A public-friendly version of the three major budget reports of the year shall be posted on the

website

6-t7
è" Measurement



3. \ilE ARE ABSOLUTELY COMMITTED TO PROVIDING A SAFE,
DISTINGUISHED AND ENGAGING LEARNING ENVIRONMENT THAT
ENSURES ALL STUDENTS LEARN TO THEIR HIGHEST POTENTIAL

EXPECTATIONS:
a. Staff will monitor comprehensive plans for improving student achievement including the Local

Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Comprehensive Safety Plans including the sections

related to çhrdent discipline.
b. All studenis will receive rigorous and effective instruction, support and intervention that afford

equitable access to a high quality educational experience in an environment that nurtures critical
thinking, communication, collaboration, creativity and social responsibility.

c. Teachers will use research-based best practices to design and deliver instruction, which addresses

the knowledge, concepts and skills outlined in the State Standards. Teachers will design lessons

that actively engage the minds of all learners with that which is to be learned. Learning objectives

that describe what students will be able to do successfully and independently at the end of each

lesson will be clearly articulated. Formative assessment will be used to guide and inform
instruction. Summative assessment will be used to measure student leaming.

d. Professional Development will be aligned to improve student outcomes. Data will be collected to

substantiate growth in student achievement.

4. WE ARE ABSOLUTELY COMMITTED TO PROVIDING THE NECESSARY
FACILITIES TO MEET THE HOUSING AND EDUCATION NEEDS OF OUR
CHANGING STUDENT POPULATION AND A VISION THAT PROMOTES
AND SUPPORTS THEIR FUTURE

EXPECTATION
a. Monitor and maintain high-quality information technology systems throughout the District

5. WE ARE FISCALLY TRUSTWORTHY AND DEDICATED TO RESPONSIBLE
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY

EXPECTATIONS:
Continue to decrease encroachment ofgeneral funds by Special Education
Continue to update and implement the adopted Technology Plan

Continue to increase operational efficiency
Citizens Oversight Committee will hold required meetings

Set budget priorities based on the goals of the District
Support and retain partnerships that have a mutual priority to maximize the available dollars for
improving programs for students
Maintain student Average Daily Attendance to exceed 96%ó percent.

Senior Staff to hold twice-yearly fiscal status updates at employee work locations in order to

educate and inform our stakeholders
Maintain a financially responsible, positive District budget for the current year and two out years

in order to preserve Westside's financial solvency, educational programs and the continued
payment of employee salaries.

g - Annual ADA Report b)¡ Business Services

6-17

èp Measurement

a.

b.
c.
d.
e.

f.

ob'
h.

Þ
êp a. b, c. d. e. f. h & i - Budeet Presentations by Business Services



6. \ryE BELIEVE IN AND PROMOTE PARENT AND COMMUNITY
INVOLVEMENT IN WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXPECTATIONS:

6-t7
èÞ Measurement

?.

b.
c.

d.
e.

Continue to monitor and implement plans to increase communication and participation with
parents regarding their children's education including the use of PowerSchool/PowerTeacher by
all teachers.
Implement plans to improve parent communication and participation with parents of all srudents.

Explore ongoing efforts to increase communication with the community, utilizing methods that are

cost effective.
Strengthen partnerships with businesses, community organizations, and public agencies.

Annually share the Board's goals and accomplishments with the stakeholders. Each school year

will begin with a State of the District presentation by Superintendent and staff where maximum

efforts are made to assure that the meeting is well-attended by the public.

Create, administer and compile surveys for constituents that will generate data to measure district
effectiveness to drive district decisions.
Continue to explore means of obtaining input from stakeholders.

Each Trustee will regularly attend communþ and school site events

The Board will play an active role in promoting our district's image in the community and positive

working relationships with all stakeholders.
Keep public postings and communications current. Staff will monitor weekly.

Partner with parents and community to develop and implement school programs.

¿¿Ê e - Posted on District V/ebsite

f.

ob.
h
i.

J



TO

BOARD AGE,NDA

April 3, 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

SUBJECT Board Meeting Agenda

BACKGROUND

The Board is requested to approve the Agenda for April 3,2018

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

COST ANALYSIS/FLINDING SOURCE :

None

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

1



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

SUBJECT Board Minutes

BACKGROUND

The Board is requested to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 20,2017

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

CO ST ANALYSIS/FUNDING SOURCE :

None associated with the approval of Board Minutes

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

2a



WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MINUTES
March 20,2018

I. CALL TO ORDER
At 5:00 p.m. John Curiel, President, called to order the Regular Board Meeting of the Westside
Union School District Board of Trustees.

ll. Flas Salute
Patricia K. Shaw, Vice President

III. ROLL CALL
John Curiel, President - Present
Patricia K. Shaw, Vice President - Present
Dr. Linda Jones, Clerk - Present
Jennifer Navarro, Member - Present
Steven DeMarzio, Member - Present

SUPERINTEN DENT
Regina Rossall - Present

IV. ITEMS R
None

V. OTHERS PRESENT
Prof. Amaka Donn, Jennifer Subero, Lauri Massari, Rowdy Dyer, Korina Barefield, Samara
Gugler, Rachel Tucker, Delilah Harris, Brian Schiller, Melanie Golyer-Blair, Trudy Valenzuela,
Ana Penaloza, Seleana Alden, Brittany Tallasi, Laura Duran, Kristin Frye

VI M1B-152 - The motion was made by Steve DeMarzio seconded by Linda Jones and carried 5/0
to adjourn to closed session at 5.01 p.m. to consider:
a. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Gov't Code 554957.6)
b. Existing/Anticipated/Pending Litigation(Gov'tCode554956.9)

2 Claims
c. Conference with Real Property Negotiator
d. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Appointment Unrepresented

Management (Gov't Code S54957)
e. Pupil Personnel (Ed Code 35146 and 48918)

2 Cases

Vll. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION at 6:00 p.m

VIII. CLOSED SESSION ACTION
A. M18-'153 - The motion was made by Patricia K. Shaw seconded by Steve DeMarzio and

carried 5/0 to approve the Records Panel Review for Case No. RR1718-04
B. M18-154 - The motion was made by Linda Jones seconded by Jennifer Navarro and

carried 5/0 to approve the Expulsion of Student Case No.1718-06.
C. M'l8-155 - The motion as made by Steve DeMarzio seconded by Patricia K. Shaw and

carried 5/0 to approve Claim Number 1718-06. (Claim 1718-05 was pulled by
Administration)

a



X

Minutes
Regular Board Meeting
March 20 2018

IX. PRESENTATIONS
A. Leona Valley Site Presentation and Employee Recognitions - Jake Briggs and Shannon

Rossall
B. California Administrative Clear Credential lnduction Program - Lauri Massari
C. Standard Based Grades- Christina Fitzgerald
D. Fiscal State of Westside Union School District- Shawn Cabey

HEARING SESSIONiSTAFF REPORTS
A. Board Comments:

Steve DeMarzio:
. Leona Valley - You are taking full advantage of your size. I think Leona Valley is a

jewel in Westside.
. Chris, you gave a very engaging presentation, it was outstanding. The teachers

seemed at ease. I think Standards- based grading will be good for the teachers and
students.

. There is a lack of skilled labor right now. I think women have a major role in

engineering; more and more women are choosing these fields.
. Friday mornings seem to be the busiest days for school sites. I did a few site visits a

couple of weeks ago. I enjoy visiting and volunteering at the schools.
. Gina is on three of the candidate lists for the new Hospital Board, Congratulations.
Jennifer Navarro:
. Leona Valley - Great job on all your scores; whatever you are doing, keep it up. I

love your positive reinforcement calls. I can't wait to tour Leona Valley.
. Thank you to everyone who presented this evening. I feel a lot more prepared going

out into the community especially with the Standards-based grading. I felt that I had

a lot of catching up to do on this subject.
. I had a couple of site visits since our last meeting, Del Sur and Anaverde Hills.

Thank you to the principals for showing me around. I was able to see a couple of
student presentations while I was visiting.

Linda Jones:
. Leona Valley - Kudos on your goals and I think it makes a huge impact to have

someone from your team at Leona Valley every day.
. Lauri, thank you for your presentation. I think that this a great program for our

district; it keeps our administrators from having to travel to clear their administrator
credential.

. Chris, you are doing an awesome job on standards based grading. I am impressed
with your team.

. Thank you for your thoughts and prayers at the loss of my sister last week.
Patricia K. Shaw.
. Leona Valley - Good Job on your scores. Whatever you are doing with your 6th

graders, you should share with the rest of the schools.
. Chris, thank you for your presentation on Standards-based grading, I was excited to

hear about how the pilot program is going.
John Curiel:
. Leona Valley - You are doing a great job making the educational experience a

positive one. Good job on your tests scores. Thank you. Keep up the hard work
that you do.

b



Minutes
Regular Board Meeting
March 20 2018

o Chris, this Board is very serious about Standards-based grading and we will be
moving in that direction for the entire district. I am appreciative of what you and your
team have done and we want this to be a success. I believe that the test scores will
prove it.

. I visited Joe Walker, Valley View, Del Sur, and the Lancaster Chamber meeting. lt's
not about what you can get but what you can do for your community.

. I applaud you, Gina, for volunteering for the new hospital board.
B. Staff Reports:

1. Assistant Superintendent Administrative Services - Shawn Cabey
a. Leona Valley, it was an awesome presentation, thank you.
b. Chris, it's really neat to see the fruits of your labor on Standards-based grading. I

think what you are doing will make a big difference in student's lives.
c. lf we could take a minute to remember Ron Bennett, CEO of School Services, he

passed away suddenly this weekend. We owe him a lot.
2. Assistant Superintendent Educational Services - Marguerite Johnson

a. Shannon and Jake, thank you for all of your work at Leona Valley; it is
appreciated.

b. I appreciate the work that Lauri put into the induction program.
c. Chris, the heart you bring to the table; it has been ugly, messy, and brutal giving

some of these presentations. Please extend our thanks to your team.
d. Trudy Valenzuela, we truly appreciate all your support; we know it has not been

easy, but all the training has paid off for these new teachers.
3. Deputy Superintendent - Robeft Hughes

a. I thought all of the presentations tonight were very informative.
b. Leona Valley, the culture that you have created at both Leona Valley and

Anaverde Hills is very cool.
4. Superintendent - Regina Rossall

Mrs. Rossall reviewed the following items with the Trustees:
a. Chris, thank you very much. I have been at many of your presentations. You are

doing a great job; thank you for your patience. I appreciate all your team's hard
work. I appreciate the Board confirming that this is your direction.

b. Leona Valley, thank you. I know that this has been a difficult year. Your
presentation was well done and most of the Leona Valley teaching staff was here
this evening. I know you are working hard to bring that community on board with
you.

c. Shawn, nice job. We still need to be very conservative with our financing so that
long term we can continue the educational programs that our students need.

d. Our HR folks have been out recruiting new teachers. We have some classified
positions and possibly administrative positions open.

e. We had one job fair in February, one coming up in April and severaljob fairs out
of town and out of state.

f. Marguerite, thank you for your administrative training the last couple of days.
g. AVSBA Dinner is on Tuesday, March 27,2018, at Lake Los Angeles School.
h. On Aprill4 ,2018, B:00 a.m. - 9:30 a.m., the Board will be conducting a workshop

on Safety at the Wellness Fair at Joe Walker.
i. All of our site recruitment fairs were held last week. Many of our parents would

prefer that we go back to straight attendance zone schools. Many parents do not
like schools of choice. There are some concerns that it skews the populations.

j Westside Wire will be coming out this week.

c



Minutes
Regular Board Meeting
March 20 2018

k
l.

Kindergarten Round-ups have started
We are on Spring Break the next two weeks.

XI. PERSONAL APP EARANCES
Westside Union Teachers Association Representative - Bob Dunham, President
California School Employee Association Representative - Jeri Holmes, President
Parent Teachers Association Representative
WAVE Representative - Jennifer Navarro and Robert Hughes
. Next meeting is Wednesday, April 11,2018, at 6:30 p.m. in Room 4 at the District

Office.
. McDonalds Dine-Out on Wednesday, April 11,2018, from 4:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. at

Ave. N and 50th St. W. and Ave L and 30th St. W.

XII. ITEMS FROM THE - Continued
None

XIII. PUBLIC HEARING
A hearing to receive public input on the Westside Union Teachers Association (WUTA)
Reopeners to Westside Union School District for the 2018-19 school year opened at 9:16 p.m

and closed at 9:17 p.m.

XIV. BUSINESS SESSION
A. Organizational/Governance
1. M1B-'156- ltem 1. Approval of the agenda of the Regular Board Meeting of March 20,

2018, as submitted. The motion was made by Patricia K. Shaw seconded by Steve
DeMarzio and carried 5/0.

2. M1B-157 - ltems 2a-2f . The motion was made by Patricia K. Shaw seconded by
Linda Jones and carried 5/0 to approve the consent agenda.
2a Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 6, 2018
2b Fundraising Authorization
2c Personnel Report
2d Purchase Orders - Revised
2e ConsultanUContractAgreementSchedule
2f ConferenceA/Vorkshop Schedule

3. M1B-158 - ltem 3. The motion was made by Jennifer Navarro seconded by Steve
DeMarzio and carried 5/0 to approve the California Administrative Clear Credential
lnduction Program

4. ltem 4 - Discussion ltem
. Board Governance

XV. PERSONNEL
5 M18-159 - ltem 5. The motion was made by Steve DeMarzio seconded by Patricia K.

Shaw and carried 5/0 to approve the Westside Union Teachers Association (WUTA)
Reopeners to Westside Union School District
M18-160 - ltem 6. The motion was made by Patricia K. Shaw seconded by Linda Jones
and carried 5/0 to approve to Sunshine Westside Union School District Reopeners to
Westside Union Teachers Association (WUTA) and set April 3, 2018, as the date for
public hearing to receive community input.

A
B

C
D

6

d



Minutes
Regular Board Meeting
March 20 2018

7 . M1B-161 - ltem 7. The motion was made by Linda Jones seconded by Patricia K. Shaw
and carr¡ed 5/0 to approve to Sunshine California School Employees Association
(CSEA) Reopeners to Westside Union School District and set April 3, 2018, as the date
for public hearing to receive community input.

8. M1B-162 - ltem B. The motion was made by Patricia K. Shaw seconded by Jennifer
Navarro and carried 5/0 to approve to Sunshine Westside Union School District
Reopeners to California School Employees Association (CSEA) and set April 3,2018,
as the date for public hearing to receive community input.

XVI. BUSINESS
M1 8-163 - ltem 9. The motion was made by Steve DeMarzio seconded by Jennifer
Navarro and carried 5/0 to approve the Cottonwood Modernization Change Order No. 5
to Monet Construction, lnc.

I

XVII. NEW BUSINESS
Board Self Evaluation

XVIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None

XlX. ADJOURNMENT - The meeting was adjourned at 9:25 p.m. by the Board President

Linda Jones, Clerk
April 3, 2018

e



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3, 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

SUBJECT Fund Raiser Approval List

BACKGROLTND

Attached for review and approval by the Board are individual requests f¡om school organizations for fund
raising activities. Each is presented on the District's pre-approved form.

PRO GRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

Funds laised as a result of the activities benefit the individual schools as described in each form.

COST ANALYSIS/FLTNDING SOURCE :

Approval of these activities increases the funding available for the affected schools as noted on each form.

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

2b



FUND RAISER APPROVAL LIST

Approved at the Board Meeting of April 3,2078

Rancho Vista Description:
Date:
Purpose:

Requesting Group:

Catalog Fundraiser
April9-23,2018
To raise funds for school field trips and things.
Rancho Vista PTA

I



School

Requesting Group: flPro I PTSA

*pDate(s) orFundRaiserAOri \ q +(" rd

Westside Union School District
41914 50ù Street West

Quartz Hill, CA. 93536
(661)722-07t6 FAX: (661) 206-364s

FLTNDRAISING AUTHORIZATION
Elementary School

Event Start Time

ii - .. .

jL -', :1 i ''

i/AR 2 O 2N1B

.>
')Date

Location of Fund Raiser

Description of Fund Raiser
C,

Purpose of the Fund Raiser

For the benefit of (be specific)

s

Person Supervising

Person Responsible

Projected Expenses

Fund Raiser

for the

Ð \..

Projected Profit $ 7fn¡o

The food sales sball not impair students' padicipation in the District's Food Seruice progrm. @P3554)
Smiøry md safety procedures shall compty with the State md County Uniform Retail Food Facilitieslaw. Home-baked goods may

not be sold, @83554, CURFFL I 13700-1 14455, 4R3554)
Foodsaleswillnotbegirmtilaferthecloseoftheregularlyscheduledmiddayfoodseruiceperiod. (CodeofRegulations,Title5

15500, Ed Code 51520)
Orgmizations re encouaged to select items of good nuhitional quality @P3554)
The food item being sold cmot be an item sold in the food service progfam at that school duing that school day. (Code of Regulations,

Title 5)

S ignature of PTAÆTO/PTSA President Date f

Anoroved bv the Board of Trustees on

Note - Edible items that do not comply with the District's Wellhess Policy may be sold to students a half an

hour after the end ofthe school day.

$

DateS/ 16 ll{
is not in violation ofthat poli/y.'

Signature of Principal or Assistant

It

and that the approved aboveI affirm that I have read and understand the District W

BU-13 t0-14 Original to District Office for Approval at next Board Meeting. An approved copy will be sent back to school site.



TO

PREPARED BY

SUBJECT:

BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

Board Certification of Williams Uniform Complaint Quarterly Report Summary

BACKGROUND

As a result of the Williams Lawsuit, the Board must certify on a quafterly basis that its members have been

informed of complaints made under this settlement.

PRO GRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

Since the District receives both state and federal funds for educational programs, we are required to comply
with this part of the Williams settlement.

COST ANALYSIS

There is no immediate cost to this action other than staff time required to track and respond to complaints
Cunently that is minimal.

S UPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

2c



Williams Lawsuit Settlement

Qu arterly Repo rt on Uniform Com plain t s 2017 -2018Los Angeles County
Off¡ce of Educat¡on

5eru¡nq Srudenrr. Supporring Cornmunit¡e5

Leåd¡n9 Educatort

DistrictName: Westside Union School District

Person cornpleting this form Tonya Williams

Quaúer covered by this reporl (Check One Below)

Date: March 28,2018

Title Admin. Secretary

[ lst QTR
[ 2nd QTR
[ :ro qrn
n ¿tn ern

July 1 to September 30

October 1 to December 31

January I to March 31

April 1 to June 30

Due
Due
Due
Due

20-Oct
19- Jan

20-Apr
20-Jul

2011

201 8

201 8

201 8

Date for information to be repoúed publicly at governing board meeting: April 3, 2018

Please check the box that applies

No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quader

indicated above.

Cornplaints were filed with schools in the district during the quafter indicated

above. The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these

complaints.

Print Name of Distlict Superintendent Regina L. Rossall

Signature of District Superintendent Date 4-3-18

Return the Quarterly Summary to:
Williams Legislation Implementation Project
Los Angeles County Office of Education
c/o Kirit Chauhan, Williams Settlement Legislation
9300 Imperial Highway, ASM/V/illiams ECW 284

Downey, CA90242

Telephone: (562) 803-8382
FAX: (s62) 803-832s
E-Mail: Chauhan_Kirit@lacoe.edu

Number of Complaints
Received in Quarter

Nurnber of Complaints
Resolved

Number of Complaints
Unresolved

Instructional Materials 0 0 0
Facilities 0 0 0
Teacher Vacancy and Misassignment 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

IìeL. 07-25-l 7



TO

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Robert Hughes, Deputy Superintendent

Personnel Report #1 8-1 6

The Board is requested to approve hatify the following personnel
Recommendations:

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 20i8lAVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# | 5252

Cer1ifi cated Coach, Dancing F eetl CW 12017 -20 18 School Year/URGF/
Req# 15241

Certif,rcated Coach, Girl Power/ CW 12017 -20 1 8 School Year/URGF/
Req# 15242

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

PREPARED BY

SUBJECT:

BACKGROLIND

MANAGEMENT

CERTIFICATED

Emplovment
Alfaro, Gabriela

Alt, Geri

Biedermann, Angie

Cass, Monica

Dodge, Cyndee

Dodge, Cyndee

Ebert, Sharon

Ewaft, Aniko Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Garcia, Ana Romina Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Griffin, Antoinette Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Grubbs, Cynthia Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

I 2d



Gutierrez, Lauren

Hance, Amanda

Hansen, Heather

Harmon, Lisa

Harmon, Lisa

Hewitt, Rebecca

Hofmann, Renee

Hrabik, Danell

Hughes, Sandra

Hyman, Ani

Knittel, Katrina

Lathrop, Becky

Leeds, Patricia

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 20 I8/AVID/Re q# 1 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Certificated Coach, Student Council/CV/ 12017 -2018 School Year/URGF/
Req# 15243

Certif,rcated Coach, Anti Bully I CW 120T7 -20 1 8 School Year/IJRGF/
Req# 15244

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# I 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# T5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# | 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Certifi cated Coach, Dancing F eetl CW l20ll -2018 School Year/URGF/
Req# 15241

Certificated Coach, Student Council/CW 12017 -2018 School YeaTAJRGF/

Req# 15243

Certificated Coach, Anti Bully lCWl20l7-2018 School Year/URGF/
Req# 15244

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Substitute Teacher/M arch I 4, 20 1 8/URGF

Leeds, Patricia

Leeds, Patricia

Lotzgesell, Linda

Marshall, Amanda

Melendez, Elena

Mendes-Guerrero,
Isela

Meyer, Nancy Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 201S/AVID/Req# 15252

2



Miller, Pamela

Moss, Holli

Norlin, Marie

Phillips, Christina

Quinn, Lynda

Rather, Geri

Riddle, Kanani

Salinas, Gabrielle

Scanlon, Kendra

Sessions, Michelle

Skinner, Dana

Smith, Janene

Stecker, Carli

Tucker, Rachel

Wang-Quinn, Eileen

Wheeler, Marie

Zamtdio, Veronica

Zuaro, Noelle

Teacher Tutor/SD/February 27 not to exceed March 17,z}I8lTitle 1/

Req# 15139

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# 1 5252

Teacher Hourly, Loving Solutions/ESF/March 1 4tl'-June 6th, 2018/5 G/
Pteq# 15257

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8 -9, 2018 I AVID/Req# I 5252

Teacher S aturday/D S/January 27 - }l4ar ch I 0, 20 I 8/AI/Req# I 5 1 6l

Substitute Teacher/March 1 5, 2jI8IURGF

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# 1 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Re q# I 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018/AVID/Req# 15252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 20 L8/AVID/Re q# I 5252

Teacher Hourly, AVID/ESF/June 8-9, 2018 I AVID/Req# I 5252

Change

Leaves

Separation

Positi

Position/Location/Effective Date

#

3

Posi ve Date



CLASSIFIED

Employment
Cabasug, Sapphire

Cage, Teron

Castellanos,
Samantha

Clark, Hayley

Dickerson, Linda

Gaytan, Maricela

Gomez, Susana

Gonzalez, Paola

Hankison, Leslie

Javier, Cindie

Kerr, Sarah

Lopez, Lillian

Macias, Ivette

P o sition/Lo c ati on/Effective Date/S alarv/Fundins/Req .#

Instructional Assistant III G Al 3 hrs/per/daylStep I /Mar ch | 4, 20 I I I
SDC/Req# 14892

Extra-Duty Campus Climate Assistant/SD I I hr I per ldaylStep 1 /
March 75, 2018/Sup Grant/Req# 15228

Shorl-Term Playground Supervisor/D S/. 5 hrs/per/day I Step 2 I
March 5-April 27, 2}I8ruRGF/Req# 1 5 193

Instructional Assistant II-Speech/G Al 3 hrslper ldaylStep 1 /
April 2, 20 1 8/SDC/Req# 1 5 1 29

Short-Term Instructional Assistant IIEZ I | fu I per I day I Step 2/
February l4-May 31, 2018/Wed. & Thurs/Site Title I/Req# 15107

Extra-D uty hrstructioual Assistant III CW I 2 lu s/per/day I Step 4 I
February 16-June 1,2018/Title III/Req# 15137

Playground Supervisor/D S/3 hrs/per/daylStep 1 /Ap ril 2, 20 I I I
URGF/Req# 15142

Extra-Duty Campus C limate As si stant/S D I I br I p er I day I Step 2 I
March 15, 2018/Sup Grant/Req# 15228

Child Nutrition Manager-Intersession/Hv/ i . 5 hrs/per/daylStep 8/
March 19-24, 201 8/Sup Grant/Req# 1 5 1 82

Instructional Assistant I-Intersessi onlHY I 4.5 hrs/per/daylStep i /
March 19-23, 201 8/Sup Grant/Req# 1 5 1 8 1

Instructional Assistant II- Speech/GA/3 hrs/per I day I Step I I
Aprll 2, 201 8/SDC/Req# 1 5 128

Extra-Duty Campus Climate Assistant/SD I I hr I per ldaylStep 1 /
March 15, 2018/Sup Grant/Req# 15228

Extra-Duty Instructional Assistant II/RV/3 hrs/per/daylStep 5/
April 5, 2018/SDC/Req# 15217

Extra-Duty Instructional Assistant III CW 12 hrs/per/daylStep 3/
February 16-June 1,2018/Title III/Req# 15137

Martinez, Elvia

Masters,Nathan SubstituteCustodian/MO/Step 1/March26,T}I8/URGF

4



McGee, Summer

Rocha, Michele

Stewarl, Julia

Valasek, Robyn

Washington,
Lonisha

Chanqe
Acuna, Yliana

Landaverde,
Claudia

Leaves

Separation
Chatham, Noelle

Garcia, Adriana

Moreno, Lorena

Instructional Assistant IVRV/3 hrs/per/daylStep 1 /April 2, 20 1 8 I
SDC/Req# 15122

Campus Climate Assistant/RY I 3 brsl per ldaylStep 1 /April 2, 20 18 I
Sup Grant/Req# 15222

Instructional Assistant IIILV I 3 .5 hrs/per/daylStep 1 /Ap rll 2, 20 1 8 I
SDC/Req# 15197

Extra Duty Instructional Assistant IVQH/3 hrs/per/daylStep 8/
April 13-24, 2018/SDC/Req# 15218

Instructional Assistant IIIYV 13 hrs/per/daylStep 1/March 14, 20181

SDC/Req# 15109

Po sition/Location/Effective I)atelSal arvlFundin s/Reo. #
Playground Supervisor (1.25 hrs/perlday) to (3.25 hrs/per/day)lCWl
Step l/January 8, 201 8/URGF/Req# 14948

Instructional Assistant II (3.25 hrs/per/day) to (3 hrs/per/day)/GA/
Step 2/March 12, 201 8/Req# 1487 0

Position/Location/Effective Date/

Position/Location/Effective Date/
Campus Climate Assistant/CV//March I 6, 20 I8/Resi gnation

Instructional Assistant I-AVID/HV/March 12, 20 l8/Resi gnation

Campus Climate Assistant/RV/March 1 6, 20 I8/Resignation

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

5



TO

BOARD AGE,NDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Jeri Holmes, Purchasing

SUBJECT: Purchase Order Approval List

BACKGROUND

Purchase orders are submitted for pre-approval if the purchase is over $7,500. Purchase orders are submitted

for ratification for items under $7,500 per the adopted policy. Items that have already been approved by virtue

of individual board actiorVdirection are also included on the ratification list, even if their value is over $7,500

PRO GRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

COST ANALYSIS/FLTNDING SOURCE :

With approval of this action, the Board authorizes expenditures of:

Approval Items:
All Funds 20r,111.43

Ratification ltems:
General Fund (01.0)
Child Nutrition Fund (13.0)
Deferred Maintenance Fund (14.0)
Building Fund: Bonds (21.0)
Capital Facilities Fund (25.0)
County Facilities Fund (35.0)
Anaverde Settlement (40.0)
CFD's (49.0)

119,022.t8
21,084.r3

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00' 0.00
0.00

341,283.74Totøl

A S S ISTANT SUPERINTENDENT, ADMINIS TRATIVE SERVICES REC OMMENDATION

Approval

2e



PURCHASE ORDERS
Approved/Ratified at the Meeting of April 3,2018

PO's for Board Approval (note: General Fund (01.0) monevs unless otherwise noted)
P.O. # Vendor/Location Description/Fundinq Source Detail

P53172 Swivl lnc. Swivl Lenses, stands Subscription

Educational Services Educãtor Effectiveness Grant

P53113 Convergeone, lnc. Dell Chromebooks (40)

Quartz Hill Title I

P53132 Convergeonce lnc. Dell Chromebooks (50)

Hillview General Funding

P53l-40 Tek Visions Touch Screen Computers for Lunch Lines (6)

Child Nutrition Child Nutrition

P53142 AVSTA Bus Aides

Student Support Services Special Education

P53192 McGraw Hill lnstructional Materials

Educational Services Lottery - lnstructional Materials

P53195 Really Good Stuff lnstructional Materials

Educational Services Supplemental Grant

Note: PO Released to Íoc¡litote timely poyment of materials already

received.

P53215 Convergeone, lnc. Dell Chromebooks ((30)

Anaverde Hills Title I

Total

PO's for Board Ratification
P.O. # Vendor/Location

P530074 Barnes and Noble

Espe ra nza

P53081 Catherine Eichner

Student Support Services

P53082 THSMUN

Hillview Middle School

P53083 Shannon Rossall

Leona Valley

P53084 Michele Sessions

Gregg Anderson

P53085 Virginia lrvin

Joe Walker

P53086 Ami Duffee

Joe Walker

P53087 Krist¡e Jakeway

Joe Walker

P53089 Convergeone

Educational Services

P53090 Nick Rail Music

Educational Services

P53091 Attainment ComPanY, lnc.

Student Support Services

P53092 Attainment Company, lnc.

Student Support Services

P53093 Enablemãrt Sales Office

Student Support Services

P53094 Grainger

Human Resources

P53095 Center for Ed. & Employment Law

Human Resources

P53096 Follett School Solut¡ons, lnc.

Gregg Anderson

P53097 S &SWorldwide, lnc.

Sundown School

Amount

12,584.85

10,862.40

13,s78.00

10,330.23

12s,000.00

8,640.00

11,1-05.40

9,076.55

Description/Fundinq Source Detail

I nstructiona I Materials

Title I

Reimburse: Breakfast for D¡rector SELPA Meeting

Specia I Ed ucation

Model UN Conference Rancho Santa Margarita

Local Site Funds

Kindergarten Round Up

General Fund

Dance Supplies

Local Site Funds

Reimburse: Elective Supplies

Local Site Funds

Reimburse: Career Day Supplies

Local Site Funds

Reimburse: Science Supplies

General Fund

Chromebooks Google & Chrome License

SupplementalGrant

Music Supplies

Band

GoTalk 9+ Lite Touch with Software

Special Education

GoTalk 9+ Lite Touch with Software

Specia I Ed ucation

Easy Talk Communication Device #1007979

Special Education

Splash Goggles Clear Lens and First Aid Kit

General Fund

Keeping Your School Safe and Secure Subscription

General Fund

1000 ANSI Grade A Poly Barcode Labels

General Fund

Playground Supplies

Local Site Funds

201,177.43

Amount

4,34r.32

150.00

720.O0

50.00

100.00

260.00

300,00

250.00

2,485.6s

L,468.87

409.26

409.26

417.92

2s8.54

278.08

76.65

740.86

1of 5

04/03/18



P53098

P53099

P53100

P53101

P53102

P53103

P53104

P53105

P53107

P53108

P53109

P53110

P53111

P53r!4

P53115

P53116

P53717

P53118

P53125

P53143

P53144

P53145

P53146

P53147

P53148

P53149

P53150

P53151

P53152

P53153

P53154

NASCO

Quartz Hill School

Follett School Solutions, lnc.

Sundown School

Whitebox Learning

Hillview Middle School

Follett School Solut¡ons, lnc.

Hillview Mìddle School

Palmdale Trophy

Superintendent & Board

Woodwind and Brasswind

Educational Services

The Library Store

Joe Walker

Sierra School Equipment Company

Business Services

Apple lnc.

Student Support Services

CDWG Computer Centers lnc

Espera nza

CDWG Computer Centers lnc

Del Sur

Amazon

Student Support Services

Amazon

Student Support Services

Convergeone, lnc.

Del Sur

Convergeone, lnc.

Hillview Middle School

Wonder Workshop

Espera nza

Headsets.com, lnc.

Valley View

Apple lnc

Student Support Services

CDWG Computer Centers ¡nc

Valley View

Fire lsland Grill

Educational Services

Panera Bread

Educational Services

Southwest School Supply

Reprographics

Southwest School Supply

Anaverde Hills

Southwest School Supply

Joe Walker

Kerry Rush

Human Resources

Ar¡ane Kausen

Hillview

Rhonda Pratt

Hillview

Rhonda Pratt

Hillview

Davis Communications

Del Sur

Santa Barbara Zoo

Del Sur

PEAP

Anemometer and Wind Vane

Local Site Funds

Ansi Grade Poly Barcode Labels

Local Site Funds

Gliders and Rockets

Restricted Textbook/Core Curricula

Library Books

Local Site Funds

Service Pins

General Fund

Music Supplies

Band

Book Tape, Corners and Wings

General Fund

Office Equipment

General Fund

32gb iPod Touch

Special Education

Epson Projector Lamps (4)

General Fund

Epson Projector Lamp (1)

Local Site Funds

Dry Erase Mãgnet Str¡p

Special Education

Velcro Bands

Special Education

Dell Chromebooks and Google Licenses

Title I

Dell Chromebooks and Google Licenses

Title I

Dash Robots and accessories

T¡rle I

Wireless Headset and Hook switch

General Funding

ProLoQuo2Go Licenses/Apps (25)

Special Education

Pepson Projector Lamps (10)

General Funding

Lunch for March and June AVID Trainings

Supplemental Grant

Lunch for June AVID Training

Supplemental Grant

Copy Paper and Supplies

General Funding

School and Office Supplies

General Funding

School and Office Supplies

General Funding

Reimburse: Supplies and Food for HR Events

General Funding

Reimburse: Supplies for Theater Sportz Compet¡tion

Local Site Funds

Reimburse: Home Economics Supplies

General Funding

Re¡mburse: Home Economics Supplies

General Funding

Direct mail postcards - DS Community Open House

Tirle I

Safari Sleepover May 31, 2018 Balance due on reservation.

Local Site Funds

Excellence Award Gold Pins and Seals

41.I2

76.65

2,756.13

592.40

1,240.o2

4,304.58

57.O4

514.39

217.9r

2r4.75

51.47

93.93

53.60

4,464.00

5,020.00

2,550.00

349.90

3,125.00

514.65

988.99

s6s,21

6,000.00

5,000.00

1,500.00

150.00

324.00

300.00

300.00

1,s50.00

1.,925.00

419.42

2of5
04/03/78



P53155

P53156

P53157

P53158

P53160

P53161

P53162

P53163

P53164

Ps3165

P53L67

P53168

P53169

P53r.70

P53I7I

P53172

P51373

P53175

P53176

P53L77

P53178

P53179

P53180

P53181

P53182

P53183

P53184

P53185

P53186

P53187

Hillview

Jones School Supply

Hillview

Drama Teachers Assoc of So Cal

Hillview

Baudville, lnc.

Hillview
Forum Festivals

Hillview

William Curzi

Student Support Serv¡ces

Law Office of Cindy Brining

Student Support Services

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Hillview

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Human Resources

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Del Sur

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Anaverde Hills

ConvergeOne lnc

Student Support Services

Convergeone lnc

Human Resources

Convergeone lnc

Technology

CA Comm on Teacher Credentialing

Human Resources

Demco

Anaverde Hills

Flag House

Hillview

Woodwind and Brasswind

CW, HV, EZ, RV

All Things Engravable

Hillview

Dick Blick Art Mater¡als

Joe Walker

Dick Blick Art Mater¡als

Hillview

Boys Town Press

Espe ra nza

Boys Town Press

Espera nza

Boys Town Press

Espera nza

Boys Town Press

Espe ra nza

Demco

Espe ra nza

Wonder Workshop lnc

Espera nza

The Library Store

Espe ra nza

School Health Corporation

Health Services

School Datebooks

Del Sur

CDWG Computer Centers lnc

Quartz Hill

General Funding

Athletic Certificates and folders

General Funding

Student/Teacher Membership/program ad/chaperone lunches

Local Site Funds

Certificate folders and gold foil shooting stars

General Funding

Music Festivals with admission to Six Flags

Local Site Funds

Settlement

General Funding

Settlement

General Funding

V4lnk 4 pack HP Pro 400 Color M45LDN Toner

General Funding

Making Evaluations Meaningful

General Funding

Basketball, Soccer and Playground Balls

Local Site Funds

Number the Starts by Lois Lowry

Local Site Funds

Dell Chromebooks (4)

Special Education

Dell OptiPlex Computer with Dual Monitors

Gerreral Fundirrg

Toshiba Laptop: CW Admin Refresh

Technology Maintena nce

Librarian Credential: M Johnson

General Funding

Library Supplies

General Funding

lnstruct¡onal Materials

General Funding

lnstructional Materials

Band Progrãm

T-Shirts for Theater Sports

Local Site Funds

I nstructional Materia ls

General Funding

lnstruct¡ona I Materials

General Funding

lnstructional Materials

Title I

I nstructional Materials

Title I

lnstructiona I Materials

Title I

lnstructional Materia ls

Title I

Library Supplies

General Funding

lnstructiona I Mater¡als

T¡tle I

Library Supplies

General Funding

Wheelchair, Scales, Recovery Couches

General Funding

lnstruct¡onal Materials

Title I

Projector Lamps and Adapter Cables

General Funding

47r.49

315.00

7L7.97

2,20s.o0

1,000.00

2,000.00

55.83

32.1.6

153.64

183.63

1,o74.26

1,269.06

1,587.44

100.00

51-.1.5

1,384.20

3,76t.55

109.50

2,449.20

1,945.09

529.41

382.26

1,069.85

1,,674.73

79.96

4,180.ss

I92.72

2,798.82

2,495.69

336.26

3 of 5

04/03/18



P53189

P53189A

P53190

P53191

P53193

P53194

P53196

P53197

P53198

P53199

Ps3200

P5320'J.

Ps3202

Ps3203

P53204

Ps3205

Ps3206

P53207

Ps3208

P53209

P53210

P53217

P53212

P53213

P53214

M206t7

M20685

M20686

M20687

M20688

M20692

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Leona Valley

Wonder Workshop lnc

Leona Valley

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Cottonwood

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Technology

Bohn's Printing

Warehouse

SEA Supplv

Warehouse

Four Star Printing

Education Services

CDWG Computer Centers, lnc.

Business Services

CDWG Computer Centers, lnc.

Espe ra nza

CDWG Computer Centers, lnc.

Hillview

CDWG Computer Centers, lnc.

Business Services

Jeannette Mohun

Quartz Hill

Amanda M. Hance

Gregg Anderson

Kr¡stin Kruizlnga

Gregg Anderson

Kr¡stin Kruizinga

Gregg Anderson

Chris Soliz

Technology

Southwest School Supply

Sundown

Southwest School Supply

Rancho Vista

Southwest School Supply

Valley View

Parent Project

Educational Services

Headsets.com, lnc.

Gregg Anderson

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Ed ucationa I Services

Amazon.com Corporate Credit

Educational Services

AVID Center

Educational Services

Rochester 100 lnc.

Del Sur

Home Depot

Various Sites

I nterstate Batteries

Educational Services

Sav On Fence

Maintenance

B&M Lawn and Garden Center

Maintenance

Patriot Plumbing

Joe Walker

HW Hunter

lnstructional Materials

General Funding

Dash Robots (2)

General Funding

Raised Garden Bed Planter Box

Local Site Funds

Large Ziplock Storage Bags for Laptop Collection

General Funding

White #3.0 Envelopes

General Funding

Facial Tissues

General Funding

Flyers and Postcards Empowering Youth Outreach

Supplemental Grant

External DVD Drive

Technology Maintenance

Griffin Survivor Case for tablet
Title I

Powergistics Tower

Title I

Kinston Valueram

General Funding

Library Books

Local Site Funds

Reimburserîent for garden supplies

Local Site Funds

Reimbursement for First Lego League

Local Site Funds

Reimbursement for Lego League

Local S¡te Funds

Reimbursement for 24 plastic totes for laptops

General Funding

School and Offìce Supplies

Supplemental Grant

School and Office Supplies

General Funding

School and Offìce Supplies

General Funding

Value Package: Loving Solutions

SupplementalGrant

Sennheiser Wireless Headsets and Hook switches

General Funding

Crucial Conversations Tools for Talking

General Funding

Go Sports and Hasbro Games

SupplementalGrant

AVID Elementary Poster Set Training Materials

Supplemental Grant

Supplies and Training Mater¡als

Title I

Maintenance Supplies - February

Ma intena nce/Ope rations

Emergency Radio Battery

Operations
Fence Wheels

Maintenance

Hustler Mower Parts

Operations

Plumbing Repairs - Handicap Toilet
Operations

Repairs - Van 83

430.65

328.48

191.61

93.02

1,01-1.51

812.71.

4,326.52

26.80

1,259.65

2,997.00

34.6t

275.00

s00.00

s00.00

s00.00

175.00

s00.00

s00.00

2,800.00

449.00

1,,602.86

48.36

133.96

3136.88

438.00

860.82

1r9.21.

757.70

194.39

297.50

55.72

4 of 5

04/03/78



M20693

M20699

M20705

M20706

M20707

M20708

M20682

P53088

P53159

P53217

Maintenance

Sav On Fence

Maintena nce

CWI Cal West

Maintenance

Signs and Designs

Cottonwood

Serban Sound

Sundown

CWI CalWest

Maintenance

Empire Floor Supply

Maintena nce

Quinn Power Systems

SNA

Horizon Software lnternational LLC

J&E Restaurant Supply

Operations

Fence Repair Parts

Ma¡ntena nce

Electrical Supplies

Maintenance

Aluminum Signs

Ma¡ntena nce

Electrical Repa¡rs - Speakers

Mãintenance

M¡crophone Floor Outlets

Maintenance

Equipment Repair Parts

Maintenance

CHILD NUTRITION (13)

Trouble Shoot Engine -Truck77

Membership Renewal - Nancy Hemstreet

Horizon USB pin pad and cable

Mobile Heated Cabinets

Total

2r0.24

111.59

20L.49

s00.00

30.32

688.59

220.00

722.00

3,OO5.77

17,736.36

21,084.13

DEFERRED MAINTENANCE (14)

BUILDING FUND: BONDS {21I
CAPITAL FACILITIES (25)

COUNTY FACILITIES (35)

ANAVERDE SETTLEMENT {4OI

CFp's (49)

No purchase order for funds 14.0, 27.O,25.O,35,0, 40.0,49.0

5 of 5

04/03/18



TO

BOARD AGE,NDA

April 3, 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Paula Sterk on behalf of Jeri Holmes, Purchasing

SUBJECT Consultant/Contract Agreement Schedule

BACKGROTIND

Consultant agreements and contracts are brought to the Board in accordance with Board Policy 3312 fot various

purposes including student assemblies, in-house staff workshops, and vendor provided services.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION :

These Consultant Agreements and Contracts provide support to the District's Educational Program

COST ANALYSIS/FUNDING SOURCE :

With approval of this action, the Board authorizes expenditures and incoming funds of:

Student Assemblies
In-house Staff/Parent Workshops
Vendor Provided Services
Rental/Lease Contracts

112.50
25,690.21

253,171.29
0.00

Totul 279,574.00

Incoming Funds 0.00

AS S I STANT SUPERINTENDENT, ADMINI S TRATIVE SERVICE S RECOMMENDATION :

Approval

2f



CONSULTANT/CONTRACT AGREEMENT SCHEDULE
Rat¡f¡ed/Approved atthe Board Meeting ofApr¡l 3,20'18

Descr¡Þtion/Fund¡no SourceDates

Summer 20 1 8

Name/School Site

3K Building Services lnc
Joe Walker

Spring 2018 3K Buìlding Services lnc
Esperanza

2017-2014 Augmentative Communication Therapìes
Student Support Services

Sprìng 2018 Between Your Ears Entertainment
Anaverde Hills

2017-2014 Borderlan lnc
Technology

Summer 2018 Boys Town Press
Student Support Services

2018-2018 Colorado Chr¡stian University
Distr¡ct

Ongoing ConvergeOne
All Sites

Spring 20'18 David C Sterk Construction
Esperanza

2017-2014 Dimension Data
District

Spring 2018 Food 4 Thought LLC
Joe Walker

2018-2019 KRONOS lnc
District

2017 -2018 McKinley Elevator Corporation
D¡str¡ct

2014-20't9 Sc¡ent¡fic Learning Corp
Distrìct

20't7-2014 Starfall Education
Hillview

2018.2019 Student Support Solutions lnc
D¡str¡ct

2017-2018 Survey Monkey
District

Spr¡ng 2018 Universal Electronic Alarm
Esperanza

Spring 2018 Un¡versal Electronic Alarm
Rancho Vista

Summer 2018 YMCA of Metropolitan LA A V Branch
District

Summer 2018 YMCA of Metropolitan LA A V Branch

D¡strict

Chanae

2017-2014 3K Building Services lnc
Cottonwood

Accommodating ldeas lnc

DSA lnspection - 3 Classroom Bldgs and Slte Storm Drain

Fund 25 (Developer Fees)

DSA lnspect¡on - 3 Classroom Bldgs

Fund 25 (Developer Fees)

Assessment Record Review/Report Observat¡on

Special Education

The Morris Brothers Assembly
Title I

Renewal Order - Lightspeed Web Filter - Year 3 of 3
Technology Maintenance

Training for Trainer of Trainers
Supplemental Grant

Placement of lnternsh¡p or Student Teacher Candidates
N/A

lT Lifecycle Service (Chromebook setup, etching, etc)

Determìned by Site at Time of Order

Earthwork - 3 Classrooms
Fund 25 (Developer Fees)

CISCO Hardware
Technology Maintenance

Farmers Market And Nutr¡t¡onal lnformat¡on

Supplemental Grant

Software Support Services Contract Renewal
Technology Maintenance

Wheelchair Lift lnspection And Service
Restricted Maintenance Account

Fast Forword Renewal
Supplemental Grant

License for FS SPED Students
Special Education

Training for Administrative Staff
Supplemental Grant

Professional Plan
New Teacher lnduction

Esperanza Fire Additions
Fund 25 (Developer Fees)

Rancho Vista Additìons
Fund 25 (Developer Fees)

Custodial Services Agreement - Quartz Hill Elementary

General Funding

Custodial Servtces Agreement - Sundown Eìementary

General Funding

DSA lnspection
Changes: Project Timeline Extension
Capital Facilities Fund

Sign Language lnterpreler for Community Open House

Changes: Additional Services

Cost

3,555.00

2,765.00

2,500.00

712.50

18,761.03

19,690.21

0.00

TBD

14,250.00

6.909.00

1.785.00

3'1,002.53

5,850.00

71,760.00

295.65

6,000.00

288.00

1 4,000.00

12,850.00

65,000.00

lncome

TBD

TBD

l of 2
04103118

2017-2014

Joe Walker

500.00



2017-2014

20't8-TBD

201 B-TBD

2017-2018

District

lnd¡v¡dual Seruices Agreements

Frontline Technologies Group LLC
Human Resources

National University
District

National University
District

UNUM Life lnsurance Company of America

General Funding

Education Absence & Substitute Management
Changes: Recalculation of Actual Annual Subscríption
Technology Maìntenance

lnternship Credent¡al Program

Chanqes: Perpetual

Student Teach¡ng And Practicum Agreement
Changes: Perpetual

Group Long Term Disabìlity and Group Accident Beneflts

Changes: Adding New Plans to Existing Agreement

'',r ,: Total

1.1 00.08

0.00

0,00

0.00

279,574.00 0.00

These individuat seNice agreements fatl under previously Board approved Master Contracts. All agreements are funded through

Special Education general funds.
Nonpublic School/Aqencv serulce S!!Cg!!]9
None

2ol 2

04103118



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April03,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Jeri Holmes, Purchasing

SUBJECT Conference/Workshop S chedule

BACKGROUND

Conference requests are processed in compliance with Board Policy 3350

PRO GRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

On-going staff development is a key to the success of the District's programs

COST ANALYSIS/FUNDING SOURCE

With approval of this action, the Board authorizes expenditures of $47,920.63

AS SISTANT SUPERINTENDENT ADMINIS TRATIVE S ERVICE S RECOMMENDATION :

Approval

)o



CONFERENCE/v\/ORKSHOP SCHEDULE
Ratified/Approved at the Board Meeting of

Dates/Localion

March 28, 2018
Wash¡ngton

April 13, 2018
Long Beach

Apr¡l 16,2018
Mich¡gan

Apr¡l 23, 2018
l\4¡nnesola

Apr¡l 25, 2018
lndÌana

Apr¡l 30, 2018

Downey

June 8, 9, 2018

June 28-30, 2018
Anâhe¡m

June 27-30, 2018
Anahe¡m

June 27-30,2018
Anaheim

June 27-30, 2018
Anaheim

June 28, 29, 2018
Anaheim

e¡arses

Title/Anendees/Fundinq Locat¡on

Washington State Job Fair
Robert Hughes or Robert Gaza
Human Resources

Cal State Long Beach Job Faír
Robert Hughes, Kerry Rush or Robert Gaza
Human Resoufces

l\4¡ch¡gan State Un¡versity Job Fair
Robert Hughes
Human Resoufces

Minnesota Education Job Fair
Robert Garza
Human Resources

Ball State Un¡vers¡ty Job Fair
Robert Gaza
Human Resources

English Learners and Spec¡al Educat¡on Federal and

Research Guidance
Kr¡stin Gell¡nck-Frye
Educational Services

AVID Elementary: Just W¡corize lt! Antelope Valley
Gabr¡ela Alfaro, Geri Alt, Cathy Bennett, Angie Biedermann,
Monìca Cass, Sharon Ebert, Aniko Ewart, Rom¡na Garcia,
Anto¡notte Griff¡n, Cynth¡a Grubbs, Lauren Gutierrez, Amancia
Hance, Heather Hansen, Rebecca Hew¡tt, Renee Hofmann,
Darrell Hrabik, Sandy Hughes, Ani Hyman, Kalr¡na Knittel,
Becky Lathrop, Lìnda Lotzgesell, Amanda Marshall, Elena
Melendez, Nancy Meyer, Holli Moss, Mar¡e Norlin, Lynda

Ouinn, Gabrielle Sal¡nas, Kendra Scanlon, Dana Skinner,
Jenn¡fer Slater-Sanchez, Janene Sm¡th, Carl¡ Stecker, Rachel
lucker, Eileen Wang-Qu¡nn, Marìe Wheeler, Veron¡ca
Zamudio, Noelle zuaro, l\4ichelle Sessions

Educational Serv¡ces

AVID Summer lnstitute
Hussein Arrale, Er¡ca Nuss, Jake Briggs, Shannon Rossall,
Lisa Harmon, Chr¡ssy West, Antoìnette Gr¡tfln, Mary Greaver,
Amber Jones, Ar¡ane Kausen, Krist¡n Gellinck-Frye, Amy
Brouwer, Seleana Alden, Lisa Walker, Dale Lister, Am¡
Duffee, Kristie Jakeway, ¡/elanie Goyler Blair, Reyna Smìth,

Er¡n Belcher, Sonja Squires, Br¡an Yoshikawa, Andrea Paxton,
Sylv¡a Borg-Ott¡ng, Chr¡st¡ne Belcher, Er¡ca Warne, Lauren
Hetland, Geri Rather, Kelli Brown Desiree Lopez

Educat¡onal Serv¡ces

AVID Summer lnstitute
Kristin Gell¡nck-Frye
Educational Seruices

Fund. Source

General Fund

250.00

General Fund

300.00

General Fund

350.00

General Fund

100.00

General Fund

80.00

Supplemental Grant

1 7,550.00

Supplemental Grant

24,645.00

Supplemental Grant

0.00

Supplemental Grant

0.00

Supplemental Grant

0.00

Supplemental Grant

0.00

Supplemental Grant

43,825.00

47,920.63

Req¡strat¡on

550.00

lvleals

0.00

Nlileaae

0.00
Lodo¡nq

0.00

0.00

0.00

Parkino

0.00

0.00

Subs Other

0.000.00

0.00 000 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 000 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 93.63

AVID Summer lnst¡tute
Christine Belcher
Educat¡onal Serv¡ces

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

684.00 115.00 109.00 48.00

0.00 1 15.00 0.00 0.00

684.00 1 15.00 75.00 48.00

684.00 950.00 327.00 48.00

AVID Summer lnst¡tute
Brian Yoshikawa
Educat¡onal Services

AVID Summer Institute
Reg¡na Rossall, Robert Hughes, Marguerite Johnson
Educational Seruices

No Changes

Subtotals

Grand Total

2,O52.OO 1,295.00 604.63 144.00

1o'l 2

06t28116

0.00



TO

BOARD AGENDA

4pri13,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

Resolution 18-41, Biennial Governing Board Member Elections, November 6,2078

PREPARED BY

SUBJECT

BACKGROUND

Biannually Governing Boards are required to adopt a resolution calling for Governing Board Elections.

Contained in the agenda is Resolution 18-41, Governing Board Member Elections, November 6,2018. At this

time District Administration is requestingthatthe Board adopt and direct the Superintendent to forward the

resolution to the County of Los Angeles.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

COST ANALYSIS/FTINDING SOURCE

83,000. - General Fund

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

J

Approval



Union School DistrictDISTRICT OFFICE
4 19T4Tl5onTtrõõfivest
Quartz Hill, CA 93536
(661) 722-0716
www,westside.kl2.ca.us

REGINA L. ROSSALL
District Superintendent

ROBERT HUGHES
Deputy Superintendent
Human Resources

MARGUERITE JOHNSON
Assistant Superintendent
Educational Services

SHAWN CABEY
Assistant Superintendent
Administrative Services

SCHOOL SITES

ANAVERDE HILLS SCHOOL
.Tacob Briggs, Co-Principal
Shannon Rossall, Co-Principal

COTTONWOOD SCHOOL
Laura Duran, Principal

DEL SUR SCHOOL
Jessica Kott, Principal

ESPERANZA SCHOOL
Nicole Hernandez, Principal

GREGG ANDERSON ACADEMY
Shelly Dearinger, Co-Principal
Kristin Kruizinga, Co-Principal

HILLVIEW MIDDLE SCHOOL
Rodney Lots, Co-Principal
Jennifer Slater-Sanchez,
Co-Principal

JOE WALKER MIDDLE SCHOOL
Steve Wood, Principal

LEONA VALLEY SCFIOOL
Jacob Briggs, Co-Principal
Shannon Rossall, Co-Principal

QUARTZ HILL SCHOOL
Andrea Paxton, Principal

RANCHO VISTA SCHOOL
Cathy Bennett, Principal

SIINDOWN SCHOOL
Timothy Barker, Principal

VALLEY VIEW SCHOOL
Rebecca Davis, Principal

WESTSIDE ACADEMY
Thomas Morreale
Principal/Teacher

BOARD OF TRUSTEE;
.Iohn CurielPoíntíng the way, provídíng the path
Steve DeMarzio
Linda Jones
Jennifer Navarro
Patricia K. Shaw

RESOLUTION 1B-41

TO ORDER BIENNIAL GOVERNING BOARD ELECTION

Order of Election of Westside Union School District of Los Angeles County,

California.

RE SOLUTION ORDERING GOVERNING
BOARD MEMBER ELECTION

RESOLVED that pursuant to Education Code (EC) $5000-5030, the Los Angeles

County Superintendent of Schools (County Superintendent) is hereby ORDERED
to call an election for the purpose, and in accoldance with the designations

contained in the following specifications of the Election Order made under the

authority ofEC $5302, $5304 and $5322.

SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

The eìection shall be held on Tuesday, November 6,2018. The polling hours

shall be from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

The purpose of the election is to submit to the voters of the district the question of
whether three (3) members shall be elected to the Governing Board of the

Westside Union School District.

The Los Angeles County Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk (Registrar-Recorder)

will perform all the duties incident to the plepalation for and holding of the

above-mentioned election. The Westside Union School District will pay the costs

of the election. If any agency holds an election on November 6, 201 8, the

Westside Union School District shall pay its pro fata share pedaining to the

conduct of this election and shall be under the provisions of the appropriate

sections of the Education and Election Codes.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clerk of the district is hereby directed to

furnish two (2) copies of this order to the County Superintendent not less than 130

days prior to the date set for the election.



The foregoing Resolution and Order was adopted and affirmed by the Governing Board of the Westside Union

School District of Los Angeles County, being the Board authorized by law to make the designations contained

therein, by formal vote as follows:

Ayes- Nays- Absent

Linda Jones

Clerk of the Governing Board

I hereby cerlify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct transcript of a resolution duly adopted by the

Governing Board named therein at a duly constituted meeting of the said Governing Board, held on April 3,

2018, as it appears upon the minutes of said meeting on April 3,2018.

Linda Jones

Clerk of the Governing Board



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3, 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regina L. Rossall Superintendent

Fees for Governing Board Member Election, November 6,2018

PREPARED BY

SUBJECT

BACKGROUND

Biannually school districts conduct elections for seats on the Board of Trustees. The next Governing Board
Member Election is Novemb er 6,2077, when three (3) seats are open. The County of Los Angeles provides

services for the election. At this time the Board is requested to approve the required payment in advance of
each candidate's pro rata share of the printing, handling and mailing costs of their candidate statement as a

condition of having it included in the voter's sample ballot pamphlet for this election.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

COST ANALYSIS

None

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

4

Approval



Election Date

School District Name:

QUEST¡ONNAIRE
Westside Union School District

Regina L. rossall
Super¡ntendent Name

41914 50th St. W.

Contact Person (lf different from Superintendent)

r.rossall@westside.kl 2.ca.us

Email
(661) 206-364s 03t23/18

Contact Phone No. Fex No- Date

Please indicate numberof school measures (if any) you anticipate placing on the ballot:

Last day for governing boards to adopt and f¡le a resolution call¡ng a spec¡al measure election is
E-88

Superintendent
Signature of Author¡zed Representative Title

FORM CAN ALSO LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGISTRAR-RECORDER/
BE MATLED TO: COUNTY CLERK

Attn: Election Coordination Unit, ROOM 20134
12400 lmperial Highway
Norwalk. California 90650

Mail¡ng Address
(661\122-01t6

RETURN FORM
VIA EMAIL TO:

OR FAX IT TO:

ecu@rrcc.lacounty.gov

(562) 406-2149

Numbers Of Offices To Be Elected: J

Please lndicate How Governing Board Members Are Nominated Or Elected:

tr Bv District E At Larqe tr Nominated bV District and Elected at Large U Other

OFFICES TO APPEAR
ON BALLOT

INDICATE FULL
OR UNEXPIRED

TERM
(lf unexp¡red ElEl ¡nclude

date of exp¡ration)

INCUMBENT'S NAME DISTRICT OR
TRUSTEE
AREA NO.

DATE

ø

tr
tr Other

lf.
il
t-:

;
:il

E Govern¡ng Board
Member

E Trustee Area

tr Other

E Full Term
tr Unexpired Term

Date

John Curiel

Appointed Provisionally

Appointed in Lieu
r lt)5/r3

Elected

m Governing Board
Member

tr Trustee Area

tl Other

E Full Term
tr Unexpired Term

Date

Linda Jones

Appo¡nted Provisionally

Appoìnted in Lieu
r r,'{Jslr3

Elected

EI Governing Board
Member

tr Trustee Area

tr Other

E Full Term
tr Unexpired ïerm

Date

Jennifer Navarro

02¡1Jlr7

Appcllnted Prorr¡sion"lly

Appointed in Lleu

Elecled

tr Governing Board
Member

tr Trustee Area

tr Other

tr Full Term
D Unexpired Term

Date

Appointed Provìsionally

Appointed in Lieu

Elected

CANDIDATE STATEMENT INFORMATIO* approu,-L
This is to inform you that the governing board of the above named district by reselutisn, dated
adopted the following policy regarding filing of Candidate Statements for district elections.

Number of words allowed: E 200 or f] 400

I Payment of the estimated cost must be
made by the candrdate at time of filing.

I School District will bill candidate after the election

! School District will bear the cost for all statements.

I Other

SIFOR[,1S(ECU&RRCC)QUESTIONNAIRE\201 8



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Regina L. Rossall, Superintendent

SUBJECT: Discussion Items

a Board Governance

5



BOARD AGENDA

April3,2018

TO: BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Marguerite Johnson, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services

SUBJECT: Revised Board Policies and Regulations

BACKGROIIND:

Annually policies are reviewed by CSBA and changes are suggested as a result of either recent judicial rulings

or legislative enactment. Changes to these policies and regulations make our policies consistent with law.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 0000 Vision - BP Revise/AR Delete

The policy has been updated to address data sources for vision setting, set expectations that the district's vision

will ãrive all board decisions and district operations, and align the process of reviewing the district's vision with

the process for reviewing and updating the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). The regulation has

been deleted and key concepts incorporated into the policy.

Exhibit 0420.41Charter School Oversight - Revised
The exhibit updated to add requirements for charter schools to (1) adopt a suicide prevention policy; (2) provide

student athletes and their parents/guardians with information on sudden cardiac arrest; (3) submit verification of
students' high school graduation to the Cal Grant program; (4) develop a transportation safety plan that includes

procedures io .nrur. that a student is not left unattended on a bus; (5) comply with specified requirements if the

õhutt.r school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available in order to provide emergency medical aid to

persons suffering from an opioid overdose; and (6) post specified information on the school's web site related to

the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX.

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures - Revised

The policy has been updated to list all state and federal programs subject to the uniform complaint procedures

(UCP) as specified in the Federal Program Monitoring instrument which includes immigration status as a

prohibited basis for discrimination, and which authorizes the use of UCP for alleged noncompliance with

õertain educational rights of children of military families. The regulation updated to reflect a requirement that

the annual UCP notice include the educational rights of children of military families. Regulation also clarifies

that any individual, public ageîcy, or organization may file a complaint alleging violation of law regarding

applicable state or federal programs and deletes references to Office of Civil Rights resources on sexual

violence which have been withdrawn.

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5022 Student and Family Privacy Rights - Revised

The policy has been updated to add options formerly in the regulation regarding the disclosure of students'

6



personal information for marketing putposes. The policy also reflects state law which prohibits the collection of
social security numbers or the last four digits of social security numbers for such purposes and the new law
which prohibits the collection of information regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their
families. The regulation reflects the new law which prohibits the removal of questions pertaining to sexual

orientation and/or gender identity from a voluntary suvey that already contains such questions.

Board Policy/ Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications: BP - Revised, Exhibit - Replaced
The policy, regulation, and exhibit been updated to list all state and federal programs subject to the uniform
complaint procedures (UCP) as specified in the Federal Program Monitoring instrument, reflect AB 699 which
includes immigration status as a prohibited basis for discrimination, and reflect AB 365 which authorizes the

use of UCP for alleged noncompliance with certain educational rights of children of military families.

Board Policy 6162.5 Student Assessment - Revised
The policy has been updated to reflect AB 1035 which addresses the use and purpose of interim and formative
assessments that are part of the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, prohibits their use

for high-stakes purposes as def,rned, and requires that teachers who administer the assessments have access to

all pertinent functions and information

Board Policy/ Exhibit 616l.l Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials: BP - Revised, Exhibit -

Replaced
Both the policy and exhibit have been updated to delete material defining the "sufficiency" of instructional
materials as meaning that students enrolled in the same course have identical materials from the same adoption

cycle, and to delete optional material reflecting the authorizationto purchase the newest adopted materials for
schools in deciles 1-3 of the Academic Performance Index, as those laws have repealed on their own terms.

The policy also reflects the requirement to address the sufficiency of instructional materials in the district's
LCAP and reflects AB 575 which provides that the State Board of Education may adopt instructional materials

for grades K-8 at least once, but not more than twice, every eight years.

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 6171 Title I Programs - Revised
The policy and regulation have been updated to address (1) the requirement to use federal Title I funds to

supplement, not supplant, funds available from state and local sources; (2) use of the district's local control and

accountability plan to fulfill requirements for the Title I local educational agency plan; and (3) methods for
demonstrating the comparability of services between Title I and non-Title I schools. Regulation updated to

reflect amendments by the Every Student Succeeds Act related to schoolwide programs, targeted assistance

programs, and participation by private school students.

COST ANALYSIS

There are no costs associated with updating these policies and administrative regulations

SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval



Westside [Inion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Vision

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans BP 0000(a)

short-term objectives and/or comprehensive plans such as the local conirol and accountability

Þlan,(LCAP).

(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)
(ef' "0 46,0: :-,L'o C oqtrol,a-nd Ac c ountability F l an)

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)

TheSuperintendentordesigneeshallrecommendanappropriateprocess@

and,forums

Groups)

TheBoardshal1reviewthedistrictvisionstatements
Reard mcrnbcr er SH annually, in conjunction with the update to the

LCAP, to ensure .oniirt"n.y alnoug all documents that set direction for the district. Following

1.



BP o0o0(b)

these reviews the Board may revise or reaffirm the direction it has established for the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's vision to staff, parents/guardians

and the community
vision.

)

The,S4efinæídent'or designee 'shall,regulady report.to'fu Boarcl regarcliqg':districtf pl'ogress ,

towárd{he'vision.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)

Te prepare students te sueeeed in eur-inereasingly eernplex seeicty; the seheels must be guided

bJ+

1, ,4 philesephy that pnts the needs ef students first

@

@
1, Maintain safe, healthful and erderly earnpuses w'hieh premote learning:

1, Previde aeereer
by identifying and respending te individnal sttrdent needs'

2



BP 0000(c)

(ef, 6030 Integrated r\eademie and Veeational Instruetien)

3, Ensure that all students aehieve aeademie pre{ieieney in essential areas ef skill ané

kne¡+e¿Se.

(ef: 6i46:l Ftrigh Seheel Graduatien Ræquirements/Statrdards ef Prefieieney)
(ef, 6l 16,5 Elernentary Seheel Prometie#Standards of Prefieieney)

4, Provide fer the speeialized needs ef identi{ied greups of students.

6- Previde time and reseurees fer eellaberatier¡planning and professienal develepment fer
att*+aff,

8, Improve the organization, management alrd deeisien making strneture and eapabilities ef

9, Empl.,ay teehnelogy in rvays that er*ranee learning; tcaehing and neninstruetional
eperatiot+*'

3



BP 0000(d)

tr0, Provide and maintain faeilities te meet the needs sf present and future students'

I 1, Maintain positive relatiens with parents/guardians and the eemmunity; emphasizing

tr2, eoilaberate rvith ether publie ageneies and private orgærizations te ensure that ehildren's

l^ç 1^1^ V^.,+L C^-.,;^^.\
\vr! r vzv

tr 3, Previde a systern ef shared aeeetintability fer studenÊ aehievement rvith elear

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS

4



BP 0000(e)

WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Policy WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: June 15, 1998 Lancaster, California

5



Westside [Jnion SI)
Administrative Regulation - Delete
Vision

Phitosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans AR 0000

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process for developing and regularly reviewing

the district's vision and direction which includes:

1. Clearly defined procedures, timelines and responsibilities

2. Identification of the strengths and needs of the district

As parl of this process, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the Board of Trustees with
relevant district documents and data, including current district mission and vision statements, if
any, and information about student demographics, student achievement, student enrollment

patterns, current programs and recent program cuts, staffing and professional development needs,

budget trends, facilities, technology and emerging educational issues'

(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)
(cf. 6010 - Goals and Objectives)

3. Input from parents/guardians, students, staff and community members through

procedures which may include surveys, focus groups, advisory committees andlor public

meetings and forums

(cf.1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf.2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)
(cf . 6020 - Parent Involvement)

4. Board adoption of district vision statements at a public meeting

Regulation WESTSIDE LINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: June 15, 1998 Lancastet, California



Westside [Jnion SI)
Exhibit - Revised
Charter School Oversight

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans E 0a20.41(a)

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTE,R SCHOOLS

inelr+de+irihe-+a¡+- ger+e+et Charter schools are shall be subject to the terms of their charters,

any memorandum of understanding with their chartering authority, and other legal requirements

including, but not limited to, requirements that each charter school:

1, eemply with the state and fedcraleenstitutisn ærd æplieable federal larvs

Rrewn 
^et 

rcquirem

E. 1. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all
other operations (Education Code 47605)

+ 2. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in
Education Code220 (Education Code 47605)

* 3, Not charge tuition (Education Code 47605)

6. 4. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the

educational program, except as authorized by those Education Code provisions that explicitly
apply to charter schools

+ 5. Adhere to all laws establishing minimum age for public school attendance (Education

Code 47610)

8. 6, Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are

continuously enrolled in a public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a high school

diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965 (Education Code 47612)

+ 71. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in
other public schools (Education Code 47646,56145)

++ 8. Admit all students who wish to attend the school, according to the following criteria
and procedures:

a. Admission to the chader school shall not be determined according to the student's place

of residence, or that of his/her parents/guardians, within this state, except that any existing public

1.



E 0420.4t(b)

school converting partially or entirely to a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy
giving admission preference to students who reside within the school's former attendance area.

(Education Code 47605)

If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school attendance area in

which 50 percent or more of the student enrollment is eligible for free or reduced-price meals, it
may also establish an admissions preference for students who are currently enrolled in the public

elementary school and for students who reside in the public school attendance area. (Education

Code 47605.3)

b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's

capacily, attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing, except that preferences

shall be extended to students currently attending the charter school and students who reside in

the district, except as provided for in Education Code 47614.5. (Education Code 47605)

c. Other admissions preferences may be established on an individual school basis as

consistent with law. (Education Code 47605)

++. 9; Immediately enroll a homeless student, except where such enrollment would conflict
with Education Code 47605(d) (Education Code 48850; 42 USC 11431-11435)

,10;

ánd

the enrolknent

12, If the sehoel partieipates as a mernber ef a speeial edueatien loeal plan area (SEIP'&);

13. 1.1,:If the school offers a kindergarten program: (Education Code 48000)

a. Offer a transitional kindergarten (TK) program to students whose fifth birthday is from

September 2 through December 2

b. Ensure that any credentialed teacher first assigned to teach a TK class after July I,2015
meets the qualifications specified in Education Code 48000 by August 1,2020

++ 12. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the

Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) equivalent to that which a teacher in other public

schools would be required to hold (Education Code 47605)

15, Require its teaehers ef eere aeademie sr*Þieets te satisf' requirements fsr "highly
il

3O0,+Ð

+6. 13. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to

2



E 0420.41(c)

employees and persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters, within the first six

weeks of each school year or within six weeks of employment (Education Code 4469I)

+& ,15., Report to the CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status

(dismissal, nonreelection, resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for more than 10

days, retirement, or other decision not to employ or reemploy) as a result of an allegation of
misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending (Education Code 44030.5)

1+ '76, Meet the requirements of Education Code 47611regarding the State Teachers'

Retirement System (Education Code 47610)

28- Il.:. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective
bargaining in public education employment (Education Code 476II.5)

118;-, ,,If,the
interventiôn;

'79., 'If thê
mathematrcs

+ 21,, Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels

provided by the chafter school (Education Code 46%12 47612.5)

Z+ 22. If the school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code

51145-51749.3, except that the school may be allowed to offer courses required for graduation

solely through independent study as an exception to Education Code 5I7a5@) (Education Code

47612.5, 51747 .3;5 CCR 1 1705)

Z+ 25. Identify and report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPf any portion

of its average daily attendance that is generated through nonclassroom-based instruction,
including, but not limited to, independent study, home study, work study, and distance and

+ 2Q.Meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments required by
Education Code 60605 and 60851 and any other statewide standards or assessments applicable to

noncharler public schools (Education Code 47605,41612.5,60605, 60850-60859)

3



E 0420.4t(d)

computer-based education (Education Code 47 612.5, 47 634.2; 5 CCR 11963.2)

ZÇ i4,.t If the school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's web site or on

the web site of the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the

number of students who participate in competitive athletics classifîed by gender, and the number

of boys' and girls'teams classified by sport and by competition level (Education Code22l.9)

X- 25'. tf the school offers an athletic program, annually provide an information sheet about

concussion and head injury to athletes and their parents/guardians, which must be signed and

returned to the school before the athlete initiates practice or competition. In the event that an

athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury in an athletic activity, he/she shall

be immediately removed from the activity for the remainder of the day and shall not be permitted

to return to the activity until he/she is evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives

written clearance to return to the activity. (Education Code 33479-33479.5,49475)

æ. )61: Ona regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the school's

educational programs (Education Code 47605)

Z+ i7': Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including,

but not limited to, the use of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or petitions; the

wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia; and the right of expression in official publications

(Education Code 48907, 48950)

3+ 28; Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and

make these records available for audit and inspection (Education Code 47612.5)

3+ 29,. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the

charter school without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the

Superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within 30 days and, upon

request, provide that district with a copy of the student's cumulative record, including a transcript

of grades or report card, and health information (Education Code 47605)

+ :0. elee+ron+aUytftøSótro¡l-serves higli school students, submit the grade point

average of all students in grade 12 to the Student Aid Commission each academic year for use in
the Cal Grant program, after notifying the students and their parents/guardians as applicable, by

October 15 of each year, of the opportunity to opt out of being deemed a Cal Grant applicant

within a specified period of time of at least 30 days (Education Code 69432.9,69+32.92)

39831;3)

32. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by

4

3+



E 0420.41(e)

the local building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the chatter school

is located, unless the charter school facility meets either of the following conditions: (Education

Code 47610,47610.5)

a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 11280-17317 and

17365-17374

b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject to the

California Building Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the federal government.

aa
JJ.

rnilk..
î,)1\
¿.LL)

toa

34. Ensure the availability and proper use of emergency epinephrine auto-injectors by:
(Education Code 49414)

a. Providing school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with at least one regular

and one junior device for elementary schools and, for secondary schools, one regular device if
there are no students who require a junior device

b. Distributing a notice at least once per school year to all staff requesting volunteers and

describing the training that volunteers will receive

c. Providing defense and indemnifìcation to volunteers for any and all civil liability from
such administration

available
com

to,.providing

3+ 36, Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of
education, or the SPI, including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding the school's financial
records (Education Code 47604.3)

36. 3,,:/,. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the district Board of Trustees and the

County Superintendent of Schools in accordance with the following reporting cycle:

a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. For a charter school in its first
year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition pursuant to Education

Code 41605(9) will satisfu this requirement. (Education Code 47604.33)

b. By July 1 each year, an update of the school's goals and the actions to achieve those goals

5



E 0420.4r(Ð
as identified in the chafter, developed using the SBE template in accordance with Education
Code 41606.5. This report shall include a review of the progress toward the goals, an assessment

of the effectiveness of the specific actions toward achieving the goals, a description of changes

the school will make to the specific actions as a result of the review and assessment, and a listing
and description of expenditures for the fiscal year implementing the specific actions. (Education

Code 41 604.33, 47 606.5)

When conducting this review, the governing body of the school may consider qualitative
information including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school quality reviews

conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or any other reviews. To the extent practicable,

data shall be reported in a manner consistent with how information is reported on a school

accountability report card. The update shall be developed in consultation with teachers,

principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents/guardians and students. (Education

Code 47606.5)

c. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes

through October 31. (Education Code 4760433)

d. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting
changes through January 3 1 . (Education Code 47 604.33)

e. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year. The report submitted to

the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter school's receipts and expenditures

for the preceding fiscal year. (Education Code 42100,41604.33)

f. By December 15, a copy of the chafter school's annual, independent financial audit report

for the preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is encompassed in the district's

audit. The audit report shall also be submitted to the state Controller and the Califomia
Department of Education. (Education Code 47605)

accountability report card (Èducàiion Co¿e 47 612; California

In addition, chafier schools shall comply with the state and federal constitutions, applicable

6



090-1099 and871,00.910.14.,

ExhibitV/ESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: Aat$*s+=+€r2015 QuartzHill,California

7



The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the

following complaints:

1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulationg
governing adult education programs,,-{fter School Education and Safety programs, agricultural
vocational eduqation, aryriean,Indian education centers and early'childhood education'prog{am.:
assessments, bilinguáLéduCationr:peéí:4ssislãlce and.,feiiew:programs,for teachers, career

Westside [Jnion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Community Relations BP 1312.3(a)

The Board of Trustees recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure

compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve

complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of
complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative
regulation.

Complaints Subject to the UCP

technical and technical education and child

rnigrant education;
education programs, Education programs,,

,andanyotherdistrict-imp1ementedprogramwhichis
listed in Education Code 6a000(a) €-e€R46t€E

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(Cf,'5 t 4 8.3 - PÍescho'ol/Early, Chilúood Educati o n )
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 617 I - Title I Programs)
(cf.6174 - Education for English Language Learners)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)
(cf. 6178 - Carcer Technical Education)
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning)
(cf . 617 8.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

t



BP 1312.3(b)

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination, ( such as

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), against any student, employee, or other

person in district programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those programs or
activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance, based

on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry,

nationaiity, national origin, ethnic group identification, immigration status, age, religion, marital

status, pregnancy or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gendef,

gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified

in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55 (5 CCR 4610) ,

or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or
perceived characteristics (5 CCR 4610)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5 1 45.3 - NondiscriminatiorVHarassment)
(cf.5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide

reasonable accommodation to alactating student on school campus to express breast milk,
breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs ofthe student (Education

Code222)

(cf . 5 I 4 6 - Manied/P r e gnantlP arenting Students)

4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring
students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for parlicipation in educational activities (5 CCR
46r0)

(cf.3260 - Fees and Charges)
(cf.3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the

implementation of the local control and accountability plan (Education Code 52075)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district
noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement

decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the student, the award of
credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district, school transfer, or the

grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 48853,

48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)

(cf.6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

2



BP 1312.3(c)

#æ)

& 7,,,,, Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education

instructional minutes requirement for students in elementary school (Education Code 51210,

s1223)

(cf.6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

9. 8,. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or reporl a violation subject to this policy

+4. 9. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of
the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is agreeable to all
parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than

one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any

complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the

mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that

the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the

confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint

alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of the

complainant and/or the subject of the complaint, if he/she is different from the complainant,

when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.

(cf. 4119.2314219.2314319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 901 1 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district

shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if
appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and

knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in
this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation.

3



BP 13 t2.3(d)
(cf.4131 - Staff Development)
(cf.4231 - Staff Development)
(cf.4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the

investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable state law and district policy.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Non-UCP Complaints

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the

specified agency: (5 CCR 46lI)

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department

of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement

agency.

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program

shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-
exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator.

ì-'epartment ef Fair Enrpto
.

+ 3,,Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance

Biânchdthe California Department of Education.

rnvcstigate and resol

students er staff; er t

(ef, 1312,4 Williams Uniferrn eernplaint PreeedureÐ

Any,

Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent

4



BP 1312.3(e)

'fuf..I372,,4.- Wiltiams: Ùniform Coøpiaint Procedures)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
222 Reasonable accommodations ; lactating students

8200-8498 Child care and development programs

8500-8538 Adult basic education
18100-18203 School libraries
32289 School safety plan, uniform complaìnt procedures

¡ g 3 S 0-3 ¡ ¡ 84 California Indi an Education Centers

35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

aaiÛg;4¡45ù8',€álifamiaPeer,Assistance and'Rev.iew.P',rogram,for,Têaóhon
48853-48853.5 Foster youth
48985 Notices in language other than English
49010-49013 Student fees

49060-49079 Student records
49069.5 Rights of parents

49490-49590 Child nutrition programs
4970I Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children
51210 Courses ofstudy grades 1-6

51223 Physical education, elementary schools

51225.1-51225.2 Foster youth and homeless children, and former juvenile court school sfudénts,

students; course credits; graduation requirements
technioal education

5 1228.I -5 1228.3 Course periods without educational content

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan, especially

52075 Cornplaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements

52160-52178 Bilingual education programs

52300-52490 Career technical education
52500-52616.24 Adult schools , .
5.4;o:00i'5'4029, EConomiê Imþáct Äid
54400-54425 Compensatory education programs

54440-54445 Migrant education
54460-54529 Compensatory education programs

56000-56867 Special education programs
59000-59300 Special schools and centers

64000-64001 Consolidated application process

5



BP 13r2.3(Ð

GOVERNMENT CODE
I 1 13 5 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
10442ß Tobacco-Use Prevention Education
PENAL CODE
422.55 Hate crime; definition
422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TTTLE2
11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3080 Application of section
4600-4681 Uniform complaint procedures

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs

LTNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1221 Application of laws
l23}gFamily Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972

6301-6577 Title I basic programs
6801-6871 Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students

TLOI-7184 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act
720I-72839 Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs

7301-7372 Title V rural and low-income school programs

12101-12213 Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities

LTNITED STATES CODE, TITLE2g
794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000e-17 Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

6t0l-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.I-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy
100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin

I04.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504

i06.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX
106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex

LI}.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA ÐEÞARTMENT' OF EDUC*frcN PUB-I,1.ICATXIO.N'S

Sample UCP Board Þolicies and Procedures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

6



BP 1312.3(s)

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013

near getteaguc Lett
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other

Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against

National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002

WEB SITES
CSBA: htþ://www.csba.org
California Deparlment of Education: http ://www.cde.ca. gov

Family Policy Compliance Office : http : I I familypolicy.ed. gov

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: htç://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice: http://wwwjustice.gov

Policy WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: June 6,2017 Quartz Hill, California

7



Westside [Jnion SI)
Administrative Regulation - Revised
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Community Relations AR 1312.3(a)

Except as the Board of Trustees may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies,

these general uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only
the complaints specified in BP 1312.3.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 13 12.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil
rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 5145.3 -

NondiscriminatiorVHarassment as the responsible employee to handle complaints regarding
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying). The
individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure district
compliance with law.

(cf. 5 145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

@f. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Deputy Superintendent
41914 50th Street West
Lancaster, Ca93536
(66r) 722-0116
r.hughes@westside.k 1 2. ca.us

Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services (Lead Compliance Officer)
41914 5Oth Street V/est
Lancaster, Ca93536
(66r) 122-0716
maj ohnson@westside.k 1 2.ca.us

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the

complainant if another compliance officer is designated to investigate the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias or

1



AR 1312.3(b)

conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the

complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed
with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve
complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the
complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such designated employees shall
cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable processes

for investigating and resolving complaints, including those involving alleged unlawful
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, ot bullying), applicable
standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures. Assigned
employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

(cf.4331 - Staff Development)
(cf .9124 - Attorney)

The compliance off,rcer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether
interim measures are necessary during and pending the results of an investigation. If interim
measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall
consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site
principal to implement, if possible, one or more of the interim measures. The interim measures

may remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or
until the district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and

offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code234.l)

local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements, and requirements related to the

educational rights of foster youth, homeless students, an#former juvenile coutt students te-
students, ándihildren of military families

@ic*(EducationC¡¡lde262.3,48853,48853.5,4g0i049013,4g06g,5,
51225.1, 51225.2, 5207 5; 5 CCR 4622)

(cf . 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

2



AR 1312.3(c)
(cf.1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf.3260 - Fees and Charges)
(cf. 41 12.91 4212.9 I 4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf, 6173.I - F.ducation for Foster Youth)
'(cf . 6]1} :2'. Education, of Cåildren o f Military Fami lies)
(cf . 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

The notice shall:

1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints

2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under
state or federal discrimination laws, if applicable

3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the complainant's
right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue

remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, such as the U.S. Department of Education's
Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying).

4. Include statements that:

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and

federal laws and regulations governing educational programs.

b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt
of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.

c. A complaint alleging retaliation, unlawful discrimination, (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later than six months from the date it
occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of
the alleged discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the

Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth
the reasons for the extension.

d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is

unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to conditions such as a disability or
illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any allegation that
is subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to investigate and address the

allegations, in a manner appropriate to the particular circumstances.

3



AR 1312.3(d)

If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation confirms that discrimination has

occurred, the district will take steps to prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its

discriminatory effects on the complainant, and on others, if appropriate.

f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her
participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the

district's educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update a local control and accountability
plan (LCAP), in a manner that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students,

and other stakeholders in the development and/or reviçw of the LCAP.

h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to his/her

educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well as the responsibilities of
the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and facilitate these requirements and to assist the

student in ensuring proper transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers

between schools or between the district and another district.

i. A foster youth, homeless student, er former juvenile court school student, or child of a
military family. who transfers into a district high school or between district high schools shall be

notified of the district's responsibility to:

(1) Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has satisfactorily
completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or
agency, and to issue full or partial credit for the coursework completed

(2) Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course which he/she has

satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile courl school, or a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency

(3) If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before the transfer,
provide the student information about district-adopted coursework and Board-imposed
graduation requirements from which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code

51225.1

j The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by filing a written
appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.

In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right to file an appeal with +he CDE
in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is dissatisfied with the district's decision.

k. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district and a

copy of the district's decision.

4



AR 1312.3(e)

l. Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge

The annual notification and complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and

information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 22I.6 shall y be posted on

the district web site and, if available, provided through district-supported social media.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the

UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985

In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information
for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

District Responsibilities

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the

district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the

timeline. (5 CCR 4631)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant agrees

to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint.

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions,

including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5

CCR463l and4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or
allegations of retaliation, unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the

investigation, take subsequent conective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, ot maintain the

integrity of the process. (5 CCR 4630,4964)

All complainants ihall be protected from retaliation.

5

Filing of Complaints



AR 13r2.3(Ð

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of
complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp'

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is

unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district

staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

Complaints shall be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations

governing

in the

accompanJmg tn¿r¿,policy may be

filed by any individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against

requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the

LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or infotmation leading to

evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the

prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the

school. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the

alleged violation occurred. (Education Code 4901 3, 5207 5;5 CCR 4630)

3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying), may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally

suffered unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific

class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six

months from the date when the alleged discrimination occurred, or six months from the date

when the complainant fìrst obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination. The

time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good

cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. (5

ccR 4630)

4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an

investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the

information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.

5. When the complainant or alleged victim of unlawful discrimination (such as

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) requests confidentiality, the compliance

officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the

conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district

will nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and respond to the complaint consistent

with the request.

6



AR 1312.3(9)

District staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

Mediation

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Meditation shall be

offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However,
mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual

assault or where there is a reasonable risk that aparty to the mediation would feel compelled to
participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements

for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation, unlawful discrimination (such

as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall ensure that

all parties agree to make the mediator apafty to relevant confidential information. The

compliance officer shall also notify all parlies of the right to end the informal process at any

time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the

compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the

complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is

successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed te'
upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with
subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint.

Within three business days of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the

complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or

his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, or
information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence or
information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and

review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any

additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the

investigation, shall individually interview all available witnesses with information pertinent to
the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessi-ble logation where the relevant actions are

alleged to have taken place. At,áÞpropriate.inter:'rálü'ihe'ComÞliance offrcer shall inform,both

7



AR 1312.3(h)

parties : of the' itmi, of*e'iivé's'iigation

To re*elve investigaté a complaint alleging retaliation, unlawful discrimination (such as

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the

alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in
a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the

investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence

related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or

engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the

complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, a respondent's

refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the

allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in
any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on evidence collected,
that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5

ccR 4631)

In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and other

information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any'ù/ay obstruct the

investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result in a
finding based on evidence collected fhat aviolation has occurred and in the imposition of a
remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 463I)

The compliance offrcer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining
the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is

more likely to be true than not.

Report of Findings

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to the

complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30

calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the

complainant a written report of the district's investigation and decision, as described in the

section "Final Written Decision" below. If the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance

ofhcer's decision, he/she may, within five business days, file his/her complaint in writing with
the Board.

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be

answered. The Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance
offrcer's decision shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the

complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the

8



AR 1312.3(i)

time period that has been specif,red in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 463I)

In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's decision and, in the

same manner as the complainant , may file a complaint with the Board if dissatisfied with the

decision

Final Written Decisron

The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be sent to

the complainant and respondent. (5 CCR 463I)

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may

be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties that may be

involved in implementing the decision or affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the

parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the alleged victim
shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates

directly to the alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parentlguardian and the student

involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single primary
language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that language. In
other all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information
for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

For all complaints, the decision shall include: (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual determination,
the following factors may be taken into account:

Statements made by any witnesses

The relative credibility of the individuals involved

How the complaining individual reacted to the incident

Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct

Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders

Past false allegations made by the complainant

The conclusion(s) of law

a.

b.

c.

d.

e

f.

2

9



J

4

AR 1312.30)
Disposition of the complaint

Rationale for such disposition

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination, (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a
determination for each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has

occurred.

The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of
the following:

a. I{o.¡¿ fte,man+ei in which the misconduct affected one or more students' education

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct

c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s)

d. The number of persons engaged in ths conduct and at whom the conduct was directed

e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred

f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals

5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to
address the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a
remedy that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,

intimidation, or bullying), including remedies offered or provided to the subject of the complaint

a. The corrective actions imposed on the individual found to have engaged in the conduct

that relate directly to the subject of the complaint

b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the subject of the complaint or another person

who was the subject of the complaint

c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent

recurrence

6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision within
15 calendar days to the CDE and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recuffence or retaliation and for
reporting any subsequent problems.

10



AR 1312.3(k)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the

complainant that:

1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint
procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest

ãtto*"yr, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with +hc CDE. (Education Code 262.3)

2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state

courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)

3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender,

disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil
Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Corrective Actions

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance offrcer shall adopt any appropriate

comective action permitted by law. Appropriate conective actions that focus on the larger school

or district environment may include, bpt are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies,

training for faculty, staff, and students, updates to school policies, or school climate surveys.

For complaints involving retaliation, unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on the victim
may include, but are not limited to, the following:

Counseling

Academic support

Health services

Assignment of an escorl to allow the victim to move safely about campus

5. Information regarding available resources and how to repoft similar incidents or
retaliation

6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation

does not penalize the victim

1 . Restorative justice

8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no
retaliation

1

2

a
J

4

1T



1.

2.

J.

4.

AR 1312.3(t)

9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were
related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint

For complaints involving retaliation, unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following:

Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law

Parent/guardian conference

Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others

Positive behavior support

Referral to a student success team

6. Denial of parlicipation in extracunicular or co-curricular activities or other privileges as

permitted by law

l. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and

collective bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community
to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types ofbehavior that
constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying), that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

haiefierìt;'an apptopriate:i edy,sþaltæp"i¿ê¿ to tha
person.

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other
charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or any
requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all
affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by regulation ofthe
State Board of Education.. (Education Code 49013,51223,52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all
affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior
to the filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013;5 CCR 4600)

5

1.2



AR 1312.3(m)
Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complaina¡t who is dissatisfìed with the district's final written decision of a complaint
régæding any 5p ¡ed'fedeial-or state educational piogram subject to the UCP may file an

appeal in writing with the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.
(EducationCode222,48853,48853.5,49013,49069.5,51223,51225.1,51225.2,51228.3,
52075;5 CCR 4632)

When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision,
he/she, in the same manner as the complainant,may file an appeal with the CDE.

The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether
the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a
copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision. (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the district's decision, the

Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint

2. A copy of the written decision

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conductçd by the district, if not
covered by the decision

4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator

A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint

A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures

Other relevant information requested by the CDE

Regulation WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: February 3,2075 Quartz Hill, California
revised: September 20, 2016
revised: June 6,2017

5

6

7

13



Westside [Jnion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Student And Family Privacy Rights

Students BP 5022(a)

The Board of Trustees respects the rights of district students and their parents/guardians with
regard to the privacy of their personal beliefs and the confidentiality of their personal

information. The Snperintendent er designee shall develep regulatiens to ensure eomplianee

rvith larv-rvhen the distriet requests; retains; diseleses, er etherrvise-uses the persenal informatien
eÊi*ffi

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)
(cf. 6162.8 - Research)

The Superintendent or designee may collect, disclose, or use students' personal information for
the èxciusive pulpose,of ,developing;,svalur*ing,,or providing educuli:Tl groducts or services

for or to students oi:educational lnstitutions; such as,the,f:ollowing: (20 USC 1232h)

1. College or other postsecondaly education recruitment or military recruitment

2. Book clubs , magazines, and piograms providing access to low-cost literary products

3. Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools

4. Tests and assessments to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, or
achievement information ábout students (or to generate other statistically useful data for
the þu¡pose of securing such,téSts'and assessrnçáts) and the subsequent',analysis and

publicdeasé of tþe agg¡egate data from such tests and,assessments

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessnrcnl)
(cf 6 I 62. 5 1 - State AcademidAChì euement Tests)

5. The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or
education-related activities

(cJ. 1321 - Solicitation of Funcls from ønd by Studeits)

6. Student recognition programs

(cf 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

1.



].
salc

:

The Superintenderrt or designee,',is

'thé.'dev-elopment

which shall, at a minimum,
address the following: (20 USC 1232h)

or

2. Arrangements to protect student privacy in the,
adnrinish¿tioú'of surveys that may request information about the personal beliefs and practices

of students and their families

3. The rights of parents/guardians to inspect the following, and any applicable procedures

for granting reasonable u.."ri to the following in a reasonable period of time:

a. Survey instruments requesting information about their personal beliefs and practices or

those of their children

b. Instructional materials used as part of their children's educational curriculum

4. Whether the distriet may administer any nenernergene'' Any nonemergency physical

examinations oi screenings that the schôol may administer invasive physical examination or

screening

sháll notifv, pæents/guardials, ôf 'the adoption,, or continued use

to the rights specified in items #1-4 above. (20 USC i232h)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf . 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committee)
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)

s polioy

2

þf. 51a5.6 - ParenÍal Notifications)



BP 5022(c)
Legal Reference:
EDIJCATION CODE,
234.7 SlutlenÍ proÍeclions reluÍìng lo immigrüion ancl cilizenship stalus
49076.7 Privucy ofitudent records; socÍal security nuntbers

49450-49458 Physical examinations
49602 Confidentiality of personal information received during counseling
51101 Parents Rights Act of 2002
51513 Test, questionnaì19, survey? or examination concerning personal beliefs
51514' ,.,Nonreniouul'of sartey.quesiiais-pertaìnÍig..to,sexuul oiíentøfion:or gender identíly

5 193 8 Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act; notice and parental excuse

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
I23ZgFamily Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1232h Protection of pupil rights
Management Resources:
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education: http ://www. cde.ca. gov
U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office:
http ://www.ed. gov/offi ces/OM/fpco

Policy WESTSIDE TINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: June 79,2012 Quartz Hill, California

3



Westside [Jnion SI)
Administrative Regulation - Revised
Student And Family Privacy Rights

Students AR 5022(a)

rnetudiÊg a studc#

l'istriet{taff may adm
purpose ef eelleeting persenal infermation fer marketing er sale; provided that the instrumenÊ is

Requiremcnts rcgar

purpese of developing, evaluating, or previding edueatienal preduets er serviees fer; er te;

tr, eellege er ether pestseeondary edueatien reert*itment ermilitary reeruitment

1, Beek etubs; maga

g, euffieutum and inst

4, Tests and assessrnents te previde eegnitive; evaluative; diagnestie; elinieal; aptitude; er

pur?ese of seeuring sr*eh tests and assessments) and the subsequenf anal) sis and publie release ef

(ef, AtAZ,Sl 
'Stan¿æ

isn-
re+a+e+ae+i+4+ies

Surveys Requesting Information about Beliefs and Practices

1"



AR 5022(b)

A student's parentlguardian, or.a:stuaè¡t who is an adult or emancipated minor, shall provide
prior written consent before the student is required to participate in a suruey inquiring about one

or more of the following: (Education Code 5 l5I3;20 USC 1232h)

1. Political aff,rliations or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian

2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family

3. Sexual behavior or attitudes or personal beliefs and practices in family life or morality

4. Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior

5. Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom the student has close family
relationships

6. Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers,

physicians, or ministers

l. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian

8. Income, except to the extent that income is required to be disclosed by law for
participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such a program

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

If a student participates in a survey requesting information about personal beliefs and practices as

iden++Êeé¿beve, school officials and staff members shall not request or disclose the student's

identity.

(cf.6162.8-Research)

Notwithstanding the above requirements for prior written consent, the district may administer to

students in grades 7-12 anonymous, voluntary, and confidential research and evaluation tools to

measure student health risks and behaviors, including tests and surveys about student attitudes or
practices related to sex as long as parents/guardians are provided written notice and given an

opportunity to request, in writing, that their child not participate. (Education Code 5 193 8)

If the district administers a voluntary survey that already includes questions pertaining to sexual

orientation and/or gender identity, the Superintendent or designee shall not remove such

quesiions. (Education Code 51514)

Parent/Guardian Access to Surveys and Instructional Materials

2



AR 5022(c)

The parent/guardian of any district student, upon his/her request, shall have the right to inspect
(Education Code 51938;20 USC 1232h)

i. A survey or other instrument to be administered or distributed to his/her child that either

collects personal information for marketing or sale or requests information about beliefs and

practices

2. Any instructional material to be used as part of his/her child's educational curriculum

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

Within a reasonable period of time after receiving a parent/guardian's request, the principal or

designee shall permit the parent/guardian to view the survey or other document he/she requested.

A parent/guardian may view the document any time during normal business hours.

(cf, I3a0 - Access Ío DisÍrict Records)

No student shall be subject to penalty for his/her parent/guardian's exercise of any of the rights

stated above.

Health Examinations

Authorized school officials may administer to any student any physical examination or screening

permitted under Califomia law. However, no student shall be subjected to a nonemergency,

invasive pþsical examination without prior written.notice to his/her parentf guardian ¡ unlessan
ápticable''state.law authorizes,the'student'to pr.ovidé:con3ent.wjthqüt:parenV'pædiani,
ho.tificatión. (20 USC 1232h)

Invasive physical examination means any medical examination that involves the exposure of
private body parts or any act during such examination that includes incision, insettion, or

injection into the body, but does not include a properly authorized hearing, vision, or scoliosis

screening. (20 USC 1232h)

(cf. 513 1161 - Drug Testing)
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)

Notifications

At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
parents/guardians of: (20 USC 1232h)

1. The district's policy regarding student privacy

2. The process to opt their children out of participation in any activity described in this
po+i€y€nd administrative regulation and the accornpanying Board policy,

3



a.

b.

AR 5022(d)

3. The specific or approximate dates during the school year when the following activities

are scheduled:

Survey requesting personal information

Physical examinations or screenings

e, eelleetion ef persenal inferrnatien from students fer rnarketing er sale

Prior to administering any anonymous and voluntary survey regarding health risks and behaviors

to students in grades 7-l2,the district shall provide parents/guardians with written notice that the

survey is to be administered. (Education Code 51938)

Parents/guardians shall also be notified of any substantive change to this policy and

administrative regulation within a reasonable period of time after adoption of the change. (20

usc 1232h)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Regulation WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: June 19,2012 Quartz Hill, California

4



Westside fJnion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Parental Notifications

Students

The Board of Trustees
communication between the school and the home

BP 51a5.6(a)

piomote effective

students, an¿ ttleirof
or designee shall send s+r*dentrand parents/guardians

andstudentsallnotificationsrequiredbylaw,ineluding-no+ifiea+k@and
any other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and involvement.

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf.5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Noticeoftherightsandresponsibilitiesofparents/guardiansas
spècified,in Education Code 48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may

be provided ei+he+by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian,

or by any other method normally used by the.

district for written communicæion,wiüþarentVguardians. (Education Code 4898I;489æ)

fertheoming seheet t
No sueh activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken

with respect to any parlicular student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such

action through the ánnual notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall

state the actÑity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will
occur. (Education Code 48983-48984)

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return

it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parentlguardian submit a

signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is

an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate

in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code 48982)

\ilhenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, hislher paients/guardians

sha1l be given'all required parental notifrcãtionq'.a1,t¡u, time.

¡letifreatiens te pa

Notifications shall

1.

practicable, in a language that
format and, to- the extent



BP 5145

census

ther (Education Code 48981,

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parentlguardian is, fe+-any+easeq unable to

understand the district's printed notifications for:âiy'.i.e.aso , hê/she,sh'áll.inform the principal or
designee, who shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of
communication.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
22L5 Prohibited sex discrimination
231.5 Sexual harassment policy
234.1 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of civil
remedies

310-31 1 Structured English immersion program, parental exception waivers
3 13 Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation
3 13 .2 Long-term English I earner, notifròation
440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development
8483 Before/a-fter',school'program;,:effollmeñt,priøitie¡
17288 Ruilding standards for university campuses
176lI.5-17612 Notification of pesticide use

32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members
32255-32255.6 Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals
32390 Fingerprint
33;479,3 The Eric P
3 5 1 60.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities
35178.4 Notice of accreditation status
35183 School dress codes; uniforms
3518q Complainls concerning deficiencies in instryctional -materials and facilities
3 521 1 Drivei tiàining; district insurance, parent/guardian liability
35256 School Accountability Report Card
35258 School Accountability Report Card

35291 Rules for student discipline
isn

31 616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule
39831.5 School bus rider rules and information
44050 Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students

44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

consent of

2



BP 5145.6(c)
46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

46600-4661 1 Interdistrict attendance agreements
48000 Minimum age of admission
48070.5 Promotion or retention of students
48204 Residency requirements
48205 Absence for personal reasons

48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions
48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals
48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance
48216 Immunization
482605 Notice regarding truancy
48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy
48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department
48301 Interdistrict transfers
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Aci
48354 Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
48357 Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
48412 Certificate of proficiency
48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students,

48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeléss students

48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension
48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct
48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts
48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer
48911 Notification in case of suspension
48911.i Assignment to supervised suspension classroom
48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension
48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district
489 | 6 Readmission procedures

4891 8

+g,9zg

48980
48980.
48981
48982
48983
48984
4898s
48987
490t3
49063
49067
49068

misdêmêanor
Required notification at beginning of term
3 Notification of pesticide use

Time and means of notification
Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice
Contents of notice
Activities prohibited unless notice given
Notices to parents in language other than English
Child abuse information
Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees

Notif,rcation of parental rights
Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

3



BP 514s.6(d)
49069 Absolute righl to access

49 07 0, Chállénging,content'rof.,sJùdént rreoofd
49013 Release of directory information
4gOll.ø Student records, social media
49076 Access to student records
49071 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order
49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization
49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student
4945I Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent
49452.5 Screening for scoliosis
49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes
49452.8 Oral health assessment

49456 Results of vision or hearing test
49471- 49472 Insurance
49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries
49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions
49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Famify Nutritio-n Education and Services Act of 1970

49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 20Il; notice of negative balance in

meal aecount
51225.1 Exemption from district graduâtion requirements

51225.2 Course credits; foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court school students and

mi litary-connected students

51225.3 Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria

51229 Course of study for gradesT-I2
51513 Personal beliefs; privacy
51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction
52164 Language cenius
52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language

skills
52164.3 Reassessment of English leamers; notification of results

54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement
56301 Child-frnd system; policies regarding written notification rights
5632I Special education: proposed assessment plan
5632I.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education
56329 V/ritten notice of right to findings; independent assessment

56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting
5634L 5 Individualized education program team meetings
5 63 43 . 5 Individuali zed education pro gram meetings
5652L 1 Behavioral intervention
58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

ion
ics

60615 Exemption froln state assessment

4



BP 5145.6(e)

60641''Càiifomiþ$gism@."i1tu4'P.er{ó¡mãhee'ând:Pr sS

69432,9 SubrnisSioi of'grâdê-þôint,a àge.to Cal'Grãht program

7.7 98.29'DiStricl reoold$reach of security
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
1596.857 Right to enter child care facility
l'0 4'4 2 0,,,,TabàCco ù s e,'þ/ø enti an
1 04 8 5 5 A-vailability 

.o 
f topìcal fl goride treatment

l. l,:,6 27 7..,'tLead,testiig ofsetuloi¡l diinkiig-watey
120365-120375 Immunizations
120440 Sharing immunization information
124100 Health screening and immunizations
PENAL CODE
626.81 Nolice of permission granted lo sex o¡enaer to volunteer on campus

621.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

850 Ðefinitions; netifieatio+regarding use ef ealifomia Modified '4ssessment
863 Standardized Testing and Reperting Pregrarn
852 Exemptions from stale assessments

863 Reports of state assessment results

3052 Behavioral intervention

4622 Nofification of uniform complaint procedures
4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal

4702 Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act
4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy
11303 Reclassification of English leamers
11309 Parental exception waivers
1 151 1 .5 English language proficiency assessment; test results
11523 Notice of proficiency examinations
18066 Child care excused and unexcused absences

l,'809,4.
,l'8i,l4'

servtces:

I8l,l,B;I
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
' 2 9 5'1, :,Etre aiing,'t e,s t s,

6040 Time period to obtain needed immunizations
LTNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

I232g Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act
1232h Privacy rights
14i5 Procedural safeguards
631 1 State plans

6312 Local educational agency plans

6316 ¡\eademie assessment anåloeal edueatien agene) seheel improvement
63 1 8 Parental inv€+vcmcnland family engágement

5



BP s145.6(Ð

7012 Instruetior in English language develepment
7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students
LINITED STATES CODE, TTTLE 42
1758 Child nutrition programs
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

'99.7 Student records, annual notif,rcation
99.30 Disclosure of þerionally tdentlfiable information
99.34 Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies

99.37 Disclosure of directory information
I04.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education
I04.3 6 Procedural safeguards
1 04.8 Nondiscrimination
106.9 Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex

200. 5 Teacher qualifications
300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation
300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings
300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability
300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with
disability
300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities
300.508 Due process complaint
300.530 Discipline procedures
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40

763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions
763.93 Asbestos management plans
Management Resources:

Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017

CitíLRightS,:Cornplil Cë:and Enfõicem¿hL:.'Natrition Programs"and,Se/tieei:,,,FNÍ trn;'truétion
'I'1,3r'1',, 2,0105

Policy WESTSIDE TINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: July 23,2013 Quartz Hill, California

6



Westside flnion SI)
Exhibit - Replace

Students E 51a5.6(a)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 releases districts fi'om the obligation to perform specif,red

mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The

Budget Act of 2017 (AB 91 , Ch. 14, Statutes of 2011) extends the suspension of these requirements

through the 2017-18 fiscal year. As a result, ceftain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis

screening and bus safety instruction may be suspended.

When to
Notify

I. Annually

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

By February I

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
234.',l

Education Code
310

Education Code
17611.5,17612,
48980.3

Education Code
352s6,35258

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 0410

BP 6142.2
AR 6174

AR 3514.2

BP 0510

Sub.iect

Right to a free public
education regardless of
immigration status or
religious beliefs

Information on the district's
language acquisition
programs

Use of pesticide product,
active ingredients, Internet
address to access information,
and, if district has no web site

and uses ceftain pesticides,
integrated pest management
plan

School Accountability
Report Card provided

1



PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 514s.6(b)

Subject

District and site discipline
rules

Code of conduct addressing
employee interactions with
students

Absence for confidential
medical services

District policy authorizing
transfer

Schedule of minimum days

and student-fi'ee staff
development days

Copy of sexual harassment
policy as related to students

Right to refrain from hannful
or destructive use of animals

All statutory attendance
options, available local
attendance options, options for
meeting residency, form for
changing attendance, appeals
process

Absence for religious
exercises or purposes

Excused absences; grade/credit
cannot be reduced due to
excused absence ifwork or test
has been completed; full text
ofEducation Code 48205

When to
Notify

I. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year, ifdistrict has adopted
policy on involuntary transfer
of students convicted of ceftain
crimes when victim is enrolled
at same school

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year, if Board allows
such absence

Beginning of each school
yeaÍ

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
35291,48980

Education Code
44050

Education Code
460 1 0.1

Education Code
48929,48980

Education Code
48980

Education Code
48980,231.5;
5 CCR4917

Education Code
48980, 32255-
32255.6

Education Code
48980,35160.5,
46600-46611,
48204,48301,
483 50-483 6 I

Education Code
48980,46014

Education Code
48980, 48205

Board Policy/
Á.dministrative
Regulation #

AR 5144
AR 5144.1

BP 4119.21
4219.21
4319.21

AR 5113

BP 5116.2

BP 6111

AR 5145.7

AR 5145.8

BP 51 1 1.1

AR 5116.1
AR 5117

AR 51 13

AR 5113
BP 6154

2



PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(c)

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation # Subject

AR 6183 Availability of home/hospital
instruction for students with
temporary disabilities

BP 5141.31 School immunization program

AR 5141.21 Administration of
prescribed medication

AR 5141.3 Right to refuse consent to
physical examination

BP 5143 Availability of
lnsurance

AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures,
available appeals, civil law
remedies

When to
Notify

I. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
48980, 48206.3,
48207,48208

Education Code
48980,49403

Education Code
48980,49423,
49480

Education Code
48980, 49451;
20usc 1232h

Education Code
48980, 49471,
49472

Education Code
49013;5 CCR
4622

Education Code
49063

Education Code
49063,49069;
20 USC 12329;
34 CFR 99.7

Education Code
49063, 49013;
20 USC t2329;
34 CFR99.31

Education Code
49s20,48980;
42USC 1158;
7 CFk245.5

AR 5125
AR 5125.3

AR 5125

AR 5125.1

Challenge, review, and

expunging ofrecords

Student records: inspect and

review, access, types, location,
persons responsible, location
of log, access criteria, cost of
copies, amendment requests,

criteria to determine legitimate
educational interest, course
prospectus availability

Release of directory
information

Eligibility and application
process for free and reduced-
price meals

J

AR 3553



PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E, s 145.6(d)

Subject

Notice of privacy policy and

dates ofactivities re: survey,
health examination, or
collection ofpersonal
information for marketing;
process to opt out ofsuch
activities; inspection rights
and procedures

Parental rights re: special
education identification,
referral, assessment,

instructional planning,
implementation and review,
and procedures for initiating
a referral for assessment

Alternative schools

Availability of dental fluoride
treatment; opportunity to
accept or deny treatment

Student's parlicipation in state

assessments; option to request
exemption from testing

Right to request information
re : professional qualifications
of child's teacher and

paraprofessional

Nondiscrimination

Availability of asbestos

management plan; any
inspections, response actions
or post-response actions
planned or in progress

District policy on meal
payments

When to
Notify

I. Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
yeal'

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
yeaf

Annually

Beginning of each school
year, if district receives
Title I tunds

Beginning of each school
year

Beginning of each school
year to parent, teacher, and

employee organizations or, in
their absence, individuals

Beginning of each school
year

Dducation or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
51513;20 USC
1232h

Education Code
s6301

Education Code
58501,48980

Health and Safety
Code 104855

5 CCR 852;
Education Code
60615

20usc 6312;
34 CFR 200.48

34 CFR 104.8,

106.9

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5022
BP 6162.8

BP 6164.4

AR 6181

AR 5141.6

AR 6162.51

BP 4112.2
AP.4222

BP 0410
BP 6178

40 cFR 763.84,
763.93

AR 3514

USDA SP-23-2017 AR 3551

4



II. At Specifïc Times During the Student's Academic Career

Beginning in grade 7, Education Code BP 6164.2

at least once prior to course 221.5,48980
selection and career counseling

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5i45.6(e)

Subject

Course selection and
career counseling

Information on the district's
language acquisition
programs

School bus safety rules and

information, list of stops, rules
ofconduct, red light crossing
instructions, bus danger zones,

walking to and from stops

How each graduation
requirement does or does not
satisfu college entrance a-g
course criteria; district CTE
courses that satisfo a-g criteria

Specified rights related to
student records

Specified information on type
2 diabetes

Requirement for oral health
assessment, explanation of
law, importance of oral health,
agency contact, privacy rights

When to
Notify

Upon a student's enrollment

When child first enrolls in a
public school, ifschool offers
a fingerprinting program

When participating in
driver training courses under
the jurisdiction ofthe district

Upon registration in K-6, if
students have not previously
been transpofted

Beginning of each school
year for high school students,
if high school is open campus

Beginning of each school
year in grades 9-72, if district
allows career technical education
(CTE) course to satisf,i
graduation requirement

Upon a student's enrollment

When students enter grade 7

When in kindergaften,
or first grade if not previously
enrolled in public school

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
310

Education Code
32390,48980

Education Code
35211

Education Code
39831.5

Education Code
44808.5, 48980

Education Code
48980,51225.3

Education Code
49063

Education Code
49452.7

Education Code
49452.8

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 6142.2
AR 6174

AR 6146.1

AR 5125
AR 5125.3

AR s141.3

AR 3543

AR 5l 12.5 Open campus

AR 5142.1 Fingerprinting program

None Civil liability, insurance
coverage

5

AR 5141.32



II. At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career (continued)

Beginning of each school year Education Code AR 6143

for students in grades 9-12 51229,48980

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(Ð

Subject

College admission
requirements, UC and CSU
web sites that list cerlif,ied
courses, description of CTE,
CDE Internet address, how
students may meet with
counselors

Sexual health and HIV
prevention education, right to
view A/V materials, whether
taught by district staffor
outside consultants, right to
request specifìc Education
Code sections, right to excuse

Results of tests; test
purpose, individual score
and intended use

Forwarding of student's grade
point average to Cal Grant
program; timeline to opt out

Health screening
examination

Notice of proficiency
examination provided
under Education Code 48412

Request that district not release

name, address, phone number
of child to military recruiters
without prior written consent

Types of records affected,
date ofbreach, description of
incident, contact information
for credit reporting agencies

When to
Notify

Beginning of each school
year for students in grades

7-12, or at time of
enrollment if after beginning
of year

Within 20 working days of
receiving results of standardized
achievement tests or, if results
not available in school year,

within 20 working days of start
ofnext school year

By October 15 for students in
grade 12

When child is enrolled
in kindergarten

To students in grades 1 1-12,

early enough to enable
registration for fall test

To secondaty students, if
district receives Title I funds

In the event ofa breach of
security of district records,
to affected persons

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
51938,48980

Education Code
60641;5 CCR 863

Education Code
69432.9

Health and Safety
Code 124100,
124105

5 CCR 1rs23

20 usc 7908

CivilCode
1798.29

Board Policyi
Administrative
Regulation #

AF.6142.1

AR 6162.51

AR 5121
AR 5125

AR 5141.32

AP.6t46.2

AR 5125.1

III. When Special Circumstances Occur

6

BP 3580



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E s1as.6(9)

Subject

Civil law remedies
available to complainants

Description of reclassifi cation
process, opportunity for
parent/guardian to participate

Reason for classification, level
of English proftciency,
identihcation as long-term
English learner, description
of program(s), option to
decline program or choose

alternate, option to remove
student from program at any
time, exit requirements of
program

Right to priority enrollment;
how to request priority
enrollment

University campus buildings
may not meet Education Code
requirements for structural
safety

Intended use of pesticide
product

Offer ofinsurance; no-cost and

low-cost program options

Information on sudden

cardiac arrest

Loss of status, potential
consequences

Advertising will be used in the
classroom or learning center

When to
Notify

Upon receipt of a complaint
alleging discrimination

When determining whether an

English learner should be

reclassified as fluent English
proficient

When student is identified
as English learner and district
receives Title I or Title III
funds for English learner
programs, not later than 30

days after beginning ofschool
year or within two weeks of
placement if identified during
school year

When homeless or foster youth
applies for enrollment in
before/after school program

Before high school student
attends specialized
secondary program on a

university campus

At least 72 hours before
use of pesticide product
not included in annual list

To members of athletic
teams

Annually to parents/guardians
of student athletes before
participation in competition

If school has lost its WASC
accreditation status

When district has contracted
for electronic products or
services that disseminate
adverlising

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
262.3

Education Code
313;5 CCR 11303

Education Code
313.2, 440;
20usc 6312

Education Code
8483

Education Code
17288

Education Code
17612

Education Code
32221.5

Education Code
33419.3

Education Code
35118.4

Education Code
35182.5

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 1312.3

AR 6174

AR 6174

AR 5148.2

None

AR 3514.2

AR 5143

AR 614s.2

BP 6190

7

BP 3312



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(h)

Subject

Dress code policy requiring
schoolwide uniform

Public hearing on year-round
schedule

Effects, advantages and

disadvantages of early entry

Student at risk of
retention

Student has been excluded
from school

Need to submit evidence of
immunization or exemption
within 10 school days; referral
to medical care

Truancy, parental obligation,
availability of alternative
programs, student
consequences, need for
conference

Name and address of SARB
or probation department and
reason for referral

Student's option to transfer
to another school

Whether student's transfer
application is accepted or
rejected; reasons for rejection

Copy of district policy and

regulation on continuation
education

When to
Notify

At least six months before
implementing uniform policy

Before implementing a

year-round schedule

When interdistrict transfer
is requested and not approved
or denied within 30 days

Before early entry to
kindergaften, if offered

When student identified as

being at risk of retention

When student excluded due to
quarantine, contagious or
infectious disease, danger to
safety or health

Before already admitted
student is excluded for lack
of immunization

When a student is
classified as truant

When a truant is referred
to a SARB or probation
department

When a school is identified on
the state's Open Enrollment List

Within 60 days of receiving
application for transfer out of
open enrollment school

When student lequests to
voluntarily transfer to
continuation school

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
35183

Education Code
37616

Education Code
46601

Education Code
48000

Education Code
48070.5

Education Code
48213

Education Code
48216;17 CCR
6040

Education Code
48260.5,48262

Education Code
48263

Education Code
48354;5 CCR
4702

Education Code
48357;5 CCR
4102

Education Code
48432.3

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5132

AR 511 I

AR 5123

AR 5112.2
BP 5141.33

AR 5141.31

AR 5113.1

AR 5113.1

AR s118

AR 5118

BP 6117

AR 5117 Appeal process

8

AR 6184



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E s145.6(Ð

Subject

Right to request meeting prior
to involuntary transfer to
continuation school

Basis for the placement
recommendation

Parental attendance required ;
timeline for attendance

Next school will continue
withholding grades, diplomas,
or transcripts

Release ofstudent to peace

officer for the purpose of
removing minor from school,
unless taken into custody as

victim ofsuspected child abuse

Notice of suspension

The student's assignment to
a supervised suspension
classroom

Intent to hold a closed session

re: suspension

Hearing re: possible danger
presented by expelled
student

Reasons for denial;
determination of assigned
program

When to
Notify

Prior to involuntary transfer
to continuation school

To person holding educational
rights, prior to recommending
placement of foster youth
outside school of origin

When student is removed from
class and teacher requires
parental attendance at school

Prior to withholding grades,

diplomas, or transcripts

When withholding grades,

diplomas or transcripts
from transfen ing student

Vy'hen student is released

to peace officer

At time of suspension

When original period of
suspension is extended

At the time a student is
assigned to a supervised
suspension classroom

Before holding a closed
session re: suspension

When student expelled
from another district for 

.

certain acts seeks admisslon

When readmission is
denied

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
48432.5

Education Code
48853.5

Education Code
48900.1

Education Code
48904

Education Code
48904.3

Education Code
48906

Education Code
48911

Education Code
4891 I

Education Code
489 1 1.1

Education Code
48912

Education Code
48915.1,
48918

Education Code
48916

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 6184

AR 6173.1

BP 5145.11

BP 5144.1
AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

AR 5144.1

BP 5l 19

AR 5144.4

AR 5125.2 Damaged school propeúy

AR 5125.2

AR 5144.1 Extension of suspension

9

AR 5144.1



E s145.60)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When expulsion occurs Education Code
48916

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation # Subject

AR 5144.1 Readmission procedures

AR 5144.1 Notice of expulsion
hearing

AR 5144.1 Decision to expel; right to
appeal to county board;
obligation to inform new
district ofstatus

BP 5l16.2 Right to request a meeting
with principal or designee

BP 61ll When minimum days are

scheduled after beginning
ofthe school year

AR 5141.4 Guidelines for filing
complaint of child abuse

at a school site with local
child protective agencies

AR 5121 Student in danger
of failing a course

AR 5125 Right to receive copy of
student's record and to
challenge its content

AR 5125.3 If board sustains allegations,
the correction or destruction
ofrecord; ifdenied, right to
submit written objection

BP 5l2s Opportunity for input on

proposed program

Information is being gathered,

access to records, process for
removal or corrections,
destruction ofrecords

When to
Notify

At least l0 calendar days

before expulsion hearing

When expulsion or
suspension of expulsion
occurs

Before involuntary transfer of
student convicted of cefiain
crime when victim is enrolled
at same school

One month before the
scheduled minimum day

When parents/guardians
request guidelines for filing
complaint of child abuse

at a school site

When student in danger
of failing a course

When student transfers
from another district or
private school

When parent/guardian's
challenge ofstudent record is
denied and parent/guardian
appeals

When district is considering
program to gather safety-related
information from students'
social media activity

When district adopts program
to gather information from
students' social rnedia activity,
and annually thereafter

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
48918

Education Code
48918

Education Code
48929,48980

Education Code
48980

Education Code
48987

Education Code
49061

Education Code
49068

Education Code
49010

Education Code
49073.6

Education Code
49073.6

10

AR 5125



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E s145.6(k)

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation # Subject

AR 5125 Release ofstudent record to a
judge or probation officer for
conducting truancy mediation
program or for presenting
evidence at a truancy petition

AR 5125 Release of information
pursuant to couft order
or subpoena

AR 5141.3 Scoliosis screening

AR 5141.3 Vision or hearing test results

AR 3551 Negative balance in meal
account; encouragement to
apply for free or reduced-
price meals

AR 614s.2 Information on concussions
and head injuries

When to
Notify

Within 24 hours of
release of information
to ajudge or probation
officer

Before release of
information pursuant to
coufi order or subpoena

When screening results tn
suspicion that student
has scoliosis

When test results in
discovery ofvisual or
hearing defects

Within 10 days of
negative balance in meal
account

Annually to parents/guardians
ofstudent athletes before their
first practice or competition

Within 30 days of foster
youth, homeless youth,
former juvenile court school
student, or child of military
family being transferred
between high schools

Before any test/survey
questioning personal beliefs

At least 14 days before HIV
prevention or sexual health
instruction, if arrangement
made for guest speaker after
beginning of school year

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
49076

Education Code
49017

Education Code
49452.5

Education Code
49456;17 CCR
295r

Education Code
49557.5

Education Code
4947s

Education Code
51225.1

Education Code
s 1513

Education Code
51938

BP 6146.1
AR 6173
AR 6173.1
AR 6173.3

AR 5022

Exemption from local
graduation requirements, effect
on college admission, option
for fifth year ofhigh school

Permission for test, survey
questioning personal beliefs

Instruction in HIV prevention
or sexual health by guest

speaker or outside consultant

11

AR 6142.1



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(1)

Subject

Notice that the survey will
be administered

Results of state test of
English proficiency

Parent advisory council
membership composition

Dates and times permission
granted; obtaining information
from law enforcement

Findings, disposition of
complaint, any corrective
actions, appeal rights and

procedures

Policies re: excused and

unexcused absences

When to
Notify

Prior to administering survey
regarding health risks and
behaviors to students inl-12

Within 30 calendar days
ofreceipt ofresults of
assessment or reassessment

of English proficiency

When migrant education
program is established

When child participates tn
licensed child care and
development program

When district receives
Tobacco-Use Prevention
Education Funds

When testing by community
water system finds presence

of lead exceeding specified
level

When sharing student
immunization information
with an immunization
system

At least 14 days prior to
sex offender coming on
campus as volunteer

When hearing is requested by
person asked to leave
school premises

When responding to complaint
re: discrimination, special
education, or noncompliance
with law

When child participates in
licensed child care and

development program

Education or
Other Legal
Code

Education Code
51938

Education Code
52164.1,
52164.3;
s ccR I 151 1.5

Education Code
s4444.2

Health and Safety
Code 1596.857

Health and Safety
Code 104420

Health and Safety
Code 116277

Health and Safety
Code 120440

Penal Code 626.81

5 CCR463l

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5022

AR 6174

BP 6175
AR 6175

AR 1240

BP 1250

AR 1312.3

AR 5148 Parent/guardian right to enter
facility

AR 3513.3 The district's tobacco-free
schools policy and

enforcement procedures

AR 3514 Elevated lead level at school

AR 5125 Types of information to be

shared, name and address of
agency, acceptable use ofthe
information, right to examine.
right to refuse to share

Penal Code 627.5 AR 3515.2 Notice of hearing

5 CCR 18066

12

AR 5148



III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(m)

Subject

Approval or denial of
servlces

Any change in service, such
as in fees, amount of service,
termination of service

Notice of any substantive
change in policy or regulation

Timely notice to parent/
guardian of child's assignment

Reasons for placement, level
of profi ciency, instructional
methods, how program meets

child's strengths and teaches

English, exit requirements,
right to choose other program

Need to submit verificatton
information; any subsequent

change in benehts; appeals

Educational and related
opportunities ; transpoft ation
services; placement decision
and right to appeal

When to
Notify

Within 30 days of application
for subsidized child care or
preschool services

Upon recertification or update
of application for child care

or preschool services

Upon child's enrollment in
child care program

When payment of child care

fees is seven days late

When district substantively
changes policy on student
privacy rights

For districts receiving Title I
funds, when child has been
assigned or taught for four or
more consecutive weeks by a
teacher who does not meet
state cefi ification requirements
for the grade level/subject taught

For districts receiving Title I
funds, not later than 30 days

after beginning ofschool year,

to parents/guardians of English
learners

Fol schools receiving Title I
funds, upon development of
parent involvement policy

When household is selected
for verification of eligibility
for free or reduced-price meals

When student is homeless or
unaccompanied minor

Education or
Other Legal
Code

5 CCR 18094,
181 r8

s ccR 18095,
181 19

5 CCR 18114

5 CCR 18114

20usc 1232h

20usc 6312

20 usc 6312

20 usc 6318

42 USC 1758;
7 CFR 245.6a

42 USC 11432:
Education Code
48852.5

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 5148
AR 5148.3

AR 5148
AR 5 148.3

AR 4112.2

AR 3553

AR 5148 Policy on fee collection

AR 5148 Notice of delinquent fees

AR 5022

AR 6174

AR 6020 Notice of policy

13

AR 6173



PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(n)

Subject

Rights and responsibilities,
nondiscrimination policy,
complaint procedures

Proposed evaluation plan,
related parental rights,
prior written notice,
procedural safeguards

Time, purpose, location, who
will attend, parlicipation of
others with special knowledge,
transition statements if
appropriate

III. When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

\Vhen student transfers
out ofstate and records are

disclosed without consent
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30

When to
Notify

When district receives
federal funding assistance

for nutrition program

IV. Special Education Notices

Prior to conducting initial
evaluation

Before functional behavioral
assessment begins

24 hours before IEP
when dishict intending to
record

Early enough to ensure

oppoúunity for parent/
guardian to attend IEP meeting

When parent/guardian orally
requests review ofIEP

Within one school day of
emergency intervention or
serious properry damage

'Whenever there is a proposal
or refusal to initiate or change

the identifi cation, evaluation,
placement, or FAPE, including
when parent/guardian revokes
consent for services

34 CFR 99.34 AR 5125 Right to review records

Education or
Other Legal
Code

USDA FNS
Instruction I 13-1

Education Code
56301, s6321,
56327 .5 , 56321 .6,

56329;20 USC
lal5(d); 34 CFR
300.502,300.503

Education Code
s6321

Education Code
s6341.1

Education Code
56341.5;
34 CFR 300.322

Education Code
56343.5

Education Code
56521.1

20 USC 1415(c);
34 CFR 300.300,
300.503

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

BP 3555

BP 6159.1
AR 6159.1
AR 6164.4

AR 6159.4 Notification and consent

AR 6159 Intention to audio-record
IEP meeting

AR 6159

AR 6159 Need for written request

AR 6159.4 Emergency intervention

AR 6159
AR 6159.1

I4

Prior written notice



IV. Special Education Notices (continued)

Upon hling of state complaint 20 USC la15(d);
34 CFR 300.504

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

E 5145.6(o)

Subject

Procedural safeguards

notice

Decision and procedural

safeguards notice

Student's name, address,

school, description of problem,
proposed resolution

District responsibilities, district
actions, procedural safeguards

Complaints re: sufficiency of
instructional materials, teacher
vacancy or misassignment,
maintenance of facilities

When to
Notify

When disciplinary measures

are taken or change in
placement

Upon requesting a

due process hearing

Eligibility for services
under Section 504

V. Classroom Notices

In each classroom in each

school

Education or
Other Legal
Code

20 usc lal5G);
34 CFR 300.530

20 usc lars(k);
34 CFR 300.508

34 CFR 104.32,
r04.36

Education Code
35186

Board Policy/
Administrative
Regulation #

AR 6159.1

AR 5144.2

AR 6159.1

AR 6164.6

AR 1312.4
E 1312.4

Exhibit V/ESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: July 23,2013 Quartz Hill, California

l5



'Westside fJnion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

Instruction BP 6161.1(a)

The Board of Trustees desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad

spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect the diversity of our society, and enhance the use

of multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials

based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help students

achieve grade-level competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. Textbooks,
technology-based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with academic

content standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively support the district's

adopted courses of study.

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)
(cf.6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6161.1 1 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf.6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved by
the State Board of Education (SBE) or have otherwise been determined to be aligned with the

state academic content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the Common
Core St4þ Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8. (Education Code 60200,

60210)

previd€+with standff
PngtisHtanguage ar ieftee

Review Process

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials shall be

reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish an

instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional materials.

(cf . 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

This review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall also encourage the

participation of parents/guardians and community members (Education Code 60002).

1



BP 6161.1(b)
(c.f. 6020- Parent Involvement)

In addition, the instructional materials review committee may include administrators, other staff
who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate.

If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted by

the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in the

district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or grade

level of the materials. (Education Code 60210)

Individuals who participate in selecting and evaluating instructional materials shall not have a

conflict of interest in the materials being reviewed as defined in administrative regulations.

@f .9270 - Conflict of Interest)

The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and

administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its
recommendations.

All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the district
office.

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for a
specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials

support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers piloting
the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted.

Public Hearing on Suffrciency of Instructional Materials

The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the suffìciency of the district's
textbooks and other instructional materials. The hearing shall take place on or before the end of
the eighth week from the first day students attend school for that year. (Education Code 60119)

The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community
members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. The Superintendent or designee shall post,

10 days prior to the hearing and in three public places within the district, a notice containing the

time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place during or immediately
following school hours. (Education Code 60119)

(cf . 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

At the hearing, the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in each

school has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials that are aligned to the state content

2



BP 6161.1(c)
standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the Common State Core Standards
adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8 and which are consistent with the content and
cycles of the state's curriculum frameworks. Sufficiency of instructional materials shall be

determined in each of the following subjects: (Education Code 60119)

1. Mathematics

(cf . 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

2. Science

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

3. History-socialscience

(cf . 61 42.94 - History- Social Science Instruction)

4. English/language afts, including the English language development component of an

adopted program

(cf . 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)

5. World/Fforeign language

(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction)

6. Health

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient
textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home. However, this does

not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital format
as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the class and to
take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has the ability to use

and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be considered sufficient if they are

photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address

a shoftage. (Education Code 60119)

ffiadeærminatila

a6aÐ

3



BP 6161.1(d)
in-

If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks and/or instructional materials, the

Board shall provide information to classroom teachers and to the public, setting forth for each

school in which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient
standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area, and the reasons that
each student does not have sufficient textbooks and/or instructional materials. The Board shall
take any action, except an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State

Mandates, to ensure that that each student has sufficient materials within two months of the

beginning of the school year in which the determination is made. (Education Code 60119)

,ií the

(Þ,t.0460 Local Control and Accoù¡tability Ptan)

Complaints

Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, Board
policy and administrative regulation.

(cf. 13 12.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
220 Prohibition against discrimination
1240 County superintendent, general duties
12 10,3 Ðefinitien ef suffieieney fer eategerieal flexibility
33050-33053 General waiver authority
33126 School accountability report card
35272 Education and athletic materials

44805 Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations
49415 Maximum textbook weight
51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter
52060-52077 Local control and accountáUitiiy ptan
60000-60005 Instructional materials, legislative intent
60010 Definitions

4



BP 6161.1(e)
60040-60052 Instructional requirements and materials
60060-6006} 60063.5 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers
60070-60076 Prohibited acts (re instructional materials)
601 10-601 1 5 Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education
60119 Public hearing on sufficiency of materials
60200-60210 Elementary school materials
60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers
60240-60252 State Instructional Materials Fund
60350-60352 Corereading program instructional materials
60400-60411 High school textbooks
60510-6051 1 Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials
60605 State content standards
60605.8 Common Core State Standards
60605.86-60605.88 Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State

Standards
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

9505-9530 Instructional materials

Management Resources:
W

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Instructional Materials FAQ
01-05 Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, Septembe+?00l-rev.
January 2015
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, æA$ZA13
WEB SITES
CSBA: http ://www.csba.org
Association of American Publishers : http ://www.publishers.org
California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core Standards:

http ://www. scoe.net/castandards
California Department of Education: http ://www.cde.ca. gov

Policy WESTSIDE LINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: July 23,2013 Quartz Hill, California

5



Westside [Jnion E,SI)
Exhibit - Replace
Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

Instruction

Resolution On Sufficiency Of Instructional Materials

E 61 61 .1(a)

Whereas, the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District in order to comply with
the requirements of Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on (date), at (time) o'clock,

which is on or before the eighth week of school (between the first day that students attend school

and the end of the eighth week from that day) and which did not take place during or

immediately following school hours, and;

Whereas, the Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing by posting it in at least

three public places within the district stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and;

'Whereas, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members of the

community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and;

Whereas, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which sufficient

textbooks or instructional materials were provided to all students, including English learners, in
the Westside Union School District and;

Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" means that each

student, including each English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional

materials to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format but

shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials

copied to address a shortage, and;

Wheleas, textbooks or instructional materials in core curriculum subjects should be aligned with
state academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to Education

Code 60605 and/or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code

60605.8;

Finding of Sufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials

Whereas, sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent with
the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks were provided to each student, including

each English learner, in the following subjects:

I Mathematics: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

1.



E 6161.1(b)
* Science: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

* History-social science: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject

for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

* English language arts, including the English language development component of an

adopted program: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

* World/foreign language: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

* Health: (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each grade

level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.)

Finding of Insufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials

Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the Board at the public meeting

detailed that insufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials were provided to

students in the following subjects and grade levels at district schools: (For each school, list the

percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials

in mathematics, science, history-social science, English language afts, world/foreign language,

and health.)

Whereas, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were not provided at each school listed

above due to the following reasons: (For each school at which there is an insufficiency, list the

reasons that each student does not have sufficient instructional materials in each subject and

grade level listed above.)

2



E 6161.1(c)

Therefore, it is resolved, that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has not
provided each student with sufficient textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent with
the cycles and content of the curriculum framework, and:'

Be it further resolved, that the following actions will be taken to ensure that all students have

sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in all subjects that are consistent

with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks within two months of the beginning of
the school year in which this determination is made. (List actions to be taken to resolve

insufficiency.)

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS day of
following vote:

at a meeting, by the

AYES: NOES: ABSENT:

Attest

Secretary

President

(11/11 tvt2) t tll

3



Westside [Jnion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Student Assessment

Instruction BP 6162.5(a)

The Board of Trustees recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and

accountability tool. To obtain the rnost accurate evaluation of student pet'formance, the district

shall use a variety of measures, including district, state, and/or national assessments.

(cf 6162.51 - Srarc Academic Achievemenr Tests)

Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students'progress, mastery of
academic standards, appropriate placement in district programs, and/or eligibility for promotion.

In addition, summary data on student assessment results shall be used by the district to identify
and review student achievement goals in the district's local control and accountability plan,

evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed improvements, and, as

appropriate, evaluate staff performance

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf . 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent)
(cf. 4l 15 - EvaluatiorVSupervision)
(cf . 431 5 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf. 5I2l - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf . 5 123 - PromotiorVAcceleratiorVRetention)
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf.6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

iae-

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance

with law and the-test publisher's directions and that test administration procedures are fair and

equitable for all students.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf . 61 62.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation)

As aPProPriate, assessment

1.



BP 6162.5(b)

results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, grade level, or school site to allow
for critical analysis ofstudent needs.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development to assist teachers and

paraprofessionals in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student performance and

the instructional program.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals)

V/hen districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, the

Superintendent or designee may provide supplementary information to assist parents/guardians

and the local community in interpreting test results.

(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)

Interim and Formative Assessménts

id'¿¡iif ié-ati'éAã"án (Educ alion€ ç de 6a,6 4.2,6 ;. 64.6 4.2.:7 :r,

(cf. 5 123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)

46l t : -,Èi$ ßcho ol Graduation Requiiements)

(cf.6152 - Class Assignment)

(cf.6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6172 - Gif\ed and Talented Student Program)

(cf.6174 - Education for English Learners)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers who administer interim and formative

¡srnds¡âve,access tg:a!,functions:and information desrgqgd'for téã0,þ us@ated to sue

assesimènts and student performancé on the assessments. (Education Code 60642.6)

2



BP 6162.5(c)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
313 Assessment of English language development
10600-10610 California Education Information System

44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (Stull Act)
49558 Free and reduced-price meals; use of individual applications and records

5I04I Evaluation of educational program
51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma
52052 numerically significant student subgroups

52060-52071 Local control and accountability plan

60600-60649 Assessment of academic achievement, especially:
60640-60649 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

60800 Physical fitness testing
60810-60812 Assessment of English language development

isn
60900 California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

850-864 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress
ion

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

9622 National Assessment of Educational Progress

Management Resources:

Teaehers'Use oÊstudcnÈÐata Systems te Irrpreve Instrtretien; 2007

V/EB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.govlta
Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium: http ://www. smarterbalanced.org
U. S. Department of Education: htþ : //www. ed. gov

Policy WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: October 1,2014 Quartz Hill, California

3



Revised
Westside f]nion SI)
Board Policy - Revised
Title I Programs

Instruction BP 6171(a)

fn erder te improve t
famities t+re ¿istriet

TheBoardof'Trusteesdesirestoprovide.ahigh.qua1itp
education that enables all students to meet challenging state acadetnic standards. In schools with
a large number or percentage of economically disadvantaged families, the district shall use Title,
I-fundiig'nrovidé.,sêrvic.es'tli4tShen4,!,94 áeademic program and providé supportto'stúdents j

át iisk of failirlg.ls'ar1úeye, ac'adèmic.standards.

@
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf.6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf .6162.51 - StandardizedTesting and Reporting Program State Academic Achievement Tests)

Title I funds shall be used to supplement, not supplant, funds available from state and local

ro*¿¿itót'fhe education.oistudenti particlpating in Title I programs. (20 USC 14,'6j21'

¡\ seheel may eperate a Title I seheehvide pregrarn in order te upgrade the entire cdr*eatienal

program ofthc sehoo

partieipating in thc T
'

þf 0a20 - School Plans/Site Councils)

þf. 0a00 - Comprehèrtsive Plans)

1.



(ijtøøbloalco*¡t'in¿ai'¿o'änb 'Þtsn) 
BP 6171(b)

In:additíon, fthe district and each school receiving Title I funds shall develop a written parea,l

invs* p'ãr@guardian and family èngàgement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318.

(cf.6020 - Parent Involvement)

fn afty sehoet reeeiv

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the eeerdinatien of Title I aetivities rvith ether

The Superintendent er designee shall eensnlt rvith teaehers; prineipals; administraters; ether

The initial plan shallbe submitted te the êalifernia ÐcpartmenËef Edueatien (eÐE) and

i+the-dis+riet

Comparability of Seruices

ffiiInschoolsreceivingTitleIfunds,stateandlocalfundsshallbeused
io provide services that, taken as a whole, arc at least comparable to services in schools that are

not receiving Title I funds or, if all district schools are receiving Title I funds, that are

substantially comparable in each school. Comparability may be determined on a school-by-

school basis or by grade span. (20 USC 6321)

To demonstrate comparability of services among district schools, the district shall:

1. The Board shali aAdopt and implement a districtwide salary schedule;

2. F.nsure equivalence in teachers, administrators, and other staft as measured by either or

both of the following:

2



BP 6171(c)

a. The ratio of students initruciiúâiit at each

Title I school within a grade span, which shall not exceed 110 percent of the average

ratio aeress f.or¿ll non-Title I distriet schools Withinthat'grade,,span'

+ b. Salary expenditures for instructional staff at each Title I school, which shall be no less

than 90 percent of the aveÍage salary expenditure across non-Title I district schools'

4, ¡\ll distriet seheels shall be-previded-rvith the same level ef base funding per student fer
ffimal-ma+erials.

stâtè

5, The Superintendent er designee shall rnaintain reeerds oÊthe quantity and quality of
instruetlenal mater

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

In determining comparability, the district shall not include staff salary differentials for years of
employment. The district also may exclude unpredictable changes in student enrollment or
personnel assignments that occur after the beginning of the school year, state and local funds
expended for language instruction educational programs, state and local funds expended for the

excess costs of providing services to 4isabþd students w,ith disab-i'lities, and supplemental state or
local funds expended in any school attendance area or school for programs that specifically meet

the intent and purposes of Title I. (20 USC 6321)

TheSuperintendentordesigneeshallannuallyassess
meilsure comparability in accordance with the above criteria and maintain records documenting
the district's compliance. If any instances of noncomparability are identified, the Superintendent
or designee shall promptly implement adjustments as needed to ensure comparability.

ParcnçInv€+Ycffien+

3



BP 6171(d)

The Superintendent er designee shall: (20 USe 63 tr8)

1, Invelve parents/guardians in the jeint develepmenÊof the distrie#s Titlc I plan pursuant te
?0 USe 63l2r and the p

partieipating seheel
i

3, Bt+ild the eapaeitFeÊseheels and parents/guardians fer strong parent invelvernent

4, e eerdinate and integrate Title I parent invelvement strategies with parent invelvement

effeetiveness of the parent involvement periey in improving the aeademie quality ef the seheels

@ing:

ie-

@
b, Using evaluatien f ndings to design strategies for mere effeeÊive parent invelvement

e- If neeessary, revising the distriet and seheel parenÊ invelvernent pelieics

6, Invelve parents/guardians in the aetivities ef sehools served by Title I

Þarticipation of Private School Students

for

Program Evaluation

4



BP 6171(e)
is-

ând loW;

( if ,,,0 5 0 0 -., Ai c o rry t abi@.

(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
11503 Parent involvement programs in Title I schools

lQOitA0¡-s2O:7i::'Loò"alcontrolandaccountabilityþlan

54420-54425 State Compensatory Education
64001 Single plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs

TINITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6301 Program purpose

63 1 1 -6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students, including :

6312 Local educational agency plan

6313 Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation
6314 Title I schoolwide programs
6315 Targeted assistance schools

@
631 8 Parent invelvement and family engagement

$20 Pafücipation of private school students

6321 Com of services

7881 Participation of private school students

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.I -2AA3+200.ti Improving basic pro grams for di sadvantaged students

Management Resources:
M

5



BP 6171(Ð

Parent Invotvcmcnfi Ðeve

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATiONS

W

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

, 2016
Title I Fiscal lssues, M.ay26,-486,
Designing Schoolwide Programs, March 22,2006

T eeat Edueatienat 
^

WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education:
https i / /www,cd e. ca. qov ls p /sw-

U. S. Department of Education : http : //www. ed. gov

Policy WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: December 6,2016 Lancaster, Califomia

6



Westside [Jnion SI)
Administrative Regulation - Revised
Title I Programs

Instruction

Schoolwide Programs

AR 6171(a)

A school may operate a Title I schoolwide program in order to upgrade the entire educational
program of the school when at least 40 percent of the students in the school attendance area, or at

least 40 percent of the students enrolled in the school, are from low-income families. The.

parents¡guardians eft
(20 USC #12,6314;34 CFR 200.25)

(cf.

^ny 
pa"ieipating seh

plan'shall be
mlo a

plans required by other categorical programs included

in the state's consolidated application. (Education Code 64001; 20 USC 6314)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

usc 6314)

1, 4 eemprehensive needs assessnrent ef the entire seheel; ineluding migratory ehildren;
whieh ineludes tåe aehievement of sttrdents in relation te 'tate aeademie eontent and

M

L



AR 6171(b)

&
¿tmic

1:. Provide for all

b.2

: 

¡ c¡ 6 0i i' 1,,':,'A c a demi ¿'S'ia n ã r ds)

Use efèetive methods and instructional strategies

base+researeh and thál strengthen the school's eete academic program, increase the amount and

of le an enriched and accelerated curriculum which may::

to proVide''á.wetl -tôu¡dèa èducation r€n+
s

(c1.5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)
(cf. 6112 - School

trvaluâtion)
(cf. 6177 - Summer Seheol

e3.'@Addresstheneedsofallstudentsintheschool,butparticularly
theneedsof@thoseatriskofnotmeetingstateaehicvementacademic
standards'throughactivitieswhichmayincltrdethefollowing:
pepulatien ef any prog

Sueh strategics may i

@

e, ¡\re eonsistent rvitl+and designed to implernent-state and loeal imprevernent plansrif any

2



AR 6171

areas

Seruitees)i¡

(çf '

:Progr.am)

(ef, ltr 12,24 Teaeher Qualifieatiens Under the Ne ehild teft Behind ¡\et)

perents/guardians te e

standards

4, Strategies to-attraet higþquality; highly qualified teaehers te high need sehoels

c

3



AR 6171(d)

Ç e. Plans Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood
étdù - programs to local elementary school programs

(cf. 6300 - Preschool lBarly Childhood Education)

7, Measnres te inelude teaehers in deeisions regarding the use ef aeademie assessments to

previde infermatien

@
8, r\etivities te ensnre that students rvhe experienee diffieulty mastering the prefieient and

provisien ef suffieicnt

14;,34

'ensure

c,6314)

Targeted Assistance Seheelv.PrógrámS

te serve students in grades 3 I identifieåby the seheel as failing; er mest-aÊrisk ef failing; to

en the basis ef sueh eritcria as teaeher judgment; interviervs with parents/guardians and

4

Title I



AR 6171(e)

iùþpt'eme*é*,6y'ttie i:ehõ* lzo usc 63 1 s)

1, Stndents in grades 3 12 identified by the seheel as failing; er rnost-at risk ef failing; to

i#as-
teaeher judgment, interviews rvith parents/guardiansrand developmentally apprepriate meastrres

who are

SC 63

A fuy targeted assistance program shall: (20 USC 6315)

1. Use program resources to help parlicipating students meet state academic aehie*emenf
standards, whicú may includ" progtr--i, activities, and academi¿ Couiiei necessary to provide a
wel l.rounde d: e-ducation @

}.2.Useetreetivemethodsandinstructiona1strategies
base&researeh that strengthens the eore academic program i€n-

to previding extended leaming time; help previde a+aeeelerated; high qualittseurrieulum; and

summêr

piôgraml.and:'opB ortunities

+ 3', Coordinate with and support the regular education program, which may include

services to assist preschool students in the transition to elementary school programs

5, Previde instruetien by highly qualified teaehers

4. Provide eppor+ufti+i€ser professional development fsr to teachers, principals, other

schoo1.leadefS,paraprofessionals,and,ifappropriate,@,
speciálizedinstructionalsuppor1personnel@iansandotherschool

5

G



AR 6171(Ð

þÈisorurel who work with pa*ieipa+ingdigib,lê students'inTitle.I'programsìi'in.thé'-
iegutar education program. The professional development shall be provided using funds

frôm':Titlé' I ánd,, to the extent practicablê;,õthei'sourc'es,

+. 5. Pr€vide Implement strategies to increase parc$+ the involvement of páiénts/guardians

of participáting students

8. 6. rf
services and

federal, state and localand

7,' "'. s'v,idelasslrr*ces to-'ihe'superintendent or designee that the progiam wiü:

a. Help provide an accelerated, high-quality curriculum

b, ' r -,'Minimize clasi'room.. duriry, rè gùiar

school hours,

Participation of Private School Students

i€es_

Teachers@andfamiliesofparticipatingprivateschoo1stud.entsshall
have an opportunity to participate, on an equitable basis, in parenlinvehernent párenilg¡¡ardian:1

ánd,famill engágè ij activities and professional development pursuant to 20 USC 6318 and

æ+9. (20 USC 6320,7881)

Each year the Superintendent or designee shall contact offrcials of private schools with students

who reside within district boundaries, regardless of whether the private school they attend is

located within the district or whether or not those officials have previously indicated any interest

in program participation:; and invite them to a meeting to discuss the intent of Title I and the

roles of public and private school officials.

6



1

2

a
J

AR 6171(g)

TheSuperintendentordesigneesha1lconsult'in-+meani@with
appropriate private school officials, in'ã,memingfU ahd'timêly,maæei, during the design and

developmenl of the district's Title I prograrrls;,with'the"goal.'of reàehin$,agréement,onhowto

þrôviae equitable and effeciive progralnsfii''eligible,private school students.Such consultation

shall occur before the district makes any decision that affects the opportunities of eligible private

school students to parlicipate in Title I programs and shall include a-diseussisn-ef COnsultation

õ'¡'iJsùes'such as the followingt (20 USC 6320; 7881; 34 CFR æQ+É-20056)

How the students'needs will be identified

What services will be offered

How, where and by whom the services will be provided

4. How the services will be academically assessed and how assessment results will be used

to improve those services

5. The size and scope of the equitable services to be provided to eligibte private school

students, and the proportion of,funds thafis to be allocated for such services, ¿nd how that

proportion,of funds isto be detel inéd

6. The method or sources of data that are used to determine the number of students from
low-income families in participating school attendance areas who attend private schools

I . How and when the district will make decisions about the delivery of service to such

students, including a thorough consideration and analysis of the views of private school officials
on the provision of services through a third-party provider

8. How, if the district disagrees with the views of private school officials on the provision of
services through a third-party provider, the district will provide to private school officials a

written analysis of the reasons that the district has chosen not to use a conttactor

'Whether the: or'through' á' sepãrate: goVentment

cgs.'to,,elidble, ¡livate,,súoo1.Stùder,ìI! by.þoolîng,,fu nds, or o n a

1 1. When services will be plovided, including the approximate time of day

ìWhether to

7

72.
for services

undèr Tift'I with other funds available



If rhé

Meetings between district and private school officials shall continue throughout implementation
and assessment of services. (20 USC 6320)

The Superin+eneten+-erdesigÊee district shall maintain in the district's records, and provide to the

ien CDE, a written aff,rrmation
school that consultation has occurred.

attempts at,súch .(20 USC 6320)

ff thc private seho

the Superintendent or designee shall maintain reeerds ef the eensnltatien or the effer ef
ee+sul+ation

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Teaehers, ether edueatienal persennel and farnilies ef partieipating private sehool students shall

@
)

tr, The needs eÊ?rivate seheol teaehers and/or-private seheel sttrdents rvere identi{ied,

+caehcrs:

s+uden+s'

4, The distriet made efforts te resolve any eomplaints rnade by private sehoel

r€prcscn+ativcs.

Regulation WESTSIDE LINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: December 6, 20l6lancaster, California

8



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3, 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTE,ES

Robert Hughes, Deputy Superintendent

Westside Union School District Proposal for Negotiation Re-openers to Westside Union

Teachers Association (WUTA) for the 2018-2019 School Year

Per Afiicle 23 of the Master Agreement, the District has submitted their
Contract proposals for the 2018-2019 school year as follows:

o Article4-Benefits
. Article 5 - Duty Hours
¡ ArticleT-Salary
¡ Calendar

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None at this time

COST ANALYSIS

None at this time

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

PREPARE,D BY

SUBJECT

BACKGROLIND

7

Approval



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Robert Hughes, Deputy Superintendent

California School Employees Association (CSEA) Proposal for Negotiation Reopeners

with Westside Union School District for the 2018-2019 School Year

Per Article 21 of the Master Agreement, CSEA has submitted their Contract proposals

for the 2018-2019 school year as follows:

1. Article V: Employee Benefit Rights
2. Article VII: Salary

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None at this time

COST ANALYSIS

None at this time

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT' S RECOMMENDATION

Approval

PREPARED BY:

SUBJECT

BACKGROTIND

8



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Robert Hughes, Deputy Superintendent

Westside Union School District Proposal for Negotiation Reopeners with Californra

School Employees Association (cSEA) for the 2018-2019 school Year

Per Article 21 of the Master Agreement, CSEA has submitted their Contract proposals

for the 2018-2019 school year as follows:

1. Article V: Employee Benefit Rights
2. Article VII: Salary
3. Article XI: Leaves

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None at this time

COST ANALYSIS:

None at this time

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT'S RECOMMENDATION

PREPARED BY:

SUBJE,CT

BACKGROLTND

9

Approval



BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

TO BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PREPARED BY: Robert Hughes, Deputy Superintendent

SUBJECT Provisional Intern Permit

BACKGROtn{D

Provisional Intern Permits are designed to allow employing agencies to hire qualified individuals to fill a

position for which they have not yet completed a credential program. Provisional Intern Permits are issued in 1

year periods and require adequate progress toward the requirements for admittance into a university internship

for renewal.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

The Provisional Intern Permit allows for utilization and retention of qualified candidates who have yet to start

or complete the appropriate credential program.

COST ANALYSIS/FLTNDING S OURCE

Not applicable

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT'S RECOMMENDATION:

Approval

10



Breschi, Shawnte

Teacher Assignments Authorized by Provisional Intern Permit

100% Multiple Subject



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Shawn Cabey, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services

Resolution 18-42, School Facilities Need Analysis

PREPARED BY:

SUBJECT

BACKGROLIND

Level I developer fees are currently set at a maximum of $3.79 per square foot for residential construction and

$.61 per square foot for commercial/industrial and senior housing. We share the Level I fee with the high

school district, per the Fee Sharing Agreement. Level II fees are purpofied to represent 50% of the cost of the

school facilities necessitated by new residential development and are based on a State determined per pupil
grant plus 50% of the costs associated with site acquisition and development. In order to implement Level II
fees the District must have a timely application to the State for funding with a determination of eligibility for
new construction funding, satisfaction of two out of four tests which are construed as cost saving or revenue

enhancement measures, and preparation and adoption of a School Facilities Needs Analysis in accordance with
Government Code Section 65995.5 and 65995.6. The amount to be included in the Alternative Fees is specified

by statute as to the costs permissible to include. The Alternative No. 2Fee of $3.01 per square foot and the

Alternative No. 3 Fee of $6.03 per square foot are justified in the Analysis. The estimated average school

facilities cost impacts on the School District per square foot of residential construction as referenced to in
Exhibit F ranges from $6.84 to $18.30.

PRO GRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

Approval of this study is one of the steps necessary to implementing a Level II fee which funds new school

facilities, modernization, and reconstruction.

COST ANALYSIS/FUNDING

Acceptance of this study is the first step in the process of renewing our ability to levy Level II fees. The result

of the study is to decrease our Level II fee from 53.22 per square foot of residential space to $3.01 per square

foot. Level III fees were $6.44 per square foot and will decrease to $6.03 per square foot. If we do not accept

the study, we revert back to 74o/o of the $3.79 per square foot portion that accrues to Westside under Level I.

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

Approval

1i



RESOLUTTON 18-42

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WESTSIDE UNION
SCHOOL DISTRICT APPROVING A SCHOOL FACILITIES NEEDS ANALYSIS,

ADOPTING ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL FACILITY FEES IN COMPLIANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65995.5,65995.6 AND 65995.7 AND MAKING

RELATED FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the Westside Union School District
("District") provides for the educational needs for grades K-8 students within the boundaries

prescribed by the County of Los Angeles ("County"); and

WHEREAS, the Board of the District has adopted and imposed statutory school facility
fees ("statutory School Facility Fees") pursuant to Education Code Section 17620 presently in
the amounts of $3.22 per square foot of assessable space of new residential construction in the

District as defined in Government Code Section 65995(bX1) ("Assessable Space"), and $0.414

per square foot ofchargeable covered and enclosed space for all categories ofnew
commercial/industrial development in the District ("Commercial/Industrial Fees") as defined in
Government Code Section 65995(b)(2); and

WHEREAS, the Board of the District heretofore has elected to participate in the school

facilities funding program established pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of
1998 ("SFP") for new construction projects and for the purpose of requesting an Eligibility
Determination relative to considering the adoption of alternative school facility fees and amounts

pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5 ("ASF/Level 2 Fees") and 65995.7 ("ASF/Level

3 Fees") (and collectively, "Alternative School Facility Fees"); and

V/HEREAS, the District has caused the completion and certification of Form SAB 50-01,

the Enrollment Certification/Projection ("ECP"), Form SAB 50-02, the Existing School Building
Capacity ("ESBC") and Form SAB 50-03, the Eligibility Determination ("ED"), and has

submitted the ECP, ESBC and ED to the State Allocation Board ("SAB") for approval pursuant

to the SFP; and

WHEREAS, the District received notification from the SAB that the District meets the

eligibility requirements for new construction funding pursuant to the provisions of the SFP; and

WHEREAS, the District has met the requirements established by Government Code

Section 65995.5; and

WHEREAS, new residential construction continues to generate additional students for
the District's schools and the District is required to provide grades K-8 school facilities ("School

Facilities") to accommodate those students; and

WHEREAS, overcrowded schools within the District have an impact on the District's
ability to provide an adequate quality education and negatively impact the educational

opportunities for the District's students; and

Page I of 7



WHEREAS, the District does not have sufhcient funds available for the construction of
the school facilities, including acquisition of sites, construction of permanent school facilities,
and acquisition of interim school facilities to accommodate students from new residential
construction; and

WHEREAS, the Board caused to be prepared a report entitled, "School Facilities Need
Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, pursuant to applicable law
including, but not by way of limitation, Government Code Section 65995.6 prior to the adoption
of Alternative School Facility Fees; and

WHEREAS, the Board has received and considered the "School Facilities Need Analysis
for the V/estside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, which includes all matters required

by applicable law, including an analysis of (a) the purpose of the Alternative School Facility
Fees, (b) the use to which the Alternative School Facility Fees are to be put, (c) the nexus

(roughly proportional and reasonable relationship) between the residential construction and (1)

the facilities for which the Alternative School Facility Fees are to be used, (2) the need for school

facilities, (3) the cost of school facilities and the amount of Altemative School Facility Fees from
new residential construction, (d) an evaluation and projection of the number of students that will
be generated by new residential construction by grade levels of the District as described by
Government Code Section 65995.6, (e) a description of the new school facilities that will be

required to serve such students, and (f¡ the present estimated cost of school facilities; and

WHEREAS, the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School
District" dated April 3, 2018, in its final form has been available to the public for at least thirty
(30) days before the Board considered the adoption of the Alternative School Facility Fees at a

public hearing; and

WHEREAS, all notices of the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union
School District" dated April 3, 2018, and adoption of Alternative School Facility Fees have been

given in accordance with applicable law, and copies of the "School Facilities Need Analysis for
the'Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, have been provided thirty (30) days

prior to all written requests filed with the District forty-five (45) days prior to a public hearing
which was held in a manner required by law at a meeting of the Board of the District relating to

the proposed adoption of the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School

District" dated April 3,2018, and Alternative School Facility Fees; and

V/HEREAS, the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the'Westside Union School
District" dated April 3, 2018, has been provided to all local agencies responsible for land use

planning for review and comment in compliance with Government Code Section 65995.6(c); and

WHEREAS, as to the approval of the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the V/estside

Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, and Alternative School Facility Fees, Government

Code Secti on 65995.6(9) provides that the California Environmental Quality Act, Division 13

(commencing with Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code may not apply to the

preparation, adoption, or update of the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union
School District" dated April 3, 2078, or adoption of this Resolution; and

Page2 of7



2.

WHEREAS, the District desires to approve the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, and adopt Alternative School Facility Fees

pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7 for the purpose of establishing
Alternative School Facility Fees that may be imposed on residential construction calculated
pursuant to Government Code Section 65995(b);

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WESTSIDE LTNION

SCHOOL DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS
FOLLOWS:

That the Board does hereby find and determine that the foregoing recitals and

determinations are true and comect and that the "School Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, meets all applicable legal
requirements.

That the District has received notification from the SAB that the District meets the

eligibility requirements for new construction funding pursuant to the provisions of the

SFP.

That the District has made a timely application to the SAB for new construction funding
for which it is eligible.

That the District has caused to be prepared the "School Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, which is on file at the Maintenance
and Operations Office address and is incorporated herein by this reference, which
complies with all applicable statutory requirements, including the provisions of
Government Code Section 65995.6.

That the Board hereby approves and adopts the "School Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, for the purpose of establishing
Alternative School Facility Fees as to future residential construction within the District.

That the Board finds that the purpose of the Alternative School Facility Fees imposed
upon residential construction are to fund the additional school facilities to serve the

students generated by the residential construction upon which the Alternative School
Facility Fees are imposed as provided in the "School Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2078, and applicable law.

That the Board hnds the Alternative School Facility Fees are hereby established as

applicable and will be used to fund those school facilities described in the "School
Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018,
and that these school facilities are to serve the students generated by the residential
construction within the District as provided in the "School Facilities Need Analysis for
the Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018.

That the Board f,rnds that there is a roughly proportional reasonable relationship between

the use of the Alternative School Facility Fees and the new residential construction
within the District because the Alternative School Facility Fees imposed on new

Page 3 of7

J

4

5

6

7

8



9

residential construction by this resolution will be used to fund school facilities which will
be used to serve the students generated by such new residential construction in
accordance with applicable law set forth in the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the

V/estside Union School District" dated April 3,2018, and on less than an estimated actual

cost of the school facilities estimated to result from additional residential construction as

set forth in the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District"
dated April3,20|8.

That the Board finds that there is a roughly proportional reasonable relationship between

the new residential construction upon which the Alternative School Facility Fees are

imposed and the need for additional school facilities in the District because new students

will be generated from new residential construction within the District and the District
does not have student capacity in the existing school facilities to accommodate these

students.

That the Board finds that the amount of the Alternative School Facility Fees imposed on

new residential construction as set forth in this Resolution is roughly proporlional and

reasonably related to, and does not exceed the cost of, providing the school facilities
required to serve the students generated by such new residential construction within the

District.

That the Board finds that a separate fund ("Fund") of the District and two or more sub-

funds ("Sub-Funds") have been created or are authorized to be established for all
Statutory School Facility Fees received by the District for the deposit of Statutory School

Facility Fees, ASF/Level 2 Fees and ASF/Level 3 Fees, Commercial/Industrial Fees and

mitigation payments ("Mitigations Payments") imposed on residential construction
within the District and that said Fund and Sub-Funds at all times have been separately

maintained, except for temporary investments, with other funds of the District as

authorized by law.

That the Board finds that the monies of the separate Fund or the separate Sub-Funds,

described in Section I 1, consisting of the proceeds of Statutory School Facility Fees,

ASF/Level 2 Fees, and ASF/Level 3 Fees, Commercial/Industrial Fees and Mitigation
Payments have been imposed for the purposes of constructing those school facilities
necessitated by new residential construction as fuither set forth in "School Facilities Need

Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, and thus these

monies may be expended for all those purposes permitted by applicable law.

That the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated

April 3, 2018, determines the need for new school facilities for unhoused pupils that are

attributable to projected enrollment growth from the construction of new residential units

over the next five years, based on relevant planning agency information and the historical
generation rates of new residential units constructed during the previous five years that

are of a similar type of unit to those anticipated to be constructed within the District, the

cities, or the county.

That the Board has identified and considered, and/or subtracted, as set forth in the

"school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3,

Page 4 of7

10

11

12.

I3

t4



15

t6

I7

18

2018,the following information in determining amounts of the ASF/Level 2 Fees and

ASF/Level 3 Fees:

(i) Any surplus properly owned by the District that can be used as a school site or
that is available for sale to finance school facilities pursuant to Government Code

Section 65995.6(bX1);
(iÐ The extent to which projected enrollment growth may be accommodated by

excess capacity in existing facilities pursuant to Government Code Section
6sees.6(b)(2);

(iii) Local sources other than fees, charges, dedications, or other requirements
imposed on residential construction available to finance the construction of school
facilities needed to accommodate any growth in enrollment attributable to the

construction of new residential units pursuant to Government Code Section
6see5.6(bx3);

(i") The full amount of local funds the Board has dedicated to facilities necessitated

by new construction, including fees, charges, dedications or other requirements
imposed on commercial or industrial construction pursuant to Government Code

Section 6 599 5 .5 (c)(2).

That the Board has calculated, as set forth in the "School Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3,2018, the maximum square foot fees,

charges, or dedications to be established as Alternative School Facility Fees that may be

collected in accordance with the provisions of Govetnment Code Sections 65995.5(c) and

65595.7(a).

That the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated

April 3, 2078, in its final form has been made available to the public for a period of not
less than thirly (30) days.

That the public has had the opporlunity to review and comment on the "School Facilities
Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3,2018, and the

Board has responded to written comments it has received regarding the "School Facilities
Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3,2018.

That notice of the time and place of the public hearing to adopt the "School Facilities
Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3,2018, ("Hearing")
including the location and procedure for viewing or requesting a copy of the proposed

"school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April 3,

2018, and any proposed revision therefore has been published in at least one newspaper

of general circulation within the jurisdiction of the District at least thirty (3 0) days prior
to the Hearing.

That the Board has mailed a copy of the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the

Westside Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, no less than thirty (30) days prior
to the Hearing to any person who made a written request forly-five (45) days prior to the

Hearing.

t9

Page 5 of7



20 That the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated

April 3, 2078, has been provided to all local agencies responsible for land use planning
for review and comment in compliance with Government Code Section 65995.6(c).

That the Board conducted the required Hearing on April 3,2018 prior to the adoption of
the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the Westside Union School District" dated April
3,2018, and the Alternative School Facility Fees, at which time all persons desiring to be

heard on all matters pertaining to the "Schootr Facilities Need Analysis for the V/estside
Union School District" dated April 3, 2018, were heard and all information presented was

duly considered.

That the Board hereby adopts Alternative School Facility Fees and establishes the
Alternative School Facility Fees on new residential construction projects within the
District in the following amounts:

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.6, ASF/Level 2 Fees in the amount of
$3.01 per square foot of assessable space for new residential construction, including
new residential projects, manufactured homes and mobile homes as authorized under
Education Code Section17625. However, this amount shall not be imposed on any

construction project used exclusively for housing senior citizens, as described in Civil
Code Section 51.3, or as described in subsection (k) of Section 1569.2 of the Health
and Safety Code or paragraph 9 of subdivision (d) of Section 15432 of the
Government Code or any mobile home or manufactured home that is located within a

mobile home park, subdivision, cooperative or condominium or mobile homes limited
to older persons as defined by the Federal Fair Housing Amendments of 1988.

B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.1, ASF/Level 3 Fees in the amount of
$6.03 per square foot of assessable space for new residential construction, including
new residential projects, manufactured homes and mobile homes as authorized under
Education Code Secti on 17 625. However, this amount shall not be imposed on any

construction project used exclusively for housing senior citizens, as described in Civil
Code Section 51.3, or as described in subsection (k) of Section 1569.2 of the Health
and Safety Code or paragraph 9 or subdivision (d) of Section 15432 of the

Government Code or any mobile home or manufactured home that is located within a

mobile home park, subdivision, cooperative or condominium or mobile homes limited
to older persons as defined by the Federal Fair Housing Amendments of 1988.

That the proceeds of the Altemative School Facility Fees established pursuant to this
Resolution shall continue to be deposited into those Sub-Funds of the Funds identified in
Section 12 of this Resolution, the proceeds of which shall be used exclusively for the

purpose for which the Alternative School Facility Fees are to be collected.

That the Superintendent, or his/her designee, is directed to cause a copy of this
Resolution to be delivered to the Planning Deparlment of the Cities within the District's
boundaries and the County along with a copy of all supporting documentation referenced

herein and a map of the District clearly indicating the boundaries thereof, advising the

Cities and County that the new residential construction is subject to the Alternative
School Facility Fees pursuant to this Resolution and requesting that no building permit or

Page 6 of 7

2T

22.

23

24



25

26.

approval for occupancy be issued by any ofthese entities for any new residential
construction project, mobile home or manufactured home subject to the Alternative
School Facility Fees absent a certif,rcate of compliance ("Cerlificate of Compliance")
from the District demonstrating compliance of such project with the requirements of the

Alternative School Facility Fees.

That the Superintendent is authorized to cause a Certificate of Compliance to be issued

for each construction project, mobile home and manufactured home for which there is

compliance with the requirement for payment of the Alternative School Facility Fee in
the amount specified by this Resolution. In the event a Certificate of Compliance is

issued for the payment of Alternative School Facility Fees for a construction project,

mobile home or manufactured home and it is later determined that the statement or other

representation made by an authorized party concerning the construction project as to

square footage is untrue or in the event the zoning is declared invalid, then such

Certificate of Compliance shall automatically terminate, and the appropriate City(ies) or

County shall be so notified.

That regarding the timely provision of a Certificate of Compliance by the District for
residential construction, although not required by applicable law, the Board hereby
determines that the "school Facilities Need Analysis for the 'Westside Union School
District" dated April 3, 2018, is a proposed construction plan for purposes of requiring
payment of Altemative School Facility Fees prior to the issuance of any building permit
for residential construction in accordance with government Code Section 66007 and that
all Altemative School Facility Fees are appropriated for the purpose of accomplishing
such construction plan.

That no statement or provision set forth in this Resolution, or referred to therein shall be

construed to repeal any preexisting fee or mitigation amount previously imposed by the

District on any residential or non-residential construction.

That if any portion or provision hereof is held invalid, the remainder hereof is intended to

be and shall remain valid.

That the Alternative School Facility Fees shall take effect immediately after adoption of
this Resolution and shall be in effect for one year.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND SIGNED ON APRIL 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WESTSIDE TINION SCHOOL DISTRICT

Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School
District

27

28

29

By:

PageT of7



KeyAnalyti*s
ffi A dÌu¡sian of talifarniç Financial Servircs



I. Introduction.......... ..............'.....1

II. Eligibly to Collect Alternative Fees .........3

,\. Eiigibilify to Receive State Funds.....

B. S tatutory Requirements......................

III. Projected Unhoused Students.
A. Ptojected Residential Development................
R. Student Generation Rates

C. Projected Student EnrolLment
D. Excess School Facility Capacity.........

IV. Surplus School Sites and Local Funds..... .'..............11

A. Surplus School Sites t1
B. Local Funds.........

3

-)

6

6

l
8

9

...11

V. Alternative No.2 Fee Calculation
A. -Aiternative No. 2 Fee School Facilities Costs ...........

B. Total Square Foot of Futute Units
C. Altetnative No. 2 Fee Per Square Foot....................

Alternative No. 3 Fee Calculation............. ...............19

15

i5

VI.
VII.

..'..'.''.,,'' I7

..............18

Satisfaction of Gov. Code Section 66000 .20

20A. New Residential Construction
R. Reconstr-uction...

VIII. Conclusion and Statement of Findings 23

...........20

Ilxhibit A.:

Exhibit B:

Exhibit C:

Exhibit D
Exhibit E:

Cutrent SAts Forms
S,\ B Eligibility Determination
Boncling Capacis¡ Calculation

Upclated School Facilities Capacrq Ânalysis

Surplus Site Ånalvsis



Proposition 14, the Class Size Reduction I(ndergarten-Univetsity Public Education

Bonds Act of 1998 was approved by the voters of California on November 3,1.998.

The approval of Proposition 1A tdggeted the implementation of certain ptovisions of
Senate Bill 50 ('SB 50") of the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Âct of 1998. Included
in the provisions of SB 50, was the authortzatson for school distticts to adopt alternative

school facilities fees ("Altetnative Fees") to be levied on residential development within
the school district's boundaries (Government Code Sections 65995.5, 65995.6 and

65995.7). The intent of SB 50 was the State would provide 50 percent of the funds

tequited for new school ptojects matched by 50 percent funding ftom local school

district funds. Local funds would be generated by school districts through the

imposition of either Statutory Schooi Fees ot -Alternative School Fees ofl new

development. The funding amounts ptovided by SB 50 do not include funding for
interim facilities ot central administration and support facilities.

Statutory School Fees (Level I Fees)

Under SB 50, Statutory School Fees collected putsuant to Education Code Section

17620 and Government Code Section 65995, also referted to as Level I Fees, remain in
effect. Currently, the maximum level of fee that r.riay be imposed by unifìed school

disuicts (Grades K-12), is $3.79 per square foot of new residential constrrrclion and

$0.61 per square foot of new colïìfnercial/industrial consffuction. These fees were last

adopted by the State Alloc aíonBoard ("S,\8") at its January 24,2018 meetin g and may

be increased every two years theteafter according to an inflation adiustment. This

School Facilities Needs -Analysis ("SFNA") does not include an analysis of the Statutory

School Fees; however, information tegarding Statutory School Fee can be found in the

District's Fee Justification Study.

Alternative No. 2 Fee (Level II Fee)

-Alternative No. 2 Fees arc calc',tlated pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.5(c).

The formula for calculating the Altetnative No. 2Fee can be generally described as the

number of unhoused students identified in the SFN,\, multiplied by the per pupil grant

amount, ptus 50 percent of the sum of site acquisition and development costs, less

surplus property ot proceeds theteof if any,less local funds which have been dedicated

for facilities corìstruction, divided by the projected total square footage of residential

units anticipated to be constructed during the next five years.

The requirements to levy the,Alternative No. 2Fee 
^te 

geîefa.lly as follows:

o The District has been deemed eligible by the State to receive State Funding.



o The District satisfies fwo of the four statutory requirements set foth in
Government Code Section 65995.5(b) (3).

o The District has adopted the ,\ltemative No. 2 Fee pursuant to Govetnment
Code Section 65995.5.

Alternative No. 3 Fee (Level III Fee)

During pedods when the SAB is no longer apptoving appottionments for new

construction due to a lack of funds, the Alternative No. 3 Fee may be imposed by a
school district, subject to the suspension of Älter-native No. 3 Fees as set forth in
Government Code Section 65995.7(a)(3). Alternative No. 3 Fees are calculated

pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.7. The formula fot calculating the

Älternative No. 3 Fees can generally be descdbed as being equai to twice the Altemative
No. 2 Fee less the full amount of iocal funds dedicated by the District to provide school

facilities to accommodate students generated from new growth, including 
^nJ

commercial and industrial fees collected.

The requilements to levy the Alternative No. 3 Fee àre geflerally as follows:

o State Funding is not ava:Jable per Govetnment Code Section 65995.7 (a)(2).

. The District has adopted the Alternative No. 3 Fee pursuant to Government
Code Section 65995.5.

Government Code Section 65995.6 requires a school disttict wishing to impose

Altemative Fees prepare a School Faci-lities Needs Analysis and outhnes the

requirement for such analysis. The puryose of this SFNA it to prouide the
information necessary to satisfy the rcquirements for the imposition of
Alternative Fees, pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.6, by the District.



Pursuant to Govetnment Code Section ó5995.5, in order to ler,y Altetnative Fees,

\X/estside Union School Disttict ("1)istrict") must conduct a SFNA pursuant to

Government Code Section 65995.6 and meet the following eligibility tequirements.

A. Eligibility to Receive State Funds

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(1) a school disffíct must make

a "timely applicatlon" to the Sr\B for new construction funding ancl be

determined to have eligibility.

The District prepared and submifted initial SAB Forms 50-01, 50-02 and 50-03

and requested an Eligibitity Determination fot new construcuon funding on
February 22,1999. On May 26,1999,the Eligibilty Determination of the District
was approved by the SAB. The District has periodically submitted updated S'\B
Forms 50-01, 50-02 and 50-03. The most recently submitted SAB Forms 50-01,

50-02 and 50-03 are incorporated hetein as Exhibit,A..

The District's current eligibiJ-ity for new construction funding is listed in Table 1.

The District's most cuffent Eligibility Determination has been incotporated
herein as Exhibit B.

Table 1

State Eligibility

B. Statutory Requirements

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3) a school district must

satisSr at least two of the following requitements:

L The school district has a "substantial enrollment", as defìned in
Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3XÐ of its student on a multi-
ttack yeat-round schedule. The School District does not satisfy this
criterion.

2. The school district has placed on the ballot in the ptevious fout years a

local general obligation bond to fìnance school facilities and the measure

4,826Elementaty School (Grades I(-6)

1,638Middle School (Gtades 7-8)

1.41Special Education



feceived at least 50 petcent plus one of the votes cast. The School
District does not satis$ this criterion.

3. The school district meets one of the following:

^. The school district has issued debt ot incutred obligations for
caprtal outlay in an amount equivalent to 15 percent of the school

district's local bonding capacity, including indebtedness that is

tepaid from ptoperty tâxes, patcel taxes, the school district's
general fund, special taxes levied pursuant to Section 4 of Ätticle
XIILA. of the Caltfornta Constitution, special taxes levied pursuant
to Chapter 2.5 (commencing wrth Government Code Section

5331,1) of Division 2 of Title 5 tltat are apptoved by a vote of
registered voters, special taxes levied pursuant to Chapter 2.5

(commencing with Government Code Section 5331,1) of Division
2 of Ttrle 5 that are approved by a vote of landowners pdot to
November 4, 1998, and revenues teceived püsuant to the

Community Redevelopment Law part 1 (commencing with
Section 33000) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code).

b. The school district has issued debt ot incurred obligations for
c pital outlay in an amount equivalent to 30 percent of the school

district's local bonding capacity, inciuding indebtedness that is
repaid from properry tâxes, parcel taxes, the district's general fund,

speciai taxes levied pursuant to Section 4 of Atticle XIII A of the

Caltfornta Constitution, special taxes levied pursuant to Chapter 2.5

(commencing with Government Code Section 5331,1) of Division
2 of Ttrle 5 that are approved by a vote of tegistered voters, special

taxes ievied pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with
Government Code Section 5331,1) of Division 2 of Tttle 5 that are

approved by a vote of landownets after November 4, 1998, and
revenues teceived pursuant to the Community RedevelopmentLaw

Qatt 1. (commencing with Section 33000) of Division 24 of the
Health and Safety Code).

In each case indebtedness or other obligation to fìnance schooi
facilities to be owned, leased, or used by the school district, that is
incutred by another pubìic 

^gency, 
shail be counted for the puryose

of calculating whether the school disuict has met the debt
percentage tequirement contained herein.

The Ðisttict satisfres this criterion. Curently the District has a total
of 683,164,061 in outstanding bond debt. This includes $63,124'731



in Genenl Obligation Bond debt and $20,039'330 in Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Ðistrict Bond debt. This eguates to
approximately 89.52 percent of the Disttict's statutory bonding
capacity. A detailed calculatíon has been included as Exhibit C.

4. The school distict has at least 20 percent of the teaching stations within
the school district in relocatable classroorns. The Ðistrict satísfies this
cdterion. Curcently the .llistrict has a totaÍ of 180 petnTanent
classroonts and 193 relocatable classrooms. This equates to a 51.74

percent rclocatable classrootn utilization rute.



Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.6(a) the District shaLl ptoject the numbet
of unhoused student to be generated by new tesidentiai units ovet the next fìve years

("Unhoused Students"). h order to project the number of Unhoused Students this
SFN,A. (i) identifies rhe number of new residential units expected to be built within the

District over the next five years ("F-uture Units"), (ü) calculates the historical student
generation rates for new residential units, (iii) calculates the total number of students

expected to be generated by the identified development, (iv) identifìes any surplus

c^p^crty that is available to house the increased entollment, and (v) calculated the

number of Unhoused Students, if any, projected as a result of Future Units.

A. Proiected Residential Development

In order to estimate the number of Future Units to be constructed over the next
fìve yeats California Financial Serwices ("CFS") obtained infotmation tegarding
future tesidential development from the planning departments of the cities of
Lancaster and P almdale (c olle ctively,' r Cities") .

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.6(a) residential units have been

sepatated into the following categories:

l. Single Family Detached ("SFD") - Units arc stand-alone stmctures on
their own lot with a unique Assessor's patcel numbet.

2. Single Family Attached ("SFA") - Units share common walls, usually
on both sides of the propetty, where each is assigned a unique ,\ssessor's

parcel number (e.g. townhomes, condominiums, duplexes).

3. Multifamily ("MF") - Units share common walls in a buildíng or
structure <lesigned to house several families in separate housing units. All
units are on the same lot with one -Assessor's patcel numbet (e.g.

apartments).

Over the most recent six caiendar years, approximately 550 residential units have

been permitted u/ithin the boundaries of the District. Based on discussions with
the Cities and local developers, CFS expects this pace of residential construction
to continue. For the purpose of completing this SFNA, CFS is assuming that the

District will experience the consttuction of 680 residential units wrthin the next
five years. Of these þ-utute Units, 21.3 bave al-ready mitigated their impact on the
District through participation in one of the Community Facilities Districts
formed by the District. -fable 2 summadzes the planned Future Units.



381 21.3 600Single Family Detached (SFD)

8080 0Single Family Attached (Str,å.)

Table 2
Future Units

B. Student Generation Rates

In order to calculate the Student Generatron Rates in accordance with
Govetnment Code Section 65995.6(a), CFS ftst identified the residential units

constructed withrn the District over the ptevious fìve years and categoÅze these

units by the unit types listed above. In order to identi$t these tesidential units

CFS has relied on information provided by the District obtained when issuing

certificates of compìiance and information ptovided by the County of Los

,{.ngeles Assessor's offìce. ,\fter identifying the tesidential units, a database of all
of the students entolled in the District was compared to determine the numbet
of students residing within a residential unit constructed over the previous fìve

yeafs.

After reviewing the units constructed within the Disttict ovet the previous five

years, CFS determined there was not a sufficient number of units built to
calculate reliable Student Generation Rates for tesidential developmerit in the

categolT of Single Family Attached. Tabie 3 shows the calculation of Student

Genetation Rates for the categoty of Single Family Detached.

Table 3

Student Generation Rates
Single Family Detached Units

As allowed by law, in ordet to more accurately ptoject the number of students to
be generated by the development of Singie Family Ättached units, CFS has

utilized the Student Generation Rates that have been experienced and

1.07 0.2997Elementary School (Grades I(-6) 351

357 32 0.0896Nliddle School (Grades 7-8)



documented by the Saugus Union School District and William S. Hart Union
High School District. Both districts are located in the Counry of Los -{ngeles

("County") and within close proximity to the District. Table 4 shows the Student

Generation Rates that are used by this SFN,\.

Table 4

{pplied Student Generation Rates

1 
Sruclent Generation Rates for Single Family Àttached Units are taken from the School

Facilities Needs Ànalysis for Saugus Union School District dated Åugust 3, 201'1 .

2 Srudent Generarion Rates for Singte Family Àttached Units are taken from the School

Facilities Needs Ànalysis for 'William S. Hart Union High School District dated Àpril 13,

2011.

C. Projected Student Entollment

To project the number of students to be generated by Non-Mitigated Future

Units, the number of Non-Mitigated Futute Units listed in Table 2 werc

muhiplied by the Student Generation Rates listed in Table 4. The tesulting

projected student enrollment is listed in Tables 5,\, 5B and 5C.

Table 5A
Proiected Student Enrollment

Elementary School (Grades K-6)

0.2997 0.089(rSingle Family Detached (SFD)

0.08090.3295Single Family Attached (Str q.) 1

0.2997 776381Single tramily Detached (SFD)

2680 0.3295Single Family Attached (SFA)



0.0896 35Single tramily Detached (SFD) 3Bl

680 0.0809Single Family Attached (SFA)

Table 58
Proiected Student Enrollment
Middle School (Grades 7-8)

Table 5C
Proiected Student Enrollment

All Grade Levels

D. Excess School Facilities Capacity

In accordance with Gover:nment Code Section 65995.6(b)(2) the District must
identify and consider the extent to which projected enrollment growth may be

accommodated by excess capaciry in existing facilities.

The curent czpacrty of the District's facilities, as determined pursuant to
Education Code Section 17071.25 is 8,698 students (see Exhibit D). Based on

data for School Year 201.6/2011 the curtent entollment of the District ts 9,302

students' Table 6 compares the Disltict's cuffent c p^crqt and enrollment at each

school level.

1.421,1,6 26Elementary School (Grades I(-6)

6 41Middle School (Grades 7-8) 35



Table 6
Current Capacity Vs. Enrollment

[L] California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS)

As shown in Table 6, the District's existing school facilities capacrq is not
adequate to house all the students cuttently being genetated ftom existing

residential units. As a result, the Disttict has no excess facilities c p^ctry to house

the projected student entollment. Thetefore, the ptojected Unhousecl Students

and the ptojected student enrollment ate identical.

7,2r2 (2s6)6,956Elementary School (Grades K-6)

(348)r,742 2,09oMiddle School (Grades 7-8)



In addition to identiSring and considering the extent to which proiected enrollment

growth may be accommodated by Excess Capacrry in existing facilities, Government

Code Section 65995.6(b)(3) requires the District to (i) "identify and consider 
^ny 

surplus

property owned by the school district tltat can be used as a school site ot that is avatlable

for sale to fìnance school facilities" ("Surplus Propety") and (ii) idenúfu and consider

any other local sources of funds available to "fìnance the constructron or reconstruction

of school facilities needed to accommodate any growth in enrollment attributable to

the construction of new te sidential units" ("Sutplus Funds").

A. Surplus School Sites

To comply with Section 65995.6(b), the District identified and consideted

property it owns and has determined it possess five (5) sites that could be

consideted surplus (see Exhibit E). The Governing Board will review and te-re-

adopr an SFNA annually including a review of this cletermination and any need

to consider property thal may then be su{plus to fund school facilitíes required

to accommodate students being genetated ftom existing development, or othet

students.

B. Local Funds

To comply with Section 65995.6þ) the Disttict identified and considered the

following sources of local funds.

1. General Obligation Bonds - General obligation bonds ("GO Bonds")

are issued by school disticts whete voters have approved a bond ballot
measure. There are two types of bond measures: a ftadtil.onal measure

which requires a 213 voter approval rate and a Ptoposition 39 measure

which requires a 55o/o voter approval rate. \ü/hen voters approve a bond

measure, they are authortzing the school clistrict to issue a specifìed

amount of bonds and agreeing to repay those bonds through whatever

property tax levies are necessary. Outstanding bonds are limite d to 1..25o/o

of assessed values for eiementary znd high school districts anð,2.5o/o of
assessed values for unifìed school distticts and community college

districts. Proposition 39 bonds have limitations in the form of a legal'

maximum on annual projected tax ievy of $30 pet $100,000 of assessed

valuation for elementary and high school distticts and $60 pet $100,000
of assessed valuation for unifìed schooi districts.

The District received authodzatson at an election held on Novembet 4,

2008, by an affi,rmattve vote of at least 55o/o of the votes cast on Measure



WS ("Âuthortzatton") to issue bonds of the District in an aggregate

pdncipal amount not to exceed $63,500,000 to finance specific
construction, repair and modernizatton ptojects apptoved by the voters

(this amount was rca,¡thoúzed by Measure \X/R on November 6,201,2).

All of the authotized bonds have been issued. ,A.ll remaining GO Bond
proceeds have been committed to the modernization of Cottonwood
Elementary School. Therefore, there are no GO Bond ptoceeds available

to house projected Unhoused Students.

2. Community Facilities Districts - The Melio-Roos Community
Facilities Act provides an alternative method fot public agencies to fund
faciliues with useful lives of fìve years or more. The Communiry Facilities

District ("CFD") is a financing entity through which aIocal government
is authorized to ier,ry special taxes to pay debt service on issued bonds or
to pay for the direct construction of facilities. A two-thirds vote of the

qualifìed voters is tequired to form the CFD.

The Disttict has fotmed fìve (5) CFDs. Each CFD was fotmed on specifìc

residential development projects as an alternative to paying mitigation
payments. Accotdingly, nofle of the special tax or bond ptoceeds from
these CFDs will be avatlable to offset the cost impacts oí any resídential

units consttucted outside the boundaries of the CFDs. Similarþ, the

District will not be permitted to collect additional Statutory School Fees,

mitigation payments or Alternatrve Fees from the units located within the

CFDs, nor are the units from the CFDs considered in calculating the

Alternative No. 2 anå -Alternauve No. 3 Fees.

3. Redevelopment Pass-Through Payments - Cal:.îornta redevelopment
law allows school distticts to shate tax incr:ement income via pass-through

agteements with local redevelopment agencies. The passage of ÄB X1 26

eliminated tedevelopment agencies as of February 1,2012 and replaced

them with successor agencies. Though tedevelopment agencies have been

eliminated, local educational agency's pas s-thtough entitlements remain.

The District curtently collects a small amount of tedevelopment pass-

through revenue. Pass-through tevenues are utilized by the District to
complete improvements to schools needed independent of new
residential development. Therefore, there are no funds available at this

time to offset the impacts of projected Unhoused Students.

4. Commerciat/Industrial School Fees - Education Code Sections 1.7620

et seq. gives school districts the authodty to collect Statutory School Fees

from commercial/industrial development if a justifìcation srudy is
ptepated and certain nexus fìndings are made. Section 65995.5(c)(2)

requires the District to identi$r and considet Local Funds, which includes



Commercial/Industrial Statutory School Fees, and to subtract such funds
from the total impact created by Futute Units, if such Statutory School
Fees are available.

Rase on the amount of recent collections, the District expects to coliect
approximately $75,000 in Commerctalf Inåusttial Statutory School Fees

over the next fìve-yeat period. This amount will be avatlal:le to house

projected Unhoused Students.

5. Identification of Surplus Local Funds - Äs noted in Section III, the

District currently has 604 unhoused students. Based on the per student
costs calculated in Exhibit F, these existing unhoused students have a cost
impact to the District of fi26,334,109.

Over the next fìve years, the District will also need to construct school
facilities to house students to be generated from Futute Units. Using the

per student costs calculated in Exhibit F, the cost impact of ptoviding
school facilities to house tlie 183 projected Unhoused Students identified
in Section III will have a cost impact of $7,388,659. Table 7 show a

summary of the school facilities needs of the Disttict.

TableT
School Facilities Impact

As shown above, the District has identifìed local funds that can be utilized. In
addition, the District plans to pursue State funding for the constr-uction of school

facilities to house students generated by existing tesidential development and Future
Units. Based on the current per-pupil amounts established by the State and the

Disttict's school site costs, the 604 existing unhoused students would generate

$8,198,494 in State funding and the 183 projected Unhoused Students would
generate fi2,443,1.37 in State funding. Additionally, based on Table 14 of this SFNA,
the District can expect to receive $2,899,075 fuom Alternative No. 2 Fees on new

residential development. Table B summarizes potential funding sources for the

school facilities needs identifìed.

fi26,334,1.09Current IJnhoused Student Impact

$7,399,659Future Unhoused Student Impact



¡\vailable GO Bond Proceeds $o

$992,000Sutplus School Sites 
1

Projected Commetcial/Industial School Fees $75,000

$992,000Potential Value of Surplus Sites

State Funding for Current Unhouscd Students $9,199,494

fiz,443,137State Funding for Projected lJnhoused Srudents

Projected ,A.lternative No. 2 Fees fi2,999,015

Table 8

Identified Funding Sources

1 D.tails in Exhibit E

-As shown in Table 9, when accountlng for the current and future school needs of the

District, there is currently a fi1.8,123,062 funding shortfall.

Table 9

School Facilities Funding Shortfall

533,722,768School Facilities Needs

(s15,599,706)Local Funding Sources



The followrng section outlines the calculations tequiled by Govetnment Code Section

65995.5 (c) to justify the Altetnative No. 2Fee.

A. Alternative No. 2 Fee School Facilities Costs

To calculate the maximum Altetnauve No. 2 Fee, Government Code Section
65995.5(c)(1) requires the District to multiply the numbet of Unhoused Students

by the appropriate grant amounts provided in Education Code Section
1.7072.1.0(a) and the site acquisition and site development costs detetmined
pursuant to Govetnment Code Section 65995.5(h).

1. New Construction Grants - Government Code Section 65995.5(c)(1)

require s the Disttict utilize the appropriate amounts provided in
Education Section 17072.1,0 (a) to identify the cost of constructing new
facilties. The new construction grant amounts specified in Education
Code Section 1,7072.1,0(a) were adjusted by the S,\B onJanuary 25,201'7.
Table 10 outlines the updated New Construction Grant amounts.

Table 10

SAB New Construction Grants

2. Site Acquisition and Development Costs - Government Code Section
65995.5(c)(1) permits the calculation of -Alternative No. 2Fee to include

site acquisition and site development cost detetmined pursuant to
Government Code Section 65995.5(h). Based on information ptovided by
the District and information regarding property sales within the County,
the District believes that $40,000 per acre for site acquisition at all school
levels is a reasonable estimate. Based on the experience of neighboring
school districts the District estimates that the costs fot site development
tsff317,41.4 per acre at all school levels. Table lL outlines the calculation
of the 

^pproprlate 
site acquisition and site development costs.

s1,023 5r2,7e8Elementary School (Grades K-6) s11,s67 s208

s1.2,234 524e $1,011 s13,494Middle School (Grades 7-8)



$s04,000 s3,999,416 s4,503,41 6ìllcmentary Scìrool (Gradcs I(-ó) 12.6

$5,300,81 4 $s,968,81 41,6.1 $668,000Middle School (Cìradcs 7-8)

Table 11

Site Acquisition and Development Costs

I 'l'hc site acguisitron and sitc devcloprnent costs âre equal to the per acre costs üsted above multiplied by the nurnbct ofacres.

2 
Site derelopmcr.ìt cost has bcen cstimatcd using the informatiol fi:om Palmdale School District as ptcsented in thcir 2017

Scllooì lìrciltics Nccds,\nelysis.

3. Alternative No. 2 Fee Facilities Cost Per Facility - The sum of the

New Construction Grants and applicable site acquisition and site

deveiopment costs provide the basis for the facilities cost utilized to
establish the impact of Unhoused Students. Table 12 outlines the total
cost per facility.

TableL2
Total Cost Per Facility

4. School Facility Needs - The number of school facilities needed as a

result of Non-Mitigated Future Units is calculated by dividing the total
number of projected Unhoused Students at each gtade level by the

appropriate facility c^p^ctLy. Tabie 13 outlines the school facilities needed

to house the projected Unhoused Students.

Table 13

School Facilities Needed

$1 9,1 96,690 $4,503,41ó s23,700,1 0ó750Iìlementary School (Grades I{-ó)

$38,3s4,3881,200 $32,385,574 $5,968,814Middle School (Grades 7-8)

750 0.1 893Eiementary School (Grades I(-6) 142

41 1,200 0.0342N'Iiddle School (Gtades 7-B)



5. Total Alternative No. 2 Fee School Facilities Cost - To calculate the

school facilities cost that may be included in the Altemative No. 2 Fee

The Total Cost Per Facility is multiplied by the school facilities needed.

This amount is then multiplied by fifty percent, resulting in the ,{.ltetnative

No. 2 Fee School Facilities Cost. Table L4 outlines the calculation of the

Alternative No. 2Fee School Facilities Cost.

TableL4
Total Alternative No. 2 Fee

School Facilities Cost

B. Total Square Foot of Future of Units

To calculate the Âlternative No. 2Fee,the Altetnative No. 2Fee School Facilities

Cost must be divided by the total square footage of assessable space fot Non-
Mitigated Futute Units.

In order to project the total square footage of assessable space of the Non-
Mitigated Future Units, the SFNA must estimate the àver.^ge square footage of
each unit type to be developed within the District. In order to estimate the

àver ge square footage, CFS analyzed certifìcates of compliance íssued by the

Distlict over the last fìve years and conducted discussions with the planning
departments of the Ciúes. This avetage square footage was then multiplied by

the total number of Non-Mitigated Future Units expected to be built over the

next five years. Table 15 outlines the calculation of the total squate footage of
Non-Mitigated Future Units.

$4,486,4300.1893 $23,700,106Elementary School (Grades I{-6)

fi1,,31.1,7200.0342 $38,354,388N'Iiddle School (Grades 7-8)

50%Älternarive No. 2 Fee À{ultiplier



Table 15

Total Square Foot of Future Units

C. Alternative No. 2 Fee Per Square Foot

To caiculate the Alternative No. 2Fee,the Altetnative No. 2Fee School Facüities

Costwas divided by the total square footage of Future Units. Table 16 outlines

tlre calculation of the Alternative No. 2Fee that may be adopted by the District.

Table 1,6

Alternative No. 2 Fee Per Square Foot

2,300 890,100Single Family Detached (SFD) 381

12,00080 900Single tramily r\ttached (SFÀ)

$2,999,075Net -Alternative No. 2 School FaciLities Cost

962,100Projected Non-Mrtigated Residential Squate Footage



The following section outlines the calculations tequired by Government Code Section

65995.5 (c) to justify the Alternative No. 3 Fee.

The Alternative No. 3 Fee is essentially equal to double the Alternative No. 2 Fee. Fot
the purpose of calculating the -{lternative No. 3 Fee, the amount identifìed tnpangraph
(2) of subdivision (c) of Government Code Section 65995.5 (i.e., local funds) are not
subtracted ftom the,Alternative No. ZFee School Facilities Cost. Tables 17,\ and17B
outline the calculation of the Alternative No. 3 Fee tha:tm y be adopted by the District.

Table 174
Alternative No. 3 School Facilities Cost

Table 178
Alternative No. 3 Fee Per Square Foot

$2,899,07sÀlternative No. 2 School Facilities Cost

200o/oAlternative No. 3 Fee Multiplier

$5,798,150Alternative No. 3 School Facilities Cost

962,1.00Projected N on-Mrtigated Residential Square Footage



Government Code Section 66001 "et seq." sets forth the requirements for establishing,
imposing and increzsing development fees. Specifìcally, Govetnment Code Section

66001 with respect to the imposition of development fees provides that any actton
establishing, increasing, or imposing a fee on new development shall do all of the

following:

. Identify the purpose of the fee.

o Identify the use to which the fee is to be put.

c Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee's use and the

fype of development proiect on which the fee is imposed.

o Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need fot the public
facility and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed.

A. New Residential Construction

The purpose of Alternative Fees is to provide necessary school facilities for
students generated from Future Units ovet the next fìve years. The ,\lternative
Fees will be used to acquire land and construct new school facilities to
accommodate growth that will be generated within the Future Units. In otder to
estimate the actual cost for new school facilities CFS has utilized the District's
past experience and information provided by construction m^n gers who work
with public school districts in the area. The District's crÌrrent estimate of school
facitq construction and site acquisition costs per squaf e foot of future residential

development (as calculated in Exhibit F) ranges from $6.84 - $18.30. This "ttue"
impact exceeds the Alternative Fee amounts identified hetein and as provided
for in SB 50. Therefore, this SFN,A. established that there is a reasonable

relationship between the amount of the Altemative Fees and the Future Units
upon which the fee is to be imposed.

This SFNA and the supporting documents establish that the Altetnative Fees

contained herein meet the statutory requirements and the District is justifìed in
imposing these fees on new residential construction within unmitigated
developments in ordet to ptovide the necessary school facilities.

B. Reconstruction

Reconstruction means the volunt^ry demolition of existing residential dwelling
units or commercial/industrial construction and the subsequent construction of
ner,v residential dwelling units ("Reconsttuction").



The District acknowledges that Reconstruction ptojects, may occur within the

next fìve-yeat period. In such a situation, the Disuict shali ler,ry school fees

atthorized pursuant to Education Code Section 1,7620 and Government Code

Sections 65995 ("School Fees") if thete is a nexus established between the impact
of the new residential dwelling units in terms of a net inctease in students

generated and the fee to be imposed. In othet words, the School Fees must bear

a nexus to the burden caused by rhe Reconstruction ptoject.

The purpose of this section is to set forth a general policy fot the levy of School

Fees on futute Reconsttuction projects within the Disttict.

"1.. Existing Residential Dwelling Units - To the extent Reconstruction
increases the residential square footage beyond what was demolished

("New Square Footage"), the inctease in square footage is subject to the

applicable Alternative Fee as such construction ís considered new
residential development. As for the amount of square footage consttucted
that replaces oniy the pteviously constructed square footage

("Replacement Square Footage"), the determination of the applicable fee,

tf zny, is subject to a showing that the Replacement Square Footage

results in an increase in student enrollment and, thetefore, 
^rr 

additionai
impact being placed on the Distlict to provide school facilities fot new
student entollment.

-As of the date of this SFN,A., the large-scale Reconsttuction of residential

development v/ithin the District has not occurted to the point where

statistically signifìcant data czn be utilized to determine if Repiacement

Square Footage increases student enrollment. Therefote, prior to the

imposition of Schooi Fees on Replacement Squate Footage, the District
may undertake an analysis on af\y future ptoposed project(s) and may

amend/update this SFN,{. Such analysis will examine the extent to which
an increase in enrollment can be expected from Replacement Square

Footage due to any differential in student generation ïates as identifìed in
the SFNÀ for the applicable unit types between existing square footage

and Repiacement Square Footage. To the extent it can be demonstrated

that Replacement Square Footage wili increase student enrollment, the

District may then impose a fee on the Replacement Square Footage. This
fee amount on Replacement Square Footage shall be calculated by

determining the cost impacts associated with any growth in student

enrollment from the Replacement Square Footage. Any such fee that is

calculated for the Replacement Square Footage shall not exceed the

Alternative Fee that is in effect at such time.

2. Existing Commercial/Industrial Construction - As with
Reconstruction of existing residential dwelling units, there is not
signifìcant information tegarding (Ð the amount of



Commercial/Industrial Reconstruction planned withrn the District over

the next fìve years or (l) historical levels, which might indicate the amount
to be expected in the futute. Due to the lack of tnformation, the Disttict
has decided to evaluate the impacts of Commercial/Industriai
Reconstruction ptojects on a case-by-case basis and will make 

^
determination of whether a fee credit is justifìed based on the nature of
the project.

The fee ctedit determination will be based upon a compatison of the

impacts of the planned residential project and the existing land use

category (i... retail and services, offìce, research and development,
industrial/watehouse frnantfacturing, hospital, or hotel/motel). The
actual impacts of the planned residential project (taken from Exhibit E)

will be reduced by the rmpact of the existing commercial/industdal
category (detived ftom calculations contained in the current
Commercial/Industrial Development School Fee Justifìcation Study

adopted by the Disttict). Any reductton to the,\lternative Fee would only
occur if the teduced amount falls below the Alternative Fee. In such a

case, the District would levy the reduced amount per square foot of new

residential construction fot the subject Reconstruction ptoject.



Based upon the data gathered by CtrS regarding future development within the

boundaries of the District, student generation, school facilities costs and the

methodology presctibed by the provisions of SB 50 in order to determine the school

facilities impact from new residenual development expected to occut during the next
five years, District makes the following fìndings:

o The current 
^ggteg 

te school factJtq c^p^crry of the District is insufficient to
meet the facitty demands of Futute Units.

. ,{pproximately 183 new students in grades kindergaten thru Bth will be

generated within the next fìve years from Non-Mitigated Future Units.

o Based on the statutorily presctibed methodology 
^n 

Alternative No.2 Fee of
$3.01 per square foot is authorized.

o In the event that state funding is not avatlable, and District is authoúzed to
collect Level III fees, the amount of the Alternative No. 3 Fee wili be $6.03 pet
squate foot.



Current SAB Forms



SIATE OF CALIFORNIA

EN RO L LME NT CE RT I FI CAT I A NlPRA J ECTI O N
SGHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM
sAB 50.01 (REV 05i09)

Westside Union Ëlementary School District 651 02

COUNTY

Los Angeles

scHo0L

Gheckone: Fifth.YearEnrollmentProjection [il] Tenth-Year Enrollment Projection

HSAA Districts Only - Check one; n Attendance [1 Residency

ü - COS Districts Year On

D Modified Weighting (Fifth-Year Proiection Only)

n Alternate Weighting - (Fill in boxes to the right):

Pa¡t A. K-12 Data

Pad B. ls Schools Chartered Another District

Part C. Continuation Hlgh School Pupils - (Districts Onìy)

Part D. Class Pu 0r of Schools)

PaÉ E. Class Pu ls- of Schools

Part F, Birth Data - (Fiflh-Year Projection Only)

I Cou Birth Data I Birth Data District ZIP Codes

Class - Enrol

2. Tenth-YearProjection

Enrollment/Reside Day Class pupils)

Special Class - Ënrol

443

t cottify, as the Dìstrict Representalive, lhat the in{ormat¡on

repoñed on this form and, when appl¡cable, the High School
Attendance Area Residency Reporting Wor4sheet atlached, is

true and coÍect and that:
. t am designated as an authotized d¡strict represenlal¡ve by
the governing board of tho d¡strict.
. tl the distilct is requesting an augmsntat¡on in the enrollment
projection pursuant to Regulation Sact¡on I 859 42.1 (a), the

tocat ptanning commission ol approval authotity has apprôved

lho tentat¡ve subd¡vision map used for augmentalion of the
enroltment and the d¡strict has ident¡fied dwelling units in that

map lo be contracled. All subdiv¡sion maps used for

augmentatìotl o{ enrollment aro ava¡lable at lha district for
review by the Office of Public School Construct¡on (OPSC).
. This torm is an exaal duplicate (verbatiñ) of the form

províded by thê Office of Public School Construction. ln the

event a conftiôt should ex/sl then the language ¡n the OPSC
form will prevail.

NAÀ¡E OF DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE {PRINT OR TYPEI

Shawn Cabey

NUMBER (seo

SUPËR HSAÂ

Part G. Number of New Dwelling Units

(Fifl h-Year Projection 0nly)

Part H. District Student Yield Factor

(Fifth-Year Projection 0nlY)

Part l, Projected Enrollment

1, Fifth-Year Projection

K-ô 7-8 9-12 TOTAL

STATË ALLOCATION BOARD

OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

Page 5 of 5

Day Class pupils)

07l2gl20
E-À,IAIL

7 16 X76104

Prevlous to

Curront

3rd Prev. lo

2nd Prev.

2nd Prev,

to Prev,

2nd Prev, Previous Cunent7th Prev 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev 3rd Prev

tsltø 'tøl'Íi1112 12113 ßh4 14/1sGnde os/10 1o111

1051917 907 1014K 766 778 841 874

883 932864 855 943 944 s051 873

935866 949 933 9332 855 843

974 955 9853 853 824 856 867 877

1007 '1006854 849 867 936 s0B4 883

1048921 952 961 9525 841 899 91C

983 985 I 0176 960 870 954 968

101 1 1 006'1006 975 990 1049 '10447 1 070

1014s6l '1054 1047 '1039ô 1012 1041 1472

I
10

11

t¿

8779 89947971 8164 8257 8661 8651TOTÀL 8113

Secondary TOTALElêmentary

Non-Severe

Severg

TOTAL

K-6 7-B 9-12 TOTAL

't280610018 27AB

Previous Current6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev 2nd Prev.7th Prev

Secondary TOTALElomsntary

332Non.Sevëre 332

111Sóvero 111

TOTAL 443

Grade 7th Prev. 6th Prev 5th Prev. 4lh Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev Previous Current

I
10

11

t¿

TOTAL

Secondary TOTALElemêntary

231 231Non-Severe

77Severe 77

TOTAL 308

Current3rd Prev. 2nd Prev Previous7th Prev 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev.

II

n Estimak lLslrmate I Eslìmat(

8th Prev. 7th Prev 6th Prev. 5th Prev 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Curent
S. CAb ide.kl-2.ca.us



' ^ .,': .Revised for Er'uors and 0mt'è-s1ons

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDING CAPACITY
50-02 Excel

scHooL olslRtcT

CôUNW

STATÊ ALLOCATION BOARD

OFFICÊ OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

Drcrf DrsrRtcTcoDE {soo Cðriløio Publ¡i' Sçhool Oipctory)

HIGH SCHOOLAÏTENDANCE AREÀ

PART I - Glassroom lnventory i-Ì NEW ù: ADJUSTED

Line 1. Leased State Relocatable Classrooms

Line 2. Portable Classrooms less than 5

Line 3. lnterim Hou Portables leased less than 5

Line 4. lnterim Hou Portables leased ai least 5 rs

Line 5. Portable Classrooms leased at least 5 rs

Line 6. Portable Classrooms owned district

7 Classrooms

Line 8. Total

PART ll - Available Classrooms

9R!¡et1A.. , ..,, ;',,, ,

a. Part l, line 4

b, Part I, line 5

c. Part I, line 6

d. Part l, line 7

e. Toial &d

a. Parl l, line B

b. Part l, lines '1,2,5 and 6 (totat only)

c. 25 percent of Part I, line 7 (total only)

Subtract c from b (enter 0 if negative)

e. Total (a minus d)

PART lll - Determination of Existing School Building Capacity

Line 1, Classroom ca

LÌne 2. SER

Line 3. lGrants

Line 4. Greater of line 2 or 3

Line 5, T 4

1:.,$6-:,..'-, ,:l:,7-'.8.r:
,lNon',:,':
Sãùarer. . ;¡ì'T9!g!,..,:

32 1 Q1

2 4 2 I

2 2

87 Â 97

f09 43 Ã tÊ7

¿,1¿ 52 IJ 297

,,;;;.'if,4;¡.';, 'j'Fp-ûci9',.
'.lotal

¿ 2

87 5 Ã 97

109 43 5 157

ls8 48 l0 256

r I l\.ù.. .: i,r .',rNcr.l:. : ì:

,:sàvòid'.,1

232 52 13 297

140

40

88 o o 100

144 46 7 197

: sever'e.'.; 
a

if t:rNon:-t:'i.'
j-,,;.Sá'vàíâ' .:';:,, :r,:t:' ,.':..,:.:' I.g,'| : ::,:: li, 9.r3;,'.l:'.

3,600 1,242 91

216 4

216

3,816 1,242 95

I certify, as ffre Dlsfdct Representative, that the information roported on this form is true and correct and that:

I am designated as an authorized district representatlve by the governing board of lhe dÌstrict; and,

This form is an exact duplicate (verbatim) of the form provided by the Office of Public Sc/'iool Consfruction (APSC).

In the event a conflict should exist, then the language rn the OFSC form will prevail.



Revised f or Nøi/l;øs fer:è'! il rlS.áf:éf.éi:-, ri

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXISTING SCHOOL BUILD]NG CAPACITY
SAB
scHooL DtgfRtcf

COUNTY

LOS

STATE ALLOCATION BOARD

oFFrcE oF PUBLIc scHooL cot'¡srnuclto¡.1

0ISTRICT CODE NUMBER (see C¿domi8 puðüc Scrrær

ARY

PARTI-Classroomlnventory l 1 NEW ¿ ADJUSTED

Line 1. Leased State Relocatable Class

Portable Classrooms leased

Line 3. lnterim Housi Poriables leased

Li 4. lnterim Hou Portables leased at

Line Classrooms leased at Ã rS

ble Classrooms owned district

Line 7 ent Cl

651 02
H IGH SCHOOL ATTE l.loANCE AR€ A {,ï épplrc8ô,å )

v

Þ

Line 8. Total es1

Line 4. Greater of line 2

h
D

PART ll - Available Classrooms

Optlon A.

a. Part l, line 4

b. Part I, line 5

c. Part l, line 6

d. Part l, line 7

e. Total &

Optlon B.

a. Parl l, line I
b. Pârt l, lines 1,2,5 and 6 (total only)

c. 25 percent of Part l, line 7 (total only)

d. Subtract c from b (enter 0 if negative)

e. Total (a minus d)

PART tll - Þeterminatìon of Existing School Building Capacity

Lin 1. Classroom

2. SER ustment

Line 3. rational Grants

J

Line otal of lines 1 and 4

,,., :T.,9!lt,., ,K-q 9.12:: Nor!-..
: Seléie Soverc.:,.;

aa
JI 1 1

114 5

4¿ 2

oÃ81 o

15682 t¡ 69 t

299 ./200 86 13

V

K-6 9-1?
Non:

Severe

42

958l ô E

156B2 69 5

10 255165 80

9.12

299200

143

?o

1041'B6

7 195114 74

:' ,:7'B 9-1 2
Non:' .' n u"ru,..:

2,850 1,999 91

101 70 J

101 70

2,951 2,068 94

t cerlify, as fhe Drstrict Representatíve, that the information reported on th¡s form is true and correct and that:

I am designated as an authorized disfnbf representative by tho governing board of the district; and,

This form is an exact dupticate (verbatim) of the form provided by the Office of Public Schoo/ Construction (OPSC)'

ln the event a conflict shou/d exisf, then the language rn fhe OPSC form will prevail.

TURE OF

7 /g Ðl



SAB Eligibility Determination



5 f\& fr*^*3 þJ evrr ( nn strrertír:n Ël ig i liil ìty I nlorrx atí*rr

lrlew Ccn¡ntruetisn Baseline ÐtÍgii]ålity

fi¡arJ*l-evel: K-6

h$Tåå)t¡rneü Lilg'nrf ¿ïy: I vn)

5Å{å F,ppr*vals/Adjustrttent.s: ãt}61

Remæininç fTigit:ilîTy: 4*26

/ "i1

-h4\

">'] ù2

1ú1&

û.- 1l

i,

t¡

ü

5çu¿ërc

ü

ÐU

ÐU

li,{*n-5el¡*r*

ü

147

14,7

åA& Sü"fr3 Efiçibilitg **e,uuxewí $tøtuslñætes

Status: fl|"4 {nrnplete

tlate Siç*ecl: 2l¿3l1ggg

úat* flse*iv*d: 1?.17-4/1**&

SÅft &pproval llaT*: 512611ç19*



tsondi*g Capacity Calculation



Westside Union School District
Bonding Capacity Analysis

[1] Source: Los ,\ngeles County '\uditor Controller 2011 /2018

[2] Soutce: District Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year endingJune 30, 2017

fi7,431.,971,509Total Secured Assessed Value of Ptopetry wrthin the School District tll

fi92,999,7L9Bonding Capacity

Äpplicable l)ebt Limit 1..25o/o

$83,164,061Total Bond Obligations as of July 1,2017 t2l

Genetal Obligation Bonds

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Bonds

fi63,1.24,731.

$20,039,330



{Jpdated School Facilities Capacity Analysis



WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL FACILITIES CAPACITY ANALYSIS

7,2423,876N/Ä SÅB trorm 50-02

80 41Non-Sever/Sewe CapacityN/À
810 54N/Ä Relocatables Àdded

405215N/À Relocatables Àdded - 2009

50 0Relocatables Ådded - 2013N/'\
625 05ol6501 o2-00-oo1 Esperarza Elernentary

0Ànderson (Greg) Elementary 72550/65102-oo-003

515 0,\naverde School50 / 65102-00-004



Surplus Site Analysis



Section 65995.6(b)(1) requires the School District to identify and consider 
^rry 

surplus

property owned by the School Disttict that may be used as a school site or that is

avatlal:Ie for sale to {ìnance school facilities. The School District has identified five (5)

sites tlrat may fal, into this category.

1.. Tumbleweed Site

The Tumbleweed Site was purchased by the School l)isttict undet a tax deed

dated in the late 1960's and is 10.7 acres. Based on the per-acre value of land

used in the Ânalysis, rhe value of this site $428,000. The School District will
consider value of this site to offset the impact of Futute Units

2. Quartz Hill Road Site

The Quartz Hill Road site is a 0.5 acre site owned by the School District. This

site is currently planned to become an additional parking lot for the School

District's offìce. Therefore, at this time, this school site is not consideted surplus.

3. Belleview Site

The Belleview property v/as purchased by the School District in 1947. The site

consists of 1.5 acres and is currently vac nt. Based on the per-acre value of land

used in the Anaiysis, the value of this site is estimated to be $60,000. The School

District will consider value of this site to offset the impact of Future Units.

4. Neenach Site

The Neenach site is a former elementary school faclltty located 
^t 

4980L Neenach

Road. 'fhis school site was opened in school year 1.992/1.993 and closed due to
the remote location of the factlrty and lack of enrollment. The School District
plans to reopen this school faclhq as necessitated by future residential

deveiopment. This school site has been inciuded in the calculated capacity shown

on S-AB Form 50-02 (Exhibit B) and included in the School District's c p^crq
calculation (Exhibit D) due to the School District's planned reuse of this school

facityy. Therefore, at this time, this school site is not consideted surplus.

5. Avenue L-12 and 82nd Street West Site

The Avenue L-12 and 82nd Street \X/est Site is a L2.6 acre site owned by the

School District. Based on the per acre value of land used in the Änalysis, the

value of this site $504,000. The School District will consider value of this site to

offset the impact of Future Units.

Based on the information above, it was detetmined that School District currently
owns three (3) surplus sites worth a combined value of $992,000 that could be

used to offset the impact of Futute Units.



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April 3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Shawn Cabey, Assistant Superintendent Administrative ServicesPREPARED BY

SUBJECT Resolution 18-43,Imposing Elementary School District Level i Fees with Fee-Sharing

Agreement; Approval of CEQA Exemption

BACKGROLIND

Every two years the State Allocation Board adjusts the base (Level I) developer fee maximum that districts may

assess for residential and commercial/industrial construction. In order to impose that base fee, we conduct a

public hearing to allow comment on our intent to do this. We are currently collecting Level II fees, which
include the Level I base. As we have to account differently for the portion that is Level I and the portion that is

Level II, it is important that we continue to maintain our Level I base. On January 24,2018, the State

Allocation Board maintained the maximum Level I fee at $3.79 per squate foot for residential development and

$0.61 per square foot for commercial/industrial construction. The District, by agreement with the high school

district sharing geographical tenitory with the District, will levy (seventy-fo:ur) 74o/o of the total fees permitted.

Education Code section 1762I specifically exempts the adoption, increase or imposition of any fee, charge,

dedication or other requirement pursuant to Education Code 11620 from the provisions of the California

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") and upon determination that the imposition of school facilities fees under

Education Code section 17620 is exempt from CEQA, the District is entitled to file a Notice of Exemption with
the County Clerk pursuant to California Code of Regulations title 14, section 15602.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

Maximizing our developer fees allows us more options for funding new construction to address the needs of our

students. Provides funds for temporary housing and for new sites.

COST ANALYSIS/FTINDING:

Adoption of this Resolution renews our ability to impose Level I fees. The result of the study is to maintain the

maximum Level I fee at $3.4S per square foot ($2.58 to WUSD) for residential construction and $0.56 per

square foot ($0.414 to V/USD) for commercial/industrial construction. Wè share the Level I fee with the high

school district.

AS S ISTANT S UPERINTENDENT ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION

Approval

12



Rnsor-urro¡r lvrposrr,lc ElntrBxraRv Scgoor, T)rsrRlc'r
LBvu,I FnBs Wrru Fnn-Ss¿.nINc AcREEMENT: AppRovrr. on CEOA ExnvrprroN

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE

WESTSIDE IINION SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOS ANGELES COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Resolution No. 18-43In the Matter of

THE ADOPTION OF IMPOSING
SCHOOL FACILITIES FEES;
APPROVAL OF CEQA EXEMPTION

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

WHEREAS Education Code section 17620 authorizes school districts to levy a

fee, charge or dedication against any new construction within its boundaries for the

purpose of funding the construction or reconstruction of school facilities and to impose

certain fees thereon; and

V/HEREAS the Westside Union School District ("District") by agreement with

the high school district sharing geographical territory with the District, may levy

(seventy-four) 74%ó of the total fees permitted pursuant to Government Code Section

65995 for development in areas in which the District provides school services. The

remaining permitted fees shall be allocated to the high school district within whose

boundaries the residential, commercial, or industrial development shall occur; and

WHEREAS pursuant to the authority of Government Code section 65995,

subdivision (bX3), the allowable fees authorized by Education Code section 17620have

presently been established by the State Allocation Board ("SAB") in the amount of $3.79

Page I of7



per square foot for residential development and $0.61 per square foot for

commercial/industrial development; and

WHEREAS the governing board ("Board") of the District has caused a study to

be prepared by California Financial Services entitled School Facilities Fee Justification

Report (incorporated herein by reference and hereinafter referred to as the "Repotl"),

which identifies the purpose and use for the fee and sets forth a reasonable relationship

between the fee to be imposed, the type of development project on which the fee is to be

imposed, as well as the cost of the school facilities made necessary by virtue of the

burden imposed by the development; and

WHEREAS based upon the District's agreement with the high school district and

in accordance with the fees permitted by the SAB pursuant to Government Code section

65995, the District may levy the following fees, which represent a percentage of the

fee(s) established by the SAB

l. $2.80 per square foot of residential development (74% of $3.79)

2. $0.45 per square foot of commercial or industrial development

(74% of $0.61)

These amounts are justified by the needs of the District alone and do not include

the needs of the high school district.

WHEREAS Education Code section 17621specif,rcally exempts the adoption,

increase, or imposition of any fee, charge, dedication or other requirement pursuant to

Education Code section 17620 from the provisions of the California Environmental

Quality Act ("CEQA")(Pub. Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq); and

WHEREAS upon a determination that the imposition of school facilities fees

Page 2 oî 7



under Education Code section 11620 is exempt from CEQA, the District is entitled to file

a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk pursuant to California Code of Regulations,

Title 14, Section 15062.

NO'W, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board makes the following
findings:

1. Prior to the adoption of this resolution ("Resolution"), the Board of

the District conducted a public hearing at which oral and written presentations were made

as part of the Board's regularly scheduled April 3,2018 meeting. Notice of the time and

place of the meeting, including a general explanation of the matter to be considered has

been published twice in the Antelope Valley Press in accordance with Government Code

sections 66017 and 66018. Additionally, at least 10 days prior to the meeting, the District

made all relevant information available to the public indicating the cost, or estimated

cost, of the construction or reconstruction of school facilities made necessary by the

residential andlor commercial/industrial development to which the fee shall apply.

2. The purpose of the fees are to provide adequate school facilities for the

students of the District who will be generated by residential and commercial/industrial

development in the District.

3. The fees are to be used to finance the construction and reconstruction of

school facilities.

4. There is a reasonable relationship between the need for the imposition of

the fee and the types of development projects upon which the fees shall be imposed for

the purpose of the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, in that residential,

commercial and industrial development will generate students who will attend District

schools. These students cannot be housed by the District without additional school

Page 3 of 7



facilities, or the reconstruction of existing school facilities. The fees will be used to fund

all, or a portion of, new school facilities, or to reconstruct existing school facilities.

5. There is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the

cost of the additional or reconstructed school facilities attributable to the development

upon which the fee shall be imposed, in that the square footage of these developments has

a direct relationship to the number of students that will be generated, and, thus, to the

facilities the District must add or reconstruct in order to accommodate the additional

students.

6. The District maintains a separate capital facilities account, or fund, as

required by Government Code section 66006.

7 . There are no other adequate sources of funds to meet the District's school

facilities needs occasioned by, and as a direct result of, the construction of new

residential and/or commercial/industrial development within the District.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board incorporates herein by

reference approves and adopts the Reporl entitled School Facilities Fee Justification

Report dated April 3, 2018, and prepared by California Financial Services which

documents the need for the fees.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that since the Report justifies fees at or in

excess of the allowable limits, the District, in accordance with Education Code sections

17620, et seq., and Government Code sections 65995, et seq., and the District's

agreement with the high school district, hereby increases fees to the following amounts:

1. $2.80 per square foot of residential development; and

2. $0.45 per square foot of commercial or industrial development.

Page 4 of 7



AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, if the goveming board of the high

school district has not implemented a fee equal to the SAB Authorized Fee Amounts or

the high school district's share thereof, pursuant to the Fee-Sharing Agreement, the

District shall have the right to levy and collect fees equal to the sreater of : (i) the

District's allocated percentage of the SAB Authorized Fee Amounts pursuant to the Fee-

Sharing Agreement; or (ii) the total SAB Authorized Fee Amounts less the fees that the

high school district has implemented and is entitled to receive pursuant to the Fee-

Sharing Agreement. In no event, however, shall the District's fee imposed pursuant to

this Resolution exceed the justified fee set for-th in the Report. Upon the high school

districts implementation of a fee equal to the SAB Authorized Fee Amounts, the District

and the high school districts shall resume collection and levy of fees in accordance with

their respective percentage allocations as set forth in the Fee-Sharing Agreement.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amount collected on behalf of both

the District and the high school district pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed a total

of $3.79 per square foot for residential development and $0.61 per square foot of

commercial or industrial development, except as otherwise set forth herein.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the fee shall take effect sixty (60) days

after the date of this Resolution.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent of the District, or

his or her designee, shall give notice of the Board's action herein to all cities and counties

with jurisdiction over the territory of the District in accordance with the requirements of

Education Code section 17620 and 17627, requesting that no building permits (or, for

manufactured homes and mobile homes, certificates of occupancy) be issued on or after

Page 5 of7



the date which is sixty (60) days after the date of this Resolution, without certification

from the District that the fee specified herein have been paid.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that developers of commercial or industrial

development be provided the opporlunity for a hearing to appeal the imposition of the fee

on their developments.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that nothing contained or expressed in this

Resolution shall be construed to affect the District's authority to impose the fee, enter

into agreements with developers, or otherwise adopt or impose, to the extent permitted by

law, additional fees, to fully mitigate the impact of resident and/or commercial/industrial

development upon the District's school facilities.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, in the event that the Board takes action

in the future to adopt an alterative fee pursuant to Government Code section 56995.5 or

65995.1 , commonly known as "Level 2" or "Level 3" fees, respectively, in an amount

greater than that authorized by this Resolution, this Resolution shall be held in abeyance

during the time in which the greater Level 2 or Level 3 fee is authorized. If, for any

reason, any future Board action to adopt a greater Level 2 or Level 3 fee ceases to be

effective this Resolution shall then immediately return into effect unless otherwise

specified by the Board.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District's administration is

authorized to make expenditures and to incur obligations of the fees for the purposes

authorized by law.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby finds that the fees

hereunder is statutorily exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to Education

Code section 17621.

Page 6 of7



AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board hereby approves the CEQA

Notice of Exemption regarding the increase in fees and directs the Superintendent, or his

or her designee, to file the CEQA Notice of Exemption, together with a certihed copy of

this Resolution, with the County Clerk of each County in which the District shall collect

fees pursuant to Education Code Section 17621.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board hereby adopts this

Resolution and directs the Superintendent, or his or her designee, to file a certified copy

of this Resolution, together with all relevant supporting documentation and a map clearly

indicating the boundaries ofthe area subject to the fee, to each city and each county in

which the District is situated, pursuant to Education Code section ll62L

This Resolution is adopted this 3rd day of April,2018 by the following vote:

AYES

NOES

ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

Linda Jones

Clerk of the Governing Board

PageT of7



KeyÅrualyti*s
ffi A division of ÇalifornÌn Financir¡l Services



I. Introduction
II. The School District ..............

III. District Facilities Needs
-4. Enrollment........
B. Capacity of District Facilities ........
C. District Facilities Needs...
D. Plan to Ptovide for District F'acility Needs..............

IV. Financial Impact of Residential Development
Estimated Cost of School F-acilities

Cost of Meeting School Faciliry Neecls

Cost of Providing School Facilities Per Square F-oot of Future Residential

Development............... 11

V. Comparison of Impact and Residential School Fee Revenue .......... --.--13

A Maximum Residential School Fee..

B. Compatison of Impact and Maximum School Fee ......

VI. Financial Impact of Commercial/ Industrial Development.......
A. Employees Per 1,000 Square Feet

B Household Impact..
C. Student Generation Impact.........
D. Cost of Providing School Facilities......
Il. Residential School Fee Revenue Offset.........

VII. Comparison of Impact and Commercial/Industrial Fee Revenves.......22

A. Maximum Commetctal/Industrial School Fee.................. 22
22B. Comparison of Impact and Nlaximum School Fee ...

VIII. Conclusion and Statement of Findings ..23

Exhibit -A: State Ailocation Boatcl Form 50-02 and State Funded Projccts

Exhibit B: E,stimated School Faciliues Cost

1.

2

3

3

8

9

9

A
B

C

10

10

10



In 1986, the Governot signed into law Ässembly Bill (",4.8") 2926. AB 2926 ptovided
for the addition of sevetal sections to the Government Code establishing the ability of
school districts to impose impact fees on new tesidential development ("Future
Residential Development") and commercial/industrial development ("Future
Commercial/Industrial Development") for the consftuction or reconsffuction of
schooi facilities ("Schooi Fees").

AB 2926 also established cities or counties may not issue a building petmit for a

development project unless such School Fees have been paid and set the maximum

level of School Fees at $1.50 per squâre foot for residential development arid $0.25 per

square foot for commercial/industrial development. Initially these maximums v/ere

subject to increase eachyear based on a statewide cost index, as detetmined by the State

Allocation Board 1"SAB"), however, the adjustment provisions were subsequently

extended to every other year by ,\B 181. Pursuant to ÀB 2926 a school district wishing

to impose School Fees must determine that the School Fees "are teasonably related and

limited to the need for school faciliues caused by the development".

In 1,987 ,\B 1600 was enacted providing additional guidance regatding the

establishment of School Fees. Specifically, AB 1600 requiles that public agencies satisfiT

the following requitements when establishing and imposing an impact fee as a condition

of approval for a development proiect:

o Detetmine the putpose of the fee.

. Identify the facilities to which the fee will be applied.

o Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between the need for public
facilities and the type of development on which a fee is imposed'

o Determine that there is a reasonable telationship between the amount of the fee

and the public facitq of portion of the faciltty attributable to the development

on which the fee is imposed.

o Provide an annual accounting of any portion of the fee remaining unexpended,

whether committed or uncommitted, in the school district's accounts five or

more yearc aftet it was collected.

The purpose of this School Facilities Fee lustification Report (the "Repott') it
to prouide the information necessary to satisfy these rcquircments for the
imposition of School Fees, pursuant to AB 2926, by the Westside Uníon School
Di s tri c t (th e "Di s tri c t').



The District encompasses 34(r square miles iocated in north Los Ângeles County and

serves the communities of \X/est Lancaster, Quartz Hil1, !7est Palmdale, and Leona

Valley. The District provides education in Pre-I(indergarten through 8th grade.

The District has a student population of apptoximately 9,300.

Boundary M"p



In otder to identify the impact of Future Residentiai Development on the facilities of
the Disuict this Report (i) evaluates the District's current and projected entollment, (ü)

establishes the capacity of the District's existing facilities and (ü) identifìes a plan to
meet the District's facility needs.

A. Enrollment

1. Historical Enrollment This Report uses the Caltfornta Basic

EducationalData System (CBEDS) to identi$r the Disttict's entollment
over the past ten years. Over the past ten years the Disuict has expedenced
enrollment growth. Based on the amount of planned tesidential

development, the District expects enrollment to continue to inctease in
the future. Chart 1 shows the histotical enrollment during this period.

Chart'L
Flistorical Enrollment Trend

S*h¡¡ol1þar

2. Enrollment as a Result of Futute Residential Development -
a. Future Residential Development - To evaluate the enrollment

expected as a result of Future Residential Development, this Report
must fìrst determine the number of units that are expected to be

con s tructed within the District's b oundarie s.



-A.ccotding to the Southetn Caltfornia Association of Govefnments

("SC,{G'), apptoximately 32,400 tesidential units are expected to be

constructed within the boundades of the Disttict through calendar

year 2035 ("Future Units"). Of these 32,400 Future Units, 748 have

drleady mitigated their impact on the Disuict through participation in
one of the Community Facilties Distticts located throughout the

District ("Mitigated Futute Units"). Fot the purpose of identifying the

appropdate level of School Fees, this Report only includes the impact

of Future Units subject to School Fees ("Non-Mitigated Future

Units"). Table 1 outlines the Future Residential Development'

Table 1

Future Residenti al Development

b. Reconstruction - Reconstructj.on means the voluntary demolition of
existing tesidential dweiling units of commercial/industrial
consttuction and the subsequent construction of new tesidential

dwelling units ("Reconsffuction").

The Disttict acknowiedges that Reconstruction ptojects may occur. In
such a situation, the District shall levy School Fees if there is a nexus

estabüshed between the impact of the new residential dwelling units in
tefms of a net increase in students genetated and the fee to be imposed.

In other wotds, the School F-ees must l:eat afl,exus to the burden caused

by the Reconstruction ptoject.

i. Existing Residential Dwelling Units - To the extent

Reconstruction increases the residential square footage beyond

what was demolished ("New Square Footage"), the inctease in
square footage is subiect to the applicable School Fee as such

consttuction is consideted new residenual deveiopment' ,Ls for
the amount of square footage constructed that replaces only the

pteviously constructed square footage ("Replacement Square

Footage"), the detetmination of the applicable fee, if any, is

23,646 24,394148Single Family Detached (SFD)

9,0069,0060Multi-Family,{ttached (1\4FÄ)



subject to a showing that the Replacement Square Footage

results in an inctease in student enroilment and, therefore, an

additional impact being placed on the District to provide school

faciLities for new student enrollment.

Âs of the date of this Report, the large-scale Reconstruction of
residential development within the District has not occurled to

the poinr whete statistically significant å^ta c î be utilized to
determine if Replacement Square Footage increases student

enrollment. Thetefote, ptior to the imposition of School Fees on

Replacement Square Footage, the Disttict m y undettake an

analysis orr ^ny fufure proposed ptoiect(s) and m y
amend/update this Repott. Such analysis will examine the extent

to which an increase in enrollment can be expected ftom
Replacement Square Footage due to any differential in student

generation rates as identified in the Repot fot the applicable unit
types between existing square footage and Replacement Square

Footage. To the extent it can be demonsttated that Replacement

Square F-ootage will inctease student enrollment, the District may

then impose a fee on the Replacement Square Footage. This fee

amount on Replacement Squate Footage shall be calculated by

determining the cost impacts associated with any growth in
student enrollment ftom the Replacement Square Footage' Äny
such fee that is calculated for the Replacement Square Footage

shall not exceed the School Fee that is in effect at such time.

Existing Commerciat/Industrial Construction - ,\s with
Reconstruction of existing residential dwelling units, there is not
signiûcant information tegarding (Ð the amount of
Commerciai/Industrial Reconstruction planned within the

District ot (ü) histotical levels, which might indicate the amount
to be expected in the future. Due to the lack of information, the

District has decided to evaluate the impacts of
Commercial/Industtial Reconstruction projects on a case-by-

case basis and will make a determination of whethet a fee ctedit
is justified based on the nature of the project.

The fee credit detetmination will be based upon a comparison of
the impacts of the planned residential ptoiect and the existing

land use category (i.e. retail and services, offi.ce, tesearch and

development, industri al f warehouse/manufacturing, ho spital, or
hotel/motel). The actual impacts of the planned residential

ptoject (taken from Table 12) will be reduced by the impact of
the exisung commetcial/industrial category (derived from



c

calculations contained in this Report). Âny teduction to the

School Fee would only occur if the reduced amount falls below
the School Fee. In such ^ c se, the District wouid ler,ry the
reduced âmount per square foot of new residential constmction
for the subject Reconsü:uction project.

Student Generation Factors - To estimate the impact on the

District's enrollment of Non-Mitigated Future Units, Student

Genetation Factors ("SGFs") must be established. CFS calculated

SGFs for each of the following land use categories:

. Single Family Detached ("SFD") - Units ate stand-alone
structures on their own lot with a unique Assessor's parcel
number.

¡ Multi-Farnily Attached ("MFA") - Units shate common
walls in a building or structure designed to house several fami-lies

in sepatate housing units.

The ptocess of detetmining SGtrs involved cross-teferencing the
District's enrollment dzta against the County Assessor residential data.

Sorting and exttacting the County Assessor records by land use, CFS

developed a datat:,ase of tesidential units. This database was then

compated with the District's student entollment database to idenu$r

addtess matches. Table 2 outlines the results of this analysis.



0.27655,5r7 19,955Elementary School (Grades I{-6)

19,955 0.0197lvfiddle School (Grades 7-8) 1,591

Table 2A'
Student Generation Factors

Single Family Detached Units (SFD)

Table 28
Student Generation Factors

Multi-Family Attached Units (MFA)

Due to incompiete and incortect addtess information in both the

student enrollment and residential databases, CFS was unable to match

all the Disttict's students. The tesults ate SGFs that understate the

numbet of students that will be genetated by Non-Mitigated Future
Units.
After accounting for incoming inter-district transfet students that
reside outside of the District's boundades, CFS adjusted the SGFs

listed in Table 2 based on 
^ 

r^te which considets the number of
students successfully matched 

^t 
e^ch school level and land use. The

adjusted SGtrs for each land use by school level are shown in Table 3.

821 0.1681Elementaty School (Gtades I(-6) 139

31 827 0.0375lvliddie School (Grades 7-8)



0.1178Elementary School (Grades I{-6) 0.2944

0.0848 0.0411Middle School (Gtades 7-8)

Table 3
Adjusted Student Generation Factors

The SGFs shown above and the analysis of facilities impact that
foliows reflect the gtade confìgutation used by the State's School

Facilities Ptogram ("SFP"). Though the District's current grade level

configuration is different, the Report u ;lizes the SFP confìguration to

provide clarrtt¡ in the calculation of the School Fees.

d. Projected Enrollment - \7hen these SGFs are applìed to the

projected Non-Mitigated Future Units the resulting enrollment impact
is 10,719 students. Table 4 outlines this calculation'

Table 4
Projected Enrollment

As a Result of Non-Mitigated Future Units

B. Capacity of District Facilities

The District curently operates 12 campuses serwrng students l(indergarten

through 8th grade. To establish the capacity of the District's facilities, this Reporl

utilize s the District's baselin e c^p^crty established with the SAB and makes

adjusrments for subsequent consttuction projects funded by the State. ,A.dditional

information regarding the determination of the District's capacity has been

included in Exhibit A. Table 5 summarizes the District's current c p^crry.

9,3846,961 1,423Elementary School (Grades I(-6)

329 2,334Middle School (Grades 7-8) 2,005



6,956Elementary School (Grades I{-6)

Midclle School (Grades 7-B) 1.,7 42

Table 5

Current Facility Capacity

C. District Facility Needs

To evaluate the school facilities needed as a tesult of Non-Miugated Future
Units, this Report must frst determine if there is any existing c p^crly that can

be used to house future enrollment. This Repott has detetmined there are no
existing seats that may be utilized to house students expected to be genetated by

Fufure Units.

D. Plan to Provide for District Facility Needs

The Disffict plans to construct nev/ school facilities to meet the needs of the

Projected Enrollment.

The timing of these imptovements are unknor,vn and tely heaviþ on the District's
ability to access both local and State funding for such ptojects and the pace of
Future Residential Development. Table 6 outlines the number of facilities needed

by the Disttict to house the projected unhoused students resulting from Non-
Mitigated Future Units.

Table 6

School Facility Needs
As a Result of Non-Mitigation Future Units

9.28L36,96'J- 750Elementary School (Grades K-6)

2,005 1_,20O L.6708Middle School (Grades 7-8)



,\s outlined in Section III, Non-Mitigated Future Units are expected to generate

additional enrollment for the District resulting in the need to construct new school

facilities. This Section quantifies the financial impact of the additional enrollment
resulúng from Non-Mitigated Future Units.

A. Cost of School Facilities

School facilities cost estimates were ptepated by CFS. The school facilities costs

represent the full cost of site acquisition, site deveiopment, consttuction,
furniture and equipment, as well as technology stated in 201,8 dollars. The
estimated site acquisition and facitqr construction costs are shown in Table 7. ,\
more detailed breakdown of the costs is listed in Exhibit B.

TableT
Estimated School Facilities Cost

B. Cost of Ptoviding School Facilities

This Report determines the cost of ptoviding school facilities to house unhoused
students resulting from Non-Mitigated Future Units by multipiying the number
of facilities needed, listed in Table 6, by the Estimated School Facilities Cost,

Iisted in Table 7. Table B outlines the total cost of providing school facilities to
house unhoused students resulting from Non-Mitigated Future Units.

$616,000 fi28,286,051Elementary School (Grades I(-6) fi27,670,057

fi56,976,777Middle School (Grades 7-8) ffs6,1.40,717 $836,000



fi29,296,057 fi262,531.,384Elementaty School (Grades I(-6) 9.281.3

1.6708 fi56,9'16,'777 fig5,1.96,799lvliddle School (Grades 7-8)

Table 8

Total Cost of Providing School Facilities
As a Result of Non-Mitigated Future Units

C. Cost of Providing School Facilities per Sq. Ft. of Future Residential
Development

To determine the cost of providing school facilities per square foot of Future
Residential Development, this Report ftst allocates the Total Cost of Providing
School Facílities to the Non-Mitigated Future Units based on land use. Table 9

shows the calculauon of the Cost of Ptoviding School Facilities per Non-
Mitigated Future Unit.

Table 9

Cost of Providing School Facilities
Per Non-Mitigated Future Units

The Cost of Providing School Facilities per Non-Mitigated Future Unit is then
divided by the 

^-verz;ge 
square footage of Non-Mitigated Future Unit for each

land use category.

To determine the avere;ge sqrlare footage of a Non-Mitigated Futute Unit this
Report utilizes building permits issued within the boundades of the Disttict over
the last fìve years and information provided by developers within the community.

fi299,736,827 23,646 fi12,676.0LSingle Family Detached (SFD)

fi7,243.4eMulti- Family A ttached G\4FÂ) $57,991,356 8,006



Table 10 shows the cost of providing school facilities per square foot of Non-
Mitigated Future Unit.

Table 10

Cost of Providing School Facilities
Per Squate Foot of Non-Mitigated Futute Unit

2,300 $s.s 1Single Family Detached (SFD) fi1.2,616.01.

1,500 $4.83Multi-Family Attachecl (lt4F,\) fi7,243.49



As noted in the introduction to this Repott, the maximum level of School Fee that may

be imposed by a school district on Future Residential Development is set by the SAB.

In order to impose School Fees at this ievel, the District must demonstrate that the cost

of providing school facilities equais ot exceeds the amount of the School Fee to be

imposed. This section compâres the maximum School Fee that may be imposed by the
District with the cost of providing school facilities per square foot of Future Residential
Development as established in Section IV.

A. Maximum Residential School Fee

OnJanuary 24,201.8, the SAB approved an increase to the maximum School Fee

that mzy be imposed by a unifìed school disttict on Futute Residential
Development to fi3.79 per square foot. Based on the District's fee sharing

agreement with the ,{.ntelope Valley Union High School District, the Disttict can

collect 74 percent, or $2.80 per square foot, for all new Non-Mitigated Futute
Units built within its boundaries.

B. Comparison of Financial Impact and Maximum School Fee Revenues Per
Squate Foot

This Repott identifìes in Section IV that the cost of providing school facilities

per square foot of F-uture Residential Development ranges from $4.83 - $5.51.
Since the current maximum School Fee is less than the cost of providing school
facilities per square foot of Futute Residential Development, the District is

jusufied in imposing their portion of the maximum School F-ee of $2.80 per
square foot for all Future Residential Development within its boundaries.



This Sectio n analyzes the financial impact on the Disttict resuiting from students that

^re 
gener^ted by F'uture Commercial/ Industtial D evelopment.

F'uture Commercial/industrial Development will attract additional workers to the

District. Because some of those wotkers will have school-age children, such Futute

Commetcial/Industrial Development will genetate additional enrollment fot the

District. The District is also likely to experience additional enrollment as a result of new

workers who do not live within the Disttict's boundaties, but whose childten attend the

Disttict's schools as a transfet student.

A. Employees Per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

To identify the impact of Future Commercial/Industrial Development this

Report must frst estimate the number of employees that will be generated by

such development.

L. E,mployee Generation Rate - ,{s permitted by State law, this Report
estimates the number of employee s to be generated by Futute
Commercial/Industrial Development by utiìizing the generation factors

set forth San Diego Âssociation of Governments ('SÂNDÀG"). -fable 11

shows these generation rates.

Table L1

Employee Genetation Rates
Per 1-,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

441 2.2311Retail and Ser-vices

286 3.4965Office

3.0395Resèarch and Development 329

371 2.6954Indus trial/Warehous e/Manufactuting

2.1718I-Iospital 360

883 1.1325Hotel/Motel

Soutce: SÂND,A.G



2. Percentage of Employees Residing Within the District - To accurately

identi$' the number of employees that will reside within the Disttict, this

Report adjusts the Employee Generation Rates list in Table .11 to account for
empioyees tha:t m y not live within the District.

To estimate the percentage of employees that will teside within the District
this Report utilizes data collected by the US Census Bureau measuring

individual's commute time. Based on this information, approximately 42.73

percent of employees with the District ate likely to reside within the Disuict.
Table 12 show the Resident Employee Generation Rates.

Table12
Resident Employee Generation Rates

Per L,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

B. Flousehold Impact

As noted in Section IIi, the SGFs calculated for the District are based on the

number of students generated per housing unit. Therefore, this Report must
convert the number of resident employees into the resulting numbet of new
households to estimate the numbet of students to be generated.

L Average Number of Employees per Household - To estimate the numbet
of households to be generated by these resident employees, this Report

utilizes information coilected by the US Census Buteau. Äccotding to the US

Census Bureau the average numbet of employed persons per household

within the District is 1.3064.

2. Flousehotd Impact Per L,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial
Development - The Household Impact per 1,000 Squate Feet of
Commercial/Industrial DeveÌopment is calculated by dividing the Àverage

Number of Empioyees per Household by the Resident Empioyee Genetation
Rates listed in Table 12. Talle L3 summatizes this calculation.

0.4273 0.95592.2371Retail and Ser-vices

0.4273 1.49413.4965Office

1.29883.0395 0.4273Research and Development

1.151.72.6954 0.4213indus trial/Warehous e / Manufactuting

1 .1 8702.7178 0.4273Hospital

1.1,325 0.4273 0.4839Hotel/Motel



Table L3

Household Impact
Per L,000 Squate Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

3. Net Household Impact Per 1,000 Square Feet of
Commercial/Industrial Development - To identify the Net Household
Impact per 1,000 Squate Feet of Commetcial/Industrial Development this

Report must account for employees that will teside within existing residential

units.

Based on home sales information, new home sales ate estimated to equal3.73

percent of the total housing units which will experience occupant turnover
dudng the period considered in this Report. Mulúplying the Househoid
Impact per 1,000 Square Feet of Commetcial/industrial Development
shown in Table 1,3l:y 3.73 percent results in the Net Household impact per

1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development shown in Table

14.

0.731.70.9559 1,.3064Retail and Services

1,.4941 13064 1,.1,436Office

1,.2988 1,.3064 0.9942Research and Development

1.3064 0.8816Industrial/Watehouse/Manufacnrring 1.1,517

1.3064 0.9086Hospital 1 .1870

r.3064 0.37040.4839Hotel/À,Iotel



0.0313 0.0273Retail and Ser-vices 0.1317

0.0373 0.0421Ofhce 1.1.436

0.0373 0.0311Research and Development 0.9942

0.0373 0.03290.8816Indus trial/Watehous e / Manufacturing

0.03390.9086 0.0373Hospital

0.01380.3104 0.0373Hotel/Motel

Table 14

Net Household Impact
Per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

Only the Net Household Impacts afe assumed to genefate potential new

students, thereby incteasing school faciliues costs to the Disttict.

C. Student Generation Impact

This Report recognizes that employees may impact the District in two ways.

First, some of the employees will reside within the District and have school aged

children who attend the District's schools. Secondly, of those employees that
do not reside within the Disttict some will have school aged children who
choose to attend the Disttict's school as transfer students.

7. Resident Student Generation Impact - To estimate the numbet of resident

students to be genetated per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial
Development this Report multiplies the SGFs, outlined in Section III, by the

Net Household Impacts listed in Table 14. The resulting Resident Student

Generation Impact per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial
Development is listed Table 15.



0.0075 0.0021. 0.009óRetail and Ser-vices

0.01,1.1 0.0033 0.0151Office

0.0102 0.0029 0.0131Research and Development

0.0091 0.0026 0.011óIndus tial/Watehous e /Manufactuting

0.002ó 0.0120Hospital 0.0093

0.0011 0.0049Hotel/Motel 0.0038

Per L,000

Table 1,5

Resident Student Generation Impact
uare Feet of Commercial/lndustrial Deve

2. Inter-District Transfer Student Generation Impact - To estimate the
number of inter-district transfer students that may be generated, this Report
u';lizes enrollment àata of the District. The total number of inter-district
transfer students attending District schools was divided by the total number
of employed persons within the Disttict, as estimated by the SCAG. This
calculation is summarizedtn Table 16.

Inter-Disrfi.t rr;:ii: it",. Per Em

3. Total Student Generation Impact Per 1,000 Square Feet of
C ommerci al/ I ndustrial D evelopment - The I ntet-District Ttans fer Rates,

listed in Table 16, were multiplied by the Employee Generation Rates in
Table 11 to calculate Inter-Disrict Transfer Rates per 1,000 Square Feet of
Future Commercial/Indusuial Development. These Intet-District Ttansfer
Rates were added to the Resident Student Generation Impact per 1.,000

Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development, listed in Table 18, to
calculate the Total Student Generation Impact per 1,000 Square Feet of
Commercial/Industtial Development list in the Table 17.

t

Number of Employed Persons 26,951 26,957

1 1 62 290Number of Inter-District Ttansfers



TableLT
Total Student Generation Impact

Per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

D. Cost of Providing School Facilities Per L,000 Square Feet of
Commercial/ Industrial Development

To calculate the Cost of Providing School Facilities per 1,000 Square Feet of
Commercial/Industr{al Development, this Report calculates the cost impact per

student using the information listed in Table 7 and multiplies the pet student cost

by the Total Student Generation Impacts listed in Table 17. Tables 18'\ and 188
outline the resulting Cost of Providing School Þ-aci-lities pet 1,000 Squate Feet of
Commercial/ Indus trial D evelopment.

Table 18A
Cost of Providing School Facilities

Per Student

0.0263 0.1302Retail and Services 0.1039

0.0411 0.2035Office 0.1624

0.0357 0.17 69Research and Development 0.1412

0.0317 0.1569Indus trial/$Tarehous e/Manu facturing 0.1,252

0.161,70.1291 0.0326Hospital

0.06590.0526 0.0133Hotel/Motel

ff37,714.14fi28,286,057 750Elementary School (Grades I(-6)

fi56,97 6,777 1,200 $47,480.65Nliddle School (Grades 7-8)



Retail and Ser-vices 0.0213 fi5,874.40 $160.33

Ofhce 0.0421 $s,874.40 $250.58

Reseatch and Development 0.0371 $s,874.40 fi217.84

Indus trial/lùTarehous e/ Manufactuting 0.0329 $5,874.40 fi1,93.17

0.0339 ff5,874.40 $i 99.09Hospital

0.0138 fi5,874.40 $81 .1 6Hotel/Motel

Table 188
Cost of Providing School Facilities

Per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

E. Residential School Fee Revenue Offset

A pottion of the Cost of Providing School Facilities per 1,000 Squate Feet of
Commercial/Industrial Development wili be mitigated through the coilection of
School Fees from Future Residential Development. To estimate the amount of
these School Fees that will be collected, this Report multipJies the estimated

^verage 
square footage of a Non-Mitigated Future Unit, by the District's

Residential School Fee of $2.80. This amount is then multiplied by the Net
Household Impacts listed in Table 1.4.Tal>Ie L9 outlines this calculation.

Table 19

Residential School Fee Revenue
Per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

The Residential School Fee Revenue per 1,000 Square Feet of
Commercial/Industrial Development listed in Table 19 is then subtracted from
Cost of Ptoviding School Facilities per 1,000 Square Feet of

fis,1.67.63 $160.33 $5,007.31Retail and Serwices

$2so.s8 ff7,826.22Office $8,076.80

$6,803.34Research and Development ff7,021,.t8 ff217.84

Indus trial/Warehous e / Manufacturing fi6,226.29 ff193.17 fi6,033.1,2

fi6,476.66 $199.09 ff6,217.57Hospital

ff2,616.03 $81.16 ff2534.87FIotel/Motel



Commercial/Industrial Development identified in Table 188 to calculate the
Remainrng Cost of Ptoviding Facilities per 1,000 Squate Feet of
C ommercial/ Indus trial D evelopment. Tabie 20 outlines this calculation.

Table20
Remaining Cost of Providing Facilities

Per 11000 Square Feet of Commercial/Industrial Development

fis,1,67.63 $ 160.33 $s,007.30Retail and Ser-vices

$250.58 ff7,826.21Office $8,076.79

fi217.84 $6,803.33Reseatch and Development fi7 ,021.17

$193.17 $6,033. 1 1Indus tial/\ùTarehous e / Manufact-uring fi6,226.28

fi6,277.56I-Iospitai fi6,416.6s $199.09

fi2,616.03 $81 ,1 6 ffz,534.87Hotel/Motel



As with Future Residential Development the maximum level of School Fee that may

be imposed by a school distlict on Future Commercial/Industrial Development is set

by the SAB. In order to impose School Fees at the maximum level the District must
dernonstrate that the cost of providing schooi facilties does not exceed the amount of
the School F'ees to be imposed. This section compares the maximum School Fee that
malr þs imposed by the District, with the cost of providing school faciliues as a result

of Commercial/Industdal Development, as established in Section V.

A. Maximum Commercial/Industrial School Fee

InJanuary of 20L8, the SÂB approved an increase to the maximum Schooi Fee

th^t m y be imposed by a unifìed school district on Commetcial/Industrial
Development to $0.61 per square foot. Based on the District's fee sharing

agreement with the -Antelope Valley Union High School Disttict, the Disttict can

collect 74 percent, ot $0.45 pet squate foot.

B. Comparison of Financial Impact and Maximum School Fee Revenues Per
S qu are F o ot o f Comm er cial / lndustri al D evelopment

This Report identifìed in Section VI that the Remaining Cost of Providing School
Facilities per 1,000 Square Feet of Commercial/Indusuial Development ranges

from $2,534.87 tofi7,826.21. Table 21, compzres these costs to the maximum
School Fee for Commercial/ Indus trial D evelopment.

Table 2l
Comparison of Remaining Cost of Providing School Facilities

Since the District's share of the cuffent maximum School Fee is less than the

Remaining Cost of Providing School Facilities per Square Foot of
Commercial/Industrial Development in each category the District is justifìed in
imposing a School Fee of $0.45 per square foot for all' Future

C ommetcial/ In dus trial D evelopment utithin its b oundarie s.

s5.01 $0.45 s0.45llctail and Serviccs s5,007.31

$0.45 $0.45s7,826.22 s7.83()fflce

s0.45$6,803.34 $6.80 s0.45llesearch and I)evelopment

s6,033.12 $6.03 $0.4s s0.45Indus trial/Warchouse/N{anufactur:irrg

s6.22 $0.45 s0.45I lospital s6,211.51

s0.45 s0 45IIotel/Nft¡tel 52,534.87 s2.53



Based on the fìndings of this School Facilities Fee Justification Repot ("Report"), the
\X/estside Union School District ("Disttict") is justified in collecting their portion of the

legal maximum fee ($3.79) which is $2.80 per square foot of residential development as

authorized by Government Code Section 65995, as futute residential development

creates a school facitry cost impact greatet than the legal maximum fee. The District is

aiso justifìed in collecting their portion of the legal maximum fee ($0.61) which is $0.45

per square foot of commercial/ indusuial development on alL categories of
commetcial/ industrial development.

The finding of this Report are a based on the following:

o Àccording ro SCAG therc are 32,400 residential units planned to be built within

the Dtstrict.

. 31,,652 of the residential units planned to be built within the Disttict have not

mitigated their additional school facilities impact on the school facüities of the

Disttict.

. These residential units are expected to generate 1.0,J1,9 students. The District

expects these students will requite the District to construct new school facilities.

o Each square foot of future residential development creates an estimated school

faciltry cost impact between $4.83 - $5.51.

o If the District collects their portion of the maximum schooi fee which is $2.80,

fee revenue will offset between 50.82 - 57 .97 percent of the school faciJity cost

impact of such residential development.

o Future commercial/industrial development will create the need fot additional

school facilities by increasing the number of households within the District and

the number of inter-district ttansfer students.

o ,\fter accounting for the colleclion of the maximum school fee from residential

development the remaining school facilities cost impact of commerctalf

industrial development ranges between fi2.53 and $7.83 per square foot

depending on the category of development.

o If the District collects their porúon of the maximum school fee which is $0.45

per commerctalf industrial square foot, fee revenue will offset between 5.75 -
1,7 .79 percent of the school facility cost impact of such development.



State Allocation Board

Form 50-02 and State Funded Proiects



RevÍsed i.r $rj.-xÞ,ÈjÈ;il-ü1 6.i$]:'-

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDING CAPACITY

PART I - Glassroom lnventory ll NEW iyi ADJUSTED

Line 5. roóms

Line 6. Portable owned district

Line 7. Permanent Classrooms

STATE ALLOCATION BOARO

OFFICÊ OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCIION

Pubt¡c Sct¡æf

SCHOOL ÀÌTÊNDANCE ÁREA {¡f spp¿cdblr )

Line L Total h

PART ll - Available Classrooms

a. Part l, line 4

b, Part I, line 5

c. Part I, line 6

d. Part l, line 7

e. Toial b &

:,',i. 'r'r . -

Optlon'B; i ,:. :.,i

a. Part l, line I
b. Part l, lines 1,2,5 and 6 only)

c. 25 percent of Part l, line 7 (total only)

d. Subtract c from b (enter 0 if negative)

e. Total (a minus d)

PART lll - Determination of Exlsting School Building Capacity

Line 1

Line 2. SER a

Li

4. Greater of line 2 2

5. Total of lines 1 and 4

;;;:;':7¿$l': u,:,NOh.i.:,.,
,:,tseçãia.., Severa ,

:"':aL:r'!::.::. ..'!
::l:Tolal,,.:::)'j.::r:r:: ìlìi:, ::.a

32 1 33

2 24 Õ

2 2

87 Ã Ã 97

10s 43 Ã 157

t\t 52 13 257

lt.:rjK.6 r:li r. .:::..7;8.r,r:.ì :r..:,: g:{2 i::.1 .,., ,,.N.9¡1:,.,..,.r'.Si¡ùiirei

2 2

87 5 5 97

109 43 157

198 48 l0 256

i':r :::i:::.a::ti ..ii.
l,':ìSeVofd:!l,.rrNôii::l::

SàVerê j., j
',çi:Ái,:.,,.

t':,'
t. 1.':: l:,:' :.1.' " i.,:: I 

| : | 1

''i:ii:;iÍqlal'.'.:

232 qt 13 297

140

40

88 b 100

144 46 f 157

'; Iì:llgf,t:.';i;
:ii¡Sei6rêÍ

',::, ':::K:9,:"::', ..ì,i ,,7;8 ,..r,,i
l:'.9:l?,i,r',

3,600 1,242 91

2r6 q

216 4

s,816 1,242 95

t certify, as fhe Ðrstr¡cf Representative, that the information repoded on this form ís true and correct and that:

I am designated as an authorized district representative by the governing board of the district; and,

This form is an exact duplicate (verbaf.im) of the farm províded by the Office of Public Schoo/ Conslruction (OPSC).

In the event a conflict shou/d exrsl then the language rn the OPSC form will prevail.

OF DISTRICT



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDTNG CAPACITY
STATÉ ALLOCATION BOARD

OFFICE OF PUSLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

SCHOOL OIS'fRICI

Li

Dlclf DISIRICT CODE NUMBËR (sao Cali/omia Puàlrc

ATTENDANCE AREA

PART ¡ - Classroom lnventory i.t NEW ¿ ADJUSTED

Line 1. Leased State Relocatabie Classrooms

Line 2, Portable Classrooms leased less than 5 rs

Line 3. lnterim Housin Portables less than 5

Line 4. lnterim Portables leased at feast 5

district

Line 7

Total es1 7

PART ll - Available Classrooms

Option A.

a. Part I, line 4

b. Part I, line 5

c. Part l, line 6

d. Part I, line 7

e, Total b &

Option B. ,'

a. Part l, line 8

b. Part l, lines 1,2,5 and 6 (total only)

c, 25 percent of Part l, line 7 (total only)

d. Subtract cfrom b (enter 0 if negative

e. Total (a minus d)

PART lll - Determinatlon of Existing School Building Gapacity

1. Classroom

SER

3. rational Grants

Line 4. Greater of line 2 or 3

Class leased at (

es1 4Llne T

. I.Otát. ' 
No¡: .:

:r'Sovèi€l

I
aa

1

2 114 5

42 2

9581 ô Ã

.¡ 69 156

299 /200 86 13

i¿

v

v

v

Ð

K-6 s-12 'N9f:' 
..

. Sevêre. i
í.,:Seçoiô.;::

4n

ôÂ81 ô 5

È 156B2 69

165 80 10 255

,,9.12 ,..Ngi!;.',,,
' Soúârè r.:K-6

B6 13 29S

143

39

B6 12 104

74 7 1951',t4

g12,850 I,998

101 70 J

101 70 ã

2,951 2,068 94

t ceriify, as the Disfrict Representatíve, that lhe Ìnformation repoñed on this form is true and correct and that:

I am designated as an authorized.district representative by tha governing board of the district; and,

This form is an exacf duplicate (verbatim) of the form provided by the Offíce of PublÌc Schoo/ Construction (APSÇ).

lntheevenlacontlict shou/dexisf, lhenthe)anguage infheOPSCformwill prevail.

TURE OF

7 /B Ðl



Estimated School tracilities Cost



A. Site

Site Putchase Price

-A,cres

Cost Pet.A.cre

EIR
Àpptaisals

Surweys

Escrow/Title

B. Plans
Architect's Fee

Preliminary Testing

DSÂ/SDE Plan Check

Energl'Fee A'alYsis

Other

C, Consttuction

Square Feet Pet Srudent

Cost Per Square Foot

D. Testing

E. Inspection
Cost Per N{onth (1 inspector)

l\{onths

F. Furniture and Equipment
Cost Pet Square Foot

G. Contingency
Percent of Project

FL Items Not Funded By State

Tecl.rnology (5%o of Cons trictìon)

Libtary Books (8 books/stuclent @ 515)

Landscaping ($0.44 pet Sq. Ft.)

Landscaping ÄtcLrrtect Fees (8% of Landscaping)

I. Total Estimated Cost
School Facility Capacity
School Facility Cost Per Student

Westside Union School District
Estimated ttTruet' Cost

Elementary School Facility

14.40

$40,000

$1,363,500

$20,000

s1.29,221

$15,000

s5,000

80

s392

s 12,000

12

$i5

2.000

$1,17ó,000

$90,000

$275,996

$22,080

$20,000

$10,000

s5,000

$5,000

$576,000

$616,000

$1.,532,727

$23,520,000

$50,000

$144,000

$9oo,0oo

$535,255

$1,564,076

$28,862,057

750

$38,483

Page L of 2



A. Site

Site Purchase Price

Àctcs

Cost Per Àcre

EIR
Äppraìsals

Surveys

Escrow/Title

B. Plans
À¡chitect's Fee

Prelimrnary Testing

DS,\/SDE Plan Check

Energy Iìee Analysis

Othe¡

C, Consttuction

Squate Feet Per Srudent

Cost Per Square Foot 1

D. Testing

E. Inspection
Cost Per Nlonth (1.5 inspectots)

Nlonths

F. Futniture and Equipment
Cost Pet Squate Foot

G. Contingency
Percent of Project

FL Items Not Funded By State

Technology (5% of Constlrction)

Libtary Books (B books/studenr @ StS;

Landscaprng (30.44 per Sq. Ft.)

Landscaping Å¡chrtect Fees (8% of Landscaping)

I. Total Estimated Cost

School Facility Capacity
School Facility Cost Per Student

Westside Union School Disttict
Estimated ttTrue" Cost

Middle School Facility

19.90

$40,000

s2,539,500

s20,000

s249,179

$15,000

$5,000

100

$392

$ 1 8,000

18

s1s

2.00"k

s2,352,000

$144,000

s381,411

$30,513

s20,000

s10,000

$5,000

$5,000

$796,000

$836,000

$2,828,679

$47,040,000

$180,000

$324,000

$1,800,000

$1,060,174

s2,907,924

$56,976,777

1,200

$47,481

Page 2 of 2



TO

BOARD AGENDA

April3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Shawn Cabey, Assistant Superintendent Administrative Services

Formation of Community Facilities District 2018-1

PREPARED BY

SUBJECT:

BACKGROLTND

Four items are before the Board for approval with regard to the mitigation of school facility impacts by a

residential development proposed by STG Montecito West, LLC. The items include: (1) an Amended

Mitigation Agreement; (2) aResolution of Intent to Form Community Facilities District 2018-1 ("CFD"); (3) a

Resolution of Intent to Incur Debt in the CFD; and (4) a Resolution approving the CFD's boundaries.

Amended Mitigation Agreement
STG is the owner of approximately 35 undeveloped acres in the City of Lancaster on which it plans to construct

approximately I47 single family homes. The development will create a need for additional District facilities' The

development will also create a need for certain facilities of County Sanitation District No. 14 and the Antelope

Valley Union High School District.

The District and prior owner of the STG property previously entered into a Mitigation Agreement, dated

September 18,2001, to mitigate the impact of then planned development. Based on that prior agreement, the

District formed CFD 20Ol-1, with improvement areas A, B and C. No bonds have been issued in CFD 2007-1.

Since the formation of CFD No. 2007- 1, home prices within the Antelope Valley have decreased making the level

of property taxes within CFD No. 2007-1 undesirable to potential homebuyers. As a tesult, STG (now the owner

of properly within CFD No. 2007-l Improvement Areas A and C) desires to enter into this amended mitigation

agreement to restructure the special tax obligation on the STG property. Under the amended agreement, a new

CFD will be formed on the STG property, and CFD 2007-i would be removed as to the STG property. CFD

2007-l would remain in place as to Improvement Area B.

Intention to
In accordance with the Amended Mitigation Agreement, this Resolution initiates the proceedings to consider the

formation of CFD No. 2018-1 with Improvement Area Nos. 1 and 2.The Resolution declares the Board's intention

to authorize the levy of special taxes within CFD No. 2018-1. The Resolution also sets a public hearing on the

proposed CFD, as required by law, at the Board's meeting on May 15, 2018.

13



Resolution 18-45. to Incur Debt
In accordance with the Amended Mitigation Agreement, this Resolution declares the Board's intent to issue bonds

within the CFD, supported by the special taxes collected in the CFD. The Resolution provides that the bonds will
not exceed $10,000,000 aggregate, and not exceed $5,000,000 in each improvemerrtarea. The Resolution also

sets a public hearing, as required by law, at the Board's meeting on May 1 5, 20 1 8 '

Resolution 18-46. Approve Boundary Map
This Resolution approves the boundary map for CFD No. 2018-1. It depicts and describes the property that will
be within the CFD and subject to the special tax. The Resolution also orders the filing of the map with the County

Recorder no later than 15 days after the Resolution's adoption.

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

The formation of CFD No. 2018-1 will provide funding above the District's curent Level II developer fees, which
will assist with the impact on the District's facilities from STG's proposed development.

C O ST ANALYSIS/FIINDING :

Owner has agreed to make deposits to the District to pay all costs associated with the formation of CFD No. 2018-

1. These deposits will be repaid to owner if and when bonds are sold by CFD No. 2018-1. Once CFD No. 2018-

1 is formed any ordinary and necessary administrative expenses will be funded with a portion of the special taxes

of the CFD.

AS SI S TANT SUPERINTENDENT ADMINI STRATIVE SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

The approval of the Amended Mitigation Agreement and adoption of the related Resolutions are necessary steps

to establish CFD No. 2018-1, as a financing mechanism to mitigate the development's impact to School Facilities.



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

Westside Union School District
Attn: Superintendent
41914 5Orh sr west
Quartz Hill, CA 93536

EXEMPT FROM FEES: GOV'T CODE 527383

AMBNDED AND RESTATED
SCHOOL FACILITIES MITIGATION AGREEMENT

This AMENDED AND RESTATED SCHOOL FACILITIES MITIGATION
AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated March 20,2078, is made and entered into by and among the

V/ESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, a California public school district ("District") and

STG MONTECITO WEST, LLC, a California limited liability company ("STG" or "Owner").

L
RBCITALS

A. STG is the owner of certain real property of approximately 35 gross undeveloped

acres, as more particularly described as the "STG Property" in Exhibit A attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference. The STG Property is located within the District's boundaries in
the City of Lancaster ("City"), County of Los Angeles, California;

B. District is a California public school district that provides educational services to
students in grades K-8, with an average daily attendance of approximately 9,000 students;

C. STG has developed plans to construct approximately 147 single family detached

residential dwelling units on the STG Property ("Project");

D. The Project will create a need for additional District facilities to house students

anticipated from the Project. Additionally, the Project will create a need for certain facilities of
County Sanitation District No. l4 of Los Angeles County ("Sanitation District"), and Antelope
Valley Union High School District ("High School District") (collectively, "Other Facilities");

E. District and Owner's predecessor of interest in the STG Property previously entered

into a mitigation agreement, dated September 18,2007, to mitigate the impact of the development
of the Project on the District's school facilities, as anticipated at the time of such agreement, which
agreement provided for the formation of a community facilities district ("Original Agreement");

F. In accordance with the Original Agreement, which agreement is attached hereto as

Exhibit C for purposes of reference, the District formed Westside Union School District
Community Facilities District No. 2007-1 and Improvement Areas A, B and C thereof ("CFD No.
2007-1"), but no bonded indebtedness has been issued by CFD No. 2007-1;



G. As of the date of this Agreement, the STG Property accounts for approximately 35

of the 37 total acres within Improvements Area A and C of CFD No. 2007-l;

H. As of the date of this Agreement, the remaining taxable property within
Improvement Area A of CFD No. 2007-l consists of 13 homes owned by individual owners as

more particularly described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

("Existing Developed Units"), and

I. As of the date of this Agreement, the property located within Improvement Area B

of CFD No. 2007-1 ("Improvement Area B Properly") is undeveloped and owned by an unrelated

third party;

J. As of the date of this Agreement, 596,634.57 in deposits have been paid by

Stratham Montecito West, Inc., the predecessor in interest to the Developer, and collected by the

District under the terms of Section I l.a of the Original Agreement ("EDU Payments");

K. As of the date of this Agreement, Special Taxes have been paid by the owners of
the Existing Developed Units and collected by the District ("Prior Special Tax Collections");

L. Since the formation of CFD No. 2007-1, home prices within the Antelope Valley
have decreased dramatically making the level of property taxes within CFD No. 2007-1

undesirable to potential homebuyers;

M. Owner desires to enter into this restated and amended mitigation agreement to

restructure the special tax obligation of the STG Property;

N. Owner intends to petition the District to establish a new community facilities
district, with Improvement Area Nos. I and 2, pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities

District Act of 1982 (Government Code sections 5331 1 et seq.) ("Act"), encompassing the Project
("CFD") to (l) fìnance the school facilities required to mitigate the impact of students generated

by the Project upon the District's school facilities ("School Facilities"); and (2) finance Other

Facilities of the other public agencies impacted by the Project through the levy of special taxes of
the CFD ("Special Taxes") and the issuance ofbonds secured by such Special Taxes ("Bonds");

O. Upon the formation of the new CFD, the parties intend to dissolve CFD No. 2007-

1 with regard to Improvement Areas A and C, and to remove the special tax lien thereon; and

P. District and Owner have met and negotiated to establish an adequate amount to

mitigate the effects of the Project on the District's facilities. The terms of this Agreement shall

supersede the provisions of the Original Agreement as they apply to the STG Property only. This

Agreement shall not apply to the obligations of the Improvement Area B Property.

II.
AGREEMENT

Based on the mutual promises set forth below, Owners and District agree as follows:



l. Incorporation of Recitals. All of the foregoing Recitals are accurate and are

incorporated in this Agreement by reference.

2. Mitigation Payment.

A. Restated Mitiqation Payment. As to each residential unit to be developed within the

Project, the "Mitigation Payment" shall equal (i) the total square feet of assessable internal living
space of such unit, exclusive of any carports, walkways, garages, overhangs, patios, enclosed

patios, detached accessory structures (i.e. uninhabitable storage structures), other structures not
used as living space, or any other square footage excluded under Government Code Section 65995
("Assessable Square Feet"), multiplied by (ii) $4.78. District and Owner agree that this amount

shall be increased each July 1, commencing July 1,2018, by two percent (2.00%) of the amount

in effect the prior fiscal year until the Mitigation Payment for such residential unit is satisfìed by
the issuance of special tax bonds or the payment of cash pursuant to Section 4. If the CFD is not

formed and the Special Taxes and authorized indebtedness are not authorized by July 1,2018, or
a later date mutually agreed upon, Owner may terminate this Agreement by written notice to
District.

B. EDU Payments Reimbursement. Conditioned upon and within 90 days of the

dissolution of CFD 2007-l with regard to Improvement Areas A and C pursuant to Section 3.D of
this Agreement, the District shall return the EDU Payments to Owner. Owner agrees to defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the District, its Board (collectively and each member), officers,
employees and agents of and from any and all allegations, claims, demands, damages, losses,

causes of action or suits related to, connected with or arising from the collection and/or return of
the EDU Payments to Owner. Owner further releases any and all claims or rights Owner may
possess with regard to, relating to, connected with, or arising from the Prior Special Tax
Collections or to be collected with respect to the Existing Developed Units.

3. Community Facilities District.

A. Formation of itv Facilities District. Owner intends for all Mitigation
Payments, and all or a poftion of the costs of the Other Facilities for the Project, to be satisfied

through the formation of the CFD. The CFD shall be designated as "Westside Union School

District Community Facilities District No. 2018-1," with Improvement Areas A and B. District
agrees to act as the lead agency in the formation of the CFD so long as: (i) such formation is

economically viable and (ii) such formation will meet the Goals and Policies for formation of CFD
adopted by District's Board of Trustees, as amended through the date of this Agreement. Nothing
contained herein shall be deemed to limit the discretion of the District in the formation of the CFD.
If the CFD is not formed, the STG Property shall remain in CFD No. 2007-l and be subject to the

special tax thereof.

B Facilities Owner and District agree that the CFD
may also finance all or a portion of the costs of the Other Facilities in the following estimated

amounts: Sanitation District, $909,930; and High School District, $998,068. The actual amount

of aggregate Other Facilities to be financed from the proceeds of each series of Bonds shall be

determined at the time of the sale of the Bonds in accordance with Section 3.F of this Agreement.

Financing of the Other Facilities will require that the District and Owner enter into joint



community facilities agreements with each of the other public agencies (each, a "JCFA") prior to
the issuance of any Bonds. Owner agrees to cooperate in the preparation of the JCFAs. If the

District and Owner are unable to enter into a JCFA with an agency, then the District agrees to

conduct proceedings to reduce the Maximum Special Tax rates, with regard to the Other Facilities

for such agency, as requested in writing by the Owner prior to the issuance of a Certificate of
Compliance for the first residential unit. Owner agrees to advance funds to the District in the

amount required to conduct and complete such proceedings, which advance shall be considered an

additional advance pursuant to Section 6 below and which may result in the cumulative advances

exceeding the amount stated in Section 6.

C. Levy of Special Taxes. Pursuant to the rate and method of apportionment of special

taxes for each Improvement Area ("RMA"), District shall levy Special Taxes on each assessor's

parcel within the CFD that is classified as "Developed Property" at the "Assigned Annual Special

Tax" rafe (as such terms are defined in the RMA) prior to and following the issuance of Bonds.

Special Taxes levied on Developed Property and collected each fiscal year in excess of the amount

required (i) to pay principal and interest on Bonds, (ii) pay "Administrative Expenses" (as defined

in the RMA) and (iii) replenish the reserve fund for the Bonds to the applicable reserve requirement

shall be referred to as "surplus Special Taxes". Surplus Special Taxes collected shall be deposited

in a discrete, special fund ("Special Fund"). Surplus Special Taxes shall be expended for any

authorized purpose at the sole discretion of the District.

D. Dissolution of CFD 2007-1. After the adoption by the District's Board of a

Resolution of Formation for CFD 2018-i and recordation of a Notice of Special Tax lien, and no

action challenging the formation of CFD 2018-1 having been filed within 60 days of the adoption

of the Resolution of Formation, the District shall take such action as is reasonably required

pursuant to Government Code section 53338.5 to dissolve CFD 2007-1 as to Improvement Areas

A and C only, and remove the lien thereon.

E. Issuance of Bonds. Each series of Bonds shall have a term of thirty (30) years and

no more than 12 months capitalized interest, unless District, in its sole discretion, determines such

terms are not economically feasible. Prior to the issuance of any series of Bonds, Owner shall

submit to the District a written request to proceed with the sale of Bonds. Such request shall

identify the existing and projected residential units and the Assessable Square Feet of such units

for which the Mitigation Payments are to be funded ("Identified Units"). The amount of Bonds to

be issued shall be such that the maximum projected assigned Special Tax revenues upon buildout
of the Identified Units plus the assigned Special Tax revenue from ldentified Units in prior series

of Bonds, less priority administrative expenses of $25,000 per year for the Improvement Area for
which Bonds are being issued, is not less than 110% of the total annual debt service on all

outstanding Bonds of the Improvement Area. At the time of sale of any series of Bonds, as

provided for in the official statement for the Bonds, the District shall determine the total Mitigation
Payments for the Identified Units owed to District by multiplying the Owner's total estimated

Assessable Square Feet for all Identified Units by the sum of the then current Mitigation Payment

per Square Foot ("School Mitigation Payment Requirement").

The District and Owner will make a good faith effort to complete the issuance and sale of
Bonds in a single series for each Improvement Area within one hundred eighty days following
Owner's written request notiÐzing the District that Certificates of Compliance (defined below)



have been issued for at least 23 dwelling units with respect to Improvement Area A and

27 dwelling units with respect to Improvement AreaB (each, an "Initial Issuance Threshold").
Nothing shall preclude the issuance of Bonds for an Improvement Area earlier than the Initial
Issuance Threshold, however, if the District elects to do so.

Prior to the Initial Issuance Threshold, all Surplus Special Taxes deposited in the Special

Fund shall be available to the District for any authorized purpose, as determined by the District in
its sole discretion, and shall not apply against the School Mitigation Payment Requirement. If
Bonds have not been issued by the Initial Issuance Threshold because Owner, or its successors or
assigns, has failed to cooperate in the issuance of the Bonds or otherwise comply with the

requirements of Sections 7 and 11 below, all Surplus Special Taxes deposited in the Special Fund

shall continue to be available to the District for any authorized purpose, as determined by the

District in its sole discretion and shall not apply against the School Mitigation Payment

Requirement.

If Bonds are not issued by the Initial Issuance Threshold due to the District's refusal to

issue Bonds, even though such issuance would be consistent with sound municipal financing
practices and could be issued under then current bond market practices, then, all Surplus Special

Taxes collected after the Initial Issuance Threshold and until Bonds are issued, shall be deposited

in the Special Fund and shall be used for the same purposes and in the same priority specified in

Section 3.F(iv)-(vi) below. In addition, all such amounts and all amounts previously deposited in
the Special Fund shall be used for purposes of calculating the release of Deposits and the reduction

of LCs pursuant to Section 4.4 below and shall be applied against the School Mitigation Payment

Requirement.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Section 3.E., and notwithstanding any other

provision of this Agreement, all Surplus Special Taxes deposited in the Special Fund shall be

available exclusively to the District for School Facilities.

F. Application of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the sale of each series of Bonds

shall be applied as follows:

(Ð First Priority: To pay for capitalized interest for up to twelve (12) months,

or a shorter period as otherwise requested by Owner.

(ii) Second Priority: To establish a reserve fund for the Bonds ("Reserve

Fund"). Earnings on the Reserve Fund in excess of the Reserve Fund requirement shall be

used to pay debt service on the Bonds.

(iii) Third Priority: To pay for costs of issuing the Bonds and reimbursing Owner

and District for the costs of forming the CFD and preparing the JCFAs with the other

agencies (including Owner advances to cover costs of forming the CFD and preparing the

JCFAs), and to pay annual administrative expenses of the CFD.

(iv) Foufth Priority: To deposit into a "school Facilities Fund" an amount equal

to the School Mitigation Payment Requirement less the amount of any Surplus Special

Taxes applied towards the School Mitigation Payment Requirement pursuant to Section

3.8.



(v) Fifth Priority: To deposit into a "High School District Facilities Fund" an

amount up to the School Mitigation Payment Requirement less $5,000.

(vi) Sixth Priority: To deposit into a "Sanitation District Facilities Fund" an

amount up to the School Mitigation Payment Requirement less $5,000.

(vii) Seventh Priority: To deposit into a "School Facilities Fund," any remaining
proceeds.

G. Establishment of Funds

(i) Reserve Fund. A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds shall be

applied to fund a reserve fund in an amount equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement, as

defined in the applicable fiscal agent agreement ("Reserve Fund"). Each fìscal year, interest
earnings on the Reserve Fund, in excess of any amount required to replenish the Reserve

Fund Requirement shall be used to make debt service payments on the Bonds.

(ii) School Facilities Fund. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds
apportioned to satisfy the School Mitigation Payment Requirement shall be held in the

School Facilities Fund established by the fiscal agent agreement. Interest earnings from
the School Facilities Fund shall be held within that fund and available for funding School

Facilities.

(iii) High School District Facilities Fund. Proceeds of the Bonds available for
High School District Facilities shall be held in the High School District Facilities Fund
established pursuant to the frscal agent agreement. Interest earnings from the High School

District Facilities Fund shall be held within the fund and available for funding the High
School District Facilities until the Owner notifies District in writing that no additional
disbursements shall be required. Payment for High School District Facilities shall be made

to the Owner or High School District in accordance with the JCFA with the High School

District. Neither the District nor the CFD shall have any responsibility to make a payment
with regard to the High School District Facilities from any source other than the proceeds

of the Bonds or Special Taxes which have been (or should have been pursuant hereto)

allocated to the High School District Facilities after funding the School Mitigation Payment

Requirement. If there are insuffrcient funds in the High School District Facilities Fund to
pay the total amount of all payment requests for High School District Facilities, the unpaid
portion shall remain payable by the Owner. In the event there are any funds left in the

High School District Facilities Fund six (6) months after the last Certificate of Compliance
has been issued for the Improvement Area, and all payment requests for High School

District Facilities submitted prior to such date have been paid and the Owner notifies the

District in writing that no additional disbursements shall be required (or fails to respond to
a request from the District within thirty (30) days to close out the accounts after the last

Certificate of Compliance is issued), the remaining funds including interest shall be

transferred to the School Facilities Fund to be used by District for School Facilities.

(iv) Sanitation District Facilities Fund. Proceeds of the Bonds available for
Sanitation District Facilities shall be held in the Sanitation District Facilities Fund



established pursuant to the fiscal agent agreement. Interest earnings from the Sanitation
District Facilities Fund shall be held within the fund and available for funding the

Sanitation District Facilities until the Owner notifies District in writing that no additional
disbursements shall be required. Payment for Sanitation District Facilities shall be made to

the Owner or Sanitation District in accordance with the JCFA with the Sanitation District.
Neither the District nor the CFD shall have any responsibility to make a payment with
regard to the Sanitation District Facilities from any source other than the proceeds of the

Bonds or Special Taxes which have been (or should have been pursuant hereto) allocated

to the Sanitation District Facilities after funding the School Mitigation Payment
Requirement. If there are insufficient funds in the Sanitation District Facilities Fund to pay

the total amount of all payment requests for Sanitation District Facilities, the unpaid portion
shall remain payable by the Owner. In the event there are any funds left in the Sanitation
District Facilities Fund six (6) months after the last Certificate of Compliance has been

issued for the Improvement Area, and all payment requests for Sanitation District Facilities
submitted prior to such date have been paid and the Owner notifies the District in writing
that no additional disbursements shall be required (or fails to respond to a request from the

District within thirty (30) days to close out the accounts after the last Certifìcate of
Compliance is issued), the remaining funds including interest shall be transferred to the

School Facilities Fund to be used by District for School Facilities.

(v) Cost of Issuance Fund. The proceeds of the Bonds apportioned to pay the

costs of issuing the Bonds and forming the CFD shall be held in a fund or account

established by the fiscal agent agreement ("Cost of Issuance Fund"). Interest earnings from
the Cost of Issuance Fund shall be held within that fund and available to pay the costs of
issuing the Bonds and forming the CFD. Any proceeds remaining in the Cost of Issuance

Fund not needed to pay the costs associated with the formation of the CFD or the issuance

of the Bonds shall be applied and transferred in accordance with the priorities set forth in
Section 3.F(iv)-(vii).

4. Certificates of Compliance.

A. Prior to of Bonds. Prior to the issuance of Bonds, upon Owner's request,

District shall issue to Owner District's written ceftification required in order for Owner to obtain

building permits for residential units within the Improvement Area from the City pursuant to

Education Code Section 17620(b) ("Certificate of Compliance") by (i) making a cash deposit with
District ("Deposit") or (ii) delivering to District an irrevocable standby letter of credit ("LC"),
issued by a bank which is acceptable to District and which names District as beneficiary, in an

amount equal to the Mitigation Payment, as calculated at such time, for the residential units that

are being issued the Certificate of Compliance. In the event that Owner or its successors or assigns

make a Deposit with District as set forth above, District shall hold such Deposit unexpended and

refund the party which made all or a poftion of the Deposit (i) promptly following the deposit of
funds into the School Facilities Fund pursuant to Section 3.F in an amount equal to the lesser of
(a) the amount of the Deposits or (b) the proceeds of Bonds deposited in the School Facilities Fund
pursuant to Section 3.F; and (ii) promptly following the application of Surplus Special Taxes

applied to the School Mitigation Payment Requirement pursuant to Section 3.C herein in an

amount equal to the lesser of (a) the amounts of the Deposits or (b) the Surplus Special Taxes

applied to the School Mitigation Payment Requirement pursuant to Section 3.C herein. In the



event Owner or its successors or assigns delivers to District an LC as set forth above, such LC
shall be maintained by Owner or its successors or assigns and renewed as necessary until the Bonds
are issued at which time such LC shall be released by District. The LC shall be reduced from time
to time in the amount equal to the amount of Surplus Special Taxes applied towards the School

Mitigation Payment Requirement pursuant to Section 3.C. If Owner fails to renew anLC 15 days

prior to its stated expiration date, District shall draw upon the LC and hold the proceeds

unexpended until such time as a new LC is posted or Bonds are sold.

B. After the Issuance of Bonds. At the time each series of Bonds are issued, District
shall establish and maintain a "School Mitigation Credit Account" for Owner. Initially, the District
shall credit the School Mitigation Credit Account an amount equal to the total projected Assessable

Square Feet as disclosed by Owner in connection with the issuance ofthe Bonds. In the event there

is a refund of Deposits given to Owner in accordance with Section 4.A, District shall debit the

School Mitigation Credit Account in an amount equal to the total Assessable Square Feet of the

residential units for which such refund is given. Following the issuance of Bonds, at such time as

Owner or its successor or assigns seek a Certificate of Compliance for a residential unit within the

CFD, District shall debit the School Mitigation Credit Account by the applicable Assessable

Square Feet of such unit as reflected on the applicable building permit application. At no time shall

District be required to issue a Certificate of Compliance if the School Mitigation Credit Account
does not contain sufficient credit for the requested Certificate of Compliance. In such instance, a

Certificate of Compliance will be issued by District only in accordance with Section 4.4 above.

5. Waiver of State and Local Funding Credits and Right to Protest. In
consideration of the District's agreement herein to accept the Mitigation Payment as full mitigation
of the impactof the students generated bythe Projectupon the District's facilities, and provided

the District does not breach such agreement, Owners agree to waive all past, present and future

credit against, or fair share reduction in, Mitigation Payments based upon State matching funding
provided to the District or the proceeds from a District-wide special tax or general obligation bond

authorization for school facilities. In addition, each Owner knowingly waives its right of protest

as may be afforded by Government Code Section 66020 or any other provision of law, so long as

the District is not in breach of this Agreement.

6. Owner Advance of CFD Costs. Owner has deposited with District the amount of
Forty-Thousand Dollars ($40,000) to be used to advance fund the District's consultant costs in

forming the CFD. Owner agrees to make additional advances for such costs upon request of
District, up to a maximum of forty thousand dollars ($40,000) (i.e., total cumulative advance

deposits of $80,000). All advances shall be paid back to Owner from the proceeds of the sale of
the first series of Bonds, but under no circumstances shall District be obligated to pay Owner from
any other source of funds. The District shall, within thirty (30) days of the issuance of such Bonds,

return the unexpended and unencumbered portion of the advances to Owner without interest.

Should the CFD not be formed for any reason or, after formation, the District reasonably

determines that Bonds will not be issued and sold, any remaining balance of the amounts advanced

pursuant to this section shall be refunded to Owner within ten (10) business days aÍter the date of
action by the District to terminate such formation proceedings or written notification by District
to Owner of the District's determination that such Bonds will not be issued and sold. District shall

return to Owner all unused amounts advanced for the CFD after paying all outstanding costs. In



the event that it becomes necessary to prepare a revised RMA after the resolutions of intention are

adopted, the Owner shall be required to pay all costs associated with preparing the new RMA.

7 . Securify for Payment of Special Taxes. Prior to the issuance and sale of any series

of Bonds, Owner or its successors or assigns shall deliver to the District an irrevocable standby

letter of credit issued by a bank with a minimum Moody's long term rating of "4" and short term

rating of "P-1," or which is otherwise acceptable to the District. The letter of credit shall be in an

amount equal to one years' Special Taxes on all lots and parcels for which Bonds are being issued

that are owned by Owner or its successors or assigns (excluding lots that have been conveyed to

Homeowners, defined below). The letter of credit shall name a bank approved by the District as

benehciary and shall provide that the District may draw thereon, up to the full amount thereof; in

the amount of any delinquencies in the payment of semiannual installments of the Special Taxes

levied on all lots and parcels that are owned by Owner or its successors or assigns (excluding lots

owned by Homeowners) to pay debt service on the Bonds. The letter of credit shall be maintained

by Owner or its successors or assigns and renewed annually by the issuing bank or a substitute

bank acceptable to District until such time as the number of all the lots which are owned by

Homeowners is equal to 60Yo of the Identified Units for such series of Bonds. The letter of credit

shall provide that until such condition is satisfied, the amount thereof shall be reduced on August

1 of each year, commencing on August 1 first following issuance of the Bonds, to an amount equal

to the total of the Special Taxes projected to be levied at build-out on all of the lots and parcels

that are owned by the Owner or its successors or assigns which are included in the Identifìed Units

at Bond issuance and will be collected in the current fiscal year, assuming no capitalized interest.

The letter of credit shall further provide that the failure of the issuing bank to renew the letter of
credit until such condition is satisfied will enable the District to draw the full amount thereof. If
the District draws any amount under the letter of credit, except upon the failure of the issuing bank

to renew it, the District shall reimburse the amount drawn to the issuing bank without interest,

from the delinquent special tax installments with respect to which any such amount is drawn when

and if such installments are paid or from the proceeds of foreclosure of the applicable property as

a result of such delinquency. The form of the letter of credit shall in all respects be satisfactory to

and approved by counsel to the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Owner or its
successors or assigns may elect to substitute a cash deposit with the beneficiary for the letter of
credit, so long as the cash deposit is in the same arnount as would be required in the letter of credit.

8. Full Mitigation. The provisions of this Agreement are in lieu of any and all other

fees, exactions, conditions or impositions that may be imposed by the District on Owners or the

Property pursuant to existing or future laws forthe purpose of financing School Facilities or any

other purpose, other than a District-wide special tax or general obligation bond authorization
imposed and authorized in accordance with applicable law. District shall not oppose development

of the Project or any request by Owner for a land use or other governmental approval, whether

legislative, administrative, discretionary, or ministerial, sought for the development of the

Property. No development, change of development, governmental approval or change in any

governmental approval with respect to the Property shall constitute the basis for any change or

termination ofthis Agreement. This Agreement is not precedent-setting for any other development,

and is only a mechanism for mitigating the impact of development of the Project on the School

Facilities of the District.



9. No Impairment of Contract. The Parties are entering into this Agreement for the

purpose of creating a stream of special tax revenues that will be available to the District and the

CFD to pay directly the costs of acquisition, construction and/or equipping of School Facilities in
satisfaction of the School Mitigation Payment Requirement, to finance Other Facilities and to pay

debt service on Bonds and other indebtedness of the CFD, the proceeds of which will be used to

pay the costs of acquisition, construction and/or equipping of the School Facilities and Other

Facilities. Owner, District and the CFD hereby acknowledge and agree (i) that any reduction or

termination ofthe Special Taxes by exercise ofthe initiative power or the exercise of the discretion

of the District or the CFD would constitute a substantial impairment of the special tax revenue

stream that Owner, District and the CFD intend to create for the purpose of providing an assured

source of funding for the School Facilities and Other Facilities, and (ii) that this Agreement is
being entered into, and the Special Taxes are being imposed upon the Property in each

Improvement Area pursuant to the RMA in accordance with existing laws relating to the

imposition of fees and charges as a condition of property development and such Special Taxes are

being incurred as an incident of the voluntary act of development of the Property.

10. Assignability of Agreement. Owner shall have the unconditional right to assign

any right or obligation under this Agreement to anyone at any time. Owner shall give written notice

to District of such assignment, and Owner shall require any assignee to enter into an assignment

agreement specifically assuming the rights and obligations of this Agreement. A copy of the

assignment agreement shall be provided to the District following its execution. District agrees to

accept at the time of any such assignment a replacement letter of credit or cash deposit from any

assignee as to the portion of the Property which has been sold, so long as the replacement letter of
credit or cash deposit satisfies in all respects the conditions set fofth in Section 7 hereof. If Owner

assigns the right to receive payments for Other Facilities under the applicable JCFA,

reimbursement for advances made by Owner under Section 6 above, or Deposits made by Owner

under Section 4.4 above, out of the proceeds of Surplus Special Taxes or Bonds, the amount of
reimbursement shall be specifìed in a written assignment. Whenever this Agreement provides

Owner with a right, that right may be exercised by an assignee of that right to the same extent that

Owner could have exercised that right itself.

11. Authority and Cooperation, Binding on Successors. District and Owner

represent and warrant to the other that they are duly authorized to enter into this Agreement and to

be bound by its terms, and that this Agreement does not conflict with any other agreement,

contract, document or law to which either may be bound or subject. Owner and its successors and

assigns agree to fully cooperate with the District and the CFD in complying with Rule l5c2-12 of
the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the issuance and sale of Bonds so

long as Owner or any of its successors or assigns is an "obligated person" under Rule 1 5c2-12.

The parties recognize that California SB 165, Chapter 535 ofthe Statutes of 2000, became effective
on January 1, 2001 . SB 165 provides new disclosure and reporting requirements for any local bond

measure that is the subject of voter approval and which would provide for the sale of Bonds by a

local agency. Owner agrees fully and completely to cooperate with District in meeting the

requirements of SB 165. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the

successors and assigns ofthe parties hereto.

12. Entire Agreement/Superseding Prior Agreements. This Agreement contains the

entire agreement and understanding concerning the funding of school facilities to house students



generated by development of the Project and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations and

proposed agreements, written or oral. District and Owner acknowledge that neither any other party

nor its agents nor attorneys have made any promise, representation or warranty whatsoever,

express or implied, not contained herein to induce the execution of this Agreement and

acknowledge that this Agreement has not been executed in reliance upon any promise,

representation or warranty not contained herein. Further, District and Owner expressly agree that

this Agreement supersedes and replaces the Original Agreement as to the Propefty.

13. Amendments Must Be In Writing. This Agreement may not be amended except

by a writing signed by District and Owner.

14. Dispute Resolution. If a dispute arises relating to the interpretation of, enforcement

of or compliance with the terms of this Agreement, the District and Owner shall first attempt to

resolve such dispute through informal discussions or negotiations. Any pafty may convene such

discussions by written notice to the other, and shall reasonably accommodate the other party with
respect to scheduling. If the dispute is not resolved in this manner within thirty (30) calendar days

following the written notice, itmay be referred to mediation upon the request of either party, which
mediation shall be completed within ninety (90) calendar days after the date of the written demand

for mediation. Such written demand for mediation must be made within thirty (30) calendar days

following written notice convening informal discussions. This dispute resolution process shall be

undeftaken in good faith and exhausted prior to judicial review. The costs of such proceeding shall

initially be borne equally by the parties.

15. Interpretation Guides. In interpreting this Agreement, it shall be deemed that it
was prepared by the parties jointly and no ambiguity shall be resolved against either party on the

premise that it or its attorneys were responsible for drafting this Agreement or any provision
thereof. Headings used in this Agreement are for convenience and ease of reference only and are

not intended nor may be constructed as a guide to interpret any provision of this Agreement.

16. Due Authority of Signatories to Execute Agreement. Each individual signing

this Agreement warrants and represents that he or she has been authorized by appropriate action

of the party which he or she represents to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the party.

17. Notices. All notices, demands and communications between District and Owner

shall be given by personal delivery, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt

requested, Federal Express or other reliable private express delivery, or by facsimile transmission

or email. Such notices, demands or communications shall be deemed received upon delivery if
personally served or sent by facsimile or email or after three business days if given by other

approved means as specified above. Notices, demands and communications shall be sent:

To District: Westside Union School District
41914 N. 50th Street West

Quartz Hill, CA 93536
Fax No. 661-974-8565
Attn: Superintendent



With a copy to: Lozano Srnith
515 South Figueroa Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Fax No. 213-929-1077
Attn: Trevin E. Sims, Esq.

To Owner STG Montecito West, LLC, a California lirnited liability
company
2201 Dupont Drive, Suite 300
Irvine, CA92612
Attn: Jeff Evans

With a copy to: O'Neil LLP
19900 MacArthur Boulevard, Suite 1050

Irvine, CA92612
Fax No. 949-798-0511
Attn: John Yeager

18. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is by and between the parties name

herein, and unless expressly provided in the foregoing provisions no third party shall be benefited

hereby. This Agreement may not be enforced by anyone other than a pafty hereto or a successor

to such party who has acquired his/her/its interest in a way permitted by the above provisions,

19. Governing Law. This Agreement and all rights and obligations arising out of it
shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts which,

taken together, shall constitute one original document.

21. Exhibits. All Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated into this Agreernent

22. Recordation. Upon execution hereot this Agreement shall be recorded by District.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
above written.

WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

By:
Shawn Cabey
Assistant Superintendent Administrative Services

STG MONTECITO WEST, LLC,a California lirnited liability
company

By:
Jeff Evans
Authorized Representative



EXHIBIT A

STG PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOTS 7, 2, 14-35 AND 38-73, INCLUSIVE, OF TRACT NO. 061489 IN THE CITY OF

LANCASTE,R, COL]NTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP
RECORDED IN BOOK I3Lq,PAGES 49-52, OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY
RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY; AND

LOTS I-79, INCLUSIVE, OF TRACT NO. 061489-I IN THE CITY OF LANCASTER,
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN
BOOK I32q,PAGES 72-76, OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF

SAID COTINTY;AND

REAL PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF LANCASTER, COLTNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE

OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL ''B'' OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 07-06

RECORDED SEPTEMBER I8,2OO7 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2007-2143525 OF OFFICIAL
RECORDS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

TFIE SOUTH }IALF OF THE SOUTH HALF OF TFIE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF TFIE

NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 13 WEST, SAN

BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, IN THE COTINTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF

CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO TI{E OFFICIAL PLAT OF SAID LAND.

EXCEPT THE EAST 660 FEET, MEASURE AT RIGHT ANGLES.
ALSO EXCEPT THE NORTH 165 FEET, MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES TOGETHER

WITH THAT PORTION OF LOT 1 OF TRACT O 61489 AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK
1329, PAGE 49 THROUGH 5I, INCLUSIVE, WITH TFIE OFFICE OF TFIE COT]NTY
RECORDEROF SAID COTINTY PRECISELY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL,
TFIE,NCE SOUTH 89"40'03" WEST, A DISTANCE, OF 400.28 FEE,T TO TF{E BEGINNING OF

A NON TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE TO THE EAST WITH RADIAL BEARING OF

NORTH 36"25'32- EAST AND A RADIUS OF 72.00 FEET, THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG
SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 23"26'04", A DISTANCE OF 29.45

FEET, THENCE SOUTH 59"51'36" WEST, A DISTANCE OF I2O.I4 FEET,

THENCE NORT}I OOO3O'OO" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 37.83 FEET,
TF{ENCE SOUTH 89O40'O3" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 104.84 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 00"43'09" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 84 25 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 40O55'55'' EAST, A DISTANCE OF 35.36 FEET,
THENCE NORTH 89"38'55'' E,AST, A DISTANCE OF 15O.OO FEET,
THENCE, SOUTH 82"45'24" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 90.80 FEET,
THENCE NORTH 89O38'55" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 366.27 FEE,T,

THENCE NORTH 00"47'36- WEST, A DISTANCE OF 122.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING.



EXHIBIT B

EXISTING DEVELOPED LINITS LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOTS 3,4,5,6,7,8,9, 10, 11,12,13,36 AND 37 OF TRACT NO. 061489 IN THE CITY OF

LANCASTER, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP
RECORDED IN BOOK 1329, PAGES 49-52, OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE, OF THE COLINTY
RECORDER OF SAID COI.INTY.



EXHIBIT C

ORIGINAL MITIGATION AGREEMENT

fAttached]



RECORDED AT THE REOUEST OF AND
WHEN RECORDED, PLEASE RETURN TO

WESTS]DE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
41914 N. 50th Street West
Quartz Hill, California 93536
Attn: Superintendent

scnaoL,rAclLnEs

This SÇHOOL FACILITIES IMPACT MITIGATlON AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is
made asot 1 lølot byand between (i)theWESTSIDE UNION SCHOOLDISTRICT,
a California publÍc school district (i'School District"), and (ii) HHI LANCASTER l, LLC, a
California limited liability company ("Owner"). The Owner and the School District are each
referred to herein as a "Party" or collectívely as "Partíes".

BECITALS

A- The Owner is the owner of certain undeveloped real properly ("Property")
located within the County of Los Angeles ("County"), the City of Lancaster ("City") and all
within the boundaries of the School District. The Proper-ty is described on Exhibit "A" and
depicted on Exhibit "8", both attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

B. The Owner intends to develop lhe Property as approximately 73 singfe family
de'tached residential units, Tract No,061490 ("Project"), after receiving all necessary
approvals from the City.

C. School District and Owner have met and negotiated in good faith on an
appropriate means of mitigating the impact of the development of the Project on the School
District's public school facilities and have mutually agreed upon the terms of this
Agreement.

AGREEMËNT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recítals and the terms and
condilions set forth herein, School District and Owner agree as follows:

'1. lncorporation of B.eçials: All of the foregoing recitals are accurale and are
incorporaled herein by this reference.

2. Purpose of Aqreement. The purpose of this Agreement is lo establish a
means for rnitigating the impact of the developmenl of the Property upon the School

Page 1 of 16



District's public school facilities. Owner acknowledges that development of lhe Propeñy will
contribute to the need for additional K-8 school facilities including site acquisition and
improvement, classrooms, recreationatfacilities, on-site office space, central support and
administrative facilities, interim housing and transportation facilities of the School District
("School Facilities") and that Owner is subject to cerlain fee requirements under Senate Bill
50 (Statutes of 19Bg) ("SB 50"), codified as Government Code sections 65995, et seq.
("Developer Fees").

3. Waiver of Protest: Payment of all sums payable hereunder by Owner,
whether by cash payment, special taxes, the proceeds of special tax bonds, or a
combination thereof, is made by Owner without protest so long as School District is not in
breach of this Agreement. Owner knowingly waives the right of protest as may be afforded
by Education Code Section 17620 and Government Code Section 66020 or any other
provision of law, so long as School District is not in breach of this Agreement. This waiver
of protest shall not apply to Owner's ability to review, comment upon, or challenge any new
school facility needs analysis prepared by the School Dístrict under SB 50, or to pay under
protesÌ any school fees imposed pursuant to Government Code Section 65995 ("Level 1

Fees"), Government Code section 65995.5 ("Level2 Fees"), orGovernmentCode Section
65995.7 ("Level 3 Fees").

4. MjJioation PavmerÏli Mitigation of school impacts shallbe deemed bySchool
District and Owner to occur for each residential unit to be developed within the Project
upon the receipt by the School District of the applicable Mitigation Payment, as defined
below, for each such residential unit.

ln consideration for the School District's willingness to finance the school mitigation
fee obligations for the Project and the cost of certain fees of the County of Los Angeles
Waterworks District ("Water District"), Antelope Valley Union High School District ("High
School District"), Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency ("Water Agency") and the
County of Los Angeles Sanitation Dístrict ("Sanitation District") ihrough the formation of a
community facilities district ("CFD") and wÍthout a Joint Community FacilitiesAgreement or
similar agreement, Owner has offered to pay school mitigation fees as outlined below.

Ëxcept as otherwise provided for in Section 11, a mitigation payment for each
residential unit to be developed within the Project shall be determined by the School
District by multiplying lhe total square feet of assessable internal living space of such unit,
exclusive of any carports, walkways, garages, overhangs, patios, enclosed patios,
detached accessory structures (i.e. uninhabitable storage structures), otherstructures not
used as living space, or any olher square footage excluded under Government Code
Seclion 65995 ("Assessable Square Feet") as determined by reference to the building
permit application for such unit by $4.00 (as calculated for each residential unit, the
"Mitigation Payment'). Owner and School District acknowledge that this amount shall
be increased each July 1, commencing July 1,2009 bytwo percent (2.00%) of the
amounl in effect the prior fiscal year until the Mitigation Payment for such unit is
satisfied by the issuance of special tax bonds or the payment of cash pursuant to
Section 11(b). lf the CFD is not formed by September 30, 2007 or if the special tax

Page2of16



lien is released pursuant to Section 12, Owner shall only be required to paythe then
current Developer Fee authorized by SB 50.

5. Full Mitiqation: The provisions of this Agreement are in lieu of any and all
other fees, exaclions, conditions or impositions that may be imposed by the School District
on Owner or the Property pursuant to existing or future laws for the purpose of financing
School Facilities or any other purpose, other lhan a School District-wide special tax,
general obligation bond, or School Facilitíes lmprovement District bond authorization
imposed and authorized in accordance with applicable law. School District shall not
oppose development of the Property or any request by Owner for a land use or other
governmental approval, whether legislative, administrative, discretionary or ministerial,
sought for the development of the Property. No development, change of development,
governmental approval or change in any governmental approval with respect to the
Property shall constitute the basis for any change or termination of thisAgreement. Upon
payment of the MÍtigalion Payment for a residential dwelling unit ("Residential Unit") to be
constructed within the Project, School District shall provide the certification requíred by
Education Code Section 17620(b) or otheruvise certify that any and all requirements of the
School District with respect to the School Facilities impact caused by the construction of
the Residential Unit has been fully satisfied. This Agreement is not precedent-setting for
any other development, and is only a mechanism for mitigating the impact of development
of the Project on the School Facilities of the School District.

6. Formation of Cofi,rnunîtv Facilities_9chool District: Owner has stated their
preference that all or a portion of the Mitigation Payment obligation for the Project be
satisfied through the formation of a CFD pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Districl Act of 1982, as amended; being Government Code Section 53311 et seq. ("Act").
School District agrees to act as the lead agency in the formation of such CFD so long as:
(i) such formation is economícally viable, as determined by School District, and (ii) such
formation and the sale of bonds will meet the Goals and Policies for formation of CFD's
dated April 1 2,2005, adopted by the Board of Trustees of the School District ("Board") and
as amended through the date of this Agreement. Owner and School District anticipate that
the formation of the CFD will include provisions for establishing three (3) improvement
areas (each an "lA", collectively "lAs"). Owner and School District agree thatthe Project
shall be located wilhin an lA of the CFD. This lA of the CFD shall be known as
lmprovementAreaNo.B("lAB"). lmprovementAreaNo.A("lAA")andlmprovementArea
No. C ('lA C") shall be comprísed of property owned by Stratham Montecito West, lnc.
("Stratham"). Owner and School District agree that each lA of the CFD will f inance all or a
portion of the Water District fees, High School District fees, Water Agency fees and
Sanitation District fees (each an "Agency", collectively "Agencies Fees") needed for the
developmenl of the Project in addition to all or a portion the Mitigation Payment obligation
for the ResÍdential Units to be developed within the Project, as well as the costs associated
with the formation of the CFD and the issuance of special tax bonds by each lA of the CFD
("Cosl of lssuance"). The Cost of lssuance shall include, but not be limited to, legal, fiscal
and linancial consullant fees, discount fees. capitalized interest on the bonds, election
costs, lees for bond counsel, printing cosls and an amounl to reimburse Owner(s) lor
deposils made prior to bond sale.

Page 3 of 16



School District and Owner began the formation process for the CFD in March
2007 , and shall complete the formation process and hold the necessary combined special
lax and bond elections ín September 30, 2007,

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed as to limit discretion of the School
District in the formation of the CFD or the issuance of special tax bonds or equivalent
securilies of lA B of the CFD ("Bonds") and the School District shall have no liability if the
CFD is not formed or Bonds are not authorized by the qualified electors within lA B of the
CFD once formed.

Stratham has initially deposited twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) on
May 5, 2006 and an additional twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) on May 23,2Q07
with School District to be used to fund the costs associated with forming the CFD and
issuing the Bonds. Stratham agrees to make additionalcontributions upon the request of
School District, up to a maximum of seventy-five thousand dolíars ($ZS,OOO¡. The deposit
of additional funds beyond seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000) if necessary shall be by
written agreement between Stratham and School Dístrict. Faílure to advance funds
sufficient to cover the costs associated wÍth the formalion of the CFD for the lAs by
Stratham shall terminate the School Districl's obligation to proceed wíth the formation of the
CFD for the lAs. The Owner agrees to províde lhe necessary deposits associated with the
issuance of Bonds for lA B, All deposits made by the Owner for such purpose shall be
reimbursed from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds for lA B. Should the CFD not be
formed for any reason, School District shall return the unused amount of the deposít(s),
excluding interest earned lhereon, to Stratham based on the proportion of the total deposit
Stratham contributed and only after all outstanding costs are paid. Under no
circumstances shall School District be obligated to reimburse such deposits from another
source of f unds other than the proceeds of the sale of bonds or from the unused amount of
the deposits made by StraÌham for forming the CFD or the Owner for the issuing the
Bonds.

7. lssuance of Bonds:

(a) Timino of 'Bond lssuance: Bonds shall be issued within a
reasonable period of time lollowing the earlier of : (i) Owner's request to proceed with the
issuance of the Bonds or (ií) the issuance of the first certificate of compliance for a
production unit within the Project,

(b) Amount of lssuance; The minimum amounl of Bond proceeds
to be allocated to pay for School Facililies shall be an amount equalto the total projected
Mitigation Payment obliga'tion of the Projecl. For purposes of calculating this amount, the
School Dislrict should multiply the Mitigation Payment by lhe total projected Assessable
Square Feet of all proposed Residential Units within the Project, as provided by Owner in
conneclion with the issuance of Borrds ("School Miligation Paymenl Requirement"). As of
the execulion of this Agreemenl, the School Mitigation Payment Requirement for lA B of
the CFD is estimated lo be approximately eighl hundred thirty-two lhousand one hundred

Page 4 of 16



forty-eight dollars ($ege,148). The Bond proceeds shall be sufficient to pay the Agencies
Fees setforth in Section 7 (d) (vi-ix) below.

The amount of any series of Bonds shall be such that the projected
annual revenues generated by the application of the Assîgned Annual Special Taxes, as
defined in the "Rate and Method of Appor^lionment" upon build-out of lA B of the CFD is
equal to the total of (i) 115"/" of projected annual debt service on the Bonds, and (ii) a
prioritized annual administrative expense amount of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000), in
which the administrative expense amount shall be assumed to escalate by two percent
(2.00%) per fiscal year beginning with or in FiscalYear 200912010.

(c) Term of lssuance: The term of the Bonds shall not be less than
thirty (30) years and debt service shall be assumed to escalate by two percent (2.00%) per
fÍscal year beginning with or in FiscalYear 200912üA.

(d) Bond Proceeds.Alfocation: The net proceeds of the sale of
Bonds shall be applied and prioritized as follows:

(¡) First Prioritv: To pay for capitalized interest for a period
of up to twelve (12) months, or such greater period if requested by Owner and agreed to by
School District.

Fund, as derined berow, un('l'''rffio 
";i"Î"å:iJ#tl'Jli"nt,"r'J 

gJff::ff;
reimbursing Owner and School District for the cosis of forming IA B of the CFD as
authorízed under the Act. ln lhe event there are not sufficient funds deposíted to pay the
Cost of lssuance, said funds shall be transferred from lhe fund at the lowest priority.

(iii) Thiid Prioritv: To deposit into lhe Reserve Fund, as
defined below, an amount sufficient to fund the Reserve Fund Requirement for such
Bonds.

(iv) Fourth Prioritv: To pay for administralive expenses of lA
B of the CFD anticipated until special taxes can be collecled within lA B of the CFD,

(v) Fifth Prio rilv: To deposit into the School Facilities Fund,
as defined below, funds for financing School Facilities equal to the School Mitigation
Payment Bequirement.

(vi) 9ixth Prioritv: To deposit into the Water District Fund, as
defined below, an amount specified by the Owner at or prior lo the time of issuance of the
Bonds, provided the amount deposited shall not exceed the School Mitigalion Payment
Requirement less $5,000.

Page 5 of 16



(vii) Seventh Priority: To deposit into the Sanitation District
Fund, as defÍned below, an amount specified by the Owner at or prior to the time of
issuance of the Bonds, provided the amount deposited shall not exceed the School
Mitigation Payment Requirement less $5,000.

(viÍi) Eiqhth Pjioritv: To deposit ¡nto the WaterAgency Fund,
as defined below, an amount specified by the Owner at or príor to the time of issuance of
the Bonds, provided the amount deposited shall not exceed the School Mitigation Payment
Requirement less $5,000,

(¡x) Ninth Prioritv: To deposit into the High School District
Fund, as defined below, an amount specified by ihe Owner at or prior to lhe time of
issuance of the Bonds, provided the amount deposited shall not exceed the School
Mitigation Payment Requirement less $5,000.

(x) Tenth Prioritv:To deposit the remaining proceeds in the
Surplus Facilities Fund.

(e) lnsufficient Proceeds: ln the event the amount deposited into
the School Facilities Fund in accordance with Section 7(d) is insufficient to satisfy the
Mitigation Payments for all Residential Units planned to be developed withín the Project, as
disclosed for the purpose of issuing the Bonds, such deficiency shall be paid by Owner in
cash at the time Bonds are issued.

(f) Establishment of Funds

(i) 9gst of lssuance Fund: The proceeds of the Bonds
apportioned to pay the costs of íssuing the Bonds and formíng the CFD shall be held in a
fund or account established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Cost of lssuance
Fund"). lnterest earnings from the Cost of lssuance Fund shall be held within that fund
and available to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds and forming lA B of the CFD. Any
proceeds remaining in the Cost of lssuance Fund, six (6) months after issuance of lhe
Bonds, not needed to pay the costs associated with the formation of the CFD or the
issuance of the Bonds shall be transferred to the School Facilities Fund, unless said
excess f unds had come from another fund at a lower priority, in which case they should be
returned to said fund.

(i1) Reserue Fund: A portion of the proceeds from the sale of
lhe Bonds shall be applied lo fund a reserve fund in an amount equalto the Reserve Fund
Requirement, as defined in the applicable lrustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Reserve
Fund") pursuant to which lhe Bonds are issued. Each fiscalyear, interest earnings on the
Reserve Fund, in excess of any amount requlred to replenish the Reserve Fund, shall be
used to make debt service payment on the Bonds,

(i¡i) Schgol..facilities Fund: The proceeds f rom the sale of
the Bonds apporlíoned to salisfy the applicable School Mitigation Payment Requirement
shall be held in a f und or account established by the lruslee or fiscal agenl agreement for

Page 6 of 16



the Bonds ('School Facilities Fund"). lnterest earnings from the SchoolFacilities Fund shall
be held within that fund and available for funding School Facilities.

(iv) Water District Fund: The proceeds of the Bonds
apportioned to fund fees of the Water Districl ("Water District Fees") shall be held in a fund
or account established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Water District Fund").
Water District Fees shall be paid upon the written request of Owner in a format acceptable
to School District. The request shallidentify the specific Resídential Unit(s) and Project for
which payment is requested and identify the specific Water District Fees to be paid and the
cost of each Water District Fee that Owner is seeking payment for. Neither the School
Distrîct nor the CFD shall have any responsíbitity to pay for Water District Fees from any
source other than the proceeds of Bonds which have been allocated to the Water District
Fund. lnterest earnings from the Water District Fund shall be held wíthin that fund and
available for funding Water District Fees. After the last certificate of occupancy has been
issued within the Project, the remaining funds and interest earnings shallbe transferred to
the Surplus Facilitíes Fund.

(v) Sanitaiion District Fund: The proceeds of the Bonds
apportioned to fund fees of the Sanitation District ("Sanitation District Fees")shall be held
in a fund or account established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Sanitation
District Fund"). Sanitatíon District Fees shall be paid upon the written request of Owner in
a format acceptable to School District. The request shall identify the specific Residential
Unit(s) and Project for which payment is requested and identifies the specific Sanitation
District Fees to be paid and the cost of each Sanitation District Fee that Owner is seeking
payment for. Neither the School Distríct nor the CFD shall have any responsibility to pay
for Sanitatíon District Fees frorn any source other than the proceeds of Bonds, which have
been allocated to the Sanitation District Fund. lnterest earnings from the Sanitation District
Fund shall be held withín that fund and available for funding Sanitation District Fees. ln the
event there are any funds left in the Sanitation District Fund after the last certíficate of
compliance has been issued within the Project, the remaíning funds and interest earnings
shall be lransferred to the Surplus Facílities Fund.

(vi) Water Aqencv Fund The proceeds of the Bonds
apportioned to fund fees of the WaterAgency ("WaterAgency Fees") shall be held in a
fund or account established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Water Agency
Fund"). Water Agency Fees shall be paid upon the written request of Owner in a format
acceptable to School Districl, The request shall identify the specific Residential Unit(s) and
Project for which payment is requesled and identify the specific Water Agency Fees to be
paid and the cost of each Waler Agency Fee that Owner is seeking payment for. Neither
f he School District nor the CFD shall have any responsibility to pay for Water Agency Fees
from any source other than the proceeds of Bonds which have been allocaled to the Water
Agency Fund. lnteresl earnings from the Water Agency Fund shall be held wilhin that fund
and available for funding Water Agency Fees. Afler the last certificate of occupancy has
been issued within the Project, the remaining funds and interest earnings shall be
transferred to the Surplus Facilities Fund.

Page 7 of 16



(vii) Hioh School District FrJqd: The proceeds of the Bonds
apportioned to fund fees of the High School District ("High School District Fees") shall be
held in a fund or account established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("High
School Dístrict Fund"). High School District Fees shallbe paid upon the written request of
Owner in a format acceptable to School District. The request shall Ídentify the square
footage of the specific Residential Unit(s) and Project for which payment is requested and
identify the specific High School District Fees to be paid and the cost of each High School
District Fee that Owner is seeking payment for. Neither School District nor the CFD shall
have any responsibility to pay for High School District Fees from any source other than the
proceeds of Bonds, which have been allocated to the High School District Fund, tnterest
earnings from the High School District Fund shall be held within that fund and available for
funding High School District Fees. ln the event there are any funds left in the High School
District Fund after the last certificate of occupancy has been issued wíthin the Project, the
remaining funds and interest earnings shall be transferred to the Surplus Facilities Fund.

(viii) Surplus.Facilities Fund: Bond proceeds remaining after
priorities (i) through (ix) of Section 7(d) are funded shall be held in a fund or account
established by the trustee or fiscal agent agreement ("Surplus Facilities Fund"). Proceeds
deposíted within the Surplus Facilities Fund shall be available for School Facilities. lnterest
earnings from the Surplus Facilities Fund shall be held within that fund.

8. Letter of CredÏ: PrÍor to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, Owner or its
successors or assigns shall deliver to the School District cash (a "Cash Deposit") or an
irrevocable standby letter of credit (an "LOC"), issued by a bank wÍth a minimum Moody's
fong term rating of "A' and short term rating of "P-1," in an amount equal to one years'
special taxes to secure the payment of the semiannual installments of the special taxes
levied on all lots and parcels within lA B of the CFD which are owned by Owner or its
successors or assigns (excluding lots owned by Homeowners, defined below). The LOC
shall name the f iscal agent for the Bonds as the beneficiary and shall provide that the fiscal
agent may draw thereon, up to the full amount thereof, in the amount of any delinquencies
in the payment of semiannual installments of the specialtaxes levied on properties within
lA B of the CFD which are owned by Owner or its successors or assigns to pay debt
service on the Bonds. The LOC or Cash Deposit shall be maintained by Owner or its
successors or assigns and renewed annually by the issuing bank or a substitute bank
conlorming to the requirements of this subsection until such time as the number of all the
lots into which lA B is subdivided upon the recordation of all of the subdivision maps
therefore which are owned by Homeowners is equalto sixty (60%) percent of the number
of all such lots. The LOC or Cash Deposit shall provide that until such condition is

satisfied, the amount thereof shall be reduced on July 1 of each year, commencing on the
July 1 first following issuance of the corresponding series of Bonds, to an amount equalto
the lotal of the specialtaxes projected to be levied on allof the lots and parcels in the CFD
which are owned by the Owner or íls successors or assigns which will be collected in the
next succeeding fiscal year (e,9. FiscalYear 200912010). The LOC shall further provide that
the failure of the issuing bank to renew the LOC until such condition is satisfied will enable
the f iscal agent 1o draw the full amount thereof . lf the fiscal agent draws any amount under
the LOC, except upon lhe failure of lhe issuing bank to renew it, the fiscal agent shall

Page B of 16



reimburse the amount drawn to the issuing bankwithout interest, solelyfrom Ìhe delinquent
special tax installments with respect to which any such amount is drawn when and if such
installments are paid or the proceeds of foreclosure of lhe applicable property as a result of
such delinquency. The form of the LOC shall in all respects be satisfactory to and
approved by counsel io the School District.

9. Paritv Lien: In order to avoid a frustration of purpose of this Agreement and
to preserve the financing feasibility of IA B of the CFD provided for herein, Owner agrees
that they shall not seek, consent to, or vote in favor of, any other community facilities
district pursuant to the Act, assessment dislrict or other financing district ("Financíng
District") without the School Dístrict's written determination that the proposed specialtaxes
or assessments of such Financing District, when added to the specialtaxes and all other
ad valorem taxes and other charges collected on the real property secured roll, will not
exceed two percent (2.00%) of the esÌimated weighled average sales price of homes within
lA B of the CFD.

10. Surplus Special Tax Revenue: ln any fiscal year in whích (i) special tax
revenues generated from lA B of lhe CFD exceed the amount needed to (a) pay debt
service on the outstanding Bonds and (b) cover the administrative expenses of lA B of the
CFD, and (ii) no specialtaxes are being levied on Undeveloped Property, as defined in the
RMA, allspecialtax revenue not requíred to pay financialobligatíon(s)of IAB of the CFD in
such fiscal year shall be made availabfe for funding School Facilities as authorized by
formation documents for the CFD.

11, Obtainino Certificates of Com nlianee:

a. P_rior to lssu4ngg gf Bondç: Prior to the issuance of the Bonds, Owner
shalt be permitted to seek cerlificates of compliance for Residential Units within the Project
by (¡) making a cash payment to School Dístrict or (ii) delivering to School District an
irrevocable standby lelter of credit, issued by a bank which is acceptable to School District
and which names School District as beneficiary, in an amount equal to the Miligation
Payment, as calculated at such time, for all Residenlial Units which are being issued a
certificate of compliance. ln the event that Owner or its succe$sors or assigns make a
cash deposit to School District as set forth above, School District shall hold such cash
deposit unexpended and ref und the Party which made such cash deposÍt the full amount of
such cash deposit excluding interest earnings thereon, at the time Bonds are issued. ln
the event Owner, or its successors or assigns, delivers to School District an irrevocable
standby letter of credit as sel forlh above, such letler of credit shall be maintained by
Owner or ils successors or assigns and renewed as necessary until the Bonds are issued
at which time such letter of credit shall be released by School District.

b, Afler the lssuance of Bonds: At the time the Bonds are issued School
District shall eslablish and maintain a "School Miiigation Credit Account", lnitially, the
School District shall credit the School Mitigation Credit Account an amount equal to the
total projecled Assessable Sguare Feet lo be construcled within the Project as disclosed
by Owner in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. ln the evenl there is a refund

Page 9 of 16



g¡ven to Owner in accordance with Section 11(a), the School District shalldebit the SÇhool
Mitigatîon Credit Account in an amount equal to the total Assessable Square Feet of
Residential Units for which such refund is given. Following the issuance of the Bonds, at
such time as an Owner or its successor or assigns seek a certificate of compliance for a
Residential Unit within the Project, the School District shall debit the School Mitigation
Credit Account by the applicable Assessable Square Feet of such Residential Unit as
reflected on the applicable building permit application. At no time shall School District be
required to issue a certificate of compliance if the applicable School Mitigation Credit
Account does not contaín sufficient credit for the requested certificate of compliance. ln
such instance, a certificate of compliance will be issued by School District only upon
payment in cash by the applicant in an amount equal to the then current Mitigation
Payment for such Resídential Unit, as calculated pursuant to Section 4.

12. l=ack of Performance: ln the event the CFD is not formed or Bonds are not
sold due to a lack of performance by Owner or School District, the Owner may request to
release lhe SpecialTax lien applicable to the Property or the School District may release
the SpecialTax lien applicable to the Property. At such time the Property is removed from
lA B of the CFD, Owner shall be required to replace any letter of credit posted with the
School District in accordance with section 11(a) with a cash payment equal to the then
current Developer Fee authorized by SB 50 and shall be required to make cash payments
to obtain certificates of compliance from School District for additional Residential Units in
accordance with SectÍon 4. lf the Property is not removed from lA B of the CFD, the
School District shatl continue to levy specÍal taxes on the Property within lA B of the CFD,
all special tax revenue shall be made available to salisfy the applicabte School Miligation
Payment Requirement until such time as the Bonds are issued. Upon the issuance of
Bonds, all proceeds shall be deposited based on the priority set forth in Section 7(f) after
taking into account special tax revenues applied toward satisfying the applicable Mitigation
Payment Requirement.

13. Rebate from State Fundinq: ln the event thal School District receives funds
from the State of California to house existing and/or projected students generated from
exislíng and/or future Residential Units constructed in the Project ("State Funds"), Owner,
or ils successors or assigns, shall not be entitled to any refund or reduction in specialtaxes
as a result of said State Funds.

14. Representatigns qlld Disclosure Requirepents: School District and Owner
each represent and warrant to the other that they are duly authorized to enter into this
Agreement and to be bound by its terms and that this Agreement does not conflict with any
other agreement, contract, document or law, Owner, and its successors and assígns agree
to fully and promptly cooperate with School District and the CFD in complying with Rule
15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Rule 15c 2-12") in connection with
the issuance and sale of lhe Bonds so long as Owner, or its successors or assigns, are an
"obligated person" under Rule 1 5c2-12. The Parties recognize that California SB 165
(Chapler 535 of the Stalues of 2000) became effeclive on January 1, 2001. SB 165
provides new disclosure and reporting requiremenls for a local bond measure that is the
subject of voter approval and which would provide for the sale of bonds by a local agency.

Page 10 ol 16



Owner agrees to fully and complelely cooperate with School District Ín meeting the
requirement of SB 165.

15. Assignment: Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way limit the right or
ability of Owner to transfer, assign, encumber, hypothecate or in any way convey
(collectively a Transfer) any interest of Owner in the Property without the consent of the
School District, provided that: (i) Owner gives School District written notice of the iransfer
within ten (10) days thereof, and (ii) the transferee assumes all obligations of Owner under
this Agreement including, but not limited to, all applicable letter of credit requirements. lf
these conditions are met, School District agrees to thereafter look solely to the transferee
for performance of Owner's obligations under this Agreement.

16. A.sq!.onees and Successors: All of the covenants, stipulations, promises,
agreements, and other responsibilities contained in this Agreement b¡r or on behalf of, or
for the benefit of, either of the parties hereto, shall bind or inure to the benefit of their
respective assignees or successors. "Successor" shall refer both to Owner's interest in the
Property or any porlion thereof, to the successors to all or substantially all of Owner's
assets, and to lheir successors by merger or consolidation. Any assignóe or successor
shall be required to sign an assignment agreement acknowledging the acceptance of the
terms of this Agreement. Owner shall gíve written notíce to School District of such
assignments, and Owner shall require any assignee to enter into an assignment agreement
specifically assuming the rights and obligations of this Agreement. A copy shall be
provided to School District wÍthin ten (10) days of execution. School District agrees to
accept at the time of any such assígnment a replacement letter of credit or cash deposit
from any assignee as to the portion of the Property which has been sold, so long as the
replacement letter of credit or cash deposit satisfies in all respects the condítions set forth
in Section 7(f) above. lf Owner assigns the right to receive reimbursement for advances
made by Owner out of the proceeds of the Bonds, ihe amount of reimbursement shall be
specified in a written assignment. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be recorded
in the Los Angeles County Recorder's Off ice. Notwithstanding anythíng in lhisAgreement
to the contrary, this Agreement shall not be binding upon or inure to the benefit of any
Owner of a completed dwelling unit conslructed and sold within the CFD ("Homeowner")
and any reference to "successors" or "assigns" shall exclude Homeowners. This
Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no further force and effect with
respect to any lot within lA B of the CFD, without the recordation or execution of any
additional instrument, upon the conveyance of such lot to a Homeowner.

17. Seve.raþilit\¡: lf any provision of thisAgreement shall be held to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, the remaining portions shall not in any way be affected or
impaired, and shall remain in full force and effect.

18. Amendments: This Agreement may not be amended except in writing by
Owner and School District, duly executed by their authorized agents. Owner and School
District recognize thaÌ it may be necessary to make revisions to this Agreement after
execution by the parties. Therefore, School Dlstrict delegates to the Superintendenf the

Page 11 of 16



authority to approve amendments to this Agreemenl which do not substantially affect the
terms contained herein.

19. Exhibits: The Ëxhibits attached hereto are deemed incorporated into this
Agreement in their entirety by reference.

2A. ïjUC: Time is of the essence in thisAgreement and in each and every term,
provision and condition hereof.

21. Notices: Any Notice to either Party shall be in writing and given by delivering
lhe same lo such par^ty in person or by sendÍng the same by registered mail, return receipt
requested, with postage prepaid, to the following addresses:

lf to School District: Westside Union School District
41914 N. 50rh Street West
Ouartz Hill, California 93536
Attn: Superintendent

lf to Owner: HHI Lancaster l, LLC
6 Executive Circle, Suite 250
I rvine, CalifornÍa 9261 4
Attn: John W. Marshall

Either Party may change its mailing address at any time by giving written notice of such
change to the other Party in the manner provided herein. All notices under this Agreement
shall be deemed given, received, made or communícated on the date personal delivery is
affected or, if mailed, on the delivery date or altempted delivery date shown on the return
receipt.

22. Remedies Cumulative: No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed
exclusive but shall, wherever possible, be cumu[ative with all other remedies at law or in
equity. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
as a waiver of any future breach of such provision or of any other provÍsion hereof.

23. Con The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been
given the opportunity to review this Agreement with legal counsel independently, and/or has
the requisiÌe experience and sophistication to understand, interpret, and agree to the
particular language of the provisions hereof, ln the event of an ambiguity in or dispute
regarding the interpretation of same, lhe interpretation of this Agreement shall not be
resolved by any rule of interpretation providing for interpretation against the party who
causes the uncertainty to exíst or against the draftsman.

24. Choice of Law: This Agreement has been negoliated and executed in lhe
Slate of California and shall be governed and conslrued by the laws of that State wilhout
regard lo the conflicls of laws principles.

Page '12 ol 16



25. Captions: The captions, headings, and titles to the various adicles and
paragraphs of this Agreement are not a part of this Agreement, are for convenience and
identification only, and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part hereof.

26. No Third Parlv Benef ít: This Agreemenl is by and between the partÍes named
herein, and unless expressly provided in the foregoing provisions no third party shall be
benefiled hereby. This Agreement may not be enforced by anyone other than a party
hereto or a successor to such party who has acquired his/her/its interest in a way permitted
by the above provisions.

27. MeQiatiol Prior to Litigation: lt is the intent of the parties to try and resolve
any differences arising from this Agreement through mediation prior to the initiation of
litigation. ln the event of any disagreement over the meaning or application of this
Agreement, the parties shall first attempt to resolve the matter informally. Should that
prove unsuccessful, any party may ask for mediation. A neutral mediator from the State
Mediation and Conciliation Service or the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service
("JAMS") shall be appointed to hear each side in an informal setting, and to render an
advisory recommendation. Any such mediatíon costs shall be equally shared by the
parties.

28. Attornev Fees: ln the event of any action or proceedÍng, including a
reference pursuant to Section 638, et seq., of the Code of Civil Procedure, brought by
either party against the other under this Agreement after the mediatíon required in Section
25 above, the prevaîling party shall be entitled lo recover its reasonable attorney fees and
allfees, costs and expenses incurred for prosecution, defense, consultation, or advice in
such action or proceeding. ln addition to the foregoing the prevailing party shall be entitled
to its reasonable attorneys'fees and all fees, costs and expenses incurred in any posÞ
judgment proceedings to collect or enforce the judgment. This provísion is separate and
several and shall survive the merger of this Agreement into any judgment on this
Agreement.

29. Counterparts: This Agreement may be signed in one or rnore counterparts,
which, when taken together, shall constítute one original document.

30. Due Authoritv: Each individual signing the Agreement warrants and
represents that he or she has been duly authorized by appropriate action of the party he or
she represents to enter into the Agreement on behalf of such Party.

31. Application to ParticipatÍnq Owners: In the evenl that one or more of the
Owners does not execule the Agreement, the terms of the Agreement shall be applicable
only to the Owners who execute the Agreement.

IFEMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Page 13 of 16



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partíes herelo have executed this Agreement on the
day and year first above written.

WËSTSIDE UNION SCHOOL
SCHOOL D¡STRICT

By:
id ,Board Trustees

*ru^ h,lÅ/ü(ø.---By:
vif eresident, Board oi flrustees

HHI LANCASTER ¡, LLC, a California
Limited Liability Company

By: Hearthside Homes, lnc., a California
Corporation, lts Managing Member

Its:

By:

Its:

JICLIENTS\WeslSideÙSD\N/ello\CFD No, 2007-1 Prov¡dence Ranch (05047)\Formation Docs\Fjnal Docs\Bev¡sed F¡nal Docs-Sept 2OO7\Mit¡garion
Agreemenl_lA B_FlNAL.doc

By:

Page 14 of '16



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the
day and year first above wrilten.

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL
SCHOOL DISTHICT

By:

By:

By:

dr^

L
id t, Board of Trustees

By:

President, Board rustees

HHI LANCASTEH l, LLC, a Galifornia
Limited Liability Company

By: Hearthside Homes, lnc., a California
'Corporation,'lts Managing Member

Its:

Its:

JICLIENTS\WeslSideUSD\Mello\CFD No.2007¡ Providence Ranch (65047)\Formalion Docs\Fìnâl Oocs\Revised Finâl Docs_Sepl 200nlvitigation
Agreemenl_lA B-FlNAL.doc

Page 14 of 16



State of to),Ã.rr\rì&
County of

On before me, ,LL,
Dale Name ând Title ot Otfic€r (e.9. Doe, Notary

personally appeared =5q-,4 ð
Name(s) of Signo(s)

Fpersonally known to me - OR -tß proved lo me on the basis of satisfaclory evidence to be the person(s)
whose name(s) islare subscribed 1o the within instrument
and acknowledged to me that helshe/they executed the
same in his/þerllheir authorized capacity(ies), and that by
bìs/berltheir signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument,

W|ïNESS my hand and official seal.

ÛPTWt!ÃL
Though Ìhe inÍomat¡on below is nol required by law ¡l may prove valuable Io petsons relying on lhe document and could prevent

fraudulent removal and rcaltachment of this form to another documenL

Ðescription of Attached Ðocument

Title or Type of Document: ie5

Document Dale: Number of Pages: ¡{,

Signe(s) Other Than Named Above

Capacity(ies) ÇlaEened by Signer(s)

Signer's Name: Signer's Name L;nd*- K. Jores

ll lndividual ü lndividual
p Corpo w

Title(s)
ü ParÏner - D Limited Ll General I Parlner*ü Limited ü General
X Attorney-in-Fact
ü Trustee
n Guardian or Conservator
n Other:

fl Attorney-in-Faci
n Trustee

' Guardian or Çonservator
ll Other:

Signer ls Representing:

\t(øts¡rJt 1,Intru-

Signer ls Representing.

S.hooi bistrict Scinôd- ò i:+r,:c-t

BANKS

8914rs7
eolllon$€
eo{.r¡ty
J.urr â

ïop of thumb lìere ol thumb here

üALgF@RruEA ÃLE-"PURP@SË ACKM@WLËEGMHruT

@ 't 995 Nat¡onal Notary Association . 8236 Flemmel Ave., P.O. Box 71 84 . Cänoga Park, CA 91 309.71 84 Prod. Nô.5907 Reorder: Caìl Toll-F¡ee 1-800-876-6827



lNWITNEssWHEBEOF,theparliesheretohaveexecutedthisAgreementonthe
day anã Year first above wrilten'

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL
SCHOOL DISTFICT

By:
esld Board of Trustees

dr^By:
President, Board ustees

HHI LANCASTER l, LLC, a California
Limited LiabilitY ComPanY

By¡
'Cor

H rthside H
ratio Its

., a California
Member

lnc

By:

By:

S.. U. f

J:\cLlENÏS\WeslSideUSD\Mello\CFD No. 2oo7-1 Providence Banch (65047)\Formalion Docs\Final Docs\Rev¡sed Final Docs-Sept 200'.Miligalìon

Its:

Agreemenl-lA B-FlNAL.doc

Pag€ 14 of 16



EXI"IIBIT A

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION/LEGAL DËSCR¡PTION

3203-033-001
3203-033-002

3203-033-003

Page 15 of 16



EXþ{IBIT B

BOUNÞARY MAP

Page 16 of 16



WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. L8-44

Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District Declaring its Intention
to Establish Community Facilities District No. 2018-1 of the \üestside Union School District And
Improvement Area Nos. 1 and 2 Therein, To Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes within the
Proposed District and Approving Other Actions Related Thereto.

WHEREAS, the Westside Union School District (the "School District") has received a

petition, which meets the requirements of Sections 53318 and 53319 of the Government Code of the

State of California (the "Petition") signed by STG Montecito Vy'est, LLC, a California limited liability
company ("Owner"), requesting that the land described in Attachment "4" hereto (the "Property") be

included in a community facilities district; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the School District (the "Board of Trustees") desires to
adopt this resolution of intention as provided in Section 53321 of the Government Code of the State of
California to establish a community facilities district consisting of the territory described in
Attachment "4" hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, which the Board of Trustees hereby

determines shall be known as "Community Facilities DistrictNo. 2018-1 ofthe Westside Union School

District" ("CFD No. 2018-1" or the "District") pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 53311 of the Government Code (the "Act"), and,

within CFD No. 2018-l,Improvement Area Nos. 1 and2 therein (each an "Improvement Area" and,

collectively, the "Improvement Areas"), to frnance (1)the purchase, construction, modification,
expansion, improvement or rehabilitation of ceftain real or other tangible property described in
Attachment "8" hereto as "school Facilities" and incorporated herein by this reference (the "School
Facilities"), (2) the purchase, construction, rnodification, expansion, improvement or rehabilitation of
certain real or other tangible properly described in Attachment "8" hereto as "Other Facilities" and

incorporated herein by this reference (the "Other Facilities," and together with the School Facilities,
the "Facilities"), which Facilities have a useful life of five years or longer; and (3) the "Incidental
Expenses" described in Attachment "8" hereto, to be incurred in connection with financing the

Facilities and forming and administering CFD No. 2018-1 (the "Incidental Expenses"); and

WHEREAS, the School District and the Owner desire to enter into an Amended and Restated

School Facilities Mitigation Agreement, dated February 20, 2018 (the "Mitigation Agreement"),
pursuant to which, among other things, the Owner will agree to pay the costs of forming CFD
No.2018-1 and certain school mitigation amounts and the School District will agree to issue

ceftificates of compliance under cefiain circumstances, and

WHEREAS, the School District and the Owner desire to enter into a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement with Antelope Valley Union High School District ("AVUHSD"), with respect to
the Other Facilities to be owned and operated by AVUHSD (the "AVUHSD JCFA"); and

WHEREAS, the School District and Owner desire to enter into a Joint Community Facilities
Agreement with County Sanitation District No. 14 of Los Angeles County (the "Sanitation District")
with respect to Other Facilities to be owned and operated by the Sanitation District (the "Sanitation
District JCFA"); and



Westside Union School District
Resolution No. 1B-44- Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-1
Page Two

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees further intends to approve an estimate of the costs of the

Facilities and the Incidental Expenses; and 
i

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Board of Trustees to consider financing the Facilities and

the Incidental Expenses through the formation of CFD No. 2018-1 and the sale of bonded indebtedness

secured by special taxes within CFD No. 2018-1 in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000, consisting
of not to exceed bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 1 and not to exceed

bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 2, and to pay for the Facilities and the

lncidental Expenses and to pay debt service on the bonded indebtedness incured by CFD No. 2018-1

on behalf of the Improvement Areas, provided that the bond sales and special tax levies are approved
at an election to be held within each lmprovement Area and the special tax levies are approved at an

election to be held within each Improvement Area; and

WHEREAS, the Propefty is currently within the boundaries of Improvement Areas A and C

of Community Facilities DistrictNo. 2007-l of the Westside Union School District (the "Prior CFD");
and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Board of Trustees that, upon completion of the formation
of CFD No.2018-1 and the Improvement Areas, the Property shall be removed from the Prior CFD
and any and all obligation to pay the special tax within the Prior CFD shall cease and the lien created

by the Prior CFD shall be extinguished.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District does

resolve as follows:

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2. A community facilities district is proposed to be established under the terms of
the Act. It is fufther proposed that the boundaries of the community facilities district and the

Improvement Areas therein shall be as described in Attachment ",A," hereto, which boundaries shall,

upon recordation of the boundary map for CFD No. 2018-7, include the entirety of any parcel subject
to taxation by CFD No. 2018-1. The proposed boundaries of CFD No. 2018-1 and the Improvement
Areas therein are depicted on a map of CFD No. 2018-l which is on file with the Clerk of the Board
of Trustees (the "Clerk"). The Clerk is hereby directed to sign the original map of CFD No. 2018- I
and record it with all proper endorsements thereon with the County Recorder of the County of Los
Angeles within fifteen (15) days after the adoption of this resolution, all as required by Section 3111

of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California.

SECTION 3. The name of the proposed community facilities district shall be "Community
Facilities District No. 2018-1 of the Westside Union School District."

SECTION4. The Facilities proposed to be provided within CFD No.2018-l and the

Improvement Areas therein and to be financed by CFD No.2018-1 on behalf of the Improvement
Areas are public facilities as defined in the Act, which the School District, AVUHSD and Sanitation
District are, respectively, authorized by law to construct, acquire, own and operate. The Board of
Trustees hereby finds and determines that the description of the Facilities herein is sufficiently

2



\ü/estside Union School District
Resolution No. 18-44 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-1

Page Three

informative to allow taxpayers within proposed CFD No. 2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein

to understand what the funds of CFD No.2018-1 may be used to finance. The Incidental Expenses

expected to be incurred include the cost of planning and designing the Facilities, the costs of forming
CFD No.2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein, issuing bonds and levying and collecting a

special tax within CFD No. 2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein. The Board of Trustees hereby

finds that the proposed Facilities are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the School

District, AVUHSD and Sanitation District as a result of development planned to occur in CFD

No.20lB-1 and the Improvement Areas therein. The Facilities may be acquired from one or more

property owners as completed public improvements (or as discrete components) or may be constructed

from bond or special tax proceeds. All or a portion of the Facilities may be purchased with District
funds or discrete components as completed public facilities pursuant to Section 53314.9 of the Act
and/or constructed with District funds pursuant to Section 53316.2 of the Act. Any portion of the

Facilities may be financed through a lease or lease-purchase arrangement or other form of indebtedness

incurred by the School District or a joint powers authority of which the School District is a member (a

"JPA") if CFD No.20l8-1 hereafter determines that such arrangement, including, but not limited to,

certificates of parlicipation executed and delivered on behalf of the School District or bonds issued by
the School District or a JPA, is of benefit to CFD No. 2018-1 and its residents.

SECTION 5. Except where funds are otherwise available, it is the intention of the Board of
Trustees to levy annually in accordance with the procedures contained in the Act a special tax, secured

by recordation of a continuing lien against all nonexempt real property in CFD No. 2018- 1 and the

Improvement Areas therein, sufficient to pay for: (i) the Facilities and Incidental Expenses; and (ii) the

principal and interest and other periodic costs on bonds or other indebtedness issued by CFD No. 2018-

1 to finance the Facilities and the Incidental Expenses, including the establishment and replenishment
of any reserve funds deemed necessary by CFD No. 2018-1, and any remarketing, credit enhancement

and liquidity facility fees (including such fees for instruments which serve as the basis of a reserve

fund in lieu of cash). The rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the special

tax within the Improvement Areas are described in detail in Attachment "C" attached hereto, which
Attachment "C" is incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment "C" allows each landowner

within the proposed Improvement Areas to estimate the maximum amount that may be levied against

each parcel. In the first year in which such special tax is levied, the levy shall include an amount

sufficient to repay to the School District all amounts, if any, transferred to CFD No. 2018-l pursuant

to Section 53314 of the Act and interest thereon.

If specialtaxes of CFD No. 2018-l and the Improvement Areas therein are levied against any

parcel used for private residential purposes, (i) the maximum special tax rate shall not be increased

over time except that it may be increased by an amount not to exceed two percent (2%) per year to the

extent permitted in the applicable rate and method of apportionment; (ii) such tax shall be levied each

Fiscal Year until not later than Fiscal Year 2059-60, whichever comes earlier, as further described in
Attachment "C" hereto; and (iii) under no circumstances will the special tax levied against any parcel

used for private residential purposes be increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the

owner of any other parcel or parcels within an Improvement Area by more than ten percent (10%)

above the amount that would have been levied within such Improvement Area in that fiscal year had

there never been any such delinquencies or defaults.

3



Westside Union School District
Resolution ¡o. 18-44 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-l
Page Four

The Board of Trustees hereby determines that the proposed Facilities are necessary to meet the

increased demand placed upon the School District, AVUHSD and Sanitation District and existing

infrastructure as a result of the development of the land proposed for inclusion in CFD No. 2018-1 and

the improvement Areas therein. The Board of Trustees hereby determines the rate and method of
apportionment of the special tax set forth in Attachment "C" for each Improvement Area to be

reasonable. The special tax is apporlioned to each parcel on the foregoing basis pursuant to
Section 53325 .3 of the Act and such special tax is not on or based upon the value or ownership of real

property. In the event that a porlion of the properly within an Improvement Area shall become for any

reason exempt, wholly or partially, from the levy of the applicable special tax specihed on

Attachment"C," the Board of Trustees shall, on behalf of CFD No.201B-1 and the applicable
Improvement Area therein, cause the levy to be increased, subject to the limitation of the maximum
special tax for a parcel as set fofth in Attachment "C," to the extent necessary upon the remaining
propefty within the applicable Improvement Area which is not delinquent or exempt in order to yield
the special tax revenues required for the purposes described in this Section 5. The obligation to pay

special taxes witliin an Improvement Area rnay be prepaid as set forth in the rate and method of
apportionment applicable to such Improvement Area as set forth in AttachmenT"C" hereto.

SECTION 6. A public hearing (the "Hearing") on the establishment of the proposed CFD

No. 201 8- 1 and the Improvement Areas therein, the proposed rates and methods of apporlionment of
the special tax for each Improvement Area and the proposed issuance of bonds by CFD No. 2018-l on

behalf of the Improvement Areas to finance the Facilities and the Incidental Expenses shall be held at

5:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on May 15,2018, at Hillview Multipurpose Room, 40525

Peonzalane, Palmdale, CA 93551. Should the Board of Trustees determine to form CFD No. 2018-l
and the Improvement Areas therein, a special election will be held within the Improvement Areas to

authorize the issuance of the bonds and the levy of the special tax in accordance with the procedures

contained in Government Code Section 53326. If held, the proposed voting procedure at the elections

will be a landowner vote with each landowner who is the owner of record of land within each

Improvement Area at the close of the Hearing, or the authorized representative thereof, having one

vote for each acre or poftion thereof owned within the Improvement Areas. Ballots for the special

elections may be distributed by mail or by personal service.

SECTION 7. At the time and place set forth above for the Hearing, the Board of Trustees

will receive testimony as to whether the proposed CFD No.2018-1 and Improvement Areas therein
shall be established and as to the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax for each

lmprovement Area and shall consider:

(a) if an ad valorem propefty tax is currently being levied on propefty within
proposed CFD No.2018-l and the Improvement Areas therein for the exclusive purpose of paying

principal ofor interest on bonds, lease payments or other indebtedness incurred to finance construction
of capital facilities; and

(b) if the capital facilities to be financed and constructed by CFD No. 2018-l will
provide the same services as were provided by the capital facilities mentioned in subsection (a) above;

and

4



Westside Union School District
Resolution¡s. 1B-44 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-1
Page Five

(c) if the Board of Trustees makes the findings specified in subsections (a) and (b)

above, it will consider appropriate action to determine that the total annual amount of ad valorem
property tax revenue due from parcels within CFD No. 2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein, for
purposes ofpaying principal and interest on the debt identified in subsection (a) above, shall not be

increased after the date on which CFD No. 2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein are created, or
after a later date determined by the Board of Trustees with the concurrence of the legislative body
which levied the property tax in question.

SECTION 8. At the time and place set forth above for the Hearing, any interested person,

including all persons owning land or registered to vote within proposed CFD No.2018-l and the

Improvement Areas therein, may appear and be heard.

SECTION 9. Each School District officer who is or will be responsible for providing the

Facilities within proposed CFD No. 2018- 1, if it is established, is hereby directed to study the proposed

CFDNo.2018-1 andthelmprovementAreasthereinand,atorbeforethetimeoftheabove-mentioned
Hearing, file a report (which may be prepared by consultants) with the Board of Trustees containing a

brief description of the public facilities by type which will in his or her opinion be required to meet

adequately the needs of CFD No. 2018- I and the Improvement Areas therein and an estimate of the

cost of providing those public facilities, including the cost of environmental evaluations of such public
facilities and an estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of any Incidental Expenses to be incurred.

SECTION 10. CFD No. 2018-1 may accept advances of funds or work-in-kind from any

source, including, but not limited to, private persons or private entities, for any authorized purpose,

including, but not limited to, paying any cost incurred in creating CFD No.2018-1 and the

Improvement Areas therein. CFD No. 2018-1 may enter into an agreement with the person or entity
advancing the funds or work-in-kind, to repay all or a poftion of the funds advanced, or to reimburse
the person or entity for the value, or cost, whichever is less, of the work-in-kind, as determined by the

Board of Trustees, with or without interest. CFD No.20lB-l is hereby authorized to reimburse the

Owner, and its successors and assigns, for moneys advanced pursuant to the terms of the Mitigation
Agreement, the AVUHSD JCFA and the Sanitation District JCFA.

SECTION I 1. The Clerk is hereby directed to publish a notice (the "Notice") of the Hearing
pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government Code in a newspaper of general circulation published in

the area of proposed CFD No. 201 8- I and the Improvement Areas therein. The Clerk is further directed
to mail a copy of the Notice to each of the landowners within the boundaries of CFD No. 2018-1 and

the Improvement Areas therein at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Hearing. The Notice shall contain
the text or a summary of this Resolution, the time and place of the Hearing, a statement that the

testimony of all interested persons or taxpayers will be heard, a description of the protest rights of the

registered voters and landowners in the proposed District and the Improvement Areas therein and a
description of the proposed voting procedure for the elections required by the Act. Such publication
shall be completed at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the Hearing.

SECTION 12. The form of the amended Mitigation Agreement, AVUHSD JCFA and

Sanitation District JCFA on file with the Clerk of the Board of Trustees are hereby approved, and the

Superintendent of the School District, or her designee, is authorized to execute and deliver such

agreements, with such changes therein, deletions therefrom and modifications thereto as the

5



Westside Union School District
Resolution No. i 8-44 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-1

Page Six

Superintendent or her designee may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the

execution and delivery thereof.

SECTION 13. Except to the extent limited in any bond resolution or trust indenture related to
the issuance of bonds, the Board of Trustees hereby reserves to itself all rights and powers set forth in
Section 53344.1of the Act (relating to tenders in full or partial payment).

SECTION 14. In accordance with the provisions of Section 533 15.6 of the Government Code,

the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a copy ofthis resolution to the Clerk ofthe Board of Supervisors

of the County of Los Angeles.

SECTION 15. Upon completion of the formation of the CFD No. 2018-l and the

Improvement Areas therein, the Property shall be removed from the Prior CFD and any and all
obligation to pay the special tax within the Prior CFD shall cease and the lien created by the Prior CFD
shall be extinguished, as further evidenced by the School District's recordation of a notice of
cancellation and extinguishment of special tax lien of the Prior CFD with respect to the Property.

This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.

6



V/estside Union School District
Resolution No
Page Seven

L8-44- Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-l

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the V/estside Union School District this 3rd

day of April,2018, by the following vote:

AYES

NAYS ABSTAIN

President of the Board of Trustees

ATTEST

Clerk of the Board of Trustees

l



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)ss

couNTY oF LOS ANGELES)

I, Linda Jones, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District, California, do

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy ofResolutionNo. 18-44
of said Board of Trustees, and that the same has not been amended or repealed

Dated: April 3,2018

Clerk of the Board of Trustees



ATTACHMENT A

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1
OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT



SHEET 1 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

(1 ) Filed in the offce of the Clerk of the Board of Trus-
lees of the Westside Union School District thrs 

- 
day

o'l _,2o_

Clerk of the Board ofTrustees
Westside Union School Distr¡ct

Avenue J-6

Ø
ê

É

Ø

á

(2) I hereby ce¡1ify lhat the w¡thin map showing lhe
boundêries of Community Facilities District No. 2018-1

of the Westside Union School District, Los Angeles
County, State of California, was approved by the Board

of Trustees of the Westside Union School Diskict at

the regular meetìng thereof, held on this 

- 
day of

_, 20_ by its Resolution No. 

-.

@

a
n

CIerk of the Board of Trustees
Westside Union School District

(3) THIS IV]AP HAS BEEN FILED AT THE REQUËSÏ
OF WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, THIS

_ DAY OF 20_, AT

.t\r. lN BOOK 

-, 

AT PAGE

(S)- OF ASSESSIMENT MAPS.

LOS ANGELES COUNry
REGISTRAR _ RECORDER

BY:
DEPUTY RECORDER

Avenue J-8

LEGEND Reference is hereby made to the Assessor maps of
the County of Los Angeles for an exact description
of the lines and dimens¡ons of each lot and parcel.

Boundaries of lmprovement Area I

of Community Fac¡l¡t¡es District
Prepared bY:

Câlifornia Financial Seruices

@

o
f,

!

Ø

á

SpurAvenue

Avenue J-7



SHEET 2 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

L

Ø
ô

t

Ø

5 LEGEND

Boundar¡es of lmprovement Area 2

of Commun¡ty Fac¡lit¡es D¡slr¡ct

Avenue J-8

Reference is hereby made to the Assessor maps ofthe
County of Los Angeles for an exâct description of the
Iines and dimensions of each lot and parcel.

-

@
É

o
f

Avenue J-6

Avenue J-7

Spur Avenue

Aveôue J-6

@

-?
7o

@

o
f,

Avenue J-5

E



SHEET 3 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL D¡STRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENT AREAS
r',4ssessor's Pa¡cel /\lumbers)

IMPROVEMENT AREA 1 IMPROVEMENT AREA 2

3203-06't-088
3203-06'1-003

3203-06 1 -01 5

3203-061-016
3203-061-017
3203-061-01 8

3203-061-01 9

3203-061-020
3203-06 1-021

3203-061-O22
3203-061-023
3203-061-024
3203-061-025
3203-061-026
3203-061-O27

3203-061-028
3203-06'1-029

3203-061-030
3203-061-031
3203-061-032
3203-061-033
3203-061-034
3203-061-035
3203-061-036
3203-061-039
3203-061 -040
3203-061 -041
3203-061-042

3203-061-043
3203-061-044
3203-061-045
3203-061-046
3203-061-047
3203-061-048
3203-061-049
3203-061-050
3203-061-051
3203-06'1-052

3203-061-053
3203-061-054
3203-061 -055

3203-061-056
3203-061-057
3203-061-058
3203-061-059
3203-061 -060
3203-061-061
3203-061-062
3203-061-063
3203-061-064
3203-061-065
3203-061-066
3203-061-067
3203-061-068
3203-061-069
3203-061-070

3203-061 -071

3203-061 -072
3203-061 -073
3203-061-074
3203-061-089

3203-062-001
3203-062-002
3203-062-003
3203-062-004
3203-062-005
3203-062-006
3203-062-007
3203-062-008
3203-062-009
3203-062-010
3203-062-D11
3203-062-012
3203-062-013
3203-062-014
3203-062-015
3203-062-016
3203-062-017
3203-062-018
3203-062-019
3203-062-O20
3203-062-021
3203-062-O22
3203-062-023
3203-062-024
3203-062-025
3203-062-026
3203-062-027
3203-O62-O2a

3203-062-029
3203-062-030
3203-062-031

3203-062-032
3203-062-033
3203-062-034
3203-062-035
3203-062-036
3203-062-O37

3203-062-038
3203-062-039
3203-062-040
3203-062-041
3203462-042
3203462-043
3203-062-044
3203-062-045
3203-062-046
3203-062-047
3203-062-048
3203-062-049
3203-062-050
3203-062-051
3203-062-052
3203-062-053
3203-062-054
3203-062-055
3203-062-056

3203-062-057
3203-062-058
3203-062-059
3203-062-060
3203-062-061
3203-062-062
3203-062-063
3203-062-064
3203-062-065
3203-062-066
3203-062-067
3203-062-068
3203-062-069
3203-062-070
3203-061 -075
3203-061-076
3203-061-O77
3203-061-078
3203-061-079
3203-061-080
3203-061 -081

3203-061 -082
3203-061-083



ATTACHMENT B

TYPES OF FACILITIES TO BE FINANCED BY
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1
OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND IMPROVEMENT AREA NOS. 1 AND 2 THEREIN

The proposed public facilities eligible to be financed by CFD No. 2018-1 include:

1. The construction, purchase, modification, expansion, improvement or
rehabilitation of:

(a) School Facilities to be owned and operated by the Westside Union
School District including, without limitation, classrooms, multi-purpose,
administration and auxiliary space at a school, and interim housing, together with
furniture, equipment and technology, needed by the Westside Union School District in
order to mitigate the impact on school facilities of the student population to be

generated as a result of the development of the property to be included within CFD
No. 2018-1, together with all land or interests in land required for the construction of
such school facilities and all land or interests in land required to be provided by the

Westside Union School District as mitigation of environmental impacts associated with
the development of such school facilities, and central support and administrative
facilities, transpoftation and special education facilities, including any incidental
school administration and transpoftation center improvements (the "School
Facilities"); and

(b) Grades 9-12 school facilities to be owned and operated by the Antelope
Valley Union High School District, and all appurtenances and appuftenant work in
connection with the foregoing; and

(c) sewer facilities to be owned and operated by County Sanitation District
No. 14 of Los Angeles County and all appurtenances and appurtenant work in
connection with the foregoing; and

2. To finance the incidental expenses to be incurred, including

(a) The cost of engineering, planning and designing the Facilities;

(b) All costs associated with the creation of CFD No. 201 8- 1 , the issuance

of bonds by CFD No. 2018- 1, the determination of the amount of special taxes to be

levied and costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of
CFD No. 2018-l and administering CFD No. 2018-1.



ATTACHMENT C

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR
COMMUNITY FA,CILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1
OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

(TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1)



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TA)GS OF
IMPROVEMENT AREA 1 OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

NO. 2018-1OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

,A Special Tax (as defìned herein) shall be levied on and collected from ail Assessor's Parcels in
Improvement Ârea ("L{") 1 of Community tracilities District ("CFD") No. 2018-1 of the rJØestside

Union School District ("School Disuict") each Fiscal Year commencing in Fiscal Year 201'8/2019, in
ân amount deterrnined by the Board through the appJication of the Rate and Method of
Apporuonment of Special Taxes ("RM,A.") described below. Â11 the real property within the District,
unless exempted by law or by provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in
the manner herein provided.

SECTION A
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this RMA, the terms hereinafter set forth have the followrng meanings:

ttAcfeage tt means the number of acres of land area of an Assessot's Parcel as shown on an Assessor's

Patcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel Map, the Administrator may tely

on the land area shown on the applicable Final Map.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Communitres Facilties Act of 1,982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of TitIe 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

rrAdministrative Expenses" meâns any ordinary and necessary expense incurred by the Schooi

District on behalf of the District related to the determinatjon of the âmount of the levy of Special

Taxes, the collection of Special Taxes, including, but not Limlted to, the reasonable expenses of
collecting delinquencies, the administration of Bonds, the proporuonâte pâyment of salaries and

benefìts of any School District employee whose duties are directly related to the administration of the

District, and reasonable costs othelwise incurred in order to caffy out the authorized purposes of the

District including a proportìonate amount of School Distnct general administrative overhead related

theteto.

rrAdministrator" means an offìcial of the School District or designee theteof, responsible for
determining the ier.y and collection of the Special Taxes.

"Annual Special Tax" means the Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel.

ttAssessorts Parceltt means a parcel of land designated ou an Assessor's Parcel Map with an assigned

Assessor's Patcel Number within the boundaries of the District.

"Assessor's Parcel Muptt means an offìcial map of the Âssessor of the County designaung parcels

by .\ssessor's Parcel Number.

RMA - ROI Page 1, ,\priÌ3,2018



ttAssessorts Parcel Numbertt means that number assigned to an Assessor's Patcel by the County

for purposes of identifìcation.

"Assigned Annual Special Tax" means the Special Tax of that name described in Section D hereof.

rrBackup Annual Special Tax" means the Special Tax of thât nâme described in Section E hereof.

"Boardt' meâns the Governing Board (Board of Trustees) of the School Distlict, or its designee,

acting as the Legislative Body of the Disttrct.

ttBond Indexrt means the national Bond Buyer Revenue Index, commonly referenced as the 25-

Bond Revenue Index. In the event the Bond Index ceases to be published, the index used shall be

based on a comparable index for revenue bonds matuting in 30 years with an 
^veÍ^ge 

rating equivalent

to Moody's AL andf or Standatd & Poor's A*, as determined by the Board.

" Bond Yield'r means the yield of the last series of Bonds issued. For purposes of this calculation the

yield of the Bonds shall be the yield calculated at the time such Bonds are issued, putsuânt to Section

L48 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for the purpose of the Non-Arbitrage (Tax)

Certifìcate or other similar bond issuance document.

"Bonds" meâns any obligation to repay a sum of money, including obligattons in the form of bonds,
notes, certificates of participatron, long-term leases, loans from government agencies, or loans from
banks, other financial institutions, private businesses, or individuals, or long-term contracts, or âny

refunding theteof, to which the Special Taxes have been pledged for tepayment.

"Building Square Footage" or rf BSFrr means rhe square footage of assessable internal living space

of a Unit, exclusive of any carports, walkways, gatages, overhangs, patios, enclosed patios, detached

accessorJ structlue, other structures not used as living space, or any othet square footage exciuded

under Government Code Section 65995 as determined by reference to the buildrng petmit(s) for such

Unit.

t'City" means the City of Lancaster, CaLifonria.

t'County" means the County of Los Angeles, California.

"Developed Ptopertytr means all '\ssessor's 
Parcels of 'Iaxable Property for which building permit(s)

were issued on or before May 1 of the prior Fiscal Year, provided that such Â.ssessor's Parcels wete

created on or before January 1 of the prior Fiscal Yeat, as reasonably determined by the Administrator.

ItDistrictrr means IA 1 of Community Facilities District No. 2018-1 of the School District.

ttExempt Property" means all Assessor's Parcels designated as being exempt from Special Taxes

pursuant to Section I( hereof.

rrFinalMupttmeans afinalTractmap,parcelmap, lotlineadjustment,orfunctìonallyequivalentmap
or instmment that creates indrvidual Lots, recorded in the Of{ìce of the Counry Recorder.

"Fiscal Year" means the period commencing onJuly 1. of any year and ending on the followrngJune
30.

RMA - ROI Page 2 April3,201B



"Land Use Class or Classes" means the tax classifìcations depicted in Table 1 for all Assessor's

Parcel of Developed Property based on the Buiiding Square Footage of such Âssessot's Patcel.

rrLotrr means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map fot which a building permrt for residential

construction has been or could be issued.

ttMaximum Special Taxtt means for each Assessor's Patcel, the maximum Special Tax, determined

in accordance with Section C, which can be levied by the Disttict in a given Fiscal Year on such

A.ssessor's Parcel.

"Mitigation Agreementrr means the,\mended and Restated School Facilities Mitigation Agreement

made and entered into as of 

- 
-,201.8 

by and âmong the School District and STG Montecito
'West, LLC.

"Net Taxable Acreage" meâns the total Acreage of Developed Propety expected to exist within the

District after alL Final Maps are recorded.

rrPartial Prepayment Amountrr means the amount required to prepa)¡ a pottion of the Special Tax

obligation for an Assessor's Parcel as described in Section H hereof.

rrPrepayment Administrative Feesrr means any fees or expenses of the School District or the

Disttict associated with the prepâyment of the Special Tax obhgation of an Âssessor's Parcel.

Prepayment Administrative Fees shall include among other things the cost of computing the

Prepayment Amount, redeeming Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and

redemption of Bonds.

rrPrepayment Amount" means the amount required to prepay the Special Tax obligauon in full for
an Assessot's Parcel as described in Section G hereof.

I'PresentValue of Taxestt means for anyAssessor's Parcel the presentvalue of (i) the unpaidpottion,
if any, of the Annual Special Tax applicable to such Assessor's Parcel in the current Fiscal Year and

(ü) the Special Taxes expected to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel in each remaining Fiscal Year, as

determined by the Admlnistrator, until the termination date specified in Section J, but in no event

longer than 33 Fiscal Years. The discount râte used for this calculation shall be equal to (a) the Bond
Yield after Bond issuance or þ) the most recently published Bond Index prior to Bond issuance.

'rProportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Annual Special Tax levy to the applicable

Assigned Annual Special Tax is equal for all applicable Assessor's Parcels. In the case of Developed

Properry subject to apportìonment of the ,Annual Spectal Tax undet Step Four of Section F,

"Proportionately" shall mean that the quot-ient of (i) the Annual Special Tax less the Assigned,\nnual
Special Tax divided by (ü) the Backup ,A.nnual Special Tax less the Assigned,\nnual Special Tax is
equal for all applicable Assessot's Parceis.

I'Provisional Undeveloped Propertyrr means all 
'A.ssessor's 

Parcels of Taxable Property that would
othelwise be classifìed as Exempt Properry pursuant to Section I( but cannot be classifìed as Exempt
Property because to do so would reduce the Net Taxable Acreage below the required minimum
Acreage set forth in Section IÇ as appLicable.

RMÄ - ROI Page 3 April3,2018



rrReserve Fund Creditrr means ân amount equal to the lesser of (i) the reduction in the applicable

reserve fund requirement(s) resulting from the redemption of Bonds wlth the Prepayment -A.mount or
(ii) ten percent (1.0þ of the amount of Bonds which will be redeemed. If a surety bond or other
credit instrument satisfìes the reserve requirement or the reserve requirement is underfunded at the

time of the prepayment, no Reserwe F-und Credit shall be grven.

'rschool District" means the Westside Union School District, a pubhc school district organized and

operating pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California.

t'Special Taxtt means any of the special taxes authorized to be levied by the District pursuant to the

Act and this RMA.

"Special Tax Requirementrr means the amount required in any Fiscal Year to pay (i) the debt service

or the periodic costs on all outstandrng Bonds, (ü) Administrative Expenses, (üi) the costs associated

wrth the release of funds from an escrow âccount or accounts established in association wrth the

Bonds, (Ð u.y amount required to establish or replenish any reserve funds (or accounts thereof)
established in association wrth the Bonds, and (v) the collection or âccumulation of funds for the

acquisition or construction of schooi faciliues and certain costs associated with the maintenance and

operations of school facilities authorized by the District provided that the inclusion of such âmount
does not cause an increase in the levy of Special Tax on Âpproved Property, Undeveloped Properry,
or Provisional Undeveioped Property as set forth in Steps Two through Four of Section F, less (vi)

âny amount(s) available to pay debt serwice or other periodic costs on the Bonds pursuant to any

applicable bond indenture, fìscal âgent âgreement, trust agreement, or equivalent agreement or

document. In arriving at the SpecialTax Requirement, the Administrator shall take into account the

reasonably anucipated delinquent Special Taxes, provided that the amount included cannot cause the

Annual Special Tax of an Assessor Parcel of Developed Property to increase by greater than ten

percent (10%) of what wouid have otherwise been levied.

ttTaxable Ptopertyrr means all Assessor's Parcels which are not Exempt Property.

"Undeveloped Propertytt meâns all Á.ssessor's Parcels of Taxable Propertywhich ate not Developed
Property or Approved Property.

ttlJnittt meârìs each separate residential dwelling unit, including but not limited to, a single family
attached or detached unit, condominium, an apârtment unit, mobile home, or othelwise, excluding
hotel and motels.

RMÂ _ ROI Page 4 ,A.pril3,201B



SECTION B
CLASSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCELS

Each Fiscal Year, commencing wrth Fiscal Year 201,8/20L9, zL Ässessor's Parcels within the District
shall be classifìed as either Taxable Property or Exempt. In addition, each r\ssessor's Parcel of Taxabie
Property shall be classified as Developed Property, Undeveloped Property or Provisional
Undeveloped Property. Developed Property shall be further assigned to a Land Use Class, according
to Table 1 below, based on the Building Square Footage of each Unit.

Table 1

Land Use Classification

SECTION C
MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATE

1. Develoned Ptooertv

The Maxirnum Special Tax for each Á.ssessor's Parcel classified as Developed Properry shall be

the greater of the amount derived by the application of the (a) Assigned,A.nnual Special Tax or
(b) Backup ,A.nnual Special Tax.

2. Undeveloned Pronertv

The Maxrmum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Undeveloped Property or
Provisional Undeveloped Property shall be derived by the appìication of the ,{.ssigned Annual
Specral Tax.

1 < 2,350 sq. ft.

2 2,350 - 2,600 sq. ft.

3 2,601- 2,850 sq. ft.

4 2,851. - 3,100 sq. ft.

5 3,1.01- 3,350 sq. ft

3,351- 3,600 sq. ft.6

1 > 3,600 sq. ft.

RMA. ROI Page 5 April3,2018



SECTION D
ASSIGNED ANNUAI SPECIAL TAXES

1. Develoned Pronertv

The Assigned Annual Special Tax fot each -A.ssessor's Parcel of Developed Property will be

determined in accordance wrth Talle 2 below, subject to increases as described below.

Table2
Fiscal Yeat 2018/2019

Assigned Annual Special Taxes
for Developed Properry

2- IJndeveloned Pronertv and Provisional Undeveloned Pronertv

The Assigned -Annual Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel of Undeveloped Properry or
Provisional Undeveloped Property shall be $15,730.00 per acre of Acreage, subject to increases

as described below.

3. Increases in the Assigned Annual Special Tax

a. Develoned Ptonertv

On each July 1, commencingJuly 1, 201,9, the Assigned '\nnual Special Tax rate
applicable to Developed Property shall be increased by two percent (2.00o/o).

b. I]ndeveloned Pronertv and Provisional Undeveloned Prooertv

On each July 1, commencingJuly 1, 201,9, the Assigned Ännual Special Tax rate per
acre of Acreage for Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped Property shall

be increased by two percent (2.00%).

1, < 2,350 sq. ft. $1,958.00 per Unit

2 2,350 - 2,600 sq. ft. ff2,029.00 per unit

3 2,601. - 2,850 sq. ft. ff2,I67.00 per Unit

4 2,851 - 3,100 sq. ft. fi2,230.00 per Unit

ff2,257.00 per Untt5 3,L01 - 3,350 sq. ft.

$2,283.00 per Unit6 3,351 - 3,600 sq. ft.

7 > 3,600 sq. ft ff2,561..46 per Unit

RMA _ ROi Page 6 ,\pril3,201B



SECTION E
BACKUP ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

Each Fiscal Year, each Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property shall be subject to a Backup Ânnual
Special Tax.

1. Calculation of the Backup Annual Special Tax Rate

The Backup Annual Special Tax rate for an ,A.ssessot's Parcel of Developed Property within a

Final Map shall be the rate per Lot calculated in accordance with the followtng formula in
Fiscal Year 2018/2019 or such later Fiscal Year in which such Final Map is created, subject to
increases as described below:

B=0JxA)/r.

The terms above have the following meanings:

B Backup Ânnual Special Tax per Lot for the applicable Fiscal

Year

Asstgned Annual Special Tax per Acre of Undeveloped
Property in the Fiscal Year the calculation is performecl

Acteage of Taxable Property expected to exist within such

Final Map at the time of calculation, as detetmined by the

Administrator

U

A

I. Number of Lots within the applicable Final Map at the time
of calculation

2. Chanses to a Final Mao

If the Final Map(s) described in the preceding patagraph are subsequently changed or
modifìed, then the Backup Annual Special Tax for each Assessor's Patcel of Developed
Properry changed or modifìed in each such Final Map shall be a raÍe per square foot of
-Acreage calculated as follows:

a. l)etermine the total Backup Annual Special Tax revenue anticipated to apply to
the changed or modified Assessot's Parcels plior to the change or modifìcation.

b. The result of paragraph a above shall be drvided by the ,A.creage of Taxable
Properfy of the modrfied Assessot's Parcels, as reasonably determrned by the

Administrator.

c. The result of paragraph b above shall be drvided by 43,560. The result is the

Backup Ânnual Special Tax per square foot of Acreage that shall be applicable to
the modified Ässessor's Parcels, subject to increases as described below.

RMA. ROI Page 7 ,April3,201B



3. Increase in the Backup Annual Special Tax

EachJuly 1, commencing theJuly 1 following the initial calculation of the Backup Ännual
Special Tax rate for Developed Property within a Final Map, the Backup Annual Special Tax
for each Lot within such Final Map shall be increased by two percent (2.00o/o) of the amount
in effect the prior Fiscal Year.

SECTION F
METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT
OF THE ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

Commencing Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Board shall ler,1z

Ännual Special Taxes on all Taxabie Properry in accordance with the following steps:

Step One: The Special Tax shall be levied on each Assessot's Parcel of l)eveloped Property at

the Assigned Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Ässessor's Parcel.

Step Two: If addrtional moneys are needed to satrsfy the Special 'Iax Requirement after the fìrst
step has been completed, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each

Assessor's Parcel of Undeveloped Properry up to 1,000/o of the Assigned Ännual
Special Tax applicable to each such ,A.ssessor's Parcel as needed to satisE/ the Special
Tax Requirement.

Step Three: If additional moneys are needed to satisfii the Special Tax Requirement after the

second step has been completed, the Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of
Developed Property, for which the Maximum Special Tax is the Backup Annual
Special Tax, shall be increased Proportionately from the Ässigned Annual Special Tax
up to 100%o of the Backup Á.nnual Special Tax apphcable to each such ,{.ssessor's

Parcel as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.

Step Four: If additronal moneys are needed to satisS' the Special Tax Requirement after the third
step has been completed, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each

Assessor's Parcel of Provisional Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the -Assigned
Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessot's Parcel as needed to sausf' the

Speciai Tax Requirement.

RMA _ ROI Page 8 -April3,201B



SECTION G
PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES

1. Soecial Tax Preoavment Times and Conditions

The Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Propetty may be ptepaid, if
there are no delinquent Special 'Iaxes, penalties, or interest charges outstanding with respect
to such Assessor's Parcel. Ân owner of an Assessor's Parcel intending to prepây the Special

Tax shall provide the School Distlict with written notice of intent to prepay. Within thuty (30)

days of receipt of such written notice, the AdministÍator shall determine the Prepayment
Amount for such Á.ssessor's Parcel and shall notify such owner of such Prepayment Amount.

2. Snecial Tax Prenavment Calculation

'l-he Prepayment Âmount shall be calculated according to the followrng formula:

P=PVT-RF'C+Pr\F

The terms above have the followrng meanings:

P = Prepayment Amount

PVT = Ptesent Value of Taxes

RFC = Reserve Fund Credit

PAF = Prepayment Admlnistratrve Fees

Snecial Tax Prenavment Procedures and Limitations

The amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepâyment less the

Iìeserve Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of Bonds, be

deposited into a separate account held with the School District and disbursed in accordance

with the Mitigation Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be deposited into the

applicable âccount or fund established under the trust agreement, indenture agreement or
fìscal agent agreement and used to pay debt service or redeem Bonds. The amount
representing the Prepayment Admlnistrative Fees attributable to the prepayment shall be

retained and deposited into the applicable account by the District.

With respect to âny Â.ssessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax is prepaid, the Board shall

indicate in the records of the District that there has been a prepayment of the Speciai Tax
obligation and shall câuse a suitable notice to be recorded in compüânce with the Act to
indicate the prepayment of the Special Tax obligation and the release of the Special Tax lien
on such -Assessor's Parcel, and the obligation of such Assessor's Parcel to pay such Special Tax
shall cease.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no prepayment will be allowed uniess the amount of -Assigned
Annual Special Taxes that may be levied on -I'axable Propetty and net of Administrative

3

RMÀ _ ROI Page 9 ,\pril 3, 2018



Expenses excluding Provisional Undeveloped Properry, after such prepayment shall be at least

1.15 times the regulady scheduled annual interest and principal payments on all currently
outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such prepayment will not rmpait the securiry

of all currently outstanding Bonds, as reasonably determined by the A.dministrator. Such

determination shall include identi$'ing all ,\ssessor's Parcels th.at are expected to be classifìed

as ExemptProperty.

Notwithstanding the above, the ability to prepây the Special Tax obligation of an Assessot's

Parcel may be suspended, by the Ädministrator, acting in his or her absolution and sole

discretjon for and on behalf of the District, without notice to the owners of properry within
the District for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days, prior to the scheduled issuance

of Bonds by the District to assist in the effìcient preparation of the required bond market
disclosure.

SECTION H
PARTIAL PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES

1. Patial Prenavment Times and Conditions

The Special Tax obligation for Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Properry may be patually prepaid
in increments of ten (10) Units, provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes, penalties,

or interest charges outstanding with tespect to such Assessor's Parcels at the time the Special

Tax obligation would be partially prepaid. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel(s) intending to
parrially prepay the Special Tax shall provide the District with written notice of their intent to
parually prepay. ìØithin thirry (30) days of receipt of such written notice, the -Administrator
shall determlne the ParttalPrepayment Âmount of such Assessot's Parcel and shall notify such

owner of such Pattial Prepayment -Amount.

2. Partial Preoavment Calculation

The Parual Prepayment Amount shall be calculated according to the following formula:

PP=PVTxF-RFC+P'{F

The terms above have the followrng meanings:

PP = the Partial Prepayment,Amount

PVT = Present Value of Taxes

F the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's

Parcel is partìally prepaying the Special Tax
obhgauon

Reserwe Fund Credit

Prepayrnent Administrative F ees

RFC

Page 10RMÄ - IìOI

PAF

April3,201B



3. Partial Prenavment Procedures and Limitations

The amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepâyment less the

Reser-ve Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of Bonds, be

deposited into a separate account held with the School District and disbursed in accotdance
with the Miugation Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be deposited into the
applicable account or fund estabiished under the trust agreement or indenture agreement or
fìscal agent agreement and used to pay debt serwice or redeem Bonds. The amount
representing the Prepayment -Administrative Fees attributable to the ptepayment shall be

retained and deposited into the appücable account by the District.

'ù7ith respect to any,A.ssessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax obligation is partially prepaid,
the Board shali indicate in the records of the District that there has been a partial p{epayment
of the Special Tax obliganon and shall cause a suitable notice to be recorded in compliance
wlth the Act to indicate the partral prepâyment of the Special Tax obligation and the parual
release of the Special Tax lien on such Assessor's Patcel, and the obligation of such Á.ssessor's

Parcel to p^y such prepaid portion of the Special Tax shall cease. -Additionally, the notice
shall indicate that the Assigned ,A.nnual Special Tax and the Backup Annual Special Tax if
applicable for the Âssessor's Parcel has been reduced by an amount equal to the percentage

which was partially prepaid.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no patial prepâyment will be allowed unless the amount of
Special Taxes that may be levied on Taxable Property, excluding Provisional Undeveloped
Property, after such paraal prepayment, net of Administrative Expenses, shall be at least 1.15

times the regularly scheduled annual interest and principal pâyments on all curtently
outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such parual prepayment will not impair the
security of ali currently outstanding Bonds, as reasonably determined by the Admrnistrator.
Such determination shall include identifiiing all Assessor's Parcels that are expected to be

classi{ìed as Exempt Property.

Notwìthstanding the above, the ability to prepây the ,{.nnual Special Tax obÌ-igation of an

-A.ssessor's Parcei may be suspended, by the Administrator, acting in his or her absolution and

sole discretion for and on behalf of the District, wrthout notice to the owners of property
within the District for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days, priot to the scheduled

issuance of Bonds by the District to assist in the effìcient preparation of the required bond
market disclosure.

RMA _ ROI Page 11, Aplil3, 2018



SECTION I
ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX REMAINDER

In any Fiscal Year which the Special Taxes collected ftom Developed Property exceeds the amount
needed to make regulady scheduled annual interest and principal payments on outstanding Bonds and

pay Administlative Expenses, the School District mây use such amount fot acquisition, construction
or fìnancing of school facilities and certain costs associated wrth the maintenance and operations of
school facilities in accordance with the Act, District proceedings and other applicable laws as

determined by the Board.

SECTION J
TERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be levied for a term of three (3) triscal Years after the final maturity of the last

series of Bonds, provided that the Special Tax shall not be levied later than Fiscal Year 2058/2059.
I-Iowever, the Special Tax may cease to be levied in an earliet F-iscal Ycar iF the Board has detetmined
(i) that all required interest and principal payments on the Bonds have been paid, (ü) all authorized
facilities of the District have been acquired and all reimbursements have been paid, and (üi) all other
obligations of the District have been satisfìed.

SECTION K
EXEMPTIONS

The Administrator shall classify as Exempt Propety in the chronological order in which each Assessor

Parcel becomes (i) owned by the State of Cals.fornia, federal or other local governments, (ri) used as

places of worship and at;e exempt fuom ad aa/orem property taxes because they are owned by a religious
organizaTion (iii) owned by a homeowners' association, (iv) butdened with a public or utrl,ity

eâsements making impractical their utilizauon for other than the purposes set fotth in the easement,

or (v) any other Assessor's Parcels at the reasonable discretion of the Boatd, ptovided that no such

classification would reduce the Net Taxable Acreage to less than 11..1.24 actes of Acreage ("Minimum
Taxable Acreage").

Notwithstanding the above, the Administrator or Board shall not classify an Assessor's Parcel as

Exempt Property if such classification would reduce the sum of the ,A.creage of allTaxable Property
to less than the Minimum Taxable Acreage. Assessot's Patcels which cannot be classified as Exempt
Property because such classification would reduce the Acreage of all Taxable Property to less than the

Minimum Taxable Acreage will be classifìed as Provisional Undeveloped Property, as applicable, and

will continue to be subject to Special Taxes accordingly.

SECTION L
APPEALS

Any property owner claimrng that the âmount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may fìle
a written notice of appeal with the ,\dmlrustrator to be received by the Administrator not later than
six (6) months after having paid the fu'st installment of the Special Tax that is drsputed. The reissuance

or cancellation of a building permrt is not an eligible reason for appeal. In order to be considered
suffìcient, any notice of appeal must (i) speci{ìcally identify the property by address and Assessor's

Parcel Number, (i-i) state the amount in dispute and whether it is the whoie amount or only a portìon
of the Speciai Tax, (iii) state all grounds on which the property owner is disputing the amount ot

RMA _ ROI Page 12 April3, 2018



applicâtton of the Special Tax, including â reasonably detailed explanation as to why the amount or
applicauon of such Speciai Tax is incorrect, (iv) include all documentation, if any, in support of the

claim, and (v) be verifìed under penalty of perjury by the person who paid the Special Tax or his or
her guardian, executor or administrator. The Adrninisttator shall promptly review the appeal, and if
necessary, meet with the property owner, considet written and orai evidence regatding the amount of
the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the tepresentative's decision requires that the Special Tax
for an Assessol's Parcel be modlfied or changed in favor of the property owner, a cash refund shall

not be made (except for the last year of levy), but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on

that Assessor's Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Yeat(s) as the representative's decision shall indicate.

SECTION M
MANNER OF COLLECTION

The Speciai Tax shall be coilected in the sâme manne r and at the same time as ordinary ad uaÌorem

property taxes and shall be subject to the same penalties, the same procedure, sale and Lien priority in
the case of del.inquency; provided, however, that the District may directly bill all or a pottion of the

Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different Lime or in a different manner if necessary to meet

its fìnancial obligations, and if so collected, a delinquent penalty of ten percent (10%) of the Special

Tax will attach at 5:00 p.m. on the date the Special Tax becomes delinquent and interest at 1..5o/o pet
month of the Special Tax will attach on the July 1 aftcr the delinquency date and the fìrst of each

month thereafter until such Special Taxes ate paid.

RMA - ROI Page 1.3 April 3,2018



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1
OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

(TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2)



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TÆ(ES OF
IMPROVEMENT AREA 2 OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

NO. 201,8-1 OF THE WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

Â Special Tax (as defined herein) shall be levied on and collected from all Âssessor's Parcels in
Improvement Ärea ("I.A.") 2 of Community tracilìties District ("CFD") No. 2018-1 of the Westside

Union School District ("School District") each Fiscal Year commencing in Fiscal Year 2018/2019, in
an amount determined by the Board through the application of the Rate and Method of
,A.pporuonment of Special Taxes ("RMA") described below. All the real property wrthin the Disttict,
unless exempted by law or by provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in
the manner herein provided.

SECTION A
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of thts RMr{., the terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

ttAcfeagett means the number of acres of land area of anAssessor's Parcel as shown on an Âssessot's

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Á.ssessor's Parcel Map, the Administrator may rely
on the Iand area shown on the applicable Final Map.

rrActrr means the Mello-Roos Communities Facilities Âct of 7982, as amended, being Chapter2.5,
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Administrative Expenses" meâns any ordinary and necessary expense incurred by the School
District on behalf of the District related to the determination of the amount of the ler,ry of Special

Taxes, the coilection of Special Taxes, including, but not limited to, the reasonable expenses of
collecting deünquencies, the administrat-j.on of Bonds, the proporuonate payment of salaries and

benefìts of any School District employee whose duties ate directly telated to the administration of the
Distlict, and reasonable costs other-wise incurred in order to c rry out the authorized purposes of the
District including a proportionate amount of School District general administrative overhead related

thereto.

rrAdministtatorrr means an official of the School District or designee thereof, responsible for
determrning the ler,ry and coliection of the Special Taxes.

ttAnnual Special Taxtt means the Special Tax ievied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessot's Parcel.

ttAssessorts Parceltt meâlrs a parcel of land designated on an Âssessot's Parcel Map with an assigned

Ässessor's Parcel Number within the boundaries of the District.

"Assessor's Parcel Mrp" meâns an ofîtciaI map of the Assessor of the County designating patcels

by Assessor's Parcel Numbet.

RM,\ - ROI Page 1 Âpril3, 2018



ttAssessor's Parcel Numbettt meafls that number assigned to an ,{.ssessot's Parcel by the County
for putposes oF identification.

I'Assigned Annual Special Taxtt means the Special Tax of that name described in Section D hereof.

rrBackup Annual Special Taxt' means the Special Tax of that name described in Section E hereof.

"Board" means the Governing Board (Board of Trustees) of the School Disttict, or its designee,

acting as the Legislative Body of the District.

ttBond Indextt meâns the national Bond Buyer Revenue Index, commonly referenced as the 25-

Bond Revenue Index. In the event the Bond Index ceases to be published, the index used shail be

based on a cornparable index for revenue bonds maturing in 30 years u¡ith an average rating equivalent
to Moody's A1, and/or Standard & Poor's A*, as determined by the Board.

rrBond Yield" meâns the yield of the last series of Bonds issued. For purposes of this calculation the

yield of the Bonds shall be the yield calculated at the time such Bonds are issued, pursuant to Section

1.48 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for the purpose of the Non--Atbitrage (Tax)

Certifìcate or other similar bond issuance document.

"Bonds" meâns any obligation to repay a sum of money, including obligations in the form of bonds,
notes, certifìcates of partrcipatron, long-term leases, loans from government agencies, or loans ftom
banks, other financial institutions, private businesses, or individuals, or long-term contracts, or âny

refunding thereof, to which the Special Taxes have been pledged for repayment.

"Building Square Footage" or 'rBSFrr means the square footage of assessable internal living space

of a Unit, exclusive of arty carports, walkways, garages, overhangs, patios, enclosed patios, detached

accessory structure, other structures not used as living space,or 
^r-ry 

other square footage excluded

under Government Code Section 65995 as determined by reference to the building permit(s) for such

Unit.

tt Citytt meâns the City of Lancaster, Cahfornta

'rCounty" meâns the Counry of Los -Angeles, California

"Developed Properfy" meâns ali Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property fot which building permit(s)
were issued on or before May 1 of the prior Fiscal Year, provided that such Assessor's Parcels were

created on or before January 1 of the prior Fiscal Yeat, as reasonably determined by the Administrator.

"District" means IA 2 of Community Facilities District No. 2018-1 of the School District.

rrExempt Propertyrr meâns all Assessor's Parceis designated as being exempt from Special 'faxes

pursuant to Section I( hereof.

rrFinal Mup" means a final trâct mâp, parcel map, lot hne adjustment, or funcuonally equivalent map

or instmment that creates individual Lots, recorded in the Office of the County Recorder.

"Fiscal Year" meâl1s the period commencing onJuly 1, of any year and ending on the followingJune
30.

RMA _ 1ìOI Page 2 Âpril3, 2018



"Land Use Class or Classes" means the tax classifications depicted in Table 1 for all -Assessor's

Parcel of Developed Property based on the Building Square Footage of such Âssessor's Parcel.

"Lot'r meâns an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a building permit for residential
construction has been or could be issued.

rrMaximum Special Taxtt means for each Assessor's Parcel, the maximum Special Tax, determined
in accordance with Section C, which can be levied by the District in a given Fiscal Year on such

Assessot's Patcel.

ilMitigation Agreement" meâns the rA.mended and Restated School Facilities A4rugation Ägreement
made and entered into as of 

- 
-, 

2018 by and among the School District and STG Montecito
Iù(/est, LLC.

"Net Taxable Acreage" means the total Acreage of Deveioped Property expected to exist within the

District after aX, Final Maps are recorded.

"Partial Prepayment Amount'r means the amount required to prepay a porlion of the Special Tax
obligation fot an Assessor's Parcel as described in Section FI hereof.

"Prepayment Administrative Fees" means any fees or expenses of the Schooi District or the

District associated with the prepayment of the Special Tax obligauon of an Assessor's Parcei.

Prepayment Admlnistratrve Fees shail include among other things the cost of computing the

Prepayment Amount, redeeming Bonds, and recotding any notices to evidence the prepayment and

redemption of Bonds.

"Prepayment Amount" means the amount required to prepay the Spectal Tax obligation in full for
an Assessor's Parcel as descdbed in Section G hereof.

r?Present Value of Taxes" means for any Assessorrs Parcel the present value of (i) the unpaid portìon,
if any, of the Annual Special Tax applicable to such Assessor's Parcel in the current Fiscal Year and

(ii) the Special Taxes expected to be levied on such Assessot's Parcel in each remaining Fiscal Yeat, as

determined by the Admlnistrator, until the termination date specifìed in Section J, but in no event

ionger than 33 Fiscal Years. The discount rate used for this calculation shall be equal to (a) the Bond
Yield after Bond issuance or þ) the most recently published Bond Index pdor to Bond issuance.

"Proportionatelyr meâns that the ratio of the actual Annual Special Tax ler,y to the applicable

Assigned Annual Special Tax is equal for all applicable Âssessor's Parcels. In the case of Developed
Property subject to apportionment of the Annual Special Tax under Step Four of Section F,

"Proportionately" shali mean that the quotient of (i) the Annual Special Tax less the Assigned -Annual
Special Tax divided by (ü) the Backup Annual Special Tax less the Âssigned Annual Special Tax is
equal for all apphcable Assessor's Parcels.

"Provisional Undeveloped Propertyrr means all Assessor's Patcels of Taxable Property that would
othetwise be classifìed as Exempt Property pursuant to Section I( but cannot be classifìed as Exempt
Ptoperty because to do so would reduce the Net Taxable -Acreage below the tequired minimum
Acreage set forth in Section I(, as applicable.

RMA - 1ìOI Page 3 Apdl 3,2018



t'Rèserve Fund Ctedit" means an âmount equal to the lesser of (i) the reduction in the applicable
reserve fund requirement(s) resulting from the redemption of Bonds with the Prepayment -A.mount or
(ü) ten percent (1,0o/o) of the amount of Bonds which will be redeemed. If a surery bond or other
credit instrument satisfìes the reserve requirement or the reserve requirement is underfunded at the
time of the prepayment, no Reser-ve Fund Credrt shall be given.

frSchool Districttf meâns the Westside Union School District, a public school district organized and

operating pursuânt to the Constitution and laws of the State of California.

'r Special Tax" means any of the special taxes authorized to be levied by the District pursuant to the
Act and this RMÂ.

" Special Tax Requirementtr means the amount requred in any Fiscal Yeat to p^y (i) the debt service

or the periodic costs on all outstanding Bonds, (ü) Administrative Expenses, (il) the costs associated

with the release of funds from an escrow account or accounts established in association with the

Bonds, (Ð n.y amount required to establish or replenish any reser-ve funds (or accounts thereof)
established in association wrth the Bonds, and (v) the collection or accumulation of funds for the
acquisition or construction of school facilities and certain costs associated with the maintenance and

operations of school facillues authorized by the District provided that the inclusion of such âmount
does not cause an increase in the ler,ry of Special Tax on Approved Properfy, Undeveloped Propety,
or Provisional Undeveloped Properry as set forth in Steps Two through Four of Section F, less (vi)

any âmount(s) available to pây debt ser-vice or other periodic costs on the Bonds pursuânt to âny
applicable bond indenture, fìscal agent agreement, tn¡st agreement, or equivalent agreement or
document. In ariving at the SpecialTax Requirement, the Administlator shall take into account the
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes, provtded that the âmount included cannot cause the
,\nnual Special Tax of an Assessor Parcel of Developed Ptoperry to increase by greater than ten

percent (10%) of what would have otherwise been levied.

ttTaxable Propertytr means all Assessor's Parcels which are not Exempt Property.

"IJndeveloped Propert5ril means ali Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property rvhich are not Developed
Property or Approved Property.

"[Jnit" means each separate residential dwelling unit, inciuding but not ]imited to, a single famtly
attached or detached unit, condominium, an apartment unit, mobile home, or othelwise, excluding
hotel and motels.

RMA _ ROi Page 4 Âpril3, 2018



SECTION B
CIá.SSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCELS

Each Fiscal Year, commencing with Fiscal Year 201.8/2019, all Assessor's Parcels within the District
shall be classified as either Taxable Property or Exempt. In addition, each r{.ssessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property shall be classifìed as Developed Property, Undeveloped Property or Provisional

Undeveioped Property. Developed Property shall be further assigned to a Land Use Class, according

to Table 1 below, based on the Building Square Footage of each Unit.

Table 1

Land Use Classification

SECTION C
MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATE

1. Develooed Pronertv

The Maxlmum Special Tax for each Assessorrs Parcel classifi.ed as Developed Property shall be

the greater of the amount derived by the application of the (a) Assigned Annual Special Tax or

(b) Backup Annual Special Tax.

2. Undeveloned Ptonertv

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel ciassifìed as Undeveloped Properry or
Provisionai lJndeveloped Property shall be derived by the applicauon of the Assigned Annual
Special Tax.

I < 2,350 sq. ft.

2,350 - 2,600 sq. ft.2

3 2,601. - 2,850 sq. ft.

4 2,851. - 3,100 sq. ft.

5 3,1.01 - 3,350 sq. ft.

6 3,351. - 3,600 sq. ft.

> 3,600 sq. ft.7

RMA - ROI Page 5 -April3, 2018



SECTION D
ASSIGNED ANNUAL SPECIAI TAXES

1. Develoned Ptonertv

The Assigned Annual Special Tax for each ,{.ssessor's Parcel of Developed Property will be

determined in accordance with Tal:'Ie 2 below, subject to increases as described below.

Table 2
Fiscal Yeat 2018/2019

Assigned Annual Special Taxes
for Developed Propety

2. Undevelooed Prooeftv and Provisional Undeveloned Pronertv

The ,A.ssigned ,{.nnuai Spectal Tax for each ,\ssessor's Parcel of Undeveloped Properry or
Provisional Undeveloped Properry shall be $13,584.00 per acre of -Acreage, subject to increases

as described below.

3. Increases in the AssiÉ¡ned Annual Special Tax

Develoned Pronertva

On each July 1., commencing July 1, 2019 , the Âssigned ,A.nnual Special Tax rate
applicable to Developed Property shall be increased by two percent (2.00o/o).

b. Undevelooed Pronertv and Ptovisional Undeveloned Pronettv

On each July 1, commencing July 1, 2019, the Assigned Annual Special Tax nte per
acre of ,A.creage for Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped Property shall

be increased by rwo percent (2.000/0).

1 < 2,350 sq. ft. $1,958.00 per Unit

2 2}50 - 2,600 sq. ft. $2,029.00 per Unit

J 2,601. - 2,850 sq. ft. ff2]67.00 per Unit

4 2,851. - 3,100 sq. ft. fi2,230.00 per Unit

5 3,101 - 3,350 sq. ft. fi2,257 .00 per Unit

6 3,351. - 3,600 sq. ft. $2,283.00 per unit

7 > 3,600 sq. ft. fi2j61.46 per Unit

RN4r\ _ ROI Page 6 April 3,2018



SECTION E
BACKUP ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

Each Fiscal Year, each Ässessor's Parcel of Developed Ptoperry shall be subject to a Backup -Annual
Special Tax.

1. Calculation of the Backup Annual Special Tax Rate

The Backup ,Annual Special Tax rate for an Âssessor's Parcel of Developed Property within a

Final Map shall be the rate per Lot calculated in accordance wrth the following formula in
Fiscal Year 2018/201,9 or such later Fiscal Year in which such Final Map is created, subject to
increases as desclibed below:

B=(UxÌt)/L

The terms above have the following meanings

B Backup Â.nnual Special Tax pet Lot for the applicable Fiscal

Year

Assigned -Annual Special Tax per Acre of Undeveloped
Property in the F'iscal Year the calculation is performed

Âcreage of Taxable Property expected to exist within such

Final Map at the trme of calculation, as determined by the

,A.dministratot

L Number of Lots within the applicable Final Map at the time
of calculation

2. Changes to a Final Mao

If the Final Map(s) described in the preceding paragraph are subsequently changed or
modifìed, then the Backup Ännual Special Tax for each Âssessor's Parcel of Developed
Property changed or modifìed in each such Final Map shall be a rate per square foot of
Acreage calculated as follows:

a. Determine the total Backup -Annual Special Tax revenue anticipated to apply to
the changed or modified Assessot's Parcels prior to the change ot modifìcation.

b. The resuit of pangraph a above shall be divided by the ,A.creage of Taxable
Properry of the modified Âssessor's Parcels, as reasonably determined by the

Administrator.

c. The result of paragraph b above shall be divided by 43,560. The result is the

Backup Annual Special 
-fax per square foot of Acreage that shall be applicable to

the modifìed A.ssessor's Parceis, subject to increases as described below.

U

A

RM,{ _ ROI Page 7 ,4.pti13,2018



3. Increase in the Backup Annual Special Tax

Each July 1, commencing the July 1 following the initial calculation of the Backup Annual
Special Tax rafe for Developed Property within a Final Map, the Backup -Annual Special Tax
for each Lot within such Final Map shall be increased by two percent (2.00"/ù of the amount
in effect the prior Fiscal Year.

SECTION F
METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT
OF THE ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

Commencing Fiscal Year 201,8/2019 and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Board shall ievy

-Annual Special Taxes on all Taxable Property in accordance wrth the following steps:

Step One: The Special Tax shall be levied on each Á.ssessor's Parcel of Developed Property at

the r\ssigned Ânnual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's Parcel.

Step Two: If additronal moneys are needed to satrsfy the Special Tax Requirement after the fìrst
step has been completed, the Special Tax shall be levied Propottionately on each

Assessot's Parcel of Undeveloped Property up to 1'00o/o of the Assigned Annual
Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's Parcel as needed to satisfy the Speciai

Tax Requirement.

Step Three: If additional moneys are needed to satrsfy the Special Tax Requirement after the

second step has been completed, the Speciai Tax on each -Assessor's Parcel of
Developed Property, fot which the Maximum Special Tax is the Backup Annual
Special Tax, shali be increased Proportionately from the Assigned ,\nnual Speciai Tax
up to 10070 of the Backup Annual Special Tax applicable to each such ,{.ssessot's

Parcel as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.

Step Four: If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement after the third
step has been completed, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each

Assessor's Parcel of Provisional Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Assigned
Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's Parcel as needed to satisfy the

Special Tax Requirement.

RMA _ ROI Page 8 ,April3,201B



SECTION G
PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES

1. Snecial Tax Preoavment Times and Conditions

The Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid, if
there ate no del-inquent Special Taxes, penalties, or interest charges outstanding with respect

to such -Assessot's Parcel. An owner of an ,{ssessor's Parcel intending to prepây the Special
Tax shall provide the School Dístrict with written notice of intent to prepay. Within thtrty (30)

days of receipt of such written notice, the Administrator shall determine the Prepayment
Amount for such Á.sse ssor's Parcel and shall notify such owner of such Prepayment Amount.

2. Snecial Tax Preoavment Calculation

The Prepayment Á.mount shall be calculated according to the following formuia:

P=PVT-RFC+PÄF

The terms above have the following meanings:

P = Prepayment Âmount

PVT = Present Vaiue of Taxes

RtrC = Reserwe Fund Credit

PAF' = Prepayment Ädmtnistratrve Fees

Snecial Tax Prenavment Procedures and Limitations

The amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepâyment less the
Reserve Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of Bonds, be
deposited into a separate account held with the School District and disbursed in accordance
with the Mitigatron -Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be depostted into the

applicable account or fund establ,ished under the trust agreement, indenture agreement or
fiscal agent agreement and used to pây debt serwice or redeem Bonds. The amount
representing the Prepayment Âdmlnistrative Fees attributable to the prepayment shall be
retained and deposited into the applicable account by the District.

\7ith respect to any Assessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax is prepaid, the Board shall
indicate in the records of the District that there has been a prepayment of the Special Tax
obligauon and shall cause a suitable notice to be recorded in compliance with the Act to
indicate the prepayment of the Special Tax obligation and the release of the Special Tax lien
on such Assessor's Parcel, and the obligation of such Assessor's Parcel to pay such Special Tax
shali cease.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no prepâyment wìll be ailowed unless the amount of Assigned

-Annual Special Taxes that may be levied on Taxable Property and net of Administrative

3

RMÄ - IìOI Page 9 April3, 2018



Expenses excluding Provisional lJndeveloped Property, aftet such prepâyment shall be at least

1.15 times the regulariy scheduled annual interest and principal payments on all currently
outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such prepayment will not impair the securiry

of all currently outstanding Bonds, as reasonably determined by the Âdministrator. Such

determination shall inciude identi$ring all Assessor's Parcels that are expected to be classified

as ExemptPropefty.

Notwithstanding the above, the ability to prepay the Special Tax obligation of an -Assessor's

Parcel may be suspended, by the .Administrator, acting in his or her absolution ând sole

discretion for and on behalf of the District, without notice to the owners of property within
the Disttict for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days, prior to the scheduled issuance

of Bonds by the District to assist in the ef{ìcient preparation of the required bond market
disclosure.

SECTION H
PARTIAL PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES

1. Patial Prenavment Times and Conditions

The Special Tax obligatron for Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Properry may be panally prepaid
in increments of ten (10) Uníts, provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes, penalties,

or interest charges outstanding with tespect to such Assessot's Patcels at the time the Special

Tax obligation would be partiaily prepaid. An owner of an Ässessor's Parcel(s) intendrng to
partially prepay the Speciai Tax shall provide the District with written notice of thet intent to
parually prepây. N7ithin thtty (30) days of receipt of such written notice, the Administrator
shall determine the ParttalPrepayment Amount of such Assessor's Parcel and shall noriSr such

ov/ner of such Partial Prepayment Amount.

2. Partial Preoavment Calculation

The Parual Prepayrnent Âmount shall be calculated according to the following formula:

PP=PVTxF-RFC+PAF

The terms above have the following meanings

PP

PVÏ

tr

RFC

the Partial Prepayment Amount

Present Value of Taxes

the percent by which the owner of the Âssessor's
Parcel is pattially prepa)¡lng the Special Tax
obligation

Iìeserwe Fund Credrt

Prepaymeut Administratlve Fees

Page 10RM,{ - ROI

PAF

April3,201B



3. Patial Prenavment Procedures and Limitations

'Ihe amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepayment less the

Reserwe Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of Bonds, be

deposited into a separate account held with the School Distrìct and disbursed in accordance
wrth the Mitigation Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be deposited into the

applìcable account or fund established under the trust agreement or indenture agreement or
fiscal agent agreement and used to pay debt serwice or redeem Bonds. The amount
representing the Prepayment Administrative Fees attlibutable to the prepayment shall be

retained and deposited into the applicable account by the District.

l7ith respect to any Assessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax obìigaúon is partially ptepaid,
the Board shall tndicate in the records of the District that there has been a partial prepayment
of the Special Tax obligation and shall cause a suitable notice to be recorded in compliance
wrth the Act to indicate the parual prepayment of the Special Tax obligauon and the partral
release of the Special Tax lien on such Á.ssessor's Parcel, and the obligation of such Ässessor's

Parcel to pay such prepard portion of the Special Tax shall cease. Additionally, the notice
shall indrcate that the Assigned Annual Special Tax and the Backup Annual Special Tax if
applicable for the Assessor's Parcel has been reduced by an amount equal to the percentage
which was partially prepaid.

Notwithstandrng the foregoing, no partial prepayment will be allowed unless the amount of
Special 'Iaxes that may be levied on Taxable Property, excluding Provisional lJndeveloped
Property, after such partiai prepayment, net of Administrative Expenses, shall be at least 1..15

times the regularly scheduled annual interest and principal payments on all curtently
outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such parual prepayment will not rmpair the

security of all currently outstanding Bonds, as reasonably determined by the -Administtator.
Such determination shall include identifying all Assessor's Parcels that are expected to be

classifìed as Exempt Property.

Notwithstanding the above, the ability to prepây the Ânnual Special Tax obl-rgation of an

Âssessor's Parcel may be suspended, by the Admrnistrator, acting in his or her absolution and

sole discretion for and on behalf of the District, without notice to the owners of property
within the District for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days, prior to the scheduled
issuance of Bonds by the District to assist in the efficient preparation of the required bond
market disclosure.

RMA - ROI Page I1 April 3, 2018



SECTION I
ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX REMAINDER

In any Fiscal Year which the Special Taxes collected from Developed Property exceeds the amount
needed to make regularly scheduled annual interest and principal payments on outstanding Bonds and

pay Administrative Expenses, the School District may use such amount for acquisition, construction
or fìnancing of school facilities and certain costs associated with the maintenance and operations of
school facilities in accordance wrth the -A.ct, Disttict proceedings and other applìcable laws as

determined by the Board.

SECTION J
TERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be levied for a term of thtee (3) triscal Years after the fìnal maturiry of the last

series of Bonds, provided that the Special Tax shall not be levied later than Fiscal Year 2058/2059.
However, the Special Tax rnay ceâse to be levied in an eadier Fiscal Year if the Board has determined
(i) that all required interest and principal payments on the Bonds have been paid, (ü) all autholized
facilities of the District have been acquired and all reimbursements have been paid, and (iii) all other
obligatìons of the District have been satisfìed.

SECTION K
EXEMPTIONS

The ,A.dministrâtor shall classify as Exempt Property in the chronological order in which each Â.ssessor

Parcel becomes (i) owned by the State of Cah.fornia, federal or other local governments, (ü) used as

places of worship and are exempt from ad ualorem ptopenty taxes because they are owned by a religious

organrzation, (üi) owned by a homeowners' associatìon, (iv) burdened with a public or utrlity
easements making impractical their utilization for other than the purposes set forth in the easement,

or (v) any other -A.ssessor's Patcels at the reasonable discretion of the Boatd, provided that no such

classifìcation would reduce the Net Taxable -Acreage to less than 1.2.21 4 acres of Acreage ("Minimum
Taxable Acreage").

Notwithstanding the above, the Administrâtor or Board shall not classify an Assessor's Parcel as

Exempt Property if such classifìcation would reduce the sum of the ,\creage of ali Taxable Property
to less than the Minimum Taxable Acreage. Assessor's Patcels which cannot be classified as Exempt
Property because such classification would reduce the Acreage of all Taxable Property to less than the
Minimum Taxable,A.creage will be classifìed as Provisional Undeveloped Property, as appl-icable, and

will continue to be subject to Special Taxes accotdingly.

SECTION L
APPEALS

-A.ny property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may fìie

a written notice of appeal with the -Admlnistrator to be received by the Âdministrator not later than

six (6) months after having paid the fìrst installment of the Special Tax that ts drsputed. The teissuance

or cancellation of a building permrt is not an eligible reason for appeal. In order to be considered
suf{ìcient, any notice of appeal must (i) specifìcally identify the property by address and Assessor's

Parcel Number, (ü) state the amount in dispute and whether it is the whole amount or only a portion
of the Special Tax, (iii) state all grounds on which the property owner is drspuung the amount or

RMA - ROI Page 12 April3,20i8



application of the Special Tax, including a reâsonably detailed explanation as to why the amount or
applicauon of such Special Tax is incorrect, (rv) include all documentation, tf any, in suppott of the

claim, and (v) be verifìed under penalty of perjury by the person who paid the Special Tax or his or
her guardian, executor or administrator. The Administrator shall promptly teview the appeal, and if
necessâry, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of
the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative's decision requires that the Speciai Tax
for an rA.ssessor's Parcel be modifìed or changed in favor of the property owrìet, a cash refund shall

not be made (except for the last year of lerry), but an adjustment shall be made to the Speciai Tax on

that Assessor's Patcel in the subsequent Fiscai Year(s) as the representâtivers decision shall indicate.

SECTION M
MANNER OF COLLECTION

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same mânner and at the same time as ordinary ad ualorem

property taxes and shall be subject to the same penalties, the same procedure, sale and lien priority in
the case of delinquency; provided, however, that the District may directly bill all or a portion of the

Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet
its fìnancial obligations, and if so collected, a delinquent penalty of ten percent (1,0o/o) of the Special

Tax will attach at 5:00 p.m. on the date the Special Tax becomes delinquent and interest at 1..5o/o per
month of the Special Tax wrll attach on the July 1 after the delinquency date and the first of each

month thereafter until such Special Taxes are paid.

RMA _ ROI Page 1.3 ,{pril 3, 2018



WESTSIDE UNIONI SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 18-45

Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District Declaring its
Intention to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Community Facilities District No. 2018-1 of the

Westside Union School District and Improvement Area Nos. I and 2 Therein

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District (the "Board of
Trustees") upon receipt of a petition as provided in Section 53318 of the Government Code of the State

of California instituted proceedings to form Community Facilities DistrictNo. 2018-l of the Westside
Union School District ("CFD No. 20 l 8- 1 " or the "District"), and Improvement Area Nos. 1 and 2
therein (each an "Improvement Area" and, collectively, the "Improvement Areas"), pursuant to the
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, commencing with Section 5331 1 of the Government
Code of the State of California (the "Act"), as amended, pursuant to Resolution No. I 8-45 adopted by
the Board of Trustees on the date hereof (the "Resolution of Intention to Establish the District") to
finance (l) the purchase, construction, modification, expansion, improvement or rehabilitation of the
facilities, including School Facilities and certain Other Facilities, identified in Attachment "B" to the
Resolution of Intention to Establish the District and incorporated herein by this reference (collectively,
the "Facilities"); and (2) the incidental expenses to be incurred in financing the Facilities and forming
and administering CFD No.2018-1 and the Improvement Areas therein (the "Incidental Expenses");
and

WHERBAS, the Board of Trustees estimates that the amount required to finance the Facilities
and the Incidental Expenses is approximately $10,000,000 for CFD No.2018-1, consisting of
approximately $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. I and approximately $5,000,000 for
Improvement Area No. 2; and

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Facilities and the Incidental Expenses, the Board of
Trustees intends to authorize the issuance of bonds by the District on behalf of each Improvement Area
in a maximum aggregate principal amount not to exceed $10,000,000, consisting of not to exceed

bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 1 and not to exceed bonded
indebtedness of $5,000,000 for lmprovement Area No. 2 (collectively, the "Bonds"); and

WHBRBAS, CFD No. 2018-l proposes to issue the Bonds on behalf of each Improvement
Area, as further described herein; and

WHBREAS, the repayment of the Bonds is to be secured by special taxes levied in the
applicable Improvement Area in accordance with the Act, in each case excluding those properties
exempted from taxation in the rate and method of apportionment for the applicable Improvement Area
as set forth in Attachment "C" to the Resolution of Intention to Establish the District and the
Improvement Areas therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District does

resolve as follows:

{005 59690}

SECTION l. The above recitals are true and correct.



Westside Union School District
Resolution No. 18-45 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 20 i 8- I
Page Two

SECTION 2. It is necessary to incur bonded indebtedness within the proposed boundaries
within proposed CFD No.2018-1 in a maximum principal amount not to exceed 510,000,000,
consisting of not to exceed bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. I and not
to exceed bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 2, secured by special taxes

in the applicable Improvement Area to finance the costs of the Facilities and the Incidental Expenses,

as permitted by the Act.

SECTION 3. The Bonds will be issued for the purpose of financing the costs of the Facilities
and the Incidental Expenses, including, but not limited to, funding the reserve funds for the Bonds,
financing the costs of issuance of the Bonds and all other costs and expenses necessary to accomplish
such purpose and which are permitted to be fìnanced pursuant to the Act.

SECTION 4. It is the intent of the Board of Trustees to authorize the sale of Bonds secured
by special taxes in one or more series, in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $10,000,000,
consisting of not to exceed bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 1 and not
to exceed bonded indebtedness of $5,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 2, and at a maximum interest
rate not in excess of l2 percent (12%) per annum, or a higher rate not in excess of the maximum rate
permitted by law at the time that the Bonds are issued. The term of the Bonds of each series shall be

determined pursuant to a resolution of this Board of Trustees acting in its capacity as the legislative
body of the District authorizing the issuance of the Bonds of such series, but such term shall in no

event exceed 30 years from the date ofissuance ofthe Bonds ofsuch series, or such longer term as is

then permitted by law. The Board of Trustees acting in its capacity as the legislative body of the
District shall determine the terms of repayment of the Bonds of each series pursuant to a resolution
authorizing the issuance of such Bonds. The Board of Trustees reasonably expects to reimburse the
Westside Union School District and/or the owner of the land within CFD No.2018-1 and the
Improvement Areas therein for any expenditures made prior to the issuance of the Bonds to pay for the
Facilities with a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is expected to be

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

SECTION 5. A public hearing (the "Hearing") on the proposed debt issue shall be held at

5:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as practicable, on May 15,2018, at Hillview Multipurpose Room, 40525

Peonza Lane, Palmdale, CA.

SECTION 6. At the time and place set forth in this Resolution for the Hearing, any interested
persons, including all persons owning land or registered to vote within the proposed CFD No. 2018-i
and the Improvement Areas therein, may appear and be heard.

SECTION 7. The Clerk is hereby directed to publish a notice (the "Notice") of the Hearing
pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government Code in a newspaper of general circulation published in
the area of the proposed CFD No. 2018-l and the Improvement Areas therein. Such publication shall
be completed at least seven days prior to the date of the Hearing. The Clerk is further directed to mail
a copy of the Notice to each of the landowners within the boundaries of proposed CFD No. 2018- 1 and

the Improvement Areas therein at least 15 days prior to the Hearing.

2{00559690 }



Westside Union Sohool District
Resolution No. 18-45 - Declaring Intention to Form CFD No. 2018-l
Page Three

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District this 3rd
day of April, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES: ABSENT

NAYS: ABSTAIN:

President of the Board of Trustees

ATTEST

Clerk of the Board of Trustees

J{005 59690}



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)ss

cor.rNTY oF Los ANGELES)

I, Linda Jones, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District, California, do

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. l8-45 of
said Board of Trustees, and that the same has not been amended or repealed.

Dated: April 3,2018

Clerk of the Board of Trustees

{00559690 }



RESOLUTION NO. rB_46

RESOLUTION APPROVING BOUNDARY MAP F'OR WESTSIDB I]NION
SCHOOL DISTRICT COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.2OI8-I, AND

IMPROVBMENT AREA NOS. 1 AND 2 THBREIN

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the Westside Union School
District ("District") proposes to form Westside Union School District Community
Facilities District No. 2018-l and designate Improvement Area No. I and Improvement
Area No. 2 therein; and

WHEREAS, a map ("Map") entitled "BOUNDARY MAP, COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-I, WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, LOS
ANGELES COLINTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA," setting fofth the boundary area of
the proposed community facilities district has been filed with the Clerk of the District and

is attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution as Exhibit "A"; and

WHEREAS, California Streets and Highways Code section 3110 requires that the
Board describe the proposed boundaries of the community facilities district and that the
Map otherwise comply with the requirements of Section 31 10.

NOW, THEREFORE, THB BOARD OF TRUSTBES DOES HBREBY
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDBR AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Board approves the Map and adopts the boundaries shown on the Map
as describing the extent of the territory included in proposed Westside Union School
District Community Facilities District No. 201 8- I , with Improvement Area Nos. I and 2.

2. The Board frnds that the Map is in the form and contains the matters
prescribed by Section 3110 of the California Streets and Highways Code.

3. The Board directs the Clerk to certify the adoption of this Resolution on
the face of the Map, and to file a copy of the Map with the County Recorder of the
County of Los Angeles for placement in the Book of Maps of Assessment and

Community Facilities Districts no later than 15 days aÍter adoption of the Resolution of
Intention To Form Comrnunity Facilities District and Levy a Special Tax.

ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Westside Union School District at a
duly called and noticed meeting, of which the public was provided due notice, and at

which a quorum of said Board were in attendance, conducted in Palmdale, California, on
the 3rd day of April, 2018 by the following vote.



AYES:

NOES

ABSENT/ABSTAIN

ATTEST

President, Board of Trustees
Westside Union School District

Clerk, Board of Trustees
Westside Union School District



BXHIBIT "A''

BOTINDARY MAP OF PROPOSED BOLINDARIES OF WESTSIDE LTNION
SCHOOL DISTRICT COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1, WITH
IMPROVEMENT AREA NOS. I AND 2, LOS ANGELES COI-INTY, STATE OF

CALIFORNIA



SHEET 1 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COIV]MUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

(1 ) Filed in the ofñce of the Clerk of the Board of Trus-
tees of the Westside Union School District this _ day
a't _,20_

CIerk of the Board of Trustees
Westside Union School District

Avenue J-6

É

Ø

É

(2) I hereby cedify that the w¡thin map showìng the

boundaries ot Community Facilities Diskicl No. 201 8-'1

of the Westside Union School Dìstrjct, Los Angeles
County, State of California, was approved by the Board

of Trustees of the Westside Union School District at

the regular meeting thereof, held on this _ day of

_, 20_ by ils Resolution No. _.
@

v
Clerk of the Boârd of Trustees

Westside Union School Diskict

(3) THIS MAP HAS BEEN FILED AT THE REQUEST
OF WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, THIS

_ DAY OF 20_, AT

.[.4. lN BOOK _, AT PAGE
(S)- OF ASSESSI\,IENÏ I\¡APS.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY
REGISTRAR _ RECORDER

BY:
DEPUTY RECORDER

Avenue J-8

LEGEND Reference is hereby made to the Assessor maps of
the County of Los Angeles for an exact descripl¡on
otthe lines and dimensions ofeach lot and parcel.Boundaries of lmprovement Area I

of Community Fac¡lities District
Prepared by:

Cal¡fornia Financial Seruices

@

o
a

!

F

Avenue J-7

F

SpurAvenue



SHEET 2 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018.1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

L

Ø

ã

É LEGEND

Boundaries of lmprovement Area 2

of Commun¡ty Facilities D¡str¡ct

Avenue J-8

Reference is hereby made to the Assessor maps of the

County of Los Angeles for an exact description of the

lines and dimensions of each lot and parcel.

-

@

o
f

Avenue J-6

SpurAvenue

Avenue J-7

Avenue J-6

@

a
n

@
q

o
f

Avenue J-5

T



SHEET 3 OF 3 BOUNDARY MAP OF
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-1

WESTSIDE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOS ANGELES COUNTY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENT AREAS
(Assessor's Parcel N um bersl

IMPROVEMENT AREA 1 IMPROVEMENT AREA 2

3203-061-088
3203-06 1-003
3203-061 -015
3203-06't -016
3203-061 -0 f 7

3203-06'1-01 I
3203-06't-019
3203-061-020
3203-061-02'1

3203-061-022
3203-061-023
3203-061-024
3203-061-025
3203-06'f-026
3203-061-027
3203-061-028
3203-061-029
3203-061-030
3203-061-031
3203-06't-032
3203-061-033
3203-061-034
3203-061-035
3203-061-036
3203-061-039
3203-061-040
3203-061-041
3203-061-042

3203-061-043
3203-06'1-044

3203-061-045
3203-061-046
3203-061-047
3203-061-048
3203-061-049
3203-061-050
3203-061 -05'1

3203-06'1-052
3203-061-053
3203-061-054
3203-061-055
3203-061-056
3203-061-057
3203-061-058
3203-061-059
3203-06't-060
3203-061 -061

3203-061-062
3203-061-063
3203-061-064
3203-061-065
3203-06't-066
3203-061-067
3203-06't-068
3203-061-069
3203-061-070

3203-061 -07 1

3203-061-O72
3203-061-073
3203-O6',t-074
3203-061-089

3203-062-00'1
3203-062-OO2
3203-062-003
3203-062-004
3203-062-005
3203-062-006
3203-062-007
3203-062-008
3203-062-009
3203-062-010
3203-062-011

3203-062-012
3203-062-013
3203-062-014
3203-062-01 5

3203-062-016
3203-062-017
3203-062-018
3203-062-019
3203-062-020
3203-062-021
3203-062-022
3203-062-023
3203-062-O24
3203-062-025
3203-062-026
3203-062-027
3203-062-028

3203-062-029
3203-062-030
3203-062-031
3203-062-032
3203-062-033
3203-062-034
3203-062,035
3203-062-036
3203-062-037
3203-062-038
3203-062-039
3203-062-040
3203-062-041
3203-062-042
3203-062-043
3203-062-044
3203-062-045
3203-062-046
3203-062-047
32D3-062-048
320s-062-049
3203-062-050
3203-062-051
3243462-O52
3203-062-053
3203-062-054
3203-062-055
3203-O62-056

3203-O62-057
3203-062-058
3203-062-059
3203-062-060
3203-062-061
3203-062-062
3203-062-063
3203-062-064
3203-062-065
3203-062-066
3203-062-067
3203-062-068
3203-062-069
3203-062-070
3203-061-075
3203-061 -076
3203-061-O77

3203-061 -078
3203-061 -079
3203-061 -080
3203-061 -081
3203-061 -082
3203-061 -083



TO

BOARD AGENDA

\pril3,2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Shawn Cabey, Assistant Superintendent Administrative ServicesPREPARED BY:

SUBJECT Revised/Deleted Board Policies and Administrative Regulation
First Reading

BACKGROLIND

Board Policy 3515.7 Revised - Firearms on School Grounds
[BP revised. To align with applicable statutes (CSBA)]
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 424) which eliminates the authority of the superintendent or designee

to permit a peÍson with a concealed weapons permit to possess a firearm on school grounds.

Board Policy 3517 Deleted - Revised Administrative Regulation 3517 Added - Facilities Inspection

fDeleted District Policy. Added NEV/ Administrative Regulation to align with applicable statutes (CSBA)]
Policy deleted and contents moved to AR. Regulation expanded to more directly reflect law regarding the

conditions that must be inspected pursuant to the Office of Public School Construction's facilities inspection
tool. Regulation reflects NEW LAW (AB 10) which requires a school that serves any of grades 6-12 and is a
high-poverty school, as defined, to stock 50 percent of its restrooms with feminine hygiene products and to
make such products available free of charge to students. Regulation also adds recommendation for lead testing
and describes the circumstances under which drinking water is required to be tested for lead, including a

requirement of NEW LAW (AB I 46) for testing of school buildings constructed before January I , 2010 .

PROGRAM/EDUCATIONAL IMPLICATION

None

CO ST ANALYS IS/FTINDING

There are no costs associated with updating/adding the Board Policies and Administrative Regulation

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

Approval

I4



Westside fJnion SI)
Board Policy
Firearms On School Grounds

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 35rs.t(a)

The Board of Trustees is committed to providing a safe environment for students, staff, and

visitors on campus. The Superintendent or designee shall consult with local law enforcement,
insr*ranee-ea*iersç and other appropriate individuals and agencies to address the security of
school campuses.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)
(cf . 41 581 42581 43 58 - Employee Security)
(cf. 513 i.4 - Student Disturbances)
(cf. 513 1.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

be inelr*ded in the distriet's eemprehensive safety plan and shall be eemmunieated te distriet

Possession ofa' under the,
but are'not

to, school bùildings; Code 626.9)

If a is in possession of a

, he/she shall immediately notify the

principal or designee

The prohibition against the possession of fîrearïns on school grounds shall be included in the

district's comprehensive safety plan and shall be communicated to district staff,
parentslguardiáns; æd' the eérnmunity-

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations)
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

issi€r++o

1



BP 3s1s.7(b)
Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32281 Comprehensive safety plan
38001.5 District security officers; requirements if carry f,trearm

PENAL CODE
626.9 Gun Free School Zone Act
830.32 District police department; district decision to authorize carrying of firearm
16150 Defìnition of ammunition
16520 Definition of firearm
26150-26225 Concealed weapons pérmii
30310 Prohibition against ammunition on school grounds

TINITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18

92I Def,rnitions, firearms and ammunition
922 Firearms, unlawful acts

923 Firearm licensing
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
l+5+ 796L Gun-Free Schools Act; student expulsions for possession of firearm

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
Offi ce of the Attorney General : htçs ://oag. ca. gov/f,rrearms

Policy WESTSIDE LTNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Il;4ay I7,2016 Quartz Hill, California
revised: November I,2016

2



Westside l]nion SI)
Board Policy - Delete
Facilities Inspection

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3517(a)

The Board of Trustees recognizes that the condition of school facilities may have an impact on

safety, student learning and achievement, and employee morale, and desires to provide school

facilities that are safe, clean, and functional, as defined in Education Code 17002.

(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 31 1 1 - Deferred Maintenance Funds)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a facilities inspection and maintenance program to

ensure that district schools are maintained in good repair in accordance with law. At a minimum,
the inspection program shall determine facility conditions specified on the inspection and

evaluation instrument, including any evidence of:

1. Gas leaks

2. Problems with mechanical systems, including heating, ventilation, or air conditioning
systems

3. Broken windows or doors

4. Broken gates or fences that could pose a safety hazard

5. Unsafe or unclean interior surfaces, such as walls, floors, or ceilings

6. Improperly stored hazardous or flammable materials that may pose. an immediate threat to

students or staff

7. Damaged or nonfunctioning structural elements, such as posts, beams, or supports

8. Nonfunctioning fire sprinklers and emergency equipment, such as alarms or fire
extinguishers

9. Improperly secured or nonfunctioning electrical systems, components, or equipment

10. Inadequate or nonfunctioning lighting

1 1. Major pest or vermin infestation

12. Inaccessible or nonfunctioning drinking fountains

1.



BP 3517(b)
13. Inaccessible, unclean, nonfunctioning, or inadequately supplied restrooms during school
hours

14. Backed-up, clogged, odorous, or flooded sewage system

15. Nonfunctioning or damaged roofs, gutters, drains, or downspouts

16. Drainage problems on school grounds, including water damage to playgrounds or parking
lots

17. Nonfunctioning or hazardous playground equipment or exterior fixtures

18. Nonfunctioning or hazardous fields, walkways, or parking lot surfaces

19. Unclean school grounds, including accumulated refuse or unabated graffrti

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any necessary repairs identified during the
inspection are made in a timely and expeditious manner. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide the Board with regular reports regarding the district's facility inspection program and
updates of any visits to district schools by the County Superintendent of Schools.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties
17002 Definitions
17070.10-17077.10 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998

17565-I1591 Property maintenance and control, especially:
17 584 Deferred maintenance
17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card
35186 Williams uniform complaint procedure
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
1 859.300-1 859.330 Emergency Repair Program

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
V/illiams Settlement and the Emergency Repair Program, Policy Brief, January 2008

COALITION OF ADEQUATE SCHOOL HOUSING PUBLICATIONS
Facility Inspection Tool Guidebook, February 2008
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams Case: http://www.cde.ca.govleolcelwclindex.asp
Coalition of Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org

2



BP 3517(c)
State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov

Policy WESTSIDE TINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: December 8,2009 Lancaster, California

3



Westside [Jnion SI)
Administrative Regulation
Facilities Inspection

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3517(a)

The Board oÊTrtrstees reeognizes that the eenditien ef sehoel faeilitics may have an impaet en

The Superintendent or designee shall developa inspect school facilities inspc€+i€n-an+

@o ensure tha+dis+rie+-seheets they are maintained in good repair i+-
#. At a minimum, he/she shall assess those @
de+ermine-facility conditions specifìed on the facilities inspection tooldeveþed by the Office of
Þublic School Construction, including, but not lirnited to, the following: (Education Code
tia1iL,.35tg2.s)

l. Gas lleaks: Gas systems and pipes appear and srnell safe, functional, and free of leaki.

2. Mechanical Systems: Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems, as applicable, are

functional and unobstructed; appear to supply an adequate amount of air to all clàssrooms, work
spaces, and facilities; and mainiain interioi temperatuies within normally acceptable ranges.
Preblems rvith meehanieal systems; ineluding hcating;ventilation; or air eenditiening systems

3. 'Windows 
and Doors: Windows and doors are intact, functional, and open, close, and iòck as

designed,'unless there.is:a,valid reasonthey should not function,as designed,
Rreken lvindelvs er d

4. Fences and Gates: Fences and gates are intact, functional, and free of holes and other
conditions that could present a safety hazard to students, stàff, or others. Locks and otlier security
hardware func-tion aS: designed.
nreken gatcs er fenees ft

5. Interior Surfaces (walls, floors, ceilings): Interior surfaCes àie ffee of iafety tràzards from
tears, holes, missing floor and ceiling tilei, torn carpet, water damage, or other cause. Ceiling
tiles are intact. Surfaces display no evidence of mold or mildew.
Unsafe er unelean interier surfaees; sueh as rvalls; floors; or eeilings

6. Hazardous Materials: Hazardous and flamrnable materials are stored properly. No evidence
of peeling, chipping, or cracking paint is apparent. No indicators of mold, *ild.*. or asbestos

exposure are evident. There does not appear to be evidence of hazardous materials that may pose

1.



AR 3517(b)
¿'threat to thè'health and safety of,students or staff.

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

studen+s-e+-s+atr

fìamagcd er ûenfuneti

ùnobstructed.
Nsnfunetionirg f+re sprinkle+s and emergeney equiprrrent;*uel+-as alarrnsor fire extinguishers

9 Eledtrical Systems; Èlechical' systems,,

unctioi boxes, panels, Wiring, outlets, and light
guarded from student accgss, and aþpear to

J

and'there
ine

I l. PestA/ermin Infestation: No visible or odorous indicators of pest or vermin infestation are

evident
@ien

Oiinking Fountains :, Intér'iói an'dT2

frêe of leaks, Drinking wâter'pre'¡sure
taste or'õdor, and.moss, rnold, or,exceJsl

ins

2



AR 3517(c)
the school or school attendance ârèa àiè flom iot-inCome families, at least SO percent of the
school's restrooms are stocked with féminine hygiene products, for which students are not
charged. (Education Code 35292.6;20 USC 6314)

nae*e¿ up; eleggcd;

Nenfunetiening er damagcd roofs gutters; drains; er dervnspents

16 School visible
evidence offlooded aleas, afeas, or
Clogged storm' drain inlets,
f'rainagc preblerns

Nenfunetiening or hazardous playground equipment er extcrier fixtures

parkinel€t-st*rfaees

19, Unelean seheol greunds; ineluding aeeumulated refuse er t*nabated graffiti

ofschool
state and

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any necessary repairs identified during the
inspection are made in a timely and expeditious manner. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide the Board with regular reports regarding the district's facility inspection program and
updates of any visits to district schools by the County Superintendent of Schools.

An asiessrnent of the safety, cleanlinesi, and ádequacy of school facilities, including any needed

3



ief. 05 1'0 . :school Accouútabili¡yRepón Card)

(cf. t: lz.+ - witliams:LJniform,Complãnt Procedures)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties
17002 Definitions
17070.10-17077.10 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998
17 565-17 591 Property maintenance and control;espeeialþ:
%
17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card
35186 Williams uniform complaint procedure
35292.5-35292.6 School maintenance
HEALTH AND SÀT'ETY COI}E
116217 Lead'testing in driqtiig water
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

1 859.300-1 859.330 Emergency Repair Program
LTNITED STATES CODF, TITLE 20
6314 Title I schoolwide program
LINITED STATES CODE, TTTLE 42
3001400j-21 Safe Drinking Water Act

Management Resources:
W
Williams Settlernent and the Ernergeney Repair Pregrarn; Peliey Briet January 2008
COALITION OF ADEQUATE SCHOOL HOUSING PUBLICATIONS

maintenánce to-ensure goo-d

school accountability report

Facility Inspection Tool
STATE ALLOCATION
PUBLICATIONS
Facility Inspection Tool:

Guidebook, February 2008
BOARD, OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

School Facilify Conditions Evaluation
WEB SITES

4



AR 3517(e)
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams Case: http://www.cde.ca.govleolcelwchndex.asp
Coalition of Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org
State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.sov
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency: http://www.epa.gov

Policy WESTSIDE TINION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: December 8,2009 Lancaster, California

5


